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We are

Placemakers
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We create outstbndln aglaces which make a p05|[|ve[ ! 4‘{\ § 7
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difference to pebple $everyday lives. Our pogtioliq bf[\@h ! L'LL]
quality commertkial pmpecty Is focused on retail LpEa[Eds i::-:.-i:::

around the UK and Londoen offices.

Qur objeciive 1s to delivar long term and sustainable total
returns to all our stakeholders. We do this by fecusing an
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In this year’s
Annual Report

The importance

of pcople

Read about the impartance
we place on our people and
how that fits into our strategy

(i_] To read more go Lo
pages 221023

Qur portfoho

Read more about our £14 4 biltion
properly portfolio and haw it has
performed this year

~=y Toread more go to
1
O pages 3610 47

Major trends impacting
our markets

Read about the long term trends
n our markels and how we

are responding

@ To read more go to
pages 12to 17




and how it drives value for
our shareholders

"7y Toread mere goto
(:9 pages 180 25

Our business model
Learn about what we do and
why thal s2ls us apart

= Toread moregoto

T

) pages 10to 11

For more mtormation

You will find links throughout Lhis
Report to guide you Lo further reading
or relevant information

D For more mfarmaticn visit our website
www britishland com

Fuedbach

Woe vatue your feedback Please contaci us at
Qur corporate website
www britishland com/contacts

, Follow us on Twitter
@BniishLandPLC

We are placemakers
Understand how our properties
enhance the lives of those who
work shop and live in them

1y toread more go to
pages 2610 35

Integrated reporting

We integrate social and environmental
informatien in this Report in line with
the International Integrated Reporling
framework This reflects how
sustainability 1s integrated into our
placemaking stralegy governance
and businass operations Qur indusiry-
leading sustainability strategy s a
powerful too! to deliver tasting value
for all our stakeholders

Faor more information visit
www britishland com/sustainability




HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

Por dohio valuation [praportienally consolidated]
£14.6bn

EFRA NAV per share

Dividend per share
28.36p

Underlying Proflit'

£363m
Underlying EPS
34.1p
Carbon intgnsity index srerel

'40% 3?)‘53

- Strong full year results

- Valuation performance driven by improving ERV growth and lettings

- Placemaking skills delivering teasing success, portfolia nearty fully let

- Allocating capital into our London campuses and mult-let Retall assets

- Modest committed development, but a stgnificant pipeline with optionality

- Robust financiat position with continued access to low cost finance

Toat propertyreurn
11.3%
RS e assets
£9,619m
14.2%

IFRS proft befre o
£1,331m
FrsePs
131.2p

Custamer sausfaction

749/10

!
I

Presentztion of inancial infermation

The Group financial statements are prepared under IFRS where the Group sinterests in joint ventures
and funds are shown as a s\ngle bine item on the income statement and balance sheet and all subsidiaries

are consolidated at 300 .5

Management considers the bussness principally on a proporitonally conselidated basis when selung

the sirategy determ ning annual prionities making investment and knancing dectsions and reviewing
performance This inciudes the Group s share of jont ventyres and funds on a ling by-line basis ang
excludes non-controlling inlerests in the Group s subsidiaries The financial key performance indicators
are also presented on this basis Refer to the Financial review [or a discussion of the IFRS results

' See glossary for definitiens
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I Estate Assoctation (EPR.A)
Pertormance measures!
&5 al 31 March [Em] 2016 23415 2014
EPRA earnings 365 313 255
EPRA NAY 10,074 9035 7027

1

| EPRA NNNAY 9,640 8359 4700
As at 3t March i .} 2016 2015 2014
EPRA net imitial yield 41 L3 43
EPRA Topped-up

1 netinsual yeld 45 [ 53

& EPRA vacancy rate 20 29 52

| £PRA Cost Ratio

I fincluding direct

I vacancy costst 166 164 142
{exctuding direct
vacancy costs! 149 146 139
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Stratedic Report

GROUP AT AGLANCE

We create outstanding places which
make a positive difference to people’s
everyvday lives: Places People Prefer

Total Portfoho

Wa create and operate attraclive places for
people ta work shop and live in Our properues
are well connected and wetl designed and we
use our placernaking skitls to enhance and
enliven them providing environments which
meet Lhe growing expectations of our occupiers
and customers

£20.06n"

Assets under management

£14.6bn

Briligh Land owned

29 sq ft'

Of floor space

£6741113

Cantracted rent

98.84%:

QOecupancy rate

9 0vrs

Weighted average
lease length

Highhghes
- Total accounting return of 14 2% for the year

-Streng ERV growlh of 5 3% 130 bps ahead
of the market benchmark

— Completed £1 3 bilhien of gross investment
actwity with acquisiion and development/
capiial spend broadly balancing disposals

- Proporuonately consolidated weighted
average interest rate reduced by 50 bps
103 3%

- Roger Madelin appointed to head up
Canada Water development

- Winner of the 2016 Queen s Award for
Enterprise for Sustainable Development

(:I_ To read more information about our
—" performance ge to pages 36to 47

Retasl & Lewsure

Qur Reiail and Leisure portfolio s tocused en
reqional and local multi-let assets We provide
hugh qualily retail alongside a growing leisure
offer and bestin class services ta deliver
outslanding places which are in tune with
modern consumer tfeslyles places where
people go to shop eat and be entertainad

47

multi-let assels

152

other retall and
lersure assets

£9.8bn:

Assats under managamant

4. 3bn’

British Land swned

20m sq ft'

Of floor space

Mighhgles
- Portfobio valuation up 2 4% to £7 3 bilion

- Qver 903 000 sq it of Retarl letiings and
renewals 8% ahead of ERV

- Acceleraung ERY trend broadly balanced
across regional and local sub seclors
leading to 1PD putperformance of 110 bps
demonstrating the quality of our portiolio

-~ L£420 miltion of disposals further reducing
axpasure 1o mature or non-core assels
mutti-let now represenis over 70%
of retail portiolio

@ To read maore inforenation about our Retail
" and Leisure go (o pages 40 to 43

' tncludes 100 .. of the assets owned by the Graup s joinl ventures and funds
* Includes the Group share of joint ventures and lunds and excludes non conirolting

interests in the Group s subsidiaries
* tncludes Canada Water property of £0 3 bilhion

2 Briush Land Annuat Reporl and Accounts 2016

I Offices & Residential

" Qur Qffices and Residennal portfobio s focused
" on London We provide a range of working

I and living space across our campuses and

I distinctiva standalane properties which

1 combine a broad mix of relail and leisure

| 1o create attractive wall-located and well-

! managed environmeants

r

E 9 9bn' 3

I Assels under management Mixed use campuses

£ 4.0bn: 57

British Land owned Stand-alone offices

‘ 9n sq ft' 7

Of {loer space Office and resideatial
developments

|
|
| Highhghts
I - Porlfolio valuation uplift of 11 8% Lo £7 0 billion
I

- 296 D00 sq 1t of Office lettings and renawals
5 4% ahead of ERV

- Leadenhatl Building 8% let or under cffer
wilh just one floor teft to let

|
|
b - Nelinvestment of £280 million into cur

| London campuses including acquisilion
| of 1 Sheldon Square al Paddington

I

- 739000 sq 11 of devetopments comeleted
inthe period with 5 Broadgate accounting
for 710 000 sq ft

- Planning consent recewved fora 823 000 sq ft
redevelopment at our Broadgate campus
(100 Liverpool Street and 1 Finsbury Avenuel

@) To read more information about our Offices
and Residential go to pages 44 to 47




Our portfolio is focused on
retail locations around the
UK and London offices

Qur properues are home to aver 1 200 different
organmisations rangmng from internatronat
brands to local start-ups More than 64 000
people work across our Qffice portfolie and our
Retail sites receive 330 million visits per year

London

Meadowhall
kL VIF -
, 1‘:\\ @ﬁw;rf 7

-
/ ‘i'i J’JL\ /

09
s~

™ W

1.5m sq ft N e

Retail and leisure space

98% $e o ’

]
Occupancy &

Yorkshire s premier shopping
destination and home to nearly 300
shops and restaurants The cenire lirst ¢ @ e
openad in 1970 and 1 undergoing a ®
substantial refurbishment onaits 23th -]
annversary It has attracted 540 milhan .
visitars in is 25 years A PwC report 4
published this year reveated that it
supperts 1 job in every 100 in the

regon and Ipin every £1 generated

by tha regionat economy

www meadowhall co uk ®

(ﬁ\ To read the PwC report go o
~—~ www britishland com/Meadowhall25

The Leadenhall Building

603,000 sq t

Office and Retait space

98

letfunder affer

Preminently located in the Cily of London
The Leadenhall Building s distinctiva shape
was developed as a response to planning
requwemants which protect the viawing
corrders of 5t Paul s Cathedral Cfficially
opened by the Quke of Cambrdge ane Prince
Harry in 2045 1t has attracted some fugh
profile occupiers in¢luding joint owners
OMERS and the buitding s architects
Rogers Slirk Harbour + Partners

www theleadenhallbulding com

5.5m sq ft

A designated London Gpporiunily Area
this 4b-acre site was assembled in four
transactions over five years We are
waorking with the Londan Borough of
Southwark to rreate an exciling new
place for London which connects with
the tecal cammunily and 1$ integratea
with the surrounding area Thisisa
magor long term project which wilt

be delivered in a number of phases
and 13 one of the largest mixed use
regeneration projects in London

www canadawatermasterplan com

Map key

@ Oifices & Residential
@ Retail & Leisure
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Srratedic Report

CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT

We have had another busy
and successful year

Kev Inghhehts ot the sear

Total accounting return!

14.2%

Reflecung the increase 1n our net asset value
per share and income yield from the dradend

EPRA net asset value per share'

9219,

Up 10 9%

Dividend per share

28.36p

Up2 5%

' Please see the glossary for defimtion

Welcome to our 2016 Annual Report We have
had a strong year reflecting the work we have
done repositioring our portfolio to rmirror the
changing way peopte live their lives

Buildings are most successful when they
reflect tha needs of those who occupy and

use them Getiing closer to our customars
continues to be a key theme for us and an
underslanding of how modern lifestyles
increasingly merge work and leisure time
informs nat only how we manage and develop
our assets bul also the allocation of our capital

Qur delivery of Places People Prefer s
evidenced once agam by our near fully let
portiolio and the growth we have generated
across our business

Underlying Profit for the year was £343 million
up 18% The valuation ol our portiolio also
increased by 6 7% to £14 6 billon and NAV was
up 18 9% 16 919 pence per share The Board has
recommended a fourth quarter dvidend of 709
pence per share making a toial of 28 36 pence
for the year We have proposed a first quarter
dividend of 7 30 pence per share for 2077 an
increase of 3 0% The total accountng return
was 14 2%

British Land Annual Repori and Accounts 2016
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Across the global markels equilies have had
a diificult year the FTSE 100 was down 11 6%
over the last 12 months [year to 15 May 2014}
reflecting heightened concerns about
macro-economic and political risks Closer Lo
home ocur shares along with the REIT sector
have underperformed the FTSE principatly
reflecting concerns about the impacl an exil
from Europe would have on the property seclor
particutarly in London While we are mindful
of this uncertainty we are confident that our
business is both resilient and well placed far
the long term

A highlight for me this year was the official
opening of The Leadenhall Burlding

last October |was delighted Lo welcome

the Duke of Cambridge ana Prince Harry as
guests of honour as the building officially
opened for business The Cheesegrater as

it1s affectionately known 15 a great example

of what Enitish Land does best - financing,
developing and managing exceptional buildings

From its innovative construction technique and
distinctive design to its immediate recognition
on the London skyline The Leadenhall Bullding
has been an outstanding success story Yoted
The City of Londen Building of the Year in 2015
 has attracted the tnghest rents ever achieved
in the City of London [t s ne surprise that itis
now 98% let/under alfer

During the year we were once again also
recogmised as suslainability leaders in glabal
indices and awards Since launching our 2020
sustainabibity strategyin 2015, we have made
strong progress embedding sustainability
acrass our busingss We are achieving results
by setting hugh standards detivering traiming,
prowiding support and sharing best practice
working closely with our development partners
and property management subsidiary
Broacgate Estates Lid + am pleased thal we
support RE10G - committed to purchasing
electricity from renewable power We alse invest
inrenewable energy sources at cur assets with
photovoltaic panels instalted at St Stephen s in
Hull during the year By promoting wellbeing
supporting communities operating efficient




buildings developing people s skills and growing
economies we are creabing places that attract
occuplers workers shoppersand residents and
so gain value over ime - Places People Prefer

Our high guality portfolio the eptronality within
our development programme and our streng
finances posions us well for the future

el er.

lohn Galdersleeve
Non-Executive Chairman

{a Full year resulis 2010
~=" www britishland com/results

{ﬁ‘ For more information on sustainability
— www britishland com/sustainability

—

C' Chief Executive s reviaw go Lo pages
6103

(’3‘) Chairman s governance review go to
~~ pages 70 to 71

Qur delivery of Places People Prefer is evidenced once
again by our near fully let portfolio and the growth we
have generated across owr business.”

.@ 2016 Queen’s Anard tor Enterprise

In Apri thus year Briish Land was one of anly seven companies
lo recerve the 2016 Queen s Award for Enterprise Sustamnable
Development as part of Her Majesty The Queen s 90th

birthday honours

THE QUEEN 3 AWARDS
FORN ENTERPRISE

Pl The Award 1s the UK s highest accolade for business success

and 1s given to companies which bring major economic

social and environmental benefits through their own business
success It has been awarded to British Land for continuous
achievement in all these areas over the last five years
According to Business Secretary Sapd Javid winners are
leading the wayn & hroad range of industries and show
they are invoived in activity that ensures a better quality of

life for evaryone now and m the future

We were obviously thritled to recerve the award Understanding
what really matters to our customers s helping us drive continued
improvements thro:ghout our business As people s attitudes
and expectations change good businesses respond Our purpose
of creating Places People Prefer and the huge amounl of work
we have done on placernaking is making a material posilive
differance to the customer experience at aur assels

This award recognises the coniribution of everyone at Baitish
Land We also appreciate ihal the help and commitment of our
customers partners suppliers and many ather stakeholders
has played a partin this achievement Inlegrating sociat and
environmental activities into every area of a business is not
somelhing you can do on the side orin 1salalion We would like
lo extend our thanks to everyone who has worked with us over
the years and bke us believes that adopting a responsible
approeach to business 1s a powerful teol which helps drive
customer preference and deliver lasting value

Wz@@iw

John Gaidersloce Chis Gt
Non-Executive Chairman Chief Executive

) For more information on The Queen s Awards for Enlerpnse
~= http.//queensawardsmagazine com/

“"j) For more information on our awards
= www britishland com/awards

British Land | Annuai Repert and Accounts 2016 R




Strategic Report

CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW

Our strong results are underpinned
by good performances across

the business

Kev highlhighes ot the vear

Total accounting returns'

14.29%

Reflecting the increase in our net assat value
per share and income yield from the diadend

Underlying Profit growth'

16.0%

Driven by financing aclty development
completions and bke-for like net rental
ingome growth

Planning granted on

1.5m sq ft

of development space

' Please sae the glossary for definibon

In a fast changing market we are facusing

our business to benefit from long lerm trends
notably the transforming wnpact technology

1s having on the way we work shep and bive the
impact of pepulation growth and urbanisation
particularly in London and the Seuth East and
INCreasing consumer expectalions In areas
such as heallh wellbeing and sustainability
We are focusing our portfolio on places where
we can control the environment exploiting

our placemaking expertise to manage more
complex mixed use environments delivering

on our core purpose of creating Places Pecple
Prefer We see increasing overlap between our
office campuses and our mult-let regional and
local retail centres as they combine a greater
mix of uses and evolve to reflect aur customers
changing Ufestyles

We have had another good year both in terms
of our underlying hinancial perfermance and
our delivery against aur strategic abjectives
Performance in the year was underpinned by
strengthening rental growth reflecting the
Investments we have made across our portfolio
in recent years alengside good accupational
markets We made good progress with our
committed developments and are in a strong
position to be able to move forward wilh our
near term development pipeline when the

6 British Land | Annual Repert and Accounts 2016

time 1s night We continued to sell mature and |
non-core assels redeploying capital principally

nto our existing portfolio - in our campuses

and regional and locatratall centres Qverall

our invesiment activity was broadly balanced

EPRA net asset value was 10 9% ahead at

919 pence per share at the year end (932 pence
excluding the Impact of the recent meraase in
stamp duty) Valuation was up 6 7% with Offices
up 11 8% and Retallup 2 4% principally due to

5 3% ERV growth across the portiolio which
was 130 bps ahead of IPD We generated total
property returns of 11 3% for the year

Underlying Protit was 14 0% ahead at

£343 million driven both by our success(ul
leasing activity and our lower financing costs
Diluted Undertying EPS was up 11 £% at

341 pence per share inline with previous
announcemenis the final quarlerly dividend

15 709 pence pershare bringing the full year
dividend to 28 36 pence per share anincrzase
ol 2 5% delivering a total accounting relurn of
14 2% Our properucnately consolidaled LTV
reduced to 32% in Line with our strategy of not
gearing up on yield shift with our imvestment
aclvity broadly balanced As & result of cur
relinancing activities including the £350 million
zero coupen converuibie bond our aver age !
financing costis down 50 bpsto 3 3%

Reflecting our confidence in the coming year

the Board s proposing a quarterty dividend of

730 pence per shar e or 29 20 pence per share

for the fullyear anincrease of 3 0%

Qur portfolio s wirtually fult with occupancy

of 9% In good cccupational markets inboth
Retail and Offices we saw strong levels of
demand for our remairung space Thisis
reflected in our leasing transactions with

13 mitlion sq ft of letungs and renswals agreed
on average 6 8% ahead of ERV

In Qffices we made good progress enhancing
and enlivening envircnments strengthening
long term demand for our space and appealing
to a broader range of occuplers We lator
renewed 796 000 sq ft of space on average

5 &% ahead of ERV and added £3 8 million

of rent through rent reviews settled oen tlerms




17% ahead of previous rents The Leadanhall
Building 1 now 8% let or under offer wath just
one of the top floors to let We are making good
pregress on our campus visions At Broadgate
we completed 5 Broadgate and we are
progressing our development opportunities
acrossthe campus Elsewhere our focus on
creauing Places People Preferis driving public
realm improvements at Paddington Ceniral
anawill influence our plans at Regent s Place
where we see further near term refurbishment
opportumities Our campuses remain
affordable and the mvesiment we are
undertaking leaves us wall positioned to
capture rental growth going forward

In Retail we lel or renewed 03 000 =g ft of
space on average 8 0% ahead of ERVrellecung
the sirength of our markets as well as the
quality of our assets and the work we have been
doing to improve lhem We now manage our
mutti-tet portfolio along regional and lecal lines
refiecting howwe see consumers spend iheir
bme and money We continued to investin our
multi-let portfolio through large scalz laisure
exiansions but also through smaller asset
management Inst:atives impraving the
amenities at our assets to drive footfall

dwell and spend through improved customer
saisfaction Footfall across our mulli-lel
portfoliowas up 3 0% outperforming the
markeat benchmark by 440 bps with retailers
in-store sales also ahead of the market up

2 4% We saw strong demand for our pipeline
of lzisure exlensions and at those asseats where
we have compleled exiensions or improvermneant
works we have already seen goad ERV growth
and operational improvements Superstores
performance was more subdued as expected
but we have been active in selling down our
holding te £0 8 billion from £1 3 billion two
years age With deals under offer this {alls

to £0 7 billion

As expecied our investment aclivity was
broadly balanced over the year inctuding

our share of capital spend We continued

to allocatle more capital into our Londen
campuses investing a net £230 million through
developments al Broadgate Regents Place
and Paddington Central where we alsao
acgquired One Sheldon Square In Retait we
made £420 million of disposals as we increase
cur focus on the mults-let portfolic where we
can put our ptacemaking skits lowork to drive
rental growth

trs April Britrsh Land was one of only seven
compames 1o receve the 2015 Queen s Award
ior Enterprise Sustamnable Development as
part of Her Majesty The Queen s 90th birthday
honours The Award s the UK s highest
accolade for business success and is given

io cemparies which bring major economic
social and environmental benefits through
their business The award reflects our

Wa creale outstanding places which
rake a pasitive difference to people s
everyday lives

Places People Prerer

This s the core unifying purpese of
our business guiding our strategy
and shaping our aclions

Strategie focus
We deliver long term sustainable returns
for our stakeholders by focusing on

Customer Qrientation
Right Places

Cupital Efficieney
Expert People

This drives demand from our occupiers
sustanable growth in income and
ulumately capital values

£ Mare information about our strategy
and progress can be found on pages
18 to 25

Placcmalang

Placernaking 1s how we deliver ptaces
people want lowork shop live and
spend ime

We connect
Ve design
We enhance
We enliven

7 Fund qut mare about our placemaking
L
(J approach on pages 2616 35

Our values
Our values underpin everything we do

Do what 1s right not
what is casy

Work efficiently us one tewm

Make commercial decisions
that create long term value

Make things happen

continuous achievemnent in all these areas over
the last five years We made strong progress
embeadding our stsiainabibity strategy
including innovating an wellbeng through
public realm rmprovements wheare we invested
£30 million aver the year We diverted 98% of
all managed waste from landfill and delivered
a 40% carbon intensity reduction, leading

the Global Real Estate Sustainabitity
Benchmark for Europe/diversified for the
second year running

Development remains a core part of our
business With the delivery of 5 Broadgate

our 2030 programma completed in the year
generating profit of £1 1 billien and an IRR of over
30% We are currentlyon site 3t 629000 sg {t of
developments a speculative commitment of
£530 million, principally & Kingdom Street and
Clarges Mayfair our super prime residenual
scheme [over 50% pre-sold] Locking forward
we have a significant future pipeline with built

1n optionality meaning we can start each project
at the nght time At Breadgate our near term
pipeline includes 100 Liverpoot Street and

1 Finsbury Avenue where we recerved planning
during lhe year and looking to the medium

term we submitted a planning application at

2-3 Finsbury Avenue Other potential near term
oppertunilies n Glfices include 1 Triton Square
al Regent s Place and 5 Kingdom Street at
Paddington Central In Retail our near term
pipeline includes leisure extensions at Drake
Circus Plymouth and New Marsey Speke

Our medium term plans include our mred use
redevelopment of the Eden Watk Kingslon and
a significant lersure extension al Meadowhall
[currently in public censultation] which wll
enhance ils pesition as a flagship regrenal centre

We have an exceptional opportunity al Canada
Water to creale a vibrani new deslingtion for
tonden and are delighted Roger Madelin has
joined Britsh Land to head up the project

we are already benefiing from hus experience
leading the redevelopment of King s Cross
Thus 1s a long term preject buiwe are making
pragress with a public consultation taking
olace inFebruary 2016 ahead of an outline
planming submission in 2017

British Land  Annual Report and Accounts 2016 7




Strategic Report

CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW CONTINUED

Outlooh

Looking forward we remain confident in the
underlying strength of the business despite
continued global macro uncertainty and the
potentally adverse wnpact of a vote for the UK
to leave the European Union Our business s
resiient our portiolio 1s modern nearly fully
let to quality occupiers on long leases and our
finances are strong with moderate LTV low
cosls and long dated financing trom a wide
range of sources Qur current committed
development pipeline is medest bul we have
built optionality into our future pipeline so we
can exploit its potential when the time s right
Our strategy of crealing Places People Prefer
focuses our investment and activities on macro
trends ensuring our real estale reflects the
changing way people work shop and Lve

We have signtficant opportunities across our
existing portfolio including in our three existing
Lenden campuses and the poiential to create
a new London campus at Canada Water
alongside our regional and local rmutti-let
Retall assets

Chins Gnigg
Chief Executive

(i] To read more information about cur
Business model go to pages 10 and 11

(J’il) Full year results 2016
=" www britishland com/results

@) Chief Executive blog
~— www britishland com/ceablog

{’“ For more information an sustainabiity
— www britishland com/sustamability

Our prionties for the year ahead

Dehver sustamable returns tor staheholders

Customer Orientation
- Improve understandmng of our customers

- Use placemaking ta deliver improved
customer experience

Cupital Efficiency
- Deliver hudget

- Accelerate delivery of multi-lat regional
and lacal Lifestyle retail

§ . British Land  Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Right Places
- Progress developments alongside material
pre-lets

- Progress Canada Water visien and ptan

Expert People
- improve company organisational
effectiveness

- Embed placemaking across the business
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The Leadenhall Building

Cesigned by Rogers Surk Harbour + Partners
The Leadenhalt Bulding 1s a urigue 603 000 sq
fi office tower prammnently localed in the centre
of the City of London is defliming featureisits
distinclive lapering shape which when viewed
from the West appears to lean away from

St Paul s Cathedral Thiswas developed asa
response to the specific planning requirements
which protect the views of St Paul s from a
number of iocations in London The British Land
and Oxford Properties building won the
Worshipful Company of Chartered Architacts -
City of Londen s Building af the Year award in
2015 after judges declared it an extraordinary
example of contemnporary architecture The
building was also recognised by the Bribish
Council of Offices with 8 Commercial Workplace
Award for ds iconic strizcture and inteltigent
arrangemen:s which allow the building {ayout
to change as it rises”

www theleadenhallbuilding com
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#5m Cheesegrater

The winning entry by Tom Mearns

to our #5SayCheasegrater Instagram
competilion designed to celebrate the
official opening of The Leadenhall Building
by the Duke of Cambridge and Prince Harry

Bntnsh Land I‘|Annual Reaa:.‘.and Accounle ZUlf '
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Strategic Report

BUSINESS MODEL

)

Our business is
focused on creating
Places People Prefer

_Source (0

&
Invest

Identifying and investing
In assets with the greatest
potential to provide value

Source The scale of our business

the expertise of our people and our
nelwork of cantacts provide access
to the best investment appertumnities

Invest We have the skills, experience
and financial flexibibity to execute the
most value-enhancing investments
either 10 acquiring assets or investing
In the existing portfolio
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Design

We focus on attractive and convenient
ptaces which are in tune with modern
lifestyles, those which connect

with people and reflect the best

in modern design

Connect We create places which
connect phystcally and digitally
with those peopte who use them
including local communities in
which they are located

Design Our buiidings and
environments offer the highest
quality of design with engaging
architeciure and a fully integrated
public realm

008

. LTI T
r « U
ﬁ.‘;-—,_;.:;h-v TN f 5
Wi N |
I R o -
r 0 ooklly = s |oDoao o J.‘\
G . |opwooo 3 :
ﬁ}"« DEOOOD CLELZAN s

5
o o ‘?w‘}gs, %Y
T
Y

DEI )

@@ |:|E|

Hﬂ oo

QQES 0

on
oo .
[m] 111
oo O Ll
1]

[m]

@ - 1-
R | HHH%ﬂ\
e aoo
1= A e




3
Enhgnce
Enliven

Active asset management to
enhance and enltven our assets
creates vibrant and engaging real
estate, which attracts the strongest
occupiers to our portiolio

Enhance We enhance our properhies
by attracting a strong diverse mix of
occupiers and broadening the offering

Enliven We provide events and

activities which bring life and a

real sense of community to our

buldings and bestin class services

which improve the experience for w

our customers \ g

noa
00g

000
[0

........
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LT e vy =y
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Our sector knowledge and expertise
allows us to evaluate the potential
of our assets and assess whether

they can deliver future value for
shareholders

Evaluate We assess our sectors
and assels {or their potential to
deliver atiractive returns over time

Hold or Sell We allocate capital to
secters and assetswith potential
and realise capital from mature
or non-core assets

T Find more infermation about our
strategy on pages 181tc 25
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Strategic Report

MARKET OVERVIEW

What sets
us apart?

Our approach to doing business puls
the customer at the heart of what we do
This underpins our ability to deliver

Places People Prefer Smm——
Customer msight

Ourinvestment in data collection
and anatytics brings us closer

to gur customers guiding our
investments and helping us Lo
create places that meet their
expectations and lfestyles

Lifesty le focused retl 330
nl

CNVIronments

Regional and lecat multi-let

retail assets 10 tune with modern
consumer lifestyles where people
ge to shop eat and be entertained

annual footfall at
our retal assets

12 British Land | Annual Reporl and Accounts 20154

More than

64,000

people wark across our office partiolio

Placemalang shalls

Improving our assets o creale a better
overall experience for our customers
and local communities Places which
are easy tovisit vibrant pleasant and
engaging and with high quality on site
services places where pecple want
lowork shop live and visit

Ihigh quality office
CAIMPUSCs

Gffice-led environments focused
around keytransportinfrastructure
with a growing retail and leisure offer
enabling pecple to combine work and
nlay The diversity of our olfening
provides opporiunities and amenities
for locat communiies helping lo
energise the broader campus




Mixed use development
experiencee

Large scale projects combimng
offices retail residential and
leisure set amidst atiraclive
public spaces Typically these
devetopments invelve ¢lose
collaborauon with local planning
authorities communibies and
partners aswell asactve
day-to-day management

Strong network

of relationships
Our networks span occcupiers
planners local authorities
cammunity leaders strategic
partners and investors reflecting
our many years as leading
developers and landlords
acrossthe UK

29,500

Pecple beneited directly from our
COmmuNIty programme (s year
including apprentices jobseekers
and schoolchildren

Ability to souree and

execute comples deals
We have the expertise and
linancial {lexibility reguired to
execule complex deals detivering
highly attractve relurns for

our sharehclders

Sustamabilin
credentials
We have been sustainabilily
leaders for a tong ime and

have successfully integrated
sustanability into cur placemaking
approach mnovating to improve
people s wellbeing supporung
lecal cemmuniiies designing for
the future and developing skills
and opportunities at cur places

(53 For more nformauen on sustanability
~— www britishland com/sustainability

BriishLand Annual Repert and Accounts 2016
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Srrategic Repore

MARKET QVERVIEW CONTINUED

Major trends impacting

our markets

Our invesiment and occupabional markets are
tncreasingly global The UK s polsucal statnlity
sound legal and financial framework time zone
and the liquidity of 1ts property markels make
itan atlractive home lor internalional capital
London i parucular offers some of the best
employment epportunities as well as great
placesiotive and work underpinning the
growing gtobalisaton of its workforee

Sources of mvestment m Uk real estate

HUK 57%
BAmMeancas 17%
Rast of World 26%

Source JLL 2016

Positn e but moderate
' economic growth

Overall economic fundamentals in the UK
remain positive Real wages and employment
are forecast to conunue lo grow and inflation
and interest rates are expected lo remain low
by hisloric standards However with markets
becoming increasingly global there s a greater
risk lhat exiernal factors including a vote for
the UK to leave the European Union wittimpact
our markets sowe are mindful of the need 1o
manage our business to mitigate these nsks

5.1%

UK unemployment rate versus Euro areacf 103 %

Source Ofice for Nalional Staustics April 2018

14 British Land Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Population growth
and urbamsation

The UK population s expected to grow from

&4 & rrllion en 2014 1o 74 3 mullton by 2039
Much of the iIncrease will be In its largest cities
notably London underpinming dermand for
retail and office space aswetl as nfrastructure
and housing In London investmentin better
transport including new rad links and
improvad stations 1s underway This s driving
growth and regeneration across the capital

8.7m

Greater London poputauan forecast Lo qrow
by § % per annum

Source Oxford Economics

1.8m

ertra peopte within 45 munutes of Loncen
with Crossrail from 2018

Source Crossrail websiie
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Transformng unpact
of teehnology

Technology continues lo transform the way

we work shopandiive Theinternet has created
a choice ot delvery platforms so people can
shop in a manner which suits them People are
also able to work remotely increasingly they
see their working environment as a place to
coltaborate and netwark and this changes the
type of office space they are loaking for

344,000

additignal employees working for small firms

Source Department for Business Innovation & Skills
Business Population Estimates 2013

(99

Our sustainable business model is designed

to benefit from and exploit long term sector

and macro-ccononc trends.”

OO
@O
Increasing consumer
evpectations

Peopte s expactations of where they work
shop and bive are nsing They expect atlractive
welt-managed environments modern facilibies
and a igh standard of service They like places
which are accessible and convenient and
increasingly theyexpect leisure to be a part [
of their averyday lives '
|
]

249

|
|
i
|
increase in UK F&B/leisure spend forecast between |
2014 and 2021 |
1
1
1
|

Source CACI

Briish Land

Focus on sustamable
and ethieal behasiours

People expect companies to have sound
sustainability credentials 10 adhere to a high
standard of ethical behaviour and ta ensure the

' wellbeing of their employees This s starting

to influence who we want to work for the places
we shop and live and the kind of developments
local communities are prepared to accept
Reftecting this1s a growing expectalion that
governments should use policy to promote
sustainable and ethical practices

809%

of people elieve that companies can play a leading role
n solving sociely s problems while stll making prafits

Source Edelrman 2016 Trust Baromeler

195

countries agr2ed o keep global warming betow 2'C
pursuing efforts 10 bmititto 13°C

Source United Natrans Framework Canvention
on Climate Change COP 21 Paris 2015

ol

Annuat Report and Accounts 2016 |




Strategic Report

MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

How we are
responding

Getting closer to our custoniers

- Improving our understanding of our
customers preferences with effective
syslems and processes (o capture and
analyse data

- Increasing in-house expertse with dedicated
analytics and marketing capabilities

-impraving in-house management of our
properbies to deliver consistent best in
class standards

- tnvesting in the British Land brand so people
know what ihey can expect from us and the
properties we own and manage

Completed

>150,000

consumer extt survays completed over the past four
years al our retail assets

- Investing in places which are well
connecled well designed and in tune
with madern hfestyles

- Enhancing and enlivening our assels
through aur placemaking activities
attraclive environments best Iinclass
services and innovative leisure and
entertainment options

- Places which are well integraled which
add value lo local communities and where
they choose lo spand time

$280m

nvested in London campuses over the lastyear

16 British Land | Anntal Report and Accounts 2014

i}

Focusmg on internet resilient
Iifestyle Retail

I

- Focusing on creating cutstanding regional
and local mulli-let 1 etail asselswhich are
In tuna with modern consumer bfestyles

- Understanding where a wide ranging mixed
use offering will drive footfall and where
convernient and accessible assets are
more appropriate

-Investing to keep pace with changing
consumer preferences

15%

increase in dwell bme at the assels where we have
recently completed makeovers lo improve the
shopping experience




&

Growing in London
and the South East

- {dentifying emerging areas that will benefit
from growth and regenerstion particularly
transportfinfrastructure-led

- Increasing the retail lesure residentsal
and other alternative uses to enhance our
office-led campuses

- Investing i relatively affluent retail locations
cutside of London with population growth
where there 1s potential to upscale the offer

- ldentifying compelling residential
cpportunities

65%

of our assels are located
in London or the South Easl

\
|
|
|
|
\
|
|
|
|
?
|
|
|
|

]

Profitable deyelopment

- Near term opportumtias which focus on
keeping our campuses and our retail-led
centras modern

- Long term large scale mmed use projects
where we can put our placemalung skills
towork

- Managing rnsk through pre letung and
phasing development starts

92m sq ft

ol deselopments 1n our near/madium term prpeline

British Land ' Annual Regort and Accounts 2014 1

Embedding sustanabihin
m placemalking

- Adaptable and efficient buildings

I - Promoting wellbeing and productivity for
l our occupiers customers and communities

- Supporting local communities with our
new Lacal Charler launched this year

- Developing skilts and opportiurities to support
loczl econprmes

RE100

We suppert RE100 - committed 1o purchasing
electricity from renewable power rn our own space
* and arross service rharge space

|
|

|

| fﬁ) For more informat on on sustanabibty
. — www britishland com/sustainability

| 77y Toread more about our strategy

1 @ goto pages 1810 25
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Srrategic Report

QUR STRATEGY

Our strategy for creating
Places People Prefer

Qur strategy
Qur strategy delermines our focus
for our annual priorilies

(B Ta read more on gur priorities
— for the year ahsad go to

paged Customer Orientation

- Leverage our customer insight services
experience and technelogy i be recogmised
for creating Places People Prefer

- Use consistent and scalable ways of working

- Provide bestin class property managemeant
by developing in-house capabililies
through Broadgate Estales |

000
CCD

Expert People

- Maintain high standard ol operational
and investment skill sets and encourage
developmentin evolving areas

- Promote a culture which supports
the recrustment and development
of a dwverse leam

- improve ways of working
across the business !

Creating Places
People Prefer
drives enduring
demand for

our propertics.

in rents and
capital value.

18 Britsh Land  Annual Report and Accounts 2016

This gencrates
long term growth

)

A

Right Places

- Create and operate exciting and engaging
lifestyle orienled real estale put Places
People Prefer at the hearl of our approach

- Investin Londen - in existing assets and
emerging lecations benefiting from
regeneration and growth

- Focus on regional and local mulu-let retail
assets which are in tune with modern
consumers lifastyles

. Y, -
Capital Efficiency
- Allocate capital to massrmese returns from
our competibive advantages

- Manage both cur development expasure and
financial leverage through the cycle while
mantaining the benefits of scale

- Be the partner of choice for international
capital and public bodies

Together with

an optimal capital
structure this
delivers sustainable
long term value.




Our objective is to deliver sustainable
long term value for all stakeholders

Oceupiers and

thair customers

- High quality emairgnments
which promote productivity
and wellbeing

- Affordabte and effroent buldings

- Qutstanding custiomer services
and facilities

Imyestors
- Access to hugh quality biquid real
eslale investment

- Stabte secure cash flows

smployees

- Aninclusive environment
with ephanced wellbeing
and productivity

~ Supenior tolal returns

- Potentiai to develop shills
and opoartunities

- Opporiunities to make
a positive difference

IA)L‘:.II conmmmuuties
- Aitractive local environments

- Facibuies and services which
enhance the overall area

Partners
- Access o high quality real estate

- Places which support local jobs
and shills
- Assei management and

development skills - Stronger cormnmunity networks

and facilities

- Strong relationships
(E‘D For more information on sustamatmlity

= www brittshland com/sustainability

BritishLand Annual Repori and Accounts 2016 19




Strategic Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

How we performed
over the past year

Our prionities in the year were

What we have achieved

Qur leng term objective

Delnenng sustainable
long term value

Customer Orientation

- Getlng claser Lo our occupiers and end users
- Improving our systems and processes

- Leveraging Broadgate Estates

- Innovating to suppart customer wellbeing

- Centinuing to repostticn the Retail portfotio

- 13msq ftef leasing activity across Retaid
and Offices

- The Leadenhall Building now 98% let/under
offer up irom 84% at the start of the year

- £420m of mature/non-core Retail assets
sold including £122m of superstores
redueing our weighting to 5%

- Over 43 000 people surveyed in Retall with
sales dala on 94% of mulli-let assets and
footfall data on 99%

-4 2/5visnar score for shopping experience

- 350 occupier surveys now completed
in Offices with foatlall counters piloted
at Broadgate

- Broadgate Estates now managing all of
our retail asseis covering over 20m sq {t

- Partnered with cccupiers on initiatives
at our properties mcluding wellbeng
and community

- Internal team sirengthened, with improved
systems and processes io analyse data

Right Places

- Progressing our strategy for Landon

- Progressing comrmittad and near term
developments

- Relreshing medium term stralegies for
Broadgate Meadowhall and Canada Water

- Supporung successful tocal cormmunities

- £280m netinvestmenl into London campuses

- Progressing the Broadgate vision with
ptanring achieved on 100 Liverpool Street
and 1 Finsbury Avenue and submitied at
2 and 3 Finsbury Avenue

- Good progress at our development at
4 Kingdom Streel and Paddington Central

- Refurbishment of 338 Eusten Road Regents
Place completed with over 80% of space
pre-lel to Facebook

- Circa £80m investad i improvements and
extensions to Retail assets Drawing up plans
for a proposed 330 000 sq 1t Letsure Hall
al Meadowhall

- £60m refurbishment of Meadowhall under
way and progressing well

- Progressing our Canada Water development
hatd a public consultation in February 2016

~taunch of Local Charter to support
successful local communities and cevelop
local skills and opportunities

- Communily pregramme equwvalant to 0 6%
of pre-1ax profis benefiung 29 500 pecple

apital Efficiency

- Oplimising size and hinancial structure across
Lhe properly cycle

- Balancing trade-cff between a cosl efficient
and higher capability argarisation

- Centinuing to build relationships with direct
and indirect capiial and public bodies

- Celivering future proofing imtiatives

- £618m non-core assel/malure salesin the
year with acguisitons and capital investment
of £62%9m

- Building our relationship with Southwark
Council our partner on Canada Water

- Completed over £1on of financing activity
swee 31 March 2015 including a zero coupon
£350m seniar unsecured convertible bond
due 2020 and the tender offer and purchase of
£110m of debenture bands reducing weighted
average interest rate
by50bpsta3 3%

- 40% carbon intensity reduction versus 2009
lindex scorel

Expert People

- Centinuing to improve organisational design
and effectiveness

- Build management capabilities for new
as well as traditional skill sels

- Developing skills and opporturities

- Creating an mclusive working environment

20

- Appointed Roger Madelin to head up Canads
Water development

- Women s Network and BL Pride established

- Parucipation in the National Equality Standard

- One Star rating In Best Companies to Work
For Survey

British Land , Annual Report and Accounts 2016

- 87% employee score for our offices
supporting their wellbeing

~100% of our employees and 72% supptier
workforce at our properties paid the Living
Wage Foundation wage

O For defimtions see glossary on
< pages 200 to 203




How we measure up'

Risk indicators and incentive measures

Total accounting return (TAR) @@

14 2%
2016 14.2%
Lo —_ -

- Total accounting return s our overall measore
of performance It:s the dividend paid plus the
growth in EPRA NAV n the period

- During the yzar we generated a strong TAR
of 14 2% bringing the 3 year TAR to 479%

Our dwvidend was increased by 2 5% 1o 28 35
pence per share and our NAV increased
by 10 9% to §19 pence per share

Risk indicators we monmitor
- forecast GDP

- the rnargin belweaen property yields and
borrewng costs and
- property capital and ERY growth ferecasts

Management compensation linked to
- total accounting reiurns relative 6 peers

©

Custonier satisfacnon

79outof 10
2014 7
T

(L7 -7 77Ty

We extensively survey people who use our
assels 10 assess ocur performance and
idenuly epportunities for improvement

Sustanahhn Perfor uice
- Dow Jones Sustainability Index World
and Europe 2015 94lh percentile
~ FTSE4Gaod 2015 98Lh percentile
- Global Real Estale Sustainability Benchmark
2015 Seactor Leader European/Diversified

We track our susiginability impacts on these
indices We are proud to have been awarded the
Queen s Award {or Enterprise Sustainable
Development 2016

Risk indicators we momtor

- consumar confidence

- empleyment feracasis for retevant
sectors and

- markel letting risk lvacancies expiries
admimsirations)

Management compensation linked to

- Cempany reputation with all stakeholders
and

- supporting the delivery of sustainabiity
objectives

Total properts returns

C0)

1 3% vs IPD
n Une
r T ) - r ~ 1 +130bps
! ’ 1 +60bps

We have performed i line with the PG
benchmark on total preperiy return this
year ang outperformed over the [asl 3 years
by 60 bps per annum

®

Deyelopment commtment

£0 8bn % of standing inveslments
+58%
T T T T T T I w] woomw

* " +12 2%

Devetopment supparts value and income
growih but also adds risk We aim to keep
our commilied development exposure at
tess than 5% of our investment portfolio

Risk indicators we monitor

- property capital and ERV growth forecasts

- lotal and specuiative development exposure
and

- progress of developments agamnst plan

Management compensation inked to

- tolal property returns relative to IPD

- execution of targeted acquisitions and
disposals and

- progress on key projects including
developments

Loan to value (1LTV)
- proportionalh consolidated

32%

©

e ]

e o

_ _——

We manage our leverage such that LTV shoutd
not exceed a3 max:imum threshold if market
yields were to rise to previous peak levels

Waghted average mterest rate
= proporuaoially consolilated?

33%

©

Gur lew cost of finance supparts performance
and s one of the lowest of bisied UK REITs

Risk indicators we maonitor

- likelihood of covenant breach

—-when rafinancing 1s required and
~percentage of debt at ixed interestrates

Management compensation linked to
- execution of debt {inancings
- progress en strengthening the dividend and
- execution of targeted acquisitions
and disposals

e Sunckan Tines Best Compaines
to Work For

O

One star
2014 One star

' Please see the glossary for defimtions

The Sunday Times annual survey 1S one
of the most axtensive benchmarks of
employer engagement

Long term Incentive Plan
Annual Incentive award

Risk indicators we monitor
- unplanned execubive departures

Management compensation linked to
- quality of people and management
renewal and

- Company reputation with all stakehelders

@ Managing nsk in delivering our strategy
~/ see pages 57 to &3

@ Remuneration report see pages 8610 110

British Land | Annuzl Report and Accounts 2016 21




Stratesgic Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

The importance
of people

Our focus on Places People Prefer puts

| transporl infrastructure are priorihes sothese
people at the heart of our strategy |

I

|

are important censiderations for us when we
make mvestment decisions The quality and
efficiency of the building matlers occuplers
wani the abiily Lo adapt space as their needs
change and for ther workspaces to promote
collaboration and positive relationships across
their businesses Employees also expect an
attractive place to work aswell as arange of
faciliies and services they can enjoy cutstde
of the office Thisis why our strategy in Offices
15 fecused on our campuses which are mare
mixed inuse and include retail lersure and
often residential space and other amenities
where we can manzge lhe broader
environment We have developed more

Our values
Our values underpin our daily warking
praclices and set us apart They are

Lhr whiat 1w mshit Work fhaenth
not wliit s sy ds 0N team

Customer Orientation

We are mvesting in the rescurces that bring I
us closer 1o the people whowork shop and |
live across our assets improving beth our |
1
|
|

custamer insight and our understanding of
local communities and helping to guide how
and where we do business

Inratail our customers have mare choice | g‘; —
than ever befere the offering rs wider and there
are more delivery platiorms We are building 1

cur understanding of how our customers
manage these choices and are working with
our occupiers al cur mutli-let assets to deliver

outstanding places for modern consumer

Mahe conmumerant Mabe things
interact rketi wi 2opl
e ot Taaf L3t h.lp[kll leractive market ng campaigns giving paople

long term value

the opportunity to participate in the life of our
campuses and we are piloting footfall counlers

lfestyles Our understanding of our customers
1s underpinned by the data we gather from our
schemes we have completed over 150 000
consumer exit surveys over the last four years
we collect turnover data on 94% of our multi-let
assels by value and fociiall data frem 98% of
our multi-let assets Imperianily we have the
systems and processesin place to generate
insights and learrings from his data and this
gurdes our approach to placemaking We know
that our leading indicators tncluding fcotfall
dwell time and spend benefit dramanically
from anincreased leisure food and beverage
provision and better services so thisis where
we are focusing our etforis At our regionat
assets we are focused on improving the
breadih and depth of cur retail and leisure offer

introeducing cinemas and restaurants as well as

maora innovative leisure concepls Al our local
assels we are improving the services we offer
and creating a more atiractive environment
for our visiters those who want conveniance
and accessibility

In Gffices our occuprers increasingly see

property as key 10 atlracting and retaining talent

sowe are working logather ic help them stay
ahead Thisyear we have surveyed around 350
occugiers or praspective occuplers Lo further
develop our understanding of whal Places
People Prefer means to them We understand
that tocatien and in partrcular proximey (o

22 British Land ' Annual Reperl and Accounts 2014

at Broadgate to prowide accurate data on how
successiully our aclivities are altracling people
lo the campus We are making a similar effortn
residential where over 400 purchasers across
the super prime prime and top tier markets
were surveyed Al Clarges our super prime
residential development in Mayfar we work
with our custemears on an Indvidual basis Lo
ensure we deliver a product that really reflects
their specific Lifestyles




We ensure the highest standards of service
across our office assets by managing them
in-house through Broadgate Estates our
wholly owned subsidiary and one of the UK s
leading property management companies

Its chient portiolio includes some of the most
presuigious properties in the UK and we
leverage its scale and expertise across the
wider market to provide a besl in class service
Having proved highly successful at managing
our Offices portfolic Broadgate Estates remit
now also covers our mult-let Retail portfoha

@) To read more about Broadgate Estales
=" 4o to www broadgateestates co uk

The quality of our assets and strength of our
services enables us to attract a high calibre of
occupier to our portfolio This together with our
fugh occupancy levels and lang average lease
lenglhs underpins the guality and security of our
rental income We are increasing the diversily

of our occupier mix and no single occupler
accounts for more than § 7% of our revenues

@ For our major occupiers see the table on
<=/ page 188

Expert People

Our 589 employees are split telween the
core team at Bninsh Land and our property
management subsidiary Broadgate Estates
The breadth and depth of our knowledge

our shills and cur relatienships underpin

our competitive advantages and enable us to
deliver on our over-nding purpose of creating
Places People Prefer

The scate of our operations has enabled us

lo attract and retain a team of experts who
know our markets wetl and tring a range cf
experlise across a mix of activines - retail
leisure offices and residential We have access
10 a broad network of contacts spanning
occupers planners government and {ocal
autheoriites community leaders strategic
partners and investors sowe see the best
investment opportunities and the mosl
altractive parinening and funding possibilities
enabling us to successfully execute attractive
and often highly complex deals

Our people strategy focuses on creating a leam
who can deliver Places Pecple Prefer Getting
closer Lo our customers is one of our key
strategic priorities and having a workforce which
rellects the diversity of our custamers helps us
achieve this The policy throughout Briuish Land
15 to employ the best candidates available in
every posiilon regardless of sex race ethaic
origin nationality celour age religion or
philesophical belief sexual crientation
marriage or avik partnership pregnancy
maternity gender reassignment or disabibity

We achieved a key milestone on our journey
towards creating a truly inclusive envirenment

this year with our formation of BL Pride our
lesbian gay tisexual transgender (LGBTI
and allies network and our Women s network
Both networks have been active inthe year
and we are pieased that our Chief Executive
Chris Grigg was ranked 11th in the 2015
Leading 30 LGBT Ally Executives by
Outstanding and the Financial Times

We are atso piloling @ mentoring scheme
inttially for wemen offering help guidance
advice and support where it 1s needed We
currently have three femate Directors on the
Board Lucinda Bell Chief Financial Officer
and Lynn Gladden and Laura Wade-Gery both
Non-Executive Directars As at 31 March 2015
48% of employees across British Land and
Broadgale Estates were female including
three out of ten of our Executive Commuttee

Nurturing lalent and supporung development
1s an important efemeant of our people strategy
We operate a range of online resources to help
employees develop their skills and work with
Cambridge University ta run a Leadership in
Real Estate programme 24 of our staff have
benefited from this programme since it was
launched in 26814 Other training partners

this year include Happy City who promote
happiness and wellbeing through skills
training and campaigns and measure the
impact of change on local wellbeing Theyran
awaorkshop for senior managers on embedding
wellbeing principles across our business Qur
angoing valunteerning programme also offers
aur staff personal development opportunities
parucularly through sWills-based opportunitias
such as mentoring 84% of our staff took part
in volunteering activities in the year

Our focus on Places Peopte Prefer starts with
our people Both British Land and Broadgate
Eslates were recognised (n the Sunday Times
Best Companes to Work For 2016 each
achieving 2 One Star rating This reflects siaff
satisfaction with aspects such as leadarship

wellbeing grving something back personal
growth pay ang benefits as well as with their
manager and team

We believe supporting the werkfarce of
tomarrow s iImportant for our business and
markets We are involved in inttiztives which
make young people of all backgrounds aware
of real estate carears, including Pathways to
Property and Budding Brunels 15 000 people
benefited from employment training and
educabion imiliatives across our assels during
the year We are glso working towards 3% of
our supplier workforce being apprentices by
2020 As detailed in our Suppty Chain Charter
we try to use local suppliers and we parlner
wilh occuplers and suppliers on far working
practices including the Living Wage
Foundation wage

[

) To read more aboul our Expert People
=" go to www bnitishland com/blogs
and to read more about skills go to
www britishland com/skitls

(C}—-. Report of the Nomination Committee
'“_A) see pages 84 to 85

“y Beard of Direclors see pages
@ bbto 69
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Strategic Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

Managing our
portfolio

From sourcing and investing in the Right
Places, to enhancing and enlivening our
assets, we are focused on allocating capntal
efficiently to maximise returns

Right Places

Qurinvestiment decisions are heavily influenced
by the long term trends we see driving our
commercial property markets so we can
position ourselves well for the longer term

Our focus on London and the South East
reflects the population growth and increasing
urbanisalion we are seaing in the capital
alongside its attraction as a leading global city
More specifically ourinvestment in Londonin
particular has focused on those areas where
infrastructure 1simproving driving regeneration
and growth This is where we see the sirongest
relurns over the longer term

Our portiolic 1s approximately evenly split
between Retall and Leisure and Gffices and
Residential but more and more we are
increasing the mix of uses on our existing sites
aswell as investing directly in mixed use assels
Thes reflects the fact Lhal people s work and
personal lives increasingty overlap they expect
more of the places they work shop or visit They
want .o work in offices which have ptaces to eat
shop and relax and relail destinations with a wide
leisure and service offering This understanding
underpins cur focus on placemaking

Placemaking Is aboul owning assets which
connect with the peopie who use them and
which are designed with their needs in mind
We are investing in our assets to enhance
the offer to enliven them with events and

seryices and to provide a broader more
engaging experience This approach s
shaping our portfolio

Our Offices and Residential portiolio 1s focused
on our three mixed use campuses in London
and alscincludes distinctive London properties
such as The Leadenhall Bullding alongside
smaller clusters of properties Our campuses
benefit from excellent transportinfrastruclure
and two Broadgate and Paddingten Central,
will have their own Crossrail stations when
Crossraill opens in 2018 They alt have great
potenhial Broadgate also benefits from its
proximity te Shoreditch and the emerging tech
hubs 1o the nerth and east of the City which
are increasing the diversity of the occupier

mix Regent s Place and Paddington Central
are onthe fringes of the West End offeringhigh
quality flexible and affordable space Regents
Place has benefited from regeneration and we
are now seeing this at Paddington We are
using our placemaking principles to evolve and
grow ocur campuses with new developments
which rellecl the changing ways people work
with more {lexibie floor plates break-out areas
and sutside space We are also adding retail
and leisure andinvesting in public realm
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Improvements so our camepuses are vibrant
and atlractive places in which to work and

to spend ume outside of work In Residential
we have been highly seleclive aboul the places
we Investin Looking forward 1 will become a
more significant part of our portfolio as part
of our mix-use offer particularly aswe make
progress at Canada Water wherewe are
crealing one of the largest mixed use
regeneration preojects in Lendon

In Retait where technolegy 1s changing the
way people shop Right Places 1s about focusing
on gssets which are in une with medern
consumer hfestyles where people can shop
eat and be enterlained The core portfolio
comprises regional and local multi-let assets
where we are able to manage and improve

the broader environment We focus on assets
which ara prime in their catchment and capture
a broad range of consumer spend Our targer
regional assets have a wide-ranging retail

and leisure offering attracting vistors from

a broad catchment Qur smaller local assels
are convenient and accessible aligned to the
daily life of local communines Qur focus on
Customer Orjentalion ensures a consislent
approach to placemaking across these




formats although our actions are carefully
considered {o improve and optimise each
indvidually Across our portfolio we are adding
leisure extensions where we see demand for
ctnemas and restaurants with smatler scale
improvements where appropriate such as more
cates or improved car parking helping to
daliver our broader placemaking strategy of
creating Ptaces People Prefer

==\ For detai on our portiolio perfermarce see
7 pages 361047

Development s an smporiant part of what we do
andis a key driver of relurns It keeps our assats
rmadern ensuring demand for them endures

We have a sigrificant pipeline of development
opportunities focused on our campuses and our
multi-let retait assets We have built optionality
intc our pipeline sawe ¢an progress
opportunities when the ime 1s right

g

@

For detail on our development pipeling
see tables on pages 194 to 195

For detad an cur development parformance
see pages 37 io 39

Across our portfolio we are conscious of the
impact our places have on local communities
We are working to improve how local people
can influence decisions relating to cur assets
sowe deliver places they prefer to live and wark
around aswell as shops restaurants cinemas
and public places where they chaose to spend
tume Relationships with local governmentand .
community leaders are important to our
business We build trust by suppoerting their
endeavour s and work with them to understand !
and meet local challenges and aspirations

We make it easy for local people to nfluence
decisions relating to cur assets so we deliver |
places they are pleased to live and work

around aswell as shops restaurants cinemas
and public spaces where they choose ta spend
ime At Regent s Place the launch of a new
Community Fund 1s empowering our occupiers
to support local projects and 1s strengtheming
community links [
b

—

Far more information on communitigs
www britishland com/community

Our capitalis broadly balanced between

our Retal and our Office assets Investment

decisions are made across sectars based |

on the prospective returns of Indmdvual assets |

We assess our capital allocation by sector :

geography and asset level based on our

estimates of future internal rates of return

Thus hetps to ideniify where our greatast

patential lies and where our capital 1s best T
|
|
|
|

Captal Ethcieney l
{

allocated Over the tast five years we have sold
£3 4 bithon of non-core asset/mature assets
and reinvested the procesds in hugh quality
inceme generating asseis and developments

Development 1s an important part of our
business butitis also higher nisk than our
income producing assets due tothe tme delay
between commiiment to & project and fully
letting the completed bulding sowe manage
our exposure carefully Development is imited
10 15% of the toial portfolic |by valuel with a
maximum of 10% o be devetoped specutalively
{i e without a pre-let or residentiat pre-sale}
atany one ime,

@

Far further details on our acquisitions and
disposals see the table on page 186

We manage our mix ¢f equity and debt financing
lo achieve the right balance betwsan enhancing
returns for shareholders and the risk of higher
leverage Our primary measure of leverage 1s
toan 10 value (LTV] on a propor tonatly
consolidated basis [which includes the Group s
share of joint ventures and funds and excludes
non-coniraliing interests in the Group s
subsidizries] We aim to manage our LTV
through the property cycle such that our
inancial pasition weuld remain robust in tha
event of a significant fall in property values This
means we will not Increase our leverage solely
on the bass of animprovement in market yretds

We access a broad range of debl finance on
attraciive terms reilecting the scale of our

£350m

raised through a 8% caupon
converteble bond in June 2015
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business combined with the quality of aur
assels and rental income stream We raise

debt from a variety of sources across a spread
of maturites lo ensure the Group and its joint
ventures and funds are appropriately financed
We also maintain sigruficant undrawn loan
facitities to provide {lexibility and support current
and future raguirements of the business

We use siralegic partnerships to leverage our
investments achieve benehts of scale and
spread risk Around one third of our owned
assets by value arein joint ventures including
Broadgate and Meadowhall This approach
has enablad us to undertake more ambitious
development prajects including Tne
Leadenhall Building where we worked with
Cxford Properties Within these structures
we typically provide asset management
development corporate and finance services
for wh ch we earn management and
performance fees enhancing our overall
returns and strengthemng our relationships
with pariners key customaers and supptiers

We proactively manage our assels to promote
their long term sustamability Our resource
efficiency programme continues ic improve
operational efficiency reduce dccupier costs
and support well-managed environments

We look a positive approach to the Government 8
Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme auditing
energy use and implementing additional
efficiency opportunities We are also inngvative
inour use of materials to lower costs and secure
supply and consider on site energy generatton

at ali cur developments This year we ratrofitied
photovoltaic panels ai St Stephen s Hull as part
of our plans toincrease energy generation

and enhance revenues at our assets andwe
continue our efforts to mimmise fleod risk

i @ Financial review see pages 49 to 53

Finarcal policies and principles see pages
94 to 56

Details on our carbon reduction
pragramme see page 48

=
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PLACEMAKING, , "
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Placemaking 15 how we create atiraclive
and engagiag real estate whichis in tunawith
madern lifestyles and are Places People Prefer

Actively managing our assets is a core part of
our business We put our customers first and
investin the skills and resources which help us
undarstand them better This understanding
guides our investment activities f:om mnvesting
and developing the right assets to enhancing
and enlivening thern with 3 range of ameniies
events and activities This creates preference
for our properttes helping to drive occupter
demand growth nrents and captizl values

— We —
Connect

= We =

Design

= We —

Enhance

— We —
Enliven
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Strategic Report

PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

We

Connect

Places which connect physically and digitally
with the people who use them, including

local communities

Connecting 1s about providing assets which
complement people s ifesiyles enabling them
to integrate their work and thew laisure time
It means places which are easy 1o accass

so we focus on assets with great transport
infrastructure and these with convenient
access paints or parking faciliies We often
invest o improve connactions for pedestnans
and cyclists and we build tocal relationships
connecting with local communities {o better
undersland their needs We also think about
how digitally enabled we are and how we

can use these capabilibes to create a

closer community

Building our exposure to Crossral
When Crossrail opens i 2018 1t will transferm
rail iransportin London and the Seouth East
increasing central Lendon rail capacity by 10%
and bringing an estimated 15 miluon more people
towithin 45 minutes of central London Already
Crossrall 1s driving regeneration and econamic
development Around L4 billion of cur assets
are located near Crossrail and two of our
London campuses Broadgate and Paddington
will have their own Crossrail stations Canada
Water cur 46-acre scheme in South London

1s very close to CanaryWharfand from 2618
will be just minutes from the West End
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£4.3bn

of our assets are within close proxirmity
of a Crossrait station [opening 20181

Masterplamung a

destination tor London

We have shared our initial ideas for the Canada
Water Masterplan with the local communsty
Theseinctude a 3 5 acre park twonew public
sguares ¢ycling and pedestrian frendly spaces
and dockside improvements so people can enjoy
and interact with the water and wildule We are
also proposing a pedesirianised open-airhigh
street with national and independent retailers
alongside new restaurants and cafes and a new
culture and entertainment hub at the heart of
the town cenire Our plans are at an early stage
and will evolve but creating a vibrant and
engaging environment will be our key focus




S60m

shopperwsits lo Meadowhall
over 23 years

Reviving hustorie hnks

i new deselopments

At Aldgate Place designed by Allies and
Morrison we are reinstating an enginal
pedestrian street Link which sits above an old
Victorian service tuanel connecting Aldgate and
Aldgate East stations This public tharoughfare
will be reinvigorated with shops and cafes
bringing a new sense of community to the area

Celebrating local hernitage
Elk Mill in Otdham is one of several assets IFEUGL{
where we are using public art to celebrate local :
haritage and connect with local communitzes
Professional sculptor Emma Hunter worked
with local people to create artwaorks iltustrating
Elk Mill s cotton-spinning heritage and poems
Inspired by local people s stories feature ona
trio of sculptures in the siyle of spinning cotton
bobbins Bronze fooiprinis are setinto paving
stones around the Park recalling a tme when
mill workers went barefooi to avord slipping

on the aily floor

_——

fEl To read more case studies go to
~ www britishland com/placemaking

Engaging with local commumties
Our fourth annual Commuruty Day brought
together 200 British Land volunteers as well as
520 local jobseekers schoolchildren students
elderly residents and peaple with learning
disabilities across 20 community partnerships
Qur partners commented on the commitment
of those involved reflecting how the event helss
us strengthen local relationships around our
London assets Forourvolunteers s a great
team building opportunity which enables them
to interact with people of different ages and
backgrounds as well as learning new skills

e L e e

HEPIECER WHATS —

e e —_— as
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British Land ' Annuat Report and Accounts 2016 29




Strategic Repore

PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

Buildings and environments which offer
the highest quality of design in both form
and function with engaging architecture

and a fully integrated public realm

We took beyond individual buildings to think
sbout the spaces around them We focus on
assets where we are able o control the broader
environment and can therefore undertake
broader and bolder design We also pioneer
new pulding technologies and the most
sustainable practices

Great design s core to creating
Places People Prefer To demaonsirate
our commitment Lo inagvation n
gesign Briish Landis proud Lo
sponsor the London Design Festival
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Makang our developments distinetine
Yalding House our most recently completed
office developmentin the West End was home
to Radio 1 untsl 2012 Our refurbishment retaned
much of the original character of the building
the reception features an adjoining meeting

and waiting room complete with turntable

and extensiwve record collection We believe

the disunctive nature of the buillding will agpeal
to creative and technology focused sectors
which have been a key area ol growth across

the capital in recent years

3.1m sq ft

of deyvelopments ¢n lrack to achiave
BREEAM Excellent for offices retail
and teisure




Drawing mspiration

trom local hentage

At Clarges Mayfair we are creating a new

and elegant landmark 111 entirely rooted

i the history of the surrounding area

laking insotration from local heritage and
crafismanshup This is reflected in the flutec
design of the cotumns which are made from
Portland stone the delicate slumirtum bronze
balusirades that are inspired by the branches
of the plane irees lining Grean Park and the
bread lace coliars that were fashionable in
16th century Mayfair

Intproving the public realin

at Paddington Central

We know from our recent survey of 1000

offtce warkers across the UK that outdoor
areas and gardens are a key part of the tdeal
office We ve recently embarked on our second
phase of upgrades at Paddington Central
which witl iransform the campus lor the people
who work and Live there by creating a greener
more pedestrian friendly environment Qur
ptansnclude a Woodland Garden an outdoor
Games Room prowiding activibas where people
cansociatise a Librarywhere people can relax
and a Kitchen Garden with communal seating
In the summer manths Alt enhancements are
being carefully ohased and managed to
minimise disruption Lo relailers residents
oulding occupanls and visitors

2.9m

number of asitors o
Broadgate Circle since
its re-designan 205

Designing tor a low earbon tuture
At St Stephen s in Hull we have instailed 1100
phetovoltaic panels generaling enough ciean
power to fulflil a third of all eleciricity demand
inthe comrnen areas The panels build enthe
Centres award-winming efficiency programme
which has reduced landlerd energy by 40%
since 2010 saving cecupiers £383 100 and
cutbing carbon ermissions by 2 470 tonnes
Qther 1nnevations include a rainwater
harvesting system which provides over

one million bitres of waler each year and

a food-lo-water treatment plant which
recycles 15 tonnes of food waste annually

£13m

of energy savings for us and our
otcupiers through etficiency
reductions over Lhe past [our years

Delnvering mmovatine design

At Glasgow Fort we are building a mulli-starey
car park with four restaurants on (s ground
floor The building wilt be naturally ventilaled
with a sustainable wooden slated rear facade
Acorten steel fagade with a punctured tree
design will caver the fren. of the bullding and
agreen lwving canopy witl overhang the iour
restaurant units The new car parkis setin
awild forest themed buffer to the surface

car park incorperating natural play etements
for young children

({3 To read more case studies go 1o
~~ www britishland com/placemaking
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Strategic Report

FLACEMAKING CONTINUED

We —

Enhance

Quality occupiers alongside a broad food, beverage
and leisure offering, reflecting the growing expectations
of our occupiers and customers

We enhance our gssets by improving the
breadih depth and mix of accuprers and the
physical space at our properties Relatively
simple improvements such as cafes and
attractive places lo rest or have lunch outside
the office or while you re shepping can make
a g difference to the places people work

or shop

66v%

of people who used Click &
Coltect across our portfolio
wanl on to spend al our assets

Imesting in asscts

with great potential

New Mersey Speke is the third largest
shopping park in the UK with apnual footfall of
8 ¢ milion and a third of visitors using click and
collect Since the year end we have increased
our helding in New Mersey Speke Lo just over
66% We have approval for an 11-screen cinema
[which 15 pt e-let] and six new restaurants
totalling 29 000 sq ft as well as plansfora
cemprehensive refurbishment introducing
double haight glazed shop fronts and & new
customner services pod

Incorporating open spaces

Al Aldgate Place aver 50% of the footprintis
dedscated to new public reatm spaces including
two landsraped gardens pedeslrian streets
well thought-out play spaces and water features
The development includes a four-star hotel
cafes resiaurants and shaops The tandscaping b”
designed by Townshend Landscape Architects
reflacts the contempaorarvy style of the City but
maintains the industrial and tustorical legacy
of the East End

.

330,000 sq ft

of new space ptanned at Meadowhall s propesed
nen Leisure Hall
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Enhaneing the environment

tor our own tean

Our focus on enhancing our assels includes our
own head oifice at York Rouse and Broadgate
Estates office at Paddington Ceniral both of
which we recently refurbished with Broadgate
Estates achieving the world s firsi BREEAM
Outstanding Fii-Out Surveys show that peaple
feel happier healthter and more praductive in
the new space which has more natural light
better views and greeneary as well as improved
space planning to 2ncourage active living and
social interaction This sats the tone Lo promoie
wellbeing and producuvity across our portiolio

Leveraging Broadgate Estates

Wa have brought the management of our

retarl assels in-house through our subsidiary
Broadgate Estates aleading property
management company We are working to
enhance the offer for customers standardising
operalianal excellence and rolling out
value-added services inctuding technology and
consumer services Broadgale Eslates already
delivers best in class service across our office
assets and for third parties including many
leading commercial and retail landlords

We have extended its remit to cover retail

as we work together to ensure all our assels
are recognisably Places People Prefer

999

of staff ind our newly
relurbished ofiices an
enjoyable place to work
up from &9 L

Lastening to our customers

The datawe collect from across our retai
portfclio gives us a ctear idea of what matters
lo our customers In response to customer
feedback we have beenupgrading assets

in the portfolio to improve shopper satisfaction
Enhancements include addionat foed and
beverage oplions betler car parking and
impraved public realm such as new customer
walkways cycleroutes seating and atiractive
landscaping as well as children s play areas
and tollel faciiies All Lightbulbs installed are
energy elficient taps and toitets are designed
to use as little water as possitle and timber
comes from guaranteed sustanable sources

fﬁ) To read more case studies go to
" www britishland com/placemaking
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

— We —
E l )
Events and activities and best in class services

bring life and a real sense of community to
our buildings

We enliven cur properties by holding events
and activities which benefit our customers
and the local communties whsch surround
lhem We also provide bestin class services
which improve the overall experience for
our customers

Encouraging health and wellbeing
l.ast summer we celebrated health and
wellbeing week at Paddinglon Central to
encourage campus residents workers and
visitors to achieve a healthy work/Ufe balance
The schedule featured free health-themed
pop~-ups Lreatmenis events classes and
gwe-aways aimed to relax energise or acuvate
the mind We are now piloting weltbeing and
productivity innovations with our accupiers
here who see pramoting wellbeing as an
important part of ther strategy ta attract

and retain the best talent

ACCR

. o
DD

Promoting public art

Across our porifolio we have used public art
ta bring our assets to life In Januarythis year
we spensored an installation called Platonic
Spin by Nathaniel Rackowe at Regenl s Place
as part of Lumiere London afree outdoor light
festival Over four evenings in January the ity
was transformed with an exlraordinary array
of nslallations turming the capitalinto a
winter playground

Mare than

800

people World Hosl customer
seryice lrainad at our places
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Exolving traditional retal space
At Meadowhall we are planning a £300 mubion
Leisure Hall ta respond lo our customers
changing lifestyles where shopping 15
Increasingty seen as a leisure activity
Comprising 330 000 sq ft of space the

Celebranng the summer

Last summer our recently developed Old Market
shopping destinalion in Hereford taunchad
Herefest a umque month-long summer
programme of music street thealre artsand
crafis and food and drink Anconic Reutemaster
buswas parked al the centre and inside visitors
enjoyed workshops makeovers cake sampling

praposad Leisure Hallwill add a rangs sesstons and cookery demonstrations
of dining and entertainment experiences
not currently available at the centre
Housed under an elegant glazed roof the
telsure Hall wilt integrate with the existing
centre to create a new mulii-levelled
landscaped mall with fegh quality internal
and external spaces for promotionat ang
COMMUnIty uses

LN
I ) ﬁf’-@_ﬂ’ o

More than

600

people at our assets are
Dementa Friendly trained

Attracting all ages to our assets
As part of our comprehensive programme

of asset upgrades we have designed and buil
play areas for our younger visitors at Tollgate
Colchester Wheatley Doncaster Orbital
Swindon and Elk Mill Oldham All the play
areas are heritage-thamed and reflact
feedback from shoppers and tocal heritage
experts At Swandon a Spitfire ari sculpture
and play area reference locat industrial links
lo the manufacture of the Suparmarine Spitfue
and designs at Oldham refleci the old cotton
mitt which fermerly occupied the site with old
cotton cans adapted to form play equipment
and seating areas

5.9m sq ft '

of el space at Eanada Water
which we plan 1o develop

(ﬁ Ta read more case studies go to
~— www britishland com/placemaking

[
]
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Strategic Keport

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

We are focusing the business around
long term trends and continue to see
the benefits of recent investment

herview

2015/14 was ancther strong period for the

UK property market overall despite the more
challenging macro envirenment Loendon
cantinued to guiperform the rest of the UK
Performance was driven by rental growth

as opposed to Lhe yield compression seen in
recent years with prnime yields supported by
rents which continued to rise in both the West
End and tha Crty The occupational market
overall remains favourable although more
recently there 1s ewdence lhat some large
occupiers are delaying decis.ons to take space
until after the upcomung EU referendum

tn retail demand remains for prime assets
butwider uncertainty has impacted investment
market volumes in recent manths The retail
occupationat market strengthened overatl
reflecting improving consumer confidence
and rising real wages However since the turn
of the year there have been some signs Lhal
consumer cenfidence and spending have
slaried o weaken

Qur portfolio performed well overall
benefiting from our strategy to increase our
focus on London and balance our portiolio
between Offices and Retail London and the
South East now represents 65% of the portfolic
compared to 56% six years ago The portictio
15 also broadly balanced between Oifices
[49% on a pro-forma basis] and Retad This
compares with six years ago when Offices
accounted for 33% of the porticlio Our Offices
and Retall businesses are increasingly
complementary reflecting our focus on
campuses in Offices and multi-let centres

Portfohio Perdormance

£14.6bn

UK portfolio valuation

11.39%

Total property return

5.3%

ERV growth

6.8%

Capual return

6.8%

Lettings/renewals versus ERV

98.8%

Qccupancyrate

Valuation uphft

Investment Tolal

Valuation portfolic  Developments portfolio

Year ended 31 March 2016 Em A ° -
Retail & Laisure 7341 24 32 24
Offices & Residenual 7024 117 127 148
Canada Water 283 - 77 17
Total 14,648 b4 T4 &7

* On a proporiienately consolidated basts
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in Retail which are becaming more mixed

use Inaddiuon the stable Income generated
by the Retall business has allowed us to invest
in more cyclical Office development projects

Our porticlio generated a tolal property
returnof 11 3% comprising a capital return

ol 6 8% and anincome return af 4 2% We
ouiperformed IPD benchmarks by 50 bps on
acaptialreturns basis or 200 bps per annum
onabyearview conlinuing a cansistent trend
of cutperformance Tolal portfolio valuation
was up & 7% to £14 6 oillion This performance
includes the impact of 3 1% Increase in stamp
duty for commercial property announced by
the Chancellor in March Excluding the stamp
dulyincrzase the underlying porifolio valuation
was up 77% The standing investment portfolic
was up é 4% and accounied for c90% of the
total uplift {he contribution from developments
was lower as Llhe completion of 5 Broadgate in
July 20158 brought our major 2010 devetopment
programme to a close

Performance was driven by ERV growth
across the business of 5 3% outperforming
the market by 130 bps with a far lower
contributien from yield compressianwhich
was 17 bps compared to 48 bps 1n 2014/15
Overall our actions accounled for around 60%
of performance in both the Retail and Offices
portiolios Offices and Residential delivered a
valuation uplift of 11 8% driven by ERV growth
of § 6% and our Retail and Leisure portfolio
grew by 2 4% also benefiting from 2 4% of ERV
growth Withen our Retail & Laisure portfolio
our mulu-let assets were up 2 8% with ERV
growth of 3 4%

We are pleased with the shape of cur portiotio
with our weightings in Retail and Offices
broadly balanced In the past the income
generated {rom the Retail side of the portfolio
allewed usto buid out cur significant 2010
development pregramme while maintaning
our dividend and going forward as technology
transforms how we live and work we see that
the breadth of our portfolio will provide a
competitive advantage




Investment ooyt

The gross vatue of our Investment actvily
since 1 April 2015 as measured by our share
of acquisitions disposals capital spend on
developments and cther capital projects was
£13 bilbon On 3 net basts our activity was
broadly balanced We mantained our capital
discipline taking advantage of supportive
markels to sell mature or non-core assets
and reinvesling 1n our exisling businass and
in selected acquisittens principally adjacent
1o existing assets

The most significant acquisition was

One Sheldon Square Paddington Central
acquired for £210 million in April last year

This Brought our total ownership at the campus
to 804 000 sqg {t including 4 Kingdom Street
which 1s under constriction with the potential
lo develop a further 240 000 sq (1 at 5 Kingdom
Street We also acquired an aoditional £95
million interest [gross asset value] in the
Herculas Unit Trust [ HUT | portiobio Bringing
our gross invesirnent over the last two years
to £492 millien at an effective netinttial yield

of 4 0% OQur holding now stands at 75%

In line with our strategy we continued lo
reshape the Retail partiolio with €420 million
of mature or non-core asset dispasals in the
period Keyiransactions included the sale

of Rotherham Parkgate and Birstall for

£120 mullion and £31 million respectively
{both cur share] We also sold nine standalone
foodstores totalung £422 milion reducing our
tatal superstore holding to £0 8 tullion from
£13 billion twa years ago We no longer have
any expasure to the European market since

9.0 years

t ease length fo fist break

- £1.3bn

Gross investment achivi ty

£307m

Capital investment

4 £332m

Acquisitions

s618m

\
|
1
! Disposals
\
1

selling the remaiming £43 million of our
' Eurcpean assets in Line with cur exii stralegy
[

} InOffices we sold 3% Victoria Street in July
last yaar for €139 mullion at an altractive yield
of less than 4% crystallising an attractive
IRR of over 20% We also sotd £59 million
i {our share] of residential properties on average
! 3% ahead of valuation and continued to achieve
| comptetions on exchanged units Twe thirds

by value lour share] were at The Hempal
| Collection tn ling with our strategy we will

Retail Dlfices Residential Total

From 1 April 2015 Em £m £m £m

Development Spend 17 140 0 187

Capnal Spend 99 19 2 120

Purchases 00 232 - 332
Sales 1420 1139] 59) le18] |
Net Investment 204} 252 (27 2} 5
Gross Investment 636 530 LAl 1,257
' On a proporttonately consolidated basis !
British Land

market no further units at Clarges Mayfair unut
practical completionin 2017 This follows our
successiul pre-sales campaign in September
2014 where we pre-sold just over 50% by value

Development

We completed 908 000 sq ft of developments
inthe period with 5 Broadgate accounting for
710000 sq {t The cempletion of 5 8roadyate
marked the conclusion of the 2 7 million sg ft
development programme startedin 2010
which generated prohits of £1 1 billion and an
IRR of over 30% We atso completed Yalding
House a 29000 sq It office-led refurbishmeni
in the heart of Fitzrovia aswelt as 169 000 sq ft
of Retail developments including a retail
exlension at Glasgow Fort and a leisure
exlension at Whiteley

Our under construction programme Covers
429 000 sq ft representing a specetative capitat
commitment of £530 million This principally
includes 192 000 sq ft at our super prime
residential-led develepment Clarges Mayfar
where we have already pre-sold over 50% of
the residential units by value and 147080 sq ft
of office space at 4 Kingdom Street on our
Paddington Central campus

We are making good progress with our near
term development pipeline whichincreased
from 15 million sg ftin March Last yearto

2 0 million sq {t We have built optionality inio
our pipeline and are progressing the projects
50 we £an be ready to commat when the ime
15 right

The three largest schemes in the near

term pipeline rellact office lease expiries
over the next 2 years al Broadgate and
Regeni s Place where we expect to deliver
a significant Increase in the overall floor space
onredevelopment At 100 Liverpool Street
we recenily recesved a resolution o grant
planning consent for a revised 520 000 sq ft
redevelopment incorperating a larger retail
component and at 1 Finsbury Avenue
wereceved consent on 2303 000 sq it
redevelopment At ) Triton Square onour
Regent s Place campus we are progresstng
the design for a subslantial refurbishment
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Strategic Report

PERFORMANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Our planning applicabion for 340 000 sq ftof
mixed use space at Blossom Street Shoredilch
was also granled congent having been called
in by the Mayor of London The High Court has
since rejected a Judicial Review of the Mayor s
decision to take over the applicalion but wis
unbikely that we will start onsite in 20156 At

% Kuingdom Street on aur Paddington Centr al
campus we expect to submit a revised
planning application for & larger scheme

by the end of the year

in Retall wewill continue to enhance our offer
wiih a strong near term pipeline of leisure
extensions including 102 000 sq ft at Drake
Circus Plymouth and 66 0080 sq it at New
Mersey Speke We also received planning
consent at Ealing Broadway for the conversion
of an office block 1o 34 000 sg [l of private rented
residenttal apartments We also added Crawley
Homewares Park to the near term pipeline
where we sbtained planning consent lo
redevelap the exisuing Homebase into 2 52 000
s5q fL homewares park comprising 3 units

Looking ahead lo our medium term pipeling
in Retail we submitted a planming application
for the £262 rillion [our share £131 mitlien]
mixed use redevelopmeni of Eden Walk
Kingston The 562 000 sq ft development

will include public space leisure retait and
residential We are alson pubtic consultation
for 3330 DO0 sq {t letsure scheme at
Meadowhail In Offices we submiited a
ptanning application for the redevelopment of
2-3Finsbury Avenue which seeks to increase
the area from 189 000 sq ft to0 550 000 sq 1t

Conmntrcd Dovcdopionts & Pipehne

The mosl signsficant project in the medium lerm
pipeline is at Canada Waler At the baginning of
February 2016, we were delighted to welcome
Roger Madelin to the team to head up this
exating 46-acre redevelopment opporlunily

As Chief Executive/Joini Chief Executive of
Argent Rager was directly responsibte for
leading a number of significant developments
and from 2000 led the teamn on the é7-acre

¥ing s Cross developmeant Canada Water s

| one of the largest rageneratian projects inaner

Landon # has good transpori mnfrastructure
with access o the City West End and Canary
Wharf via the Julnlee line but also to emerging
areas around Shoreditch as well as South West
Londonvia the London Overground

Planning policies have now been adopled
within the Londan Borough of Southwark and
the Greater London Authority which encourage
and are supportve of a significant guantum of
mixed development In February 201e public
consultation commenced regarding the current
masterplan propasals Over the caming
months Briush Land and Seuthwark Council
will review the responses receved from the
lacal communily

Stwdies ta assess how the proposed guantum
and mix of development might best be
configured and debverad over ume are
currently being undertaken alongside detalled
financial modetbing Discussions with a number
of prospective occuprers from the retail

leisure workspace and the full residential
spectrum are assisting us in this process

The implications af the Government s propesed

|
|
5
|
|
l
|
|
|
|
|

Housing Bitt and of any emerging policies
from the new London Mayar will be assessed
and ncorporated where necessary

We anticipate a programme and resource
schedule to prepare evaluale and consider a
planning submission will have been preduced
and agreed with Southwark Council by summer
2014 with the ambitien to submit an outline
planning application 1n 2017 As we work lowards
a planning submission we will continue te collect
rents of £8 mlbion per annum from the shopping
centre and leisure park at Surrey Quays

During the year we continued 1o support
diversity and traiming intiatives that make young
pecple of all backgrounds aware of real eslate
careers inctuding Pathways to Property and
Budding Brunels aswell as apprenticeships
and local employment programmes such

as Broadgate Connect Together with our
suppliars we supported 120 appranliceships
al our places in the year [n addibion a pilot
study on four developments revealed that 60%
of spend went within 25 miles and over 50%
went to small and medium sized enterprnises
fuelling regienal economies around our assels

(:[ Mare details on the portiolio property
performance indmdual developments
and assels acguired duning the year can
be faund In the Retail & Leisure and Offices
& Residential reviews on pages 40 to 47
and in the delailed supplementary tables
on pages 184 tei95

Bntish Land share

Current Cost o Pre let Residential Pre sold
Sqft value complete ERY ERV end value residential
At 31 March 2014 Jole]] £m Em £m £m Em £m
Completed in Period 208 553 13 237 215 - -
Under Construction 629 605 204 161 02 &57 358
Near term Prpeline 2.01¢ 1 450
Medium term Pipeline 7175

On a proportionately consolidated basis fercept area which 1s shown at 1007%)
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Our development pipeline

On site and comnutted \

4 Kingdom Street

147,000 sq ft :

Completing 2017

Qifice development at Paddington Central an 11acre
mixed use campus in London s West End

S |

192,000 sq it

Completing 2017

Mixed use developrment in Mayfair comprising 34 high
end apartments together with retal and offlice space

Clarges Mayfair

10/,

;

-~
-
[
‘
-
t
f

Aldgate Place, Phase 1

221,000 sq ft

]
Completing 2016 I
Aresidential development |

1

Ngal term

5 Kingdom Street

240,000 s ¢

On site 2017
Office development at Paddingtan Central

Blossom Street, Shoreditch

340,000 s

On site 2017

Character officesin a regeneration area 1deally
suited to the needs of small and medium sized
occuplars

100 Liverpoo! Street

520,000 5 it

Onsite 2017

Office relurtmshment at Broadgale increasing capacity
and improving local conneclions and public spaces

1 Finshury Avenue

303,000 s

On site 2017

Office refurbishment at Broadgate increasing rapacly
and improving tocal connections and public spaces

avn. i

RS S WL .. LT L

Plymouth Leisure

102,000 .

On site 2014
Lessure extension including a cinema

Speke Leisure

66,000 i

On site 2016
Leisure extension including a cinema
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Seraregic Keport

RETAIL AND LEISURE REVIEW

Our Retail strategy 1is focused
on creating outstanding places
for modern consumer lifestyles

hey lighhights of the vear

¢4.3bn

Portfolio valuation [Briish Land sharel

1.8%

Total property return

2.4%

ERVgrowth

2.5%

Capitalreturn

8.0%

Letungs/renewals versus ERY

99.04%

Occupancy rate

98 years

Leaselength to first break

% )

Merviewn

The way peopie shop and spend their leisure
time continues to evolve with 1echnolagy lying
at the heart of this it has become increasingly
clear that while online sales continue o grow
physical space remans at the hearl of how
paople shop But today successful destinatians
need to be about more than just shopping -
they are more mixed use oftenwith food drink
and leisure and are more embedded inthe
communites where they are located Qusr
strategy in Retailis to focus on creating
outstanding places for madern consumer
lifestyles places for people to shop eat

and be emertained

We have been progressively reducing our
axposura to smalter and single-let assets

and focusing the business around our larger
multi-let asseis where we can control the
environment in which we operale and use our
placemaking expertise to drive value Asa
result of these actions our mulli-let portfolio
now accounts for over 70% of cur Retail
business up from 40% six years ago We now
manage and regort our multi-let portictio aleng
regional and local lines reflecting now we see
consumers spend their time and maney The
data we collect tells us that ragional and local
assets fulfll different consumer needs but
well-located and well-configured assets can

<40} British Land ' Annuzl Reporl and Accounts 2014

‘ ’J
5
v
i

Charles
Maudslos
Head of Retail
and Leisure

be equally successful in taday s omni-channel
world Regional assets have a wide retail and
leisure cffer a bigger catchment and longer
dwetl tme Local assets are typically smaller
in scale highly convenient and accessible and
often with more local community amenities
and activiies

' Overthe year the retail cccupational market

strengthened reflecting rising employment

and real wages alongside fatting oil prices
Occupancy ratas improved as retail and leisure
operators continued 1o expand trial new formats
and focus on laking space in the mosl atiractive
localions Results have been positive overall
aspecialty for food and beverage operators and
retaiters with mature emni-channet sirategies
This has created occupier tension driving rents
at those assets offering high levels of footfalt
and sales in high quakity erronments Since
the lurn of the year however consumer
confidence has fallen and retall sales have
dipped with some admimistrations infashign
Likety reflecuing concerns about the impending
EU referendum and wider glabal econamic

and political unceriainty

The calendar year 2015 was also a good

year for the retail investiment market and a
recaord breakung year for shopping parks with
£2 & billion of deals transacted Since the turn




cf the year, there has been a lack of benchmark
retail transactions and a slowdown 1n activity
with the majority of deals carred over from
2015 Demand remains strong for prime
mulb-let retail assets andisincreasingly
diverse but theres a limited amount of stock
on the market Investors have become more ;
discerning with increased pelarisation between
prime and secondary assets and demand for
secondary assets showing signs of softening

Porttolio Portormance
Our Retail & Lersure portfolio valuation was up |
2 £% over the year 1o £73 billien including the |
impact of the recent 1% tncrease in siamp duty !
for commercial property Excluding the effecls l
of the stamp duly change valuation uptift was |
broadly the same n each half at around 1 8%
driven by our acliens which centributed 40% '
cf the uplifi The portfoleo cutparformed the |
market by 20 bps on a capital returns basis !
and 30 bps on a tetal relurns basis |
|
|
|
I
I

ERV across the porifolic was up 2 4%
[compared te 1 4% for the market as whole]
wiih growth in the second half of the year
higher at 1 5% compared with 0 9% in the first
hali ERV growth was stronger in the mulb-let
portiolic at 3 4% compared to 3 0% in 2014/15
with the accelerating ERV trend broadly
balanced across both regional and local

Retanl lettings and renew.als
v seetor (v rent)

Vg
W

W Fashion & Footwear
BFood & Leisure

OHealth & Beauty

M Generat Retall

BDY

ROiher

W Elsctrnicat & Mobile Phane

32%
18%
16%
13%

Wu

3%

i subsectors leading ta IPD outperformance
of 210 bps demonstrating the quabity of our
portfolio The Retail portiolio continued to
benefit from yield movernant over the year
with i3 bps of yield compression compared
lo 47 bps in the prior year The average NEY
new stands at5 0%

Assct Management

Gur focus on the sirongest, best located
schemes and cur consistent appreach to
deliver the most appropriate offer and standard
of service cantinued Lo drive good demand for
our space S0 occupancy across the portfolic
remained high at 99% Footiallwas up 3 0%
outperforming the market by £40 bps and our
retailers performed well with-thewr in-store
sales up 2 4% cutperiorming the market by
200 bps

We provide a flexible and affordable propos:tion
for cccupiers with an average rent to sales
ratio [excluding internel sales of 10% We
signed 903 000 sq ft of letuings/renewats on
attractive terms with invesiment letings and
renewals on average 8 0% ahead of ERV We
saw good demand for units of all sizes includmg
larger units wath over 450 000 sq f1 of lettings/

' renewals on [toor areas over 10 000 sq ft Using
our detaded consumer data we continued to
tmprave the occupler mix at our locat and
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Straregie Report

RETAIL AND LEISURE REVIEW CONTINUED

14

We continue to enjov strong relationships
with our major occupiers, and work
closely with them to deliver the space

they want.”

regional assels adding quality brands and
broadening our letsure offering to keep pace
with consumer neads We signad 35 new food
and beverage occuplers and 2 cinemas adding
174 000 sq {t of food beverage and lesure
space to our Retail operations through tetings
and extensions We settled 1 4 million sg fl of
rent reviews at 3 8% ahead of previous passing
rent and only 6% of occupiers decrded to leave
on expiry which gwves [urther confidence that
we are crealng the nghi kind of space for
occupiers We saw like-for-like net rental
income grawth across the Retail portiolio

of 1 4%

We continue 1o enjoy strong relavonships

with our magor accuplers and work closely
with them to deliver the space they wanl

The investments we are making 1o improve
cur assels continued to atiract new brands
and pogular restaurant providers to our
regionat and local assets Primark recently
opened 48 000 sq fL of space at Broughton
Chester and Fort Kinnaird Edinburgh and both
locations are trading well At Glasgow Fortwe
attracted 7 new occuprers out of town including
Pandora Kiko Mitano GBK znd Foaol Asylum
This has improved the guabty and range of
occupiers avatable to consumers and driven
rental growth

tn order to atiract such streng occupiers to
our multi-let assets we conlinued to nvest
across the portfolio to deliver the hrghest
quabity retait environments Over the course

of the year we spenl L80 rmullion on asset
management irshatives and the positive impact
of this 1s reflected bath in our valuation and in
our operational metrics Actiwity included the
£14 million refurbishment of Ealing Broadway
which completed i November 2015 yielding
positive results including a 5% uplift inretaiter
sales over the year along with several new
tenants Wasabt EAT and Smiggle This resutted
in 7 5% ERVY growih al Ealing Broadway in the
second half of the year At Teesside Slocktan
our ongomng refurbishment has ted 1o new

out of town entranis ncluding Paperchase
taking space We cornpleted a programme

of upgrades on five assets which included
improved new customer walkways parant

903,000 sq ft

of retait and lersure lelitngs and renewals
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and child parkeng provision customer service
centres hugh quality landscaping community
artworks celebrating local heritage and
chitdren s play areas We are atready seeing
the positive impact of these works through
improved customer sausfaclion anincrease
inretailer sales and ERV growth

In Ling with our aim to provide a consistent

high level ¢f service for our cccupiers and
censumers we have taken the property
management of our retail assels in-house

to Broadgate Estates ourwholly owned
subsidhary and ene cof the UK s leading property
management companies In the year we rolled
out WorldHost customer service training to
moere than 800 people at our places and
Dementia Friendly training to over 600 peaple
making sure thal from clearing and secunty to
maintenance and management our teams have
the understanding and skills to welcome and
support visiters We are delighled by Lthe positive
feedback from wisitors and we are recognising
tearn members who are going above and
beyond through our Awards for Excellence

Meadowhall had a strong year Sales at the
centre were 2 2% ahead withretailers on

the refurbished premium mall significantly
outperforming We are on stte wilh a £60 million
internal refurbishment ahead of which we have
already signed some high quality new brands
including Diesel Joules Kike Milano Jack Wills
and Tapas Revolution Overall long lerm deals
at Meadowhall were signed al an average of

6 3% ahead of ERV and Like-far-like income was
up 3 7% over the year Looking forward we are
1n public censuttation for a 330 000 sq it leisure
scheme which will cement Meadowhall s
position as among the best retail and leisure
destinations 0 the UK

We comnussioned a review by PwC which
identified Meadowhall s social and economic
contribution to the Shaffield City Regton and
the wider UK for the first ime wath ipin
every £1 and one job in every 100 in the region
uinking back to Meadowhall as well as 660
apprenticeships over five years The Centre
has also contributed £7 3 bilbion gross value
added to the UK economy over 25 years and




£303 mullion tax over five years Environmental
achievements include 42% less energy use
over sixyears and 17 000 tonnes of waste
recycled over ten years Looking forward
arcund half the materials and {abour for our
Meadowhall refurbishment are bemng sourced
from companies within the Sheffield City
Regien bringing a further £25 million ta

tha regeonal economy

Iivestient \etnags

GI"DSS Invesiment aClIVIly over the year was
£636 million with tolal sales of £420 million
IBL sharel and total acquisitions of £100 million
[BL sharel

We cantinued to reshape the portiolio
disposing C420 million of mature or non-core
assels Keytransactions included the sale of
HUT assetssn Rolherham Parkgate and Birstail
for £120 million and £31 million respectively
{both our share| We zlso dispesed of nine
standalone foodstores lotalling £122 millien
Thus included the £60 mithon sale of Tesco
Bursledon at a 5 0% net imtial yield and the
£32 million sale of Satnsbury s Islington at

a netimbialyield of 3 96% This has reduced
our totat superstore holding to £0 8 billion from
£1 3 bithon two years ago We have a further
£68 mutlion of superstores under oifer at a NIY
of 4 2% which will further reduce our holding
10 £0 7 brllion

We acquired an addibional £95 million intarestin
Lihe HUT portfolio of shopping parks increasing
our ownership from 69 2% to 75 3% over the
year Onaverage these units were acquired

at NAV representing an effective net imiiat

yield of & 3% |based on aclual acquisition costs|
With the disposals made in the year we have
rebalanced the HUT portfolio andin February
HUT unitholders resolved to replace Schroders
with Crestbridge as manager

We completed 169 000 sq ft of developments
over the year The 57000 sq ft leisure extension
at Whiteley opened iy Novermnber 2015 and has
traded well with sales growth of 8 2% in the
second half The 112 000 sq fi Marks and
Spencer anchored relal extension at Glasgow
Fort opened at the start of the year prowding

a strong additional anchor to the scheme with
footfall increasing by 6 7% The new 12 000 sg ft
lersure quarier and 400 space mulll slorey car
park are under construction at Glasgow Fort
and will complete later in the year the new
space I1s already exchanged or under cfter

at record level rents and includes new cut

of town occumers Thaikhun and GBK

Our 254 000 near term development ppeline
includas 158 000 sq ft of leisure extensions and
84 000 sq fi of redevelopment At Drake Circus
Plymouth where we have perrission for a

102 000 sq fi leisure scheme including space
for 14 restaurants adjacent {o the asset we

$636m :

Gross investment activity

169,000 sq ft

of retail and leisure developments completed
aver the year

i
|
|
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expec! to take vacant possession of the bus
statron site later this year We have already
pre-let space to Cinewerld for a 12 screen
cinema as well as Byron Wagamama and Zizzi
At New Mersey Speke we recerved consent
tor a 66 000 sg 11 letsure exlension with an

11 screen cinema also pre-let to Cinewerld
and sixrestaurants Alreadywe have exchanged
or are under offer en six restaurant units and
i the main part of the scheme Next has
renewed 1is tease and will extend its trading
space o483 000sq ft

We have alsc receved planning consent

at Ealing Broadway for the conversion ol an
office block to 34 000 sq ft of private rented
resedential apartments This marks the next
stage in gur development plan for this asset
and follows a successful £14 million
refurbishment of the centre completed in
Novernber 2015 Planning permission has
also been granted lor the redevelopment of a
Homebase at Crawley into 2 new 52 000 sq ft
homewares park

Locking further ahead to the medium term
during the year we submitted a plannung
application for a £262 million [our share

£131 milion] mixed use redavelopment of
Eden Walk Kingston toinclude 562 000 sq fl
public space leisure retail and residenual

Al Meadowhall public consultation has slarted
on ourJ30 000 sq it leisure extension Across
our near and madwum term pipetinge we are
ontrack to achieve BREEAM Excellent or Very
Good ratings on 464 000 sq ft of reta:l and
leisure space reflecting strong performance
onwellbeing efficiency ecology and other
sustainability critena
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Strategic Report

OFFICES AND RESIDENTIAL REVIEW

We have used our placemaking skills
to drive further improvement at our
London office assets, delivering value
Jor shareholders

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices
and Residenlial

les highlights ot the sear

$4.0bn :

t
4

Portfolio valuation [British Land sharel

&
15.4% ;
9.6% l

in recent months there have been signs of &
slowdown Ukely due to the EU referendum
Take up s likely to slow further in the shert
term bul long term we believe thal London s
global posstion wilt endure

The investment market also remamed healthy
rellecting the fundamentat altractions of
London growing rents good Lguidity and a
scarcity of inceme return around the world
Demand from global and domesuc investors
remained robust despite the lstencally low

ERY growth
Capital return and relative performance aver the year
continuing to benefit from trends such as
5 6(y growth glebalisation of labour and capital
] 0 and infrastructure-led regeneration Qur
£70bilbion from €6 O billion a year ago
drven by valuation uplift of 11 8%

l 200% {r)n:\::r: la(a:);‘m delivered good absolute
strong relative economic growth population
Lettings/renewals versus ERV Offices & Residential business grew to
|
980 6% Cur strategy is focused on using our

Occupancy rate ' placematung skills to drive further yields and while investment volumes have
I improvement al our campuses which account fallen since January first quarter transactions
for over 70% of cur Bffices portfolio through al £3 5 bitlion were 8% ahead of the Hyear

average !mpartanily there have been a number
aftransactions which suppart current yields

7 9 development public realm improvements and
VeaI‘S the mtroduction of a greater range of uses

Lease length To first break We are also using these placemaking skills

al our standalone assets which allow us to Inresicential the prime market has been
experimentwith different products - such impacted by both increased supply and recent
as Yalding House - and also provide Liguidity tax changes and transaction volumes have

1o the porifolic - such as the disposal of slowed Inthe super prime market thereis

39 Vicloria Street Our development capabilities | continued emphasis on the quality of stock
are a competitive advantage enablingus ta and although London continues 1o be viewad
improve our campuses and deliver value as atlractive volumes have moderated The
to our shareholders mainstream market (n London has remained
relatively robusi with steady demand

The occupational market ir London temained
strong seeing healthy demand throughout
the year With Central London vacancy at commitment through further pre-sates at

2 8% compared to the long lerm average of The Hempel and Aldgate Place and with only

' 5 3% prime rents continued to rise However £292 mulbon of units remaining our residential

We contsnued to reduce our residential
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business represents a manageabte amouni

of our portfolio The majority of the remaining
unils by value are at Clarges Mayfair which we
will nat market unul completion in late 2017 and
15 a scheme which wa believe will sull generale
strong inlerest

Porttoho Performance

We continued to benehit from our focus on
tondon The value of our Offices ard Residential
partfolio was up 11 8% to C7 0 illion including
the impact of the recent 1% 1ncrease in stamp
duty for commercial property The drivers of
valuaticn growth shifted subskantially over the
yearwith gur actions accounting for 30% of
growih in the first hall and almost all growth
in the second half We sawinward yseld shift

of 21 bps across the Office portfolio compared
10 51 bps last year reflecting the slowdown in
the investment market

The West End and City portfolios were up

12 8% and 11 1% respectively wath the West
End portfalio showing a parlicularly strong
pertermance in the second half in part due lo
the 15% uplift on the West End developments
The Residential portfoliowas up 5 7% This
movement translates into strong averall
eapialreturn of 12 0% ahead efthe IPD
sector benchmark by 0 bps

The Offices and Residential investment porifolio
was up 11 7% driven by 9 6% ERV growth As
our development pipeline completed standing
invesiments have hecame an increasingly
important cantribulor to performance
acecountmg for almost 70% of the upliftin the
year Davelopments delivered vatuation upbit
af 12 7% with strong performance at 4 Kingdom
Streat which saw a valuation uplilt of 42%

f

Office lettings and renewals
Iy sector (by rent}

B Barks & Financial Services
®Professionat & Corporate

OTMT

W Retail

B Manulacluring
B Gavernment
Einsurance Cos
B Oiher Business

11.8%

vatualion uplitin oifices

£3.8m

of annualised rent addad
through rent reviews

38 3%
19 5%
15 3%
9 6%
7 2%
5 4%
3%
08%
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| Assot Management

| Despite delivering 2 2 million sq ft of

| developments in the last 3 years our portfolio

i 15 now virtually fully let reflecting the strength

| of occupauonal demand and the quality of our

' space Asaresull overall letting volumes at

i 296 000 sq (1 are below racent years levels
bul we continug to agree deals on lerms 5 6%

| ahead of ERV

l

I

|

|

i

We added £3 8 million of annualised rent
through rent reviews on 687000 sq {t of space
an uplitof 17% compared Lo previous passing
rent Cur campusesare relatively affordabie
and with 18 million sq ft of rent reviews to
seitle in the next 18 months we are well placed
to caplure rentat growth going forward
Average ERVs at Paddington and Regent s
Plate at £46 psf and £57 psf respectvely are
low relative 1o core West End and at Broadgate
the average 1s £57 psf Overall our portfoliois
now 10% reversionary [7% City 11% West End)

In the City The Leadenhat! Buitding 1s now
98% let or under offer from 84% at the start
of the year with just one of the tap ileors to let
we continued {o set new rental highs in the City
We have been particularly pleased not only by
the occupier ntersst but also the cnucal
acclaim it has received with the Leadenhall
Building named Building of the Year™ by the
Worshipful Company of Charterad Architects
Wa were also deltghted that The Duke of
Cambridge and Prince Harry formally opened
the bulding in October 2015

Al Broadgate we are progressing our vision Lo
create a world class campus for Londen This
reflects the growth and diversity of sts locatron
not only as an important part of the City but
being adjacent to the regenerating areas of
Sherediteh and Spitalhields which increasingly
caler to technology and other creative sectors

o
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OFFICES AND RESIDENTIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

94

Our Offices portfolio is now virtuadly fully
let reflecting the strength of occupational
demand and the quality of our space.”

The cpeming of the Crossrail station at Liverpool
Street in 2818 will also be supportve of our
cveratlvision Redevelopment opportunities will
significantly increase the scale of the campus
and better integrate 1t with the vibrant areas

to the north and east The redevelopment of
Broadgate Circle has done much o enliven

the campus and our plans will build on this
mementurn with a more drverse offer which
malches changing working lifestytes Our near
terr development pipeline includes 823 D00 sq
ft of space with a further 550 000n the
medim term

AL Raegent s Place we are progressing our vision
to evolve the campus through redevelopment
works We completed the refurbishment of
79000 sq ft at 338 Euston Road with Facebook
taking occupation of the majority of the space
Levels 2and 7 (13 000 sq f1) are available and we
are seeing good interest both from existing and
new occuplers We have made good progress
with rent reviews at 20 Triton Street growing
rents on average from £52 psi to £70 psfon

151 000 sq {1 of space and adding £2 5 mullion

te annualised rents with a further 600 000 sq ft
tc be negotiated in the next 18 manths The next
phase of major works s at 1 Triton Sguare
where we are 1n the early stages of designing

a signihicant refurbishmeant

At Paddington Central we are making good
progress towards our vision lo complete

the campus through development and
transforming the public realm We completed
phase 1 of the public realm enhancement
works and phase 2 which will be focussed
around Kingdem Street 15 out te lender and
will start this summer We have secured 4
moorings on the canal and we have alse
purchased 2 canal boats lo be usad to host
events and enltven the surrounding area

We saw ERY growth of 5% across the campus
1n the second hatf of the yaar and settled rent
reviews on 75 800 sq ft of space at 2 Kingdom
Street taking rents from £45 psito £54 psf
and adding £0 6 million to annualised rents

46

E Imvestnient \etivaty
Gross investment aclvily over the year was
£621 million with total szles of £198 millien

|BL share)

We continued to make progress at our
Residental schemes The Hempel Collechion
and Aldgate Place selling £5% muittion of
L apartments at prices on average 3% ahead

of valuatron At Clarges Mayiar having
! pre-sold over 50% of the gross development
r value of the residential element of the scheme
I

In September 2014 it remains our intention
to undertake no further marketing unul the
rematning apartments have reached

I practical cempletion
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In July last year we sold an office building at
39 Victoria Sireet for a net price of £139 million

| We acquired the buitding for £40 mition 1n 2009

{BL sharel and total acquisttions of £232 milkon |

and it was let in1its entirety to the Corporate

‘ Officer of The House of Commons in 2013

'

following a substanual refurbishment The
disposal atayield of less than 4% crystaltised
an attractive IRR of over 20% per annum

since purchase

Al the start of the year we acquired One
Sheldon Square for £210 mullion This 1z in ine
wilh our sirateqgy of expanding our Interests

n and around our core campuses it also
Increases our exposure to an up and coming
area of Londen and Paddingten station a
major Lendon transport interchange which




will benelit from the opening cf Crossrailin
2018 The acquisition adds nearly 200 000 sq ft
to our office space bringing the assets we own
in Paddington Central to 834 000 sq ft

We completed 739 000 sq ft of devetopments

in the pertod with 5 Broadgate accounting for
710 900 sq it UBS began fitting out 5 Broadgale
Inthe summer and we expect ther to move

in later this year We achieved a BREEAM
Excellent rating at 5 Broadgate and we are
onirack to achieve BREEAM Excellent across

a further 2 7 millien sq ft of office space

We also completed Yalding House a 29,000sqft
office-led refurbishment 1n the heart of
Fiizrovia The bulding which was launched in
February hasvarable floor plates and 1s
targeted at small and medium sized businasses
inthe creative seciors We are pleased with the
level of enguiries seen to date

Our under consiruclion programme covers
617000 sg it with total speculative commitment
(including land} of £530 millien This includes
192 080 sq i at our super prime restdential-led
development Clarges Mayiair where both the
relocation of the Kennel Club and the affordabte
houstng element were delivered in the period
We are on track to complete the 4€ 000 sqg ft
office elermnent in the summer with the
residential to complete In late 2017

At 4 Kingdom Streel we are making good
progress We are ontrack lo lopout laier

this month and on target to deliver t47000 sq ft
of office space in 2007 At 2 ¥ingdom Streat
Broadgate Estates achieved the world s first
BREEAM Quistanding Fit Oui As well as being
fughly efficient the new enviranment is helping
Broadgate Estates attract and retain the

best talent

£330m

of tcommilted speculatie development

LSm sq ft

Near term devalopment sipeline focused
on London

British Land

There are signs thal Increases in construction ‘
costs are moderating reflecting lower raw |
material costs However tender prices still |
reflect imited capaoty s tha industry with

conlraclors seeking to restore margins and

Lirmit their nsk exposure n central Lenden

we are currently iorecasung cost inflatron

of 5% per annum and for our projects under

constructien all our costs are fixed

We made good prograss with our near term
development pipeline which has increased from
1 3 mitlion sg ftin March last yearto 1 8 million
sq ft Werecently receved consent for a revised
520 000 sq ft redevelopment of 100 Liverpool
Street at Broadgate incorporating a larger retail
cormponent ihan i the previous consent 1nline
with our plans to add 400,000 sq It of retail ta the
campus In the medium term Subject 1o UBS
completing the fit out works at 5 Broadgate we
expect lo be In a position to commence with

100 Liverpool Street inearly 2017

At 1 Finsbury Avenue we receved planning
consent for a 303 000 sq ft redevelopment

and at | Triten Square, on our Regent s Place
campus we are progressing the design We
will make the decision whether to commii to
these schemes at the appropriate ime but
we are pleased with the level of interesi we are
seeing {rom occupiers for potential pre-lets
despite ihe fact that the projects are still at

, anearly staga

Our planning application for 340 000 sq ft of
mixed use space at Blossom Street Shoreditch
was also granted consent having been called
inby the Mayor of Londen The High Court has
since rejecied a Judicial Review of the Mayor s
decision take over in the appbcation but s
unlikely that we will start onsite in 2016 as had
beaen our intention AL S Kingdorm Sireet we
have made good progress on the proposed
design and we expect to submit & planning
application by the end of the year

Looking anead to our medum term pipeline
we submitted a planning applicaticn for the
redevelopment of 2 and 3 Finsbury Avenue
increasing the area from 189 000 sq ft o
550000 sq {1

Annual Report and Accounts 2014




Strategic Report

CARBON REPORTING

Our efficiency programme provides well-managed
environments for workers, shoppers and residents,
supports our occupiers’ sustainability goals, cuts
occupancy costs and enhances asset value

We actively manage greenhcuse gas emissions
across our business We are recognmised in the
COP Drsclosure Leaderstup Index for the fifth
year running with a 100% score for disclosure
We also achieved B for performance

We have reported on all emission sources
required under the Compantes Act 2004
[Strategic Repart and Directors Reports)
Regulations 2013 These sources fall within
our consobidated financial statement and
relate to head office activities and controtled
emissions from our managed portfobo Al

our scepe 1 and 7 emissions are included

in this statement We have used purchased
energy consumgption data the GHG Protocol
Corporale Accounting and Reporting Standard
irevised edition] and emission {actors from the
UK Government s GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting 2015

Scope 1and 2 carbon emissions reduced

this year due to severai factors notably the
decarbenisation of lhe UK grid improvements
through cur ongoing efficiency programme and
changes in our portfolio afisching energy use

Scope 1and 2 conssions witersin (fomes CO )

Year ended 31 March 2016 2015 200%
Per m* - Offices [net letable area) 0075 0075 0118
Per m? - Retail - enclosed 0073 0088 0174
Per parlung space - Relail - openarr 00463 0063 0106
Per m¢ - Residentiatl 0081 0085 -
Per Em - gross rentalincome from managed portfolio’ 79 48 8730 -
Ahaolute Scope Land 2 entessions (tonnes CO )

Year ended 31 March 2016 2015 2009
Combustion of fuel Managea portfolic gas use and fuel use

in Briish Land owned vehicles 7284 6965 5156
Operation of facilihes Managed portfolio refrigerant loss irom

ar conditioning 644 554 -
Purchase of electricity, heat steam and cooling for our own use

Managed portfobio etecinicity use 38,110  4£2502 41186
Aolute Seope 3 cnissons {tonnes CO )

Year ended 31 March 2014 2012
Occupier controlled energy use - Offices Elecinicity and gas use in our assels 50,291 51839
Oceupier controlled energy use — Retail Electricity and gas use In our assels 584,868 748150
Broadgate Estates controlled energy use - Third parties Electnicity and gas use

In assets owned by others 36,097 -
Development supply chain Construciion materials site activity design and other

business services 78,934 176622
Visitor travel Vehicle use io and from assels 2,914,902 4970786
Corporate and other Group procurement finance employee travel energy

life-cycle related water and residentiat energy 137,816 109133

Gross Rental Income {8RI] from the managed portfolio comprises Group GRI of £451 million [2015 £359 m thon]
plus 1005 of the GRI generated by jont ventures and funds of £451 mitlion [2015 €495 mallion) tess GRI
generated by assets oulsice the managed portiolie of £315 mullton [2015 £323 mullion)
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! and associated emissiens Combustion of fuel

increased slightly due io accupier hit outs
f notably in The Leadenhall Building
|
[ We commissioned a review of our Scope 3
| emissions by Arup which revealed that changes
in gur portlolig smce 2012 have substantially
reduced our carben footprint The shift towards
assels with strong public iransport links
i has reduced erissions from visior travel by
' 13 mithion tonnes More delailed information
around visitor numbers and iransport use has
| also improved accuracy reducing visitor travel
i emissions by 800 000 tennes In addition
the reduction i our total floor area and the
decarborusation of the UK grid have contributed
to reductions in emissions from occupier
energy use of 164 (00 tonnes The increase
in Corporate and other emissions was due
to Ihe additzon of Broadgate Estates data and
residential energy use data within our footprint
as well as increased emissions related to
property acguistiions and finance

Reducing Scope 3 cmissions

| weare working with our development
 supply chain to reduce carbon emissions
{rom constructien materiats At 100
Liverpool Street our design tearm has
developed plans Lhat re-use as much

of the bullding structure as possible
cuting construction costs and reducing
embodied carbon by 7 270 tonnes Design
improvements are alsa targeting & further
4 360 tonne saving versus Lhe onginal
concepts at no extra cost by changing
insulation materials using cement
replacement (ncreasing recycled
aluminum content and switching to
Lightweight engineered beams

¢ ([) We amended our methodology for

— carbon intensities this year and have
restaied previous numbers to reflect
this For aur fuil methodolagy
explanation of changes and PwC s
independent assurance see our 2016

| Sustamnabtlity Accounts available at

www britishland corn/data




FINANCIAL REVIEW

Our strategic focus on placemaking
along with our active debt management
underpinned our strong results

hey highhghts ot the vear

14.29%

Totzl accounting return’

919,

EPRA nel assel value per sharg'

£9.6bn

t\'“%\h"?" ¥

R

IFRS net assels 1
L
28 4 FOvervien | activity in the year This drove the 50 bps
) p The strong performance this year s reflected in | reduction in the Group s proportionally
Dreidend per share | our aperating resulis and the total accounting consolidated weighted average interest
i returnof 14 2% rateto3 3% from 3 8%

363 Our focus on placemaking and acceleraling Underlying Profit increased to £343 miliion
S 1m | ERV growth have delivered a portfelio valvation | as a result of our successful financing activity
Underlying Profit' 1 uplift of & 7% on a propor tonally consolidated leasing of our completed developments and

basis and a 10 %% increase in NAV per share rentat income growth in the investment
to 219 pence exciuding the impact of the 1% partfolio including a number of significant
£1 3b I Increase In stamp duty on cormnmercial property | rent rewiews in Offices
] 11 | NAV per share would have been 932 pence lan
IFRS profit before tax Increase of 12 4%) Underlying earnings per share increasea by
* | less than profits due tc the requirement to
We have completed £1 3 billion of investmant anticipate cenversion into new shares of the
32(y activity with acquisition and develepment £400 milbion 1 5% convertible bond Issued In
(1] spend breadly balancing disposals We have 2012 and maturing in 2017 with a conversian
LTV proportionally consclidated sold mature and non-core assets and have price of $93 pence
remvasted in our existing busingss and
! inselected acquisttions adjacent Lo ' {FRS profit before tax for (he year of
3 3(y  extsling assets £1 331 millien 1s lower than the prior year
[ () { primarily due o a reduced level of property
Weighted aserage interestrate Our balance sheet metrics remarm strong | valuation moavement reflecting the slowdown
proporucnally consolidated { The praportionally consolidated toan to value ‘ in yield compresstan and the recent increase
raig has decreased to 32% from 35% due to | w1 stamp duly on commercal property

a combination of our actions including the ‘
resulls of our placemaking actmvily and market | Looking forward (o next year we intend o
mavements We have raised £915 mitlien of ! increase the divdend by 3% to 29 20 penca per
new debl including a £350 million zero coupon | share with a quarterly dwvidend of 730 pence
converuble bond Together with the £110 mitbion | per share
' See glossary lor definiions debenture bonds tender offer and purchase

i we have completed over £1 billion of financing

British Land ! Annual Report and Accounts 2016 49
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Proesentatton of inancial information | Undeebang Profa

A summary inceme statement and summary
balance sheet which reconcile the Group
financial statements to Brish Land s
interests on a propertionally conselidated
basis are included in Tabte A within the
supplementary disclosures

Fees and other income and administrative gxpenses have been restalad Lo rellecl the change in presenlation
of the results of Broadgate Estates a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group This reslatement has had no
impact on Underlying Frohi Refer to note 1 of the inanaial statements for further detarls

? EPRA adjustments consist of Investment and development property revaluations gans/losses oninvesimenl
and trading property disposals changes in the fair valua of financial instruments and associaled close oul
costs Thesetems are presentedin the capital and other column of the consolidated income statement

|
The Group financial statemants are prepared i : 2016 2025
under IFRS where Lhe Group s interests in joint ection Em z
ventures and funds are shown as a single ine | Gross rental mcame 654 518
item on the income statement and balance I Property operating expenses [34) [33)
sheet and all subsidiartes are consolidated I Net rental income 11 620 585
at 100%

‘ ! Net fees and other 1ncome 17 i7
Managemant considers the business principalty | Adrunistrative expenses 13 (941 i28)
on a proportionally consolidated basis when Net hnancing costs 172 180l {201
setting tha strategy determining annual
prionties making sinvestment and financing i Underlying Profu 363 313
decisians and reviewing performance This Non-centroliing interest in Underlying P ofit 14 16
includes the Group s share of joint ventures ’ EPRA adjustments® 954 1450
and funds on a line-by-line basis and excludes | |FRS profit before tax 2 1,331 1,789
non-controlling interests in the Group s }

Underl s pershare T4 341 05
subsidiaries The financial key performance I nEerlying earnings per s P P
indicators are alse presented on this basis i IFRS basic earnings per share 2 1312p 1683p
| Dividend per share 3 2836p 2743p

Income statement
1 Underlying Profit
Underlying Profit is the measure thal 1s used
inlernally to assess income performance No
company adjustments have been made in Lhe
currant or prior year and therefore this is the 40
same as the pre-tax EPRA earnings measure !
which includes a number of adjustments to !
the IFRS reported profit bafore (ax Thisis i 15

|

i

et rental income (£m) (Cran v

presenled above on a proporuonally 23 _ 143
consolidated basis -

11 Metrental iIncome “rar* |
The £35 million increase in nel realal income
during the year was the result of streng |
letting activity

The successful letting of our development
programme provided £23 million of this
increase, primarily due to tha start of the lease |
at 5 Broadgale and the lettings we have made L

D topmier e Lo Ir ke Azguasbuns O apr suis FOIT)
oA FotMa gt

at the Leadenhall Building which 1s now almaost
full with recent leasing deals selting new
records for City rents Nt fnanemng costs (5m) ichar
Like-for-like rental income growth was 3 &% |
Offices and Resident:al growth was almost 7%
Just over half of this was due lo the letungup of .
completed developments that are ngw in the
like-for-Like portfolio with the remainder being
attributable to strong rent review activity
particulariy al Regent s Place and Paddingion
Retall and Leisure growth was 1 4% 1 8%
excluding the impacl of surrender premial 1

Qur near term develepment pipeline could add
a further £68 milllon of net rental income aver
the next Syears The three largest schemes 1n |
the near term pipeline are income producing
invesimenls with a current passing rent of

Francey Agqus o LEpoaals Lo erunid PR
| artely devcloprmants
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£24 million which 1s expected to run cif :n the ‘ 2014 2015

last quarter of 2016/17 | Balance sheet Section £m Em
Prapertes at valualion 14 048 13 677
1 2 Net#nancing costs o~ ¢ , Gther non-current assets 138 254

We completed over £1 bulbon of financing

i 14,786 13,933
activityin the current year including the

£350 million zero coupon cenvertible bond and Other net current lizbiliuies (2570 (307
the £110 million debenture bonds tender offer Adjusted net debt 6 [£765) [4%18)
and purchase We have raised and refinanced | Other non-current babiliies (20) [73)
a total of £915 mullien of debt al lower margins EPRA net assets |undiluted} 9474 8635
and in a lower Interest rale environment A
Together with the impact of last year s financing ~ Dution impacl of convertible bond 400 a0
actvity this resulted m a £27 milton decrease EPRA net assets (diluted) 10,074 9,035
In financing cosis this year ; EPRA NAV per share 4 §19p  82%p
Non-controlling inlerest 277 333
Our approach lo interest rate management was \
alsoimportant in reducing Interest costs Atthe | SPRAadjustments (732) {803)
year end we had reduced the proporucn of our , IFRS net assets H 94617 8545

debt held at frxed rates to 60% on average over

' EPRA nat assets exclude the mark to market an effeciive cash flew hedges and related debt adjusiments the
the next five years 164% at 31 March 2015 . 4 !

mark to-rnarket an the conver tible bonds as well as deferred taxation on property and derivative revaluations
They include the valuation surplus on trading properties and are adjusled for the dilutive Impact of share oplions
Cverall ouractions during theyeardrove the | andthe €400 million convertible band maturing in 2017 Ng adjusiment is made lor the £350 m llion zero coupon
raduction in our preportionatly consolidated i convertible bond because this s not currenlly dilutive Details of the EPRA adiusiments are included in Table A

thin the I nlary discles
welghied average mterest rate 1o 3 3% at within the supatementary disclesures

31 March 2016 from 3 8% at 31 March 2015

EPRANAV por share (p) (chan )

Lower capilalised interest :n the current 1
year reflecied our rediced development ,
commitment This resulted in an additional

€5 mitlion of interest costin the year

(26) 3]

13 Admimistrative expenses

During the year we brought the properly
management of our retail assels in-house lo
Broadgate Estates a wholly owned subsichary
1n line with our strateqic focus on customer
orientation and placemaking fn recogmition
of the core role Broadgate Estates now plays
in how we run the business we have changed
lhe way its resulls are presented in tha Group |
income statement This hasresultedin s L L e and Rats ! I~dery rg Cvderds Frarom FAD
£5 million merease in administrative expenses Roog Fdlea e poft rRneaLtan

and an equat and affsetling increase in net fees Lo et

and otherincome importantly this change has
no impact on Underlying Profit The prior year
comgparatives for net fees and etherincome
and administrative expenses have also been
restated to reflect thes change in presentation

Adjusted net debt (8! (ehen 4

511

Development team costs of £4 mitlion were
capitalised lor the first time this year as we
progress our development pigeling

6321 [ —
Overall administrative expenses increased

by £6 mullion this year i ine with our ptanned

* (310)

investment in people and technalagy in order &8 [4,745)

ie enhance the capatlity of the business !

which includes a £2 mellion increase related !

to Broadgate Estates The Group s operating

cost ratio remains sector leading at 16 6% 1 1L Argusters  Dweve opmert Copnzas NEL _ash Dwvzsras Crher Wiy

(2014/15 16 47%) aieapns o

& Undertying EPS Ad d debl 1 lidated it tsthe G t deot as disclosed
usied net debl is a proportionally consolidatec measure Il represents tihe broup nel deot as disclosecin

Underlying EPS for 2015/i6 was 3% 1 pence ! Nc;te 17 and the Group s share of joinl venture and {unds net debt excluding the mark-to-market on eflective

(2014/15 30 6 pencel based on Underlying |  cash flow hedges and related debt adjustments ant non conirolling imterests A reconcilialion between the

Profit after tax of £305 millian {2014/15 €313 " Group net debt and adjustad net debt 1s :ncluded in Table A within the supplermentary disclosures

Briushtand Annual Report and Accounts 2010 51




Strategic Report

FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

million] adjusted to add back interest on the
£400 million 1 5% convertibie bond of £6 mitlion
{2014/15 £nil] and the werghled average diluted
number of shares of 1 089 million {2014/15
1022 mullson)

Theincrease in Underlying EPS of 11 4% 15 less
than the increase in Underlying Profit because
we are now required to anticipate conversign
into shares of the €400 million 1 5% convertible
bond which matures in 2017 1n cur reported
Underlying EPS

2 IFRS profit before tax

The main difference between IFRS profil befcre
tax and Underlying Profit is that it includes
the valuation movement on investment and
development properties and the fair value
movemants of financiat instruments In
addition the Group sinvestments injoint
ventures and funds are equity accounted
n the IFRS income sialement bui are
included on 3 proportonally consclidated
basis within Underlymng Profit

The tFRS profit before tax for the year was
£1331 million a decrease of £458 million
primarily due to the siowdown n yield
compression and the 1% stamp duty increase
on commeraial property in the current year
resulting in lower levels of property valuation
movement This impacts IFRS profit before tax
through the valualion movement on ihe Group s
properues which was £258 million less than
lastyear and the valuation movermneant on the
properties held in joint ventures and funds
which was £344 million less than last year

The £77 million decrease i net financing costs
ta £75 riition was principally due to revaluation
gains recorded in respect of the Group s
convertible bonds

Further information on portfolio valuation
performance 1s provided on page 36

The £50 millen increase in net rental income
to £425 millicn was pnimarily the resull of

the purchase of a controting interestin New
Mersey Spekein March 2015 the purchase

of cantrolting interests in two mixed portfolios
of singte and mult-let assets [the Tesco
transaction | also completed in March 2015
and like-for-like rental Income growth in

the standing portfolio

Basic earnings per share decreased by 22%

to 131 2 pence per share The weighted average
number of shares inissue during the period
was | 025 million [2014/15 1016 mutiion)

W
3%

3 Dmdends

The quarterly diwdend was increased to 707
pence per share in the year bringing ihe towal
dividend declared for the current financial year
0 28 36 pence per share [2014/15 27 68 pence
per sharz| anncrease of 2 5% over the prior
year The dvidend paid in the financial year was
28 02 pence per share [2014/15 27 34 pence
per sharg|

[t+s the Board s intention 0 tncrease the
dwidend by 3 0% n 2016/17 1o 29 20 pence per
share with a quarterly dividend of 7 30 pence
per share

Balanee Sheet

4 EPRA NAV pershare . i1

The EPRA NAY ger share of 919 pence includes
the 13 pence adverse impact [rom (he 1% rise
In Stamp Duty Land Tax on commercial
property announced in the budget this year

The 10 9% increase in EPRA NAV per share
reflects a strong valuation performance across
the portfolio of 6 7% Cur portfolio is broadly
split equatly between Offices and Retall Tha
valvation uplft 1nthe year1s primanily due lo
ERV growth of 5 3% with an accelerated trend
compared to last year reflecting our focus on
placemaking and the strength of the markels
wenvesi in Yield compression was 17 bps and
contribuled significantly less Lo the valuation
uplift compared to the prior year

Returns were driven by our standing
investments up & 4% bocsted by an
increase of ¢ 4% in ow developments

Offices and Residential valualions were up

11 8% with strong ERY growth of 7 6% the
Wesl End performed slightly more strongly
than the City in part due to the valuation

uphift on cur developments Relal and Lessure
valuations were up 2 4% underpinned by strong
perfermance in our mulii-let portfolio which
saw ERY growlth of 3 4%

The finance transaction costs primarily relats

to the debenlure bond tender offer and
purchase completed in the year and are

Eanancing shitistics

, compensaled for by lower inlerast costs over

the remaining penod of the financa

5 IFRS netassets

IFRS net assets al 31 March 2016 were £9 519
milbien an increase of £1 054 milbion This was
primanily due to property revatuation gamns in
the current year which were £616 miltion for
the Group and £245 million for the Group s
share of joint ventures and funds

In August 2015 the loan provided by the Group
to the Broadgate joint venture was repald
This was funded by additional shareholder
contributions to the joint venture and resulted
ina £137 million decrease in net debt and

a E137 million increase inthe Group s
investmenis in Joint ventures and funds

Cash Flow Net Debt and Fianeimng
& Adjusted netdebt . ..

The rmpact of our investmeant activity in the year
was broadly balanced

Sigruficant sequisttions completed in the year
included One Sheldon Square and the purchase
of an addihonal 6 1% of the units in Hercutes Urit
Trust bringing the Group s ownership 1o 75 3%
atthe year end

Development expenditure of £490 matbon
related to the spend on our commitled
development programme and capital
expenditure of £120 mullion related to asseat
management on the standing portfclio
Forecast development spend of £204 mullion
IS anticipated over the nexl three years on the
Group s commiited development pregramme
and £720 million on the Group s near lerm
develapment pipeline This compares o

{358 milan of contracted residential sales
along with a further £292 million of residentiat
units yet tc be contracted for sale on existing
committed projects

Signiticant disposals in the year included

39 Victona Sireet al an atiracuve yield which
generated an {RR of over 20% Rotherham
Parkgate and Leeds Birstall Inaddition
disposals of standalone superstores totalling

Group Proportionally consolidated

2016 2015 2014 2015

Net debt/adjusted net debt £34817m  £3828m £ 765m £4218m
Principal ameunt of gross debt £3852m 3 77m £5089m  L£520Zm
Loan lo value 25% 28% 32% 35%
Weighted average interest rale 2 6% 33% 33% 35%
Interest cover 33 29 30 26
Weighted average debl matunity 72yaars  7T5years 8lyears 87years

The Group figures represent net debt as presentzdin note 17 of the hinancial statements the proportionally
consolidated figures inrlude the Group s share of joint venture and funds net debt and exclude the mark-to
market on effectise cash flow hedges and related debt adjusiments and nan-conlralling intarests
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£122 millton were completed including the
sale of Tesco Bursledon for £60 milbon and
Sainsbury s Istington for £32 million reducing
the Group s total superstore exposure to under
£0 8 biliion We currently have a further

£106 milbion of mature or non-care reiail
assels under offer

7 Financing

Balance sheet metrics remain streng LTV

and the waightad average interest rate on
drawn debt were reduced and interest cover
improved The decrease 1 both our Group and
proportionally consolidated LTV measures s
due to a combination af our actions and market
movements Nate 17 of the financial statements
sets out the catcutabion of the Group and
proporticnally consolidated LTV

Our proporucnally consalidated LTV was 32%
at March 2016 down from 40% two years ago
Pro-forme for the full conversion af the £400
milon 15% converuble bond maturing in 2017
proportionately consolidated LTV 15 29%

The strength of the Group s balance sheetis
reflected in Briush Land s senior unsecured
credit rating which continues to be rated oy
Fich at A-

Financing acuvity during the year amounted

lo cver £1 billion We continue to achieve
attraclive financings which improve earnings
and igudity including £915 million of new debt
finance since 31 March 2015 I

Taking advantage of favourable market |
condiions we raised a £350 million zere

coupon semor unsecured convertible bond

due 2020 which inctudes flexibte settlement
opuicns and provides further diversification i
of our sources of finance |

Following a tender offer in respect of Brish
Land s 6 75% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds
due 2020 we purchased £110 million of bonds
The purchase was funded by existing committed
faciliies and the bonds wera cancalted

Financing aciivity in our Jjoint venture and
{unds in the year consisted of the repayment
of £100 mitlien of a Hercules Unit Trust term
loan reducing the facility to £250 million and
ils subseguent refinancing at pricing less than
halfthe previous faciity The Gibraltar Lirnited
Partpershup £140 million loan facibity was
also relinanced in the year at significantly
tower pricing

Overall financing activity we completad in the
year was the principal facier in the reduclion
of the progortionally consolidated weighled
average interest rale from 3 8% to 3 3%

We have also agreed one year extensions to
both our bank syndicated unsecured revelving
credit facilities i total £1 245 million

Briush Land has £1 8 billion of commutted
unsecured revolving banking facibiiies and
£83 mittion of cash and short term deposits
Of these facihities £1 6 illien have malurites
of more than two years and £1 2 billion was
undrawn at 31 March 20146 Based on our
current commitments and these facilimes
the Graup has no requirement te refinance
for four years

(:_E_) Further infermation on cur appreach to
~—" nnancing 15 provided in the financial policies
and principles section on pages 54 to 546

Tanx

The Group elected for REIT status on 1 January
2007 paying a £308m conversion charge to
HMRC inthe same year Asa consequence

of the Group s REIT slatus taxis levied onthe
distribution of income from our qualifying
propearty remtal business rather than at the
corporale tevel Any income which does not
qualify as property income within the REIT
rules is subject to taxan the normal way This
inclides prolits on properiies developed and
sald within three years as well as fees and
interest The tax credit for the year1s £2m
[excluding deferred 1ax]

Our 2016 Total Tax Contribution was more than
£240m mainly arising from taxes coltected
from others which we admimistered togather
wilh taxes and levies pard directly

HMRC continue to award British Land a low
risk tax rating which1s 1n part a reflection of our
REIT status together with the open and regular
dialogue we mamtain with them We continue

to comfertably pass ali REIT iests to ensure

our REIT status 1s mantained

Umield

Lucmnda Bell
Chuef Financial Gfficer
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Srratedic Kepory

FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES

We focus on having an appropriate
balance of debt and equity funding which
enables us to deliver our property strategy

Leverage

Our mix of equity and debt financing 15 managed
to achieve the appropriate balance between
enhancing returns for shareholders and Lthe
risk of igher leverage We use a loan tovalue
ratio {debt as a percentage of the gross value

al ourassats LTV Jto measure our leverage
primarily ona proporticnally conscbdated basis
including aur share of joint ventures and funds
and excluding non-controlling interesis

We seek to manage our leverage such that

our LTV should not excead a8 maximum
threshold if market yrelds ware lo rise 10
previous peak levels This means we will not
increase our LTV If asset values increase only
as a resuli of market yield improvement
Conseguently our maximum LTV may be higher
In the low paint In the cycle and will trend
downwards as market yields tighten

We leverage our eguity and achieve benefils of
scale while spreading risk through jaint ventures
and funds which are typically partly financed
wilh debt without recourse to Briush Land

Qur current propertionally consolidated LTV
of 32% includes our share of the debt in joint
ventures and funds and 1s higher than the
Group measure of 25%

Debt hnanee

The scale of our business combined with

the quality of our assets and rental income
means that we are atiraclive 1o a broad range
of debt providers and abie to arrange finance
on favourable terms Good access to the capital
and debt markets 15 a competitive advantage
allowing us to take opportumities when

they arise

The Group s approach to debt financing for
Briush l.and 15 lo raise funds predominantly on
an unsecured basis with our standard financial
covenants [set out on page 56| This provides
the greatest flexibildy and low operationat cost
Our joint ventures and fundg are each linanced
in ring-fenced structures without recourse to
Briuish Land for repayment and are secured on
the relevant assels

A
e

Presented opposite are the five guiding
principles that govern the way we siructure
and manage our debt

Debt financing invoives risk from adverse
changes in the property ana financing
markets inarranging and monitoring our
financing we include important risk disciplines
ensuring that relevant risks are fully evaluated

" and managed

(’}. Managing risk in delivering our strategy see

~-" pages 57 to 63

Momtormg aid controlling our debt
We monitor our projected LTV and our debt
requirement using several key mternally
generated reports fecused principally on
barrowing levels debt maturity available
facilites and (interest rate exposure We also
undertake sensitivity analysis lo assess the
impact of propoesed transaclions movernents

ninterest rates and changes In property values

on the key balance sheet Liguidily and
profitability ratios

In assessing our engoing debl requirements
including for our devetopment programme

we consider poleatial downside scenarios such
as a talbin valuations and tha effect that might
have on our covenants

Based on our current commitments and
avaitable faciities the Group has no
requirement to refinance for four years
{irrespeciive of whether the seltlement of the
2012 convertible bond 15 with equily or debt)

Briwush Land s currenl commitied undrawn

! bank faclities are £3 2 billion

Managime mnterest rate exposure
We manage ourinterest rate profile
indapendently from our debt The Board
considers the approprale maximum level of

sensitivity of underlying earnings Lo movements

in market rates of interest over a five-year
period and the appropriate ranges of fixed
rate debt over relevant time periods
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Our debt finance 1s raised at both fixed and
vartable rates Derwvatves [primarily interest
rate swaps| are used to achieve the desied
inlerest rate profile across propertionally
cansolidated net debt Currently 0% on
average of projected net debt s fixed over the
next {ive years with a decreasing profile over
the period The use of denvatives 1s managed
by a Derwatives Committee The interest rate
management of jo.nl ventures and iunds 15
addressed by each entity for iIts business

Counterpartics

We monttor the credil standing of our
counterpartias to miNimise our risk exposure
in respect of placing cash deposits and
derivalives Regular reviews are made of lhe
external credit rabings of the counterparties

Foragn eurrency

Our policy 15 to have no mater:al unhedged
net assets or Liabilities denominated 1n
foreign currencies

When attractive terms are available the

Group may choose o berrow in freely available
currencies other than sterling and will fuily
hedge the foreign currency exposure




Our hhve gmdimg prinaiples

Diversify
our sources
of hinance

We menitor finance markets and seek (o access different types of finance when the relevant market conditions are favourable
to meel the needs of our business and where appropnate those of our joint ventures and funds The scate and qualiy of cur
bussness enables us lo access a broad range of unsecured and secured recourse and non-recourse debt

We enjoy and encourage long term relattonships with banks and debt investors We aim 1o avoid reliance on particular sources
of funds and borrow from a large number of lenders from different sectors in the market and a range of geographical areas,
with a lotal of 33 debt providers of bank facilities and private placements alone We also arm to ensure that debt providers
undersland our business we adopl a transparent approach to previde sufficient disclasures so that lenders can evaluate ther
exposure within the overall context of the Group These lactors increase our atiractiveness to debt providers and in the last
five years we have arranged over £4 billion [British Land share over £5 billion} of new finance in unsecured and secured bank
toan facilities US Private Placemenls and convertible bends

£6.20n

Tetat debt portfalio Ipropor tionally consolidated)

Phase maturity

The maturily profile of our debt 1s managed with a spread of repayment dates We menitar the vartous debt markets so that we

of debt portfolio have the ability to act quickly to arrange new linance as opportumties arse Malunities of different types of drawn debt are well
spread reducing cur refinancing nisk in respect of iming and market cenditions As a result of our financing activity we are
comfortably ahead of our preferred refinancing date horizen of not less than two years
The current range of debt matunities is one to 2G years In accordance with our usual praciice, we expect to refinance facilities
shead af their maturibies
81 years
Average debi maturity [proportionally consolidated)
Maintain In addition to our dr awn debt we airn always to have a good level of undrawn commutted unsecured revolving bank facilities
Liquidity in British Land These faciliies provide financial Uquidity reduce the need to hold resources t cash and deposits and minimise
cosls arising from the dilference between borrowing and deposit rates while reducing credit exposure
We arrange these revolving credit facililies in excess of our commitled and expected requirements Lo ensure we have adequale
financing avaitability te support business requirements and oppartunities
Y
£1.2bn
Undrawn commitied facibities
Maintain Qur facilliies are structured to provide valuable flexibiflity for investment deal execution whether sales or purchases
flexibility developments or asset management Our bank revealving credit facilities in British Land provide full flexiility of drawing and

repayment land cancellation if we requirel at short notice without additional cosl These are arranged with standard terms and
financial covenants and generally have maturities of five years Flexibiity is maintained with our combination of this unsecured
revolving debt and secured term debt in debentures with good substitution rights where we have the ability to move assets in
and out of the security

£1.8b11

Revolving credin iacilitias

Maintarn strong
balance sheet
metris

We actively manage our mix of equity and debt financing to achieve a balance between our ability Lo generate an atiractive relurn
for shareholders with the risks of having mare debt

Our capital sirategy 1s responsive to the need to manage our exposure such that we aim not to exceed a maximum proportionally
conschidated LTV threshold in an economic downturn if market yields rise to previous peak levels

32% A- 30

LTV [praportionally consolidated]  Credit rating Interest cover (proportionally
conssolidated]
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Strategic Report

FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

Ciroup borrowmgs

Unsecured finanging for the Group1s raised
through bilateral and syndicated unsecured
revolving bank facilities wiath izl terms of
five years [often extendable) US Private
Placemenis with maturities up to 2027 and the
convertible bonds maturing in 2017 and 2020

Secured debt s provided by debenlures with
longer matunities up to 2035 at fixed rates of
interest and & bank term loap

Unsecured borrowings
The same financial covenants apply across
each of the Group s unsecured facliies These
covenants which have been censistently agreed
wilh all unsecured leanders since 2003 are
- net Borrowings not to exceed 175%

of Adjusted Capital and Reserves and
- net Unsecured Borrowings nol to exceed

70% of Unencumbered Assels

Covenant ratio

No income/intarest cover rabias apply to these
faciities and there are no ather unsecured
debt financial covenants in the Group

The Unencumbered Asseis aof the Group, not
subject to any security stood at £6 5 illion
as at 31 March 20156

Although secured assets are excluded from
Unencumbered Assets for the covenant
calculations unsecured lenders banefit from
the surplus value of these assels above lhe
related debt and the free cash ftow {rom them
During the year ended 31 March 20146 these
assets generated £63 millien of surplus cash
gfter payment of interest Inadditian while
investments in joint ventures do not form part
of Unencumberad Assets our share of profits
generaled by these ventures are regufarly
passed up to the Group

Secured borrowings

Secured debt with recourse to Bribsh Land s
provided by debentures at fixed interest rates
with long maturibes and no amoriisation
These are secured against a single combmed
poot of assets with commen covenants the
value af those assets 1s required lo coverthe
amount of these debantures by a miimum of
1 5 umes and net rental income must cover the
Interest at least once We use our rights undar
the debentures to withdraw substitute or add
properues [or cash collaterall in the secunty
poot 10 order Lo manage these coverratios
effectively and daal with any asset sales

Secured debt without recourse to British Land

camprises the following each of which s

secured on a specific portfolio of properues

- a lixed rate debenlure of £30 mullion for BLD
Properly Holdings Ltd to 2020 and

- a bank loan of £295 million for TBL Properties
Limtted {and its subsidizries| 1o 2019

Borrowings in our joint ventures and funds
External debl for our joint ventures ang
funds has been arranged through long dated
securihsations or bank debt according to the
requirements of the business of each venture

Hercules Unit Trust has term loan facilities
maturing 10 2019 and 2020 arranged for

ils business and secured on its property
portfolios without recourse to Briush Land
These toans include value and income
based covenants

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
At 31 March 3 ° ! ] %
Nel borrowings to adjustad capilal and reserves' 44 31 40 38 34
Net unsecured borrowings te unencumbered assets’ 34 23 3 28 29

Highest during the year to 31 March 201o
'42/4 and
T334
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The securitisations of Broadgate [£1 667 million]
Meadowhall [£694 million] and the Sainsbury s
Superstores portfolio (£4463 milhion) have
wetghted average maturities of 12 1 years

10 4 years and é Syears respactively The only
financial covenant apphicable 1s to meel interest
and scheduled amorusation [equivalent to

i imes cover] there are no LTV covenants
These securtisations provide for quarterly
principal repayments with the balance
outstanding reducing te approximately

20% 10 30% of the orginal amount raised

by expecled final maturity thus miligating
refinancing risk

Other deot arrangements with banks include
LTV rato covenants with maximem levels
ranging from 40% to 65% and most have
rental income tonlerest ar dabl service
cover requirements

There i1s no obligation on Briish Land to
remedy any breach of these covenants and
any remedy needed would oz considered by
the parties on a case-by-case basis




MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY

Risk management is integral to our
strategy of delivering long term
sustainable returns

For Briish Land effective risk managementis

a cornerstone of cur swrategy and fundamental
Lo the achievement of our stralegic objectives

in detivery of long term sustainable returns We
fecus on the management of the principal risks
facing our business including those risks that
could threaten the Group s solvency and liguidity
as weli as dentlying emerging risks whiist at
the same ime making the most of cur
opportunities

Our sk Vanagoment Framework
Ourintegrated appreach combines a top-down
strategic view with a complementary bottom-
up operational pracess outlined in the diagram
on page 58

The Board takes overall responsibility for

risk management with a parbcutar focus on
deterrmining the nature and extent of principal
rigks it 15 withng to take in achieving its strategic |
objectives This is set in the context of the
external environment in which we aperate - this
15 our risk appelite The Audit Commuiltee lakes
responsibility for overseeing the effecuveness
of risk management and internal control
systems [as outlined on page B1) on behalf of
the Board and alse advises the Board on the
pringipal risks facing the Group including those
that would threatan its solvency or liquidity

Lucmda Bell
Chair of the
Risk Committee

t The Executive Directors are responsible

for delivering the Company s strategy and
managing risk The Risk Commitiee iwhich
15 Chaired by the Chief Financial Officer
and consists of all Execulive Directors) is
responsible for managing strategic and
eperational risk in achieving the Group s
performance goals

Whilst responsibibity for oversight of risk
management rests with the Board the effective
day-to-day managernent of risk 1s embedded in
all areas of our business and forms an integral
part of our core values and howwe work This
bottom-up approach ensures potential nsks
aredentified at an early stage escalsted as
appropriate and mitigations are put in place

te manage such risks Each business unit
mantains a comprehensive nsk registerwhich
ts reviewed quarterly by the Risk Committee
with sigrificant and emerging rnisks escatated
to tha Audit Commuttee for consideration

as appropriate
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i Brinsh Land Core Strengths

- High quality cemmercial property
fecused onvegional and local multi-let
retail assets around the UK and London
oflice campusas

} - Placemaking strategy of creating
‘ Places Peaople Prefer
\
|
|
\
}
i

- Customer orentation enables us to
develop a deep understanding of the
pecple who use cur places

- Strong and diverse occupier base

- High occupancy and long lease lengths
provides slable secure cash flows

- Mixed use development expertise

\ - Ability to source and execute

| attractive investment deals !
b

i

I

- Efficient capital structure with good
access to capital and debt markets

- Sustaimability credentials

b

I Our Risk \ppetate

| The Group s risk appetite 1s reviewed annually
lin the context of the core strengths of our
business model] and approved by the Board
Thus evaluatton guides tha actions we take in
execuling our strategy The most significant
judgements affecting our resk appetite include
our assessment of prospeciive property
returns our asset selection and invesiment
strategy the level of development exposure
and our financial leveraga

We have idenuified a suiie of Key Risk Indicators
i [KRis] to monitor our principal nisks which

are reviewed quarterly by the Risk Commutiee
ta ensure that the activties of the business
remain within our risk appetite and that our

nisk exposure 1s well matched to changes in

the business and operating environment




Strategic Report

MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING QUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

The Board has cansiderad the Group s risk
appelite and it is considered appropriate io
achieve our strategic objectives Qur business
is both resibient and well placed for the long
term Our portfolio 1s medern and nearly fully
let to quality occupiers on long leases We
have maintained our capital discipline with
investment and development being broadly
balanced by asset disposals and reduced
our proportionally consolidaled LTV 10 32%
Development continues to remain a core part
of our business and whilst our current
commitment has reduced as our 2010
programme has recenlly completed we are
progressing an attracuve future pipeling

of development opportunities with the
flexsbility to move forward when the time

15 right

Assessment of Prospects

The Group s annual corporate ptanning
process includes the completion of a
strategic review reassessing the Group s risk
appehite and updating the Group s forecasts

The Broup s strategy provides the focus

for our annual priorities and is formally
reviewed annually This process)s led

by the Chief Executive threugh the
Executive Committee and includes the
aclive engagement of the Board Part of

the Board s role 1s Lo consider whether

the strategy takes appropriate acceunt of
the Group s principal risks The latest updates
to the strategic plan and Group risk appetite
were approved by the Board in March 2016

The strategy and risk appatite drive the
Groups forecasts These cover a five year
period and constst of a base case forecast
which includes commuitted transactions
anly and a ferecast which also includes
nen-cammitied Lransactions the Board
expects the Group to make m line with
the Group s strategy

Assessment of Vialuhts

The pertod over which the Directars consider
it feasible and appropriate to report on the
Group sviability is the five year period to

31 March 2021 This period has been selected
because it 1s the period that 1s used for the
Groug s mediwum term business ptans and
individual asset performance forecasts

58

Our sk Management Frameworh

Top-Down

Strategic fisk management

Rewview external environment

Robust assessment of principal risks
Sel nisk appelit2 and paramaters

Datermine sirategic achion points

Identy principal risks

Oirect delivery of strategic actions

BuAn./
A LTLLN TR

RSKUww " TLES

Bottom-Up
Operational nisk management

/\_—-—__—‘
Assess effectiveness of nisk

management systems

Report on principal nsks
and uncerta nties

/’_\ —
—

Consider completeness of identified risks

in line with nsk appetite FXET THE and adequacy of miigating acuons
— DR LA _
Morutor key risk ind ¢ators Consider aggregation of nsk exposuras
—— \/ across the business
/ ———
Execute strateg c actiens Report current ang emerging risks
- Bo= N Tn LN T -

Report on key risk indicators

The assumplions underpinning these forecast
cash flows and covenant cormpliance forecasts
were sensitised to exptore the rasiience of the
Group to the potential impact of the Greup s
stgnificant risks or a comination of those risks

The principal risks table which follows on
pages &0 to 63 summarises those matlers
that could prevent the Group frem delivering
on s sirategy A number of these principal
risks because of their nature or potentiat
impact could also threaten the Group s ability
ta continue 1A business in its current form if
they were to occur

The Directors paid particular attention to the
risk of a deterioration in economic outtook which
would impact progerty fundamentals including
investor and occupler demand which would have
a negative impact on valuations and give nise

to a reduciion in the availabiny of {inance

The remaining principal risks whilst having an
impact onthe Group s business madel are not
considered by the Directors to have a reasonable
liketihood of iImpacting the Group s viability over
the five year period to 31 March 2021

The sensitivities performed were designed o
be severe but plausible and tatake full account
of the availability of ritigating actions that
could be taken to avoid or reduce the impact
croccurrence of the underlying risks
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Identify evaluate and mibigate cperationat
risks recorded inrisk reqister

- Downturn i economic outlook Key
assumptions including occupancy, vaid
periods rental growth and yields were
sensiised Lo reflect reasonably Lkely levels
associated with an economic downturn

- Restricted availability of finance Based
on the Group s current commitments and
available facilities there ts no requirement
io refinance for four years In the normal
course of business, financing Is arranged in
advance of expecled requirements and the
Directors have reasenablte confidence thal
additional ar replacement debt facilities
will be put in place

Viabilitv Statement

Having censidered the forecast cash flows
2nd covenant compliance and the impact aof
the sensitwvities In combination the Directors
confirm thal they have a reasenable
expectation that the Group will be able Lo
continue m operation and meet sts kabilities
as they fall due over the period ending

31 March 2021

Gomg Coneern

The Diractors also considered it appropriate
e prepare the financial statements an the
going concern basis as explained inthe
Governance Review

"1 To read more informatian on going
concern go o page 77




sk Focus 1 the Year

The Board has underiaken a robust assessment
of the principal risks facing British Land and
our princtpal risks have evolved as a result

of the uncertainty as to the ocutcome of the
pending referendum on the UK s membership
of the EU increased geopoliticat instab.ity and
cyber secunity Externalfactors suchasthe
Macro-econamic environment continue to
dominate the risk landscape Whilst we cannot
control ithe external enwironment we continue
lo actively monitor leading indicators on the
ecenomic and property cycle

Our risk assessment

Principal Risks Key Strategic

Priortties affected

Change in
year

Eatcernal rishs

@, Economic
outlook

75 Polucal Z(r =
2 outlook @ &b C (‘
Commercial =, =y
property az \—E/ N~
investar
demand
7y Occuper . =y
4 =
&) demand and @ &h e

tenant defauvll

Availability and
¢ost of inance

® &

\L
Development 3 E_) @

costinflation

(7 Catastrophic @3) o0

~ business event

Internal rishs

Chatagy i I
Tomme 2O B
@ LTJCS‘:;T:abIllly -g”l ’:E:J E
DRt e &
@t ® B
\I@ l;’eo_plev' o -Q;‘?;;_,é r‘:;c%;'— _%;

' We contnue io drive Improvements in our fisk

! management process and the gualbily of nisk

I information generated whilst at the same time

' malntainmng a pracical approach During the

! year wa intreduced an enhancad information

r Secunty Policy with the aim of providing greater
protection of Bnibish Land s electronic data by

| mandating increasingly secure processes

appropriate controls and operations and

promoting awarensss of cyber secunity We

| have alsa reviewed and refreshed our Anu-
Bribery and Corruption polictes and conirols

Likelihood

The principal risks facwng Britsh Land are
summarised across the followang pages
including an assessment of potential iImpact
and likalihood together with how they relate
to our strategic priorities

1

Impact

Mote The above illusirates principal nisks which by their nature are those which have the potenbial
to signHicantly impact the Group s strategic objectives financial position or reputalion

hen

Strategic priorittes

Change year-on-year

@ Customer & Unchanged
QOrigntation el

o Right Places 6 Increasad

.Y

@ Capital 9 Reduced
Effictency

22z  ExpertPeople
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

External Risks

Risks and How we momtor Chuange m the penod
mpacts and manage the nsh
Economic The ecanomic cimate and - The Risk Commutiee reviews the economic fﬁ}g The UK economy has remamed robust
outlook projections for interest rates environment in whch we operate gquarlerly to * L/ however there 15 conlinued economic
present nsks and epportunities in assess whether any changes e the economic ard political uncerta nty and concerns
propertyand financing markets and  oullook justify a re-assessment of the sirategy over the forthcoming EU referendum
the businesses of our occuplers or risk appetite of the business Uncertainty remains over when interest
- indicaters such as forecast GDP growth rateswill rise atbeit consensus has
employment rates business and consumer pushed back their expectations for
confidence interesl rates and inllation/defiation interest rate nises and expecis the
are considered as well as central bank guidance increase will not be step
ard government policy updates
- We focus on prime assets and seclors which
we believe will deliver outperformance over
the medium term banefring from contiruing
occuprer demand and investor appetite
Political Significant palitical events - Whilst we are not able to influence the cutcorne ,"@“\ Uncertamnty remains as to the outcome
outlook (incleding the pending EU of signficant political events e do iake the L " ot the pending raizrendum on the UK s
referendum) and policies bring uncertanty related to such events and the range memherstup of the EU We maintain
risks both in terms of uncertainty of possible outcomes Inte account when making suppert for remaining in the EU
unttl the cutcome 1s known and the strategic investment and financing decisions There 15 unceriainty ovar the new
impact of polioes introduced - We engage public affa rs consuliants to ensure that Mayor of London s :pproach 10 planning
principally in two areas we are properly briefed on the potential policy and and housing
- reluctance of investors and regulatory implicalions of poliuical evenis Whers
businesses 10 make investment appropriate we actwith otherindustry paricipanis The geopolitical envirgnment remains
decisions whilst the outcemne toinfluence the debale on these policies unstable with imrmigralion 1ssues
remains uncertam and resutting from the ongoing unrest In
- ondeterminatien of the pulcome the Middle East puiting pressure on
the impaci on the case for state resources m Europe
investment in the UK and on
spacihic policies and regutation
introduced particutarty those
which directly impact real eslate
Commercial Reductton in investor demand for - The Risk Committae reviews the property market (ﬁ};‘) There has continued Lo be a high level
property UK real estate may resultinfalls in - quarterly to assess whether any changes lo the * 7 of investor demand lor UK commerciat
nvestor asset valuations and could arise market outlook present risks and opperiumtes property both from domesuc and
demand from variations in which should be reflacted in the execulion of our mternational investors during the year
- the health of the UK econemy strategy The Commiliee considers indicalors such However since the turn of the year
as margin between property yields and borrowing there has been a stowdown in
- the altraciveness of invesiment costs and property capital growth forecasts which Iransaclions n part due to heightened
nhe UK are considered alongside the Committee members global uncertainty and investors
- availability ef finance know!edge and experience of market acuvity and concerns over the pending EU
- relalive atiractireness of olher trends referendum The market fer the mosi
asset ¢classes - We focus on prime assels and sactors which we attractive assets remained highly Liguid
beligve will debiver autperformance over the however invesiers are becoming
med.um term benefiting from continuing occupier Increasingly discerning with some
demand and invastor appetite softering i demand for more secondary
assels parucularly in retail
- Strong relationships wilh agents and direct
investors active in the market
Development Costinflation presents a risk to the - For each projecl we make a judgement about r{b\ There are signs thal construclion cost
b B

cost inflation

profitability of our development
projects and has the potential to
adversely affect our cash position
and overall return on (nvestment

1

apportignment of construction risk Where we =
relan this risk we aim to fix costs early inthe
process subject o other market {actors wilh key

contractors subject to inancial covenant review

We factor In constructron cost inflation for our
projects as part of the investment apprarsal
process to assess the viability of each davelepment
We are working with aur supply chan oninitiatives
to address skills shortages and o understand how
resaurce conslramts could impact development
costs in the long term

nflatien 1smoderating reflecting lower
raw matenal costs However tender
prices sill reflect the Urmited capacity
in Lhe indusiry with contractors seeking
1o rebuild marging and limut their risk
exposure We factor costinflation snto
our development appraisals and for
our projects under conslruction
subslantally all our costs are fixed
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British Land Annual Report and Accounts 2016




Rishs and
Hnpacts

ITow we momtor
and manage the rsk

Change m the penod

Occupier
demand and
tenant default

Underlying income, rentat growth
and capital performance could be
adversely affected by weakening
occupler demand and eccupier
failures resulting from variations
w the health of the UK economy
and corresponding weakening

of consumer confidence

business activity and investment

Changing consumer and business
practices including the growth
ofinternet retailing flexible
working practices and demand
for energy efficient burldings|

new technologies new legrslatien
and alternative locations may
result in eartier than anticipated
obsolescence of our buildings if
evolving occupler and regulatory
reguirements are not met

- Tha Risk Commitlee reviaws indicators of accuper

Ry

demand quarterly including consumer confidence
surveys, employment and ERV growth forecasts
alengside the Committee members knowledgs
and experience of occupier plans trading
performance and leasing activity in guiding
exacuiton of our sirategy

~ We have a diversified occupier base and monttor
concentration of exposure to individuat occupiers
or sectors We perferm rigorous cccupler
covenant checks on an ongoing basis so that
we ¢an be proaciive In managing exposure to
weaker accupiers

- Ongoing engagement with our occupiers Through
our Key Occupier Account programme we work
togethar with our occupiers o find ways to best
meet therr evolving requirernents

- Our sustainability strategy inks action on occuprer
health and wellbeing efficiency community and
sustainable design 1o our business sirategy Cur
sociat and environmental targats help us comply
with new legislation and respond to custemer
demands for example we expecl all office
developrents to be BREEAM Excellent

—
5

Tne London occupational markel has

LY remained strong through the periodwith

healiby take -up and record low vacancy
rales oCCUpIers are increasingly
thinking about requirements several
yearsin advance The market has
however slowed since the turn of the
year as occupiers delay decisians unul
after the pending EU referendum
Looking {orward the development
pipeline Indicates Lhal office supply will
remain censtrained in the near lerm
and potentially lenger 1f proposed
developments conlinue to be detayed

Inretail the occupatonal market
remans robustwith increasing
reguirements from new entrants and
for new stare formats particularly at
the most attractive locations Retailers
are continuing to fecus their pertfolics
on fewer beller siores which suits their
omni-channel strategies Challenges to
retailer profiability include the living
wage business rates revaluation and
the Increasing cost of emni-channel
platforms tncluding distnibution

Availabitity and
cost of finance

Reduced availability of property
finance may adversely impact
ability to refinance debt and drive
up cost Thismay alsoresultin
weaker investor demand for

real estate

- In¢reasing finance cosis would
reduce Underlying Profits

- Market borrowing rates and real estate credit
availability and actmty are monitored by the Risk
Committee quarterly and reviewed regulaiiy in
crder to gude our financing actions in executing
our strategy

- We maintan good relationsheps with our key
linancing partners and advisors

-~ We maintain a diverse range of sources of inance
le provide access to funding as required Weaim
atways to have a good level of undrawn committed
unsecured revolving iacililies to ensura we have
adeguate Iinancing availainhily 1o suppori business
requirements and opportunities

- We work with industry bodies and other relevant
organisations to participate in any debate of
emerging banking regulations where our Interests
are affecled

-
There conuinues o be good overall
) 9

markel appetite for real estate finance
depending on quality of the borrower
project and specific iender
requirements Overall while there

has been markei velaulily financing
costs remained relatively low However
macro-economic uncertantias could
adversety impact future ligundity

and pricing

Catastrophic
business event

An external event such as a civil
emergency Incleding a large-scale
terrorist attack, cyber crime,
extreme weather occurrence or
environmental disaster could
severely disrupt global markets
[including property and finance)
and cause significant damage

and disruption to British Land s
portiotio and operations

We maintain a comprehensive crisis response plan
across all business units aswell as a head oifice
business conunuily plan

- The Risk Commitiee moniters the Home Office
terrarism threatievels and we have access to
security threat infermanon services

- Assetemergency procedures are regularly
reviewed and scenario tested Physical security
measuras are In place al properties and
development sites

- Assetrish assessments are carried out [e g
security floed environmental health and safety)

- Our cyber secunily systemns are backed up by
incident managemenl disasier recovery and

businass contmuity plans all of which are regularly

reviewed lo be abte to respond to changes in the
threat landscape and organisational requiremenis

- Wa also have apprapriate Insurance in place across

the porifolic

—_
|/

—

) The Home Office Lthreal lavel from
international terrorism remains
severe Qur husiness continuity plans
and assel emergency procedures have
been reviewed and enhanced where
appropriate

During the year we introduced an
enhanced Information Securnity Policy
with the aim of providing greater
prolection of Britsh Land s electronic
dala by mandating increasingly secure
processes appropriaie controlsand
operatiens and promabing awareness
of cyher secunty

KA

Change from last year

{ﬁi) Risk exposure has increased

-

Our prinaipal Key Risk Ind cators are highlighted within Howwe mort tor and manage the nsk
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\@3 Mo significant change in risk exposure

&

X2/ Risk gxposure has reduced
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Sirategic Reporr

PRINCIPAL RISKS CONTINUED

Internal Risks

Rishs and
unpacts

[How we momtor
and manage the nsk

Change m the penod

Investment
Strategy

Responsible
executives
Chris Grigg

Charles Maudsley

In order to meet our strategic
ubjectives we must investin and
exit from the right properties

at the right me Signtficant
underperformance could

result from nappropriate
determination and execution

Our invesiment strategy (s detesrmened o be
consisient with our 1arget risk appetite and 1s based -~
on the evaluation of the external erwironment

- Progress against the stralegy and continuing
alignment with our risk appeiue 15 discussed
at each Risk Commitige with reference to the
property markets and the external economic

We are focusing the business around
long term trends and conbinue Lo see
the benehts of the investments we
mada in recent years Inline with our
prierities set oul last year we have
focused gur investment on Longon
and the South East and invesung

Tim Rabertis of our property investment ervirenment around transpertinfrastructure
strategy, Including we va achieved some key development
- secior selselion and weighting - Indsdual investment decisions are subjecl to milestones and are also gatling closer
robust risk evalualion overseen by our Investment to our custamers In Relall we made
- urmning of investment and Commuttee including consideratian of returns £420 rmillicn of disposals as we increase
divestment decisions relative 10 risk adjusted hurdle rales our focus on the mulli-let portifolio
- exposure {0 developments - Review of prospective performance of mdwidual where we can put our placemaking
- seclor assel lenant region assels and their business plans skills to work lo drive rental growth
concentralion - We foster collaborative relauonships with our (:_Ij Qur investment siralegy 1s
- cn-investment arrangements co-investors and enter into ownership agreements outlined on pages 24to 25
which balance the interesis of the paries
Development Development provides an We maintain our levels of total and speculative @1 Cevelopment 1s a0 important part
exposure opportunity for outperformance development expasure as a proportion of the Y ol pur business and & key driver of

Responsible
executives
Chris Grigg

Charles Maudsley

Tim Roberts

but this brings with it elevated risk
The care with which we make our
decisons around which schemes
to develop when, as well as our
execution of these projects

must reflect this

Devetopmeni risks could adversely
impact underlying income and
capital performance including

- development lelting exposure
- construction iming and costs
- major contractor farllure

- agverse planning judgements

investment portfolio value vathin a target range
taking o account assoctated risks and the impact
on key inancial metrics Thisis monitared quarterly
by the Risk Committee along with progress of
developments against plan

- Pr.orto commulung to a development the Group
underiakes a detailed appraisal overseen by aur
Investment Committee including consideraton
of returns retative to nsk adusied hurdle rates

- Pre-let targets are used to reduce development
leting nisk where considered appropnale

- We actively engage with the cammunities in which Gj‘\.
we operate as detailed inour Local Charter lo s
ansure Lthat our development aclivities consider
the interests of all stakeholders

- We manage envirgnmental and sacial risks across
our development supply chain by engaging with our
suppliers including through our Sustainability Breet
far Develepments and Health and Safety Policy

returns We have assembled an
attractive pipeline of development
opportundies which gives us growth
into the future and where we are able
1o make timely decisions to reflect
changes in market condiions These
include exciting opporturulies across
our three exisling London campuses
the potenual to create a new London
campus st Canada Water alongs:de
significant investment opportunities
in gur existing Retail assels

For mgre on our development
programme see pages 37 to 3¢

People

Responsible
executive
Chris Grigg

Anumber of critical business
processes and decisions lie
in the hands of a few people

Falure to recruit develop and
retan staff and Direclors with

Lthe right skills and experience
may result in significant
underperformance or impact the
effecliveness of operations and
decision making in lura impaciing
business performance

Our HR stralegy 1s designed lo mmimise sk through @
- infermed and skilled recruitment processes -

- talenl performance managemenl and succession
planrung for key roles

-~ highly compelitive compensation and benefits
- peaple development and training

The rnisk 15 measured through employee engagement
surveys employee turnover and retenlion meincs
and reguiar people review actvities

We maniior this through the number of unplanned
executive departures in addiion to conducting exit
Interviews

We engage with our outsourced suppliers lo make
clear our requirements in managing key risks
in¢luding health and safety fraud and bribery and
other social and environmental risks as delailed
tn our Supply Chain Charter

@

Having expart people 1s ang of the four
core focus areas of our business model
We provide a sirong corporate culture
commutted 1o our people agreat
working enviranment compeiiive
benefils and career development
opportunities We empower our people
to make the most of their potential with
us Our high levet of statl engagament
was recognised by maintaining a One
Star rating in the Sunday Times Best
Cornpanies to Work For survey

For morea on our expert people
see page 23
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Rishs and

How we momtor

Clunge in the penod

nnpacts and manage the nsk

Capital We maintain a capital structure - We manage our mixof equity and deb, 2%, Balance sheet metrics in the year
Structure which recognises the balance financing to achieve the night balance between L remained strong We have masntained
- leverage between performance, risk enhancing returns for shareholders and the our capital discipline with investment

Responsible

and flexibifity
- Leverage magndies returns

risk of tugher teverage
- We monitor our LTV lo manage leverage levels

and development being broadly
batanced by asset disposals and
reduced our proportionally congsolidated

exacutive both postuve and negative over the property cycle and seek to ensure that v -

Lucinda Bell — Anincrease inleverage increases L7V shoutd not exceed a maximum threshold i LTV 10 32% '"l Line with Ul:r[Slra‘engytio
the risk of & breach of covenants market yields were 1o rise to previous peak levels n’ol INCrease 1everage 5o ek)’ o 1lde 3515
on borrowing laciliies and may This means we will not increase our LTV (f assel ofanimprovement In market yields
ncrease finance costs values increase only as a result of market = For more on our inancial

yield impravemens palcies see pages 94 1o 56
- We rnanage our investment actimty the size

and urning of which can be unaven aswell as

our development commitmeants to ensure that

our LTV [evel remains appropriate
- We leverage our equity and ach eve benefits of

scale while spreading risk through joint venluras

and funds which are typically partly financed with

debt without recourse 1o British Land

Finance Qur strategy addresses risks both  We have five key principles guiding our financing 28, Wa continue 1o achieve aliractive

strategy to continuing solvency and the which together are employed te manage the nsks WYY hinancings which improve earnings

execution stability of our profits inthisarea diversify our sources of finance phase and liquidity We have complated over

Responsible

Faillure to manage the refinancing
requirement may resullina

maturity of debt particlio maintan bguidity maintain
flaxibility and marntain sirong balance sheet metrics
See page 55 for further details

£1 billion of finaneing activity during
the year including a zero coupon £350
million seror unsecured convertible

executive shortage of funds o sustain
- bond due 2020 which prowvides further
Lucinda Bell the operations of the business - We manitor the perted until refinancing 1s P
; d which d i1 diversification of our sourcas of
or repay facilities as they fall dug require v:j I lls alkey le[tfsrml;::.aﬁ(ol ;‘na:ljcu;g finance and includes flexible
This and a hreach of financial actty a:r:] reg: arly evatuate the likelihood of setilement oplions Based on current
covenant imits are considered ta covenanthreac commitments and our current available
te significant nsks to the contnuing  ~ W are commiited Lo maintaining and enhancing faciliies the Group has no requirement
operation of Briish Land as a relahonships with our key financing partners to refinance for four years
goIng concern - We are mindtul of relevant emerging regulation @ For mere an our inancial policies
which has the potential to impact Lthe way that =
see pages 54 ¢ 36
we finance the Group
Income

sustamnability

Responsible
executives
Lucinda Bell
Charles Maudsley

We must be mindful of maintaining
sustainable income streams
order to continue to generate
returns for our shareholders

and provide the platform from
which to grow the husiness
through development and

-~ We undertake comprehensive profit and cash
flow forecasting ncorporating scenario analysis
lomodel the impact of proposed transactions

- Pro-active assel management approach 1o
maintain strong eccupier ine-up We monitor
our market letting exposure includingvacancies
upcoming expiries and breaks and tenantsin

'é;})‘ The quality of our portfolio and

Y21ZY environments enables us to atiract
some of the strongest occupiers to
our properties this together with our
high aceupancy levels and long lease
lengths provides security of income
We are increasing the diversity of our

~

Tim Roberts capital appreciation admimistration as well as our weighted average occupier mix and no single occupier
We consider sustainability lease length accounts f?r g“l’re than 5 7% of sment
of QUr INCOME Streams in _ revenues In delivering our investmen

I We haveadwer?lfled occupmr%asce’anld monitor strategy we are mindful of the impact
- gxgcubion gl investment concentration of exposure to individual occupiers on our INCOMe Securiiy
strategy and capital recycling or 5ectors
notably nming of reinvestment - We are proactive in addressing key lease brezks
of sale proceeds and expiries to minimise perods of vacancy
- nature and structure - We actvely engage with he cammunities in
of leasing actiiy which we operate as detailed in our Local Chartar
- nature and timing of 10 ensure we provide builldings that meet the needs
asset managemenl and of all relevani slakeholders .
developmentactivity
KEY =

Change from last year

@
\ U Risk exposure has increased

Our principat Key Risk Indicaters are tughlighted sithin How we monitar and rmanage the risk
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Governance and remuneration

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board develops strategy

and leads British Land to
achieve long term success

Chns Grigg
Chief Executive

Appainted (n January 2009

I ord furnbult
Senior independent Director
Apponted Non-Executive Director

0 April 2006 became Senior
independent Director 1n January 2013

Lann Gladden
Non-Executive Director

Appointed in March 2015

Cluagtes Maudsloy
Head of Retail and Leisure

Apponted in February 2010

Simeon Borrows
Nan-Executive Director

Apposnted in March 2011

Wil Lachson
Non-Executive Director

Appoented in Apnl 2011
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Tim Scorc
Non-Executive Director

Appointed in March 2014

Luacenuly Bell
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed in March 2011 became
Chief Financial Officer in May 2011

Aubrey Adams
Non-Executive Director

Apponted in Septembaer 2008

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residential

Appointed in July 2006

Y.
|

Laura Wade-Gern
Non-Executive Director

Appointed tn May 2015

{0l Gildersleeve
Non-Executive Chatrman

Agpoinied Non-Executive Director in
September 2008 and Chairman in
January 2013
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Governunce and remuneration

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - BIOGRAPHIES

About the Board

Board compostion

Board of Directors

% v/
=4

Women

B Non-Executive Charrman
B Independent Non-Execuive Directars
T2 Executive Directors

Directors vore arcas of expertise!
Property %

Finsnce I T

Retail and consumer

Academic

(33
Pubtic sector m

' Some Directors are representad in more than one categery
Exccutine Directors appomtments

0% 509%

Appoinled internally Appainted externally

Length of Non-Executine Directors’ tenures

Under 3 years

310 6years ]

Qver 6 years

el
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Non-Executne Chairman

John Gildersleeve

Skills and experience John (s deputy chairman and serior independent
director of Spire Healthcare Group ple and deputy chairman of TalkTalk
Telecom Group PLC John was the chairman ol Carphone Warehouse
Group until December 2015 and a non-executive diwaclor of Pick n Pay SA
until March 2016 He was formerly chairman oi New Look Retail Group
EMI Group and Gallaher Group a non-executive director of Dixons
Carphone plc Lloyds TSE Bank PLC and Vodafone Group and an
executive direclor of Tescoplc (B3 1] &

Committee membership
- Nomination [Charrman)

Exccutine Directors

Chns Gneg
Chief Executive

Skills and experience Chriswas chief executive of Barclays Commeraial
Bank unul November 2008 havingjomned the bank in 2005 Prar Lo
Barclays he wasa partner of Goldman Sachs where his career spanned
20 years

External appointments

- Non-executive d rector of BAE Systems plc

! - Member of the execulive poard of the European Public
Real Estale Associalion

- Member of tha board of the British Property Federation

Luteinda Bell
Chief Financial Officer

Skills and experence Lucinda s a chartered accountant with
over 20 years of industry experience In 2005 she was & member
of the HM Treasury appainted werking party which designed the
implementauor of the REIT regime

l External appomntments
- Non-executive director of Rotork ple
- Member of the Accounting for Sustainability CFO Leadershp Network

E

| Charles Maundsles
i Head of Retail and Leisure

Skills and experience Chartes josned Briish Land in 2010 from LaSalle
! Investment Management He had prewviously been with AXA Real Estate
Investment Managers for seven years

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residential

Skills and experience Before joining Briish Land in 1997 Tim was
a partner at Drivers Jonas in the [nvestmeant Agency team He was
formerly a non-executive director of Songbird Estates until 2009

, External appoiniments
- Trustae of the property industry chanty LandAid
! and Chair of the Grants Commiitee




Non-Exceutn ¢ Directors

Aubroy Adams

Skills and expenience Aubrey s group chairof L&Q the housing
assaciation and residential developer He was formerly head of property
within RBS s Rastructuring Owision a non-executive director of Pinnacle
Regenerabion Group Lirited senior independent direcior of Associated
Briish Ports PLC non-executive chairman of Unitech Corporate Parks
PLC non-executive chairman of Air Partner PLC chiel execulive of
Savills PLC and non-executive chairman of Max Property Group PLC
Aubrey s chairman of the board of trustees of Wigmere Hall

Commmittee membership I
- Audit

Smmon Borrows

Skills and experience Simon 1s tha chief execubive of 31 Group plc and a
member of ihe supervisory board of Peer Holdings BV the Dutch helding
company for Ji s investment in Actien the non-foed discount retailer

He werked for 28 years in Lhe banking and finance mdustry most
recently as chairman of Greenhilt & Co Internattonal LLP He was also
chief executive offtcer of Baring Brothers International Lymited the
corporale finance division of ING Barings and was a non-exacutive
director of Incheape ple unul May 20153

Committee membership
- Audit

Lann Gladdon

Skills and expertence Lynnis a nan-executive director of IP Group ple
She)s Prefessor of Chemicat Engineering at ihe University of Cambridge
commussioner of the Royal Commussion for the Exhibition of 1851 and

a fellow of the Royal Society and Royal Academy of Engineering She

was foermerly a member of the Council of the Engineering and Physical
Sciences Research Council and held the position of pro-vice-chancellor
for research at the University of Cambridge until 31 December 2015

Committee membership
- Remunerabon

Skills and experience Wilham s Managing Partner of Bridgepoint one
of Europe s {eading private equity groups which ha has led since 2002
He alse serves as chairman of the board of Pret A Manger and president
of Dorna Sports SL the nghts holder to the MoioGP warld motarcycling
championsheps He has served on a range of boards during his career
and has exlensive operational and transaction experence

1
\
1
Wilham lackson ‘

- Remuneraton

I
|
i
Committee membership ‘
\
- Nomimation ‘

Lanra Wade-Gen

Skills and expenience Laura is an execuiive director Mults Channet of
Marks and Spencer Group ptc {M&SY Prior to joining M&S in July 201
she had servedin a vanety of semor roles al Tesco PLC Laurawasa
non-executive director of Trinuty Mirror pic until 2012 Laura s a trustee
of the Royal Opera House and Aldeburgh Music

Committee membership
- Remuneralton

Tim Score

Skills and experience Tim s a non-executive diractor of Pearson ple
and HM Treasury He was foermerly chief financial officer of ARM
Holdings PLC and held senior financial pes:ions at Rebus Greup Limited
William Baird plc LucasVarity plc and BER plc from 2005 te 2014

he was a non-executive director of Natienal Express Group PLC

Committee membership
- Audst [Chairman)

Lord Turnbull
Senior Independent Director

Skills and experience Andrew entered the House of Lords in 2005
as a Crosshench Life Peer He relired as Secretary of the Cabinet and
Head of the Home Civil Service in July 2005 Andrew praviously held
the positions of Permanent Secretary of HM Treasury and Permanent
Secretary al the Department of the Environment He was fermerly a
rion-executive director of Arup Group chairman of BH Global Limuted
and a nen-executive of Prudenval PLC fram 2006 until May 2015 He
was a non-executive director of Frontier Econormecs Ltd from 2006
uritil November 2015

Committee membership
- Remuneration [Chawrman}
- Mormination

Compan Seeretan

Llame W illams

Elaine was appointed Company Secretary and General Counselin
November 2015 She was formerly Deputy Group Company Secretary
at HSBC Holdings plc and prior tathat a partner at Freshfrelds
Bruckhaus Deringer
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Govermanee and remuneration

CHAIRMAN S GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Welcome to the Corporate Governance
and Remuneration sections of our

Annual Report

fohn Galderslewve
Chairman

Dircetors” attendance durmg the vear ended
31 March 2016

John Gildersleeve 8/8
Chris Grigg 8/8
Lord Turnbull 8/8
Aubrey Adams 8/8
Lucinda Beil 8/8
Simon Borrows B/8
Lynn Gladden 9/8
Wilbiam Jackson' 78
Charles Maudsley 8/8
Tirn Roberts 8/8
Tim Score' 7/8
Laura Wade-Gery’ 4/b

business commitments

commitment and one due toiliness
W12
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Witliam Jacksan and Tim Score were unable to attend an unscheduted Board
meeting called on short notice and hetd by telephone due o pre-existing

LauraWade Gerywas appointed on 13 May 2015 Laura Wade-Gerywas
unable to attend one Board meeting due to a pre existing buginess

Our robust governance structure s an integral part of the way Briush Land
designs and delivers its straiegy supporung eifecuve decision-making
and enabling the right peoaple o have access 1o the night information at the
rnght trne As reported in the Chref Executive s review we have delivered
another strong set of results as we prograss in implementing eur strategy
of creating Places People Prefer The Board continues to make a vatuable
contribution in overseerng the delivery of our strategy providing
constructive challenge to management and ensuring key risks
aredenufied and properly managed

—

=, More informal on on our strategy and
N1/ progress can be found on pages 18 to 25

Briish Land has a highly effective Board as confurmed by thisyear s
inter nally conducted Board evaluation exercise reinforcing the positive
resulls of last year s externally facilitated evatualion We have not made
any changas to the Board or Commitiae membership this year ather
than the appointment of Laura Wade-Gery on 13 May 2015 which we
reported on tast year We are not proposing any changes to the Board
atthe 2016 Annual General Mesung [AGM]

@ Read our Board biographies on pages 66 (o 69

Wa vatlue continuily and expenence of Brniish Land s business and are
delighted to endarse the Nomination Cemmutize s recommendation
that Lord Turnbull be re-anpointed as Senior Independent Director
Lard Turnbull wil step dewn as Chairman of the Remuneration
Commuttee followang this year s Annual General Meating zlthough he
witl remain a member of that committee Witiam tackson has agreed
to take on thz positien of Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has recommended that we seek appraval
this year of a new Remuneration Policy as our Malching Share Plan
expires this year Amendments to our Long-Term Incentive Plan [LTIP)
are proposed to deliver a simpliied remunaration structure with ane
long term incentive arrangement Ne ather material changes to the
existing policy are proposed

"=\ The Remuneration Report s set out on
i (L) pages 8610 110
|
{




We believe that good governance requires epen engagement with
stakeholders and have sought and responded Lo feedback about our
governance structures and the way our businessis run We have
consulted widely and taken into account investor views n retation to
the proposed changes to our LTIP and hope to receive your continued
supper! of our Remuneration Policy to enable us to ofier compelitive
remuneration strucluras to attracl and retain the hest people Tlook
forward to receving your feedback on this and other matters at and
In advance of our AGM on 19 July 2016

—-7
Y, Aedrerr.

John Gildersleese ,
Non-Executive Chairman

‘9 Chairman s statement go to pages 4 to 5

Complhianec with the Code

The Beard has continued to apply good governance practices during
the year operating in comnpliance with the UK Corperate Governance
Code [the Codel Forease of reference thisis how we demanstrate
our comphiance throughout the Governance and remuneration section
of the Annual Report and Accounts 2014

@ A Leadership

" B Effectiveness
v’ € Accountabitity
G/) D Remuneration

v’ E Relations with shareholders

Ealing Broadway
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Governanee and remuneration

OUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Our governance structure ensures
that the right people have access
to the right information

Bomd

- Develops strategy and leads Briush Land
to achieve long lerm success

- Determines nature and extent
of sigrificant risks

- Mainiains diatogue with shareholders

Comnmuttees of the Boad
- Report on therr activities to the Board

Management Commnttees Risk Committee Executive Commuttee
- Repori on thair activities Lo the Board - Manages strategic and operationat risk In - Considers day-to-day operalionat matlers
and s Committees as appropraie achieving the Company s performance goals for running the business
- Recommends appropriate risk appetite levels - Reviews performance of the Group s assets
- Monitors the Company s risk exposure and development programme
- Reviews operation of risk management - Generalty meets iwice monthly
processes - Reports to the Board
- Meetsfour times ayear - Chaired by Chief Executive
-~ Reparts to the Audit Commitlee ~ Membership Execisive Directors and st
- Chanred by Chiet Financiat Officer senior executives

- Membership Executive Direclors

Operations Commuttee Health and Safety Committee

- Provides collaberalive leadership across - Reviews perlormance agamst targets and drives
the Company operationalises business stralegy forward actions in purswuit of the Company s
champions vision placermaking and values health end safety goals
and leads change in the business - Meets four Uimes a year

- Meets regularly through the year - Reporis o the Risk Commutiee

- Membership semior individuals across - Chaired by Chief Financial Officer
business functons - Membership staff with relevant respensibiliies

fror across the business
- Three subcommutiees Construciion Managed
Partfolio and Head Qffice {staff commitiee]
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Matters reserved tor Board approsal

- Transactions and financing arrangerents over £100 mullion

- Issue of secunties

- Employee share and option schemes

- Documents for distmbution to shareholders and the Annual Report
and Accounts

- Diwdenas

~ Establishing authonty tevels below those of the Board
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Remuneration Commuttee

- Sets rernuneration of the Chairman
Chief Exacutive, Executive Diraciors
and Company Secretary

@ Remuneration report see pages 86 (o 110

investment Committee

- Reviaws approves or recommends
capital transactions

- Recommends major transactions
for Board apgraval

- Meets as required

- Chaired by Chiet Executive

- Membership Executive Di~ectors

2 Investment sticking to our strategy
>/ seepage 77

Charity and Communtty Commuittee
- Approves ait spend under the charily
and community budget
~ Reports to the Executive Commitlee
- Chaired by a Senior Retail Asset Manager

Sustamability Committee

- Custodian for sustainability strategy

- Reports to the Board

- Chaired by Chief Fsnancial Officer

- Membership execulives with defined areas
of responsibility

Briish Land ' Annual Repert and Accounts 2016




Governance and remuneration

GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Our robust governance structure is an
integral part of the way we design and

deliver our strategy

The Beard has continued to apply good governance pracltices during

the year and considers that the Company has fully complied with the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Codel This section of the Annual Report
and Accounts 2016 outlines how we have applied the Code s principles
and provisions throughout the year We are reporling agamst the Code
which applies ta companias with reporting periods beginning on or after

1 October 2014 A copy of the Code 15 available at www frc org uk

Leadership

The Board s core responsitilities include setting British Land s strategic
aims and leading the Company as it works to achieve Lhese aims and
altain long term success The Board focuses on sirategy throughsut

the year and the annual Strategy Days provide a key opporlunily lo

do this as explained in the box to the nght Progress against and the
appropriaweness of |he agreed strategy are considered at Board
meelings during the year 1n light of Company performance and

changes to the external environment

There s 2 written division of respansibilities between the Chairman
{responsible lor running the Board] and the Chief Executive [rasponsible
for runming Lthe Company s business] which has been approved by ihe
Board (A2 1@

The Executive Directors led by the Chief Executive are responsible

for ensuring that the business 1s run in accordance with the Board s
strategy Therelalively small number of employees at British band
means thal the Execulive Directors are involved in or aware of all major
activities of the Group - hence they are extremely well placed to ensure
that actions are aligned with the Board s strategy This s exemiplified by
the process by which investment opportunities are appraised More
infarmation on the invelvement of the Executive Directors in the
invesiment process can be found on page 77

The Board sels the paramelers and controls within which the Company s
management may operate when undertaking the day-to-day runming of
the business These controls ensure Lhal decisions are taken by people
with the correct autherity to do so

The major decisions reserved for Board approval and other decisions
delegated to the Executive Directors are formally documented [A 1 1] @
The Executive Direcicrs make decisions within these predefined
parameters Decisions that would normaliy fall within these parameters
may still be taken to the full Beard for approval where such decisions
relate to activities outside the ardinary course of business or where

the Execulive Directors consider 1t appropriate to do so Management
Committees deal with thair specific areas of responsibility before making
decisions [whare Lhey have authority to do so] or recommending aclions
for Board-tevel appraval 1f this1s required Akey consideration when
making each decision 1s on whether Lhe proposed action s alignad wath
the straiegy the Board has developed
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The Chairman meets with individua!l Direclors outside formal Board
meetings as parl of each Director s continuing contripution to the
delivery of the Company s strategy This process also allows for open
iwo-way discussion aboul the effectiveness of the Board its Committees
and indviduat Directors bolh Executive and Non-Executive By these
means the Chairman is continually informed of the views of Individual
Direclors and can act as necessary to deal with any issues relating (o
Board effectiveness hefore they become a risk to lhe Company

The Steategy Davs
The annuat Strategy Days held in February are attended by the full
Board and the Execulive Cormmittee

The Exscutive Directors senior execulives and external guests deliver
a number of presentations to the Board providing an in-depth analysis
on ali aspects of the business and the external environment The
Strategy Days are a key opportunily to discuss challenge and develop
the Campany s sirategy

As welt as considering the Group as a whole and the oversli cerporale
strategy consideration s given to each part of the Group s current and
prospective portfolio and to Group financing

The days are carefully struclured to achieve a balance between
presentations and time for debate and discussion

Areas focused on at the 2016 Strategy Days included
-Corporate Strategy

- Feedback from investor Perception Audit

- Office Strategy

- Retail Strategy

- Canada Water

Culture and composition of the Board

The composition of the Beard 15 a fundamental driver of its success as

Il provides strong and effective leadership the breadth of knowledge

skalls and experiance of cur Non-Execulive Directors is detailed in their
biographies on pages 68 and 69 The Normination Commitiee 1s respensible
lor reviewing the composition of the Board and Boara-level Commitiees
and assessing whether the balance of skills experience knowledge and
independence I1s appropriate to enable them (o operale effecuvely B2

The procedure lor the apponiment of new Directors 1s rigorous and
transparent Other than the appointment of Laura Wade-Gery on 13 May
2015 no changes ta the composition of the Board occurred during the year



Non-Executive Directors are appointed for speaified terms and all
Directors offer thermselves for electtan or re-election by shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting [AGM] eachyear ifthe Board on the
recommendation of tha Nemmation Committee deems it appropriate
that they remainin office [B 71 @

Lord Turnbull has been a Non-Executive Director since April 2004

He has now compleled ten years in ofiice Whilst taking into account the
need to progressively relresh its members through new appointments
the Board recognises the importance of continuity and the value

that Directors who serve for many years are able to bring When a
Non-Executive Director s tenure goes further than nine years their
independence 1s carefully reviewed and monitored The Nemination
Committee has again rigerously reviewed Lord Turnbull s contribution
and Independence over the years and recommended to the Board that
1t1s appropriate for hum to rematnan office and the Board is satisfied
that he remains Independent B 2 312

We conlinue to have a strong mix of experienced individuals on the Board
with the majority being Non-Executive Direclors who are independent
and can offer an external perspective on the business and constructively
challenge the Executive Directors particularly when developing the
Company s strategy{B 111& (B 1 2199 The Non-Executive Directors
scrutinise the performance of management in meeting their agreed
goals and obyjectives and monttor the reporting of performance They
satisfy themselves of Llhe integrity of financial mformation and that
internal contrels and systems of risk management are effeclive

The Board culture 15 one of openness and constructive debate the
Directors voice their opiruans in a relaxed and respeciful environment
allowing coherent discussion The Chairman is responsible for maintaining
this culture He does so by ensuring information of an apprepriate quality
15 provided in @ umely manner before Board meelings the opportunity lo
properly consider such information in advance {eads to focused discussion
in the boardroom When running Board meetings the Chairman maintains
a collaborative atmosphere and ensures that all Directors contnpute

lo debates The Charrman arranges informal meelings and events
throughout the year to help build constructive relationships between

the Board members

The high calibre of debaie and the parucipation of all Directors Executive
and Non-Executive allow the Board to utilise the experience and skills

of the individual Directors to their maximum patential and make
well-considered decisions that are In the best interest of the Company

The Board considers that Aubrey Adams Simon Borrows Lynn Gladden
Willam Jackson Tim Score Lord Turnbull and Laura Wade-Gery are
independent In making this determination the Beard has considered
whether each Direclor is independent in character and judgement and
whether there are relationships or circumstances which are Likely 1o
affert or could appear to affect the Director 5 judgement (B 11]&@

The Board believes that the Non-Executive Directors biographies
demonstrate that they are of tha stature and experiance required to
properly perform their rotes as independent Non-Executive Directors
Following this year s Board evaluation the Board believes each Non-
Executive Direclor standing for re-election at the next AGM continues to
effectively fulfit and remains committed to their role within British Land
The terms and conditiens of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are
avallable for enspection at the Company s registered office and at the AGM
B32&

Ettectsy cness

Regular Board and Commuitee meelings are scheduled throughout

lhe year and the Directors ensure that they attocate sufficient ime to
discharge thair duties effecuvely Occasionatly Board meaeuings may be
held at short notice when Board-level decisions of a ime-critical nature
need to be rade Non-Executive Directors lelters of appotntment set out
the time commitments expected and each Director s attendance record
ishown on page 70]1s considered when assessing whether they should
stand for reappointment by shareholders

The Chairman considers that all the Directors conttnue to devole
sufficient time to discharging thewr duties to the required hugh standard
British Land s policy 15 to allow Executive Directers to take one non-
execulive directorship at another FT5E company subject to Briush Land
Board approval External appentments of the Directors are disclosed in
their biegraphies and fees earned by Executive Directors are disclosed
on page 101 of the Remuneration Report (01 21&

The Directors are required to notfy the Company of any potentiat
conflicts of interest that may affect themin their roles as Directors of
Brinsh Land All potential conflicts of interest are recorded and reviewed
by the full Board at least annually

The Nen-Execubive Directors are kept well informed of Lhe key
developments in the business by bath the Executive Directors and other
senior executives through regular reporis and presentations Reports
include a Management Report delivered by the Chief Executive at each
Board meeting and updates on the activities of the Risk and Sustainability
Committees

Throughout the year presentations and reporis on spectfic aspects of
the business and individual assets are also delvered along with updates
on the regulatory and external envirenment

Care 1s taken v ensure that information s circulated in good time

before Board and Commuttee meelings whenever possible and that
reports are presenied clearly and contain the appropriate level of aetail
to enable the Board to dischargeits duties itis the Company Secrelary s
role te facititate effective information flows between the Board and

Its Committees and between senior managemment and Non-Executive
Directors The Company Secretary s responsible for advising the

Board on governance matters through lhe Chairman [B 5 21&

The Non-Executive Directors are therefore able to monitor the
management of the business and the implementation of the strategic
aims effectively and are able lo assess the sustabilily of the current
siralegy and the performance of the Chairman and Executive Directors

B51@

Board evaluation

The effectiveness of the Board and its Commuittees s reviewed annually
with an independent externally facilitated review being conducted at
least once every three years The last external review was conducted
201518 621 @

Aninternal review of the Board and its Committees was conducted in
2016 by the Company Secretary by way of guestionnaire and coverad

the lollowing areas i) role orgamisalion and a compos:tion of the Board
and its Commuttees [n) agenda (] corporate governance (w] quality

of mformation lvl menitoring Company performance and [vi| Board
teadership and cuiture The review concluded that overall the Board
operated very effectively with a continucus high standard of performance
throughout the year [B 611 @
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Governance and remuneration

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

During theyear Lhe Chairman met each Non-Executive Directer
individually to discuss their contribution to the Board and the Senior
independent Director met with the sther Non-Executive Directors [with
Executive Directors present] lo discuss the performance of the Chairman
(A4 2@ 1B 6 3] 2 The Remuneration Committee was provided with

an appraisat of the Chiaf Executive s performance by the Charrman

and an appraisal of the performance of the Exacutive Directors by

the Chief Executive

Board traming and development

Briish Land provides for all Directers a taillored and thorough induction
including the opportunity te meet with senior executives to be given

an overview of their specific areas of responsibility within the business
and the opportunity to visit the Company s key properties and
developments [B £ 1€

The Company also offers Directors opportunities to update and refresh
their knowledge on an ongoing basis to enable them to continue fullilling
thair rotes as Board members and Committee members eflectively

This includes lratming opportunities and further visits to the Company s
properties asrequired In 2015/16 the Board held meetings at the
Company s properties Broadgate Estate and Paddington Central

in additien to the Company s head ofice Updates on the external
environment and regulatory matiers are delivered to the Board

and relevant committees by external speakers including corporate
governance updates [B 4 2] @

Koy areas diseussed and reviewed In the Board
m 2016

- outcomes of Lhe Board Strategy Days and approval of strategy

- approval of risk appelite

- principat risks faced by the Company

- reports of the activities of the Audil [including nsk] Remuneralian
and Nomination Commitiees

- Chief Executive s Management Reports guarterly updales on
the business and external environment

- updates on the pertfelio ncluding developments acquisitions
and disposals

- updates on financing

- results of the Board performance evaluation

- reappointment of Direciors at the AGM

- conflicts of interest

- approvat of year end results the Annual Repert and Accounts
the AGM Crrecular and dividends

- people development and succession planning

- health & safety,

- sustainability

~ investor relatiens reports

- Remuneration policy

- cybersecunity and

- information technology
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Aceountability

The Board 1s responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts
and as confirmedin the Directors responsibility staternent the Board
believes that this Annual Renort and Accounts taken as a whaole 15 farr
balanced and understandabla and provides the information nacessary
to assess British Land s positon performance business model and
strategy [C 11} ¢ The basis on which the Company creates and
preserves value over the long term s described in the strategic
reportiC121%

| @ The Directors Responsibility Statement 1s set out on page 113
@ Strategic report see pages | to 63

The Annual Repart and Accounts 1s compiled by the relevant responsible
individuals across the Company Specific sections are reviewed by
Departrnent Heads and Executive Commitiee members as appropriaie
ensuring that all key stakeholders across the business are invelved

The Executive Directors are closely involved in drafting and reviewing
their relevant sections of the Report before formally signing them off
Finance Investor Relations and Company Secretariat conduct a robust
due dibgence process venfying key stalements made within the Annual
Report and Accounts The full Annual Report and Accounts is then
reviewed Lhoroughly by the Audit Commitiee beforeitis presented

to the Board for approvat

The procedure undertaken lo enable the Board to prowide the fair
balanced and understandable cenfirmation Lo shareholders has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee The process s enhanced by a specilic
rmeeling between the Chief Financial Officer Head of Strategy and
Inveslor Relations and the Group Financial Controller and their relevant
team members to review and document the key considerations
undertaken to ensure that information presented s far balanced and
understandable Arepart detalling those considerations was reviewed
by the Audit Committee alongside a summary of the delailed procedures
undertaken and the full Annual Report and Accounts

Risk management and tnternal control
The Board determines the nature and extent of the significant risks
it 1s willing to take in achueving the Company s strategic objectives

The maintenance of the Company s risk management and internal
control systems is the responsibilily of the Board Oversight of the
effeciiveness of the risk management and internal contral system

has been delegated to the Audit Commitiee A top-down risk review

15 combined with a complementary botiom-up approach to ensure thal
risks are fully considered Aswell as complying with the Code the best
practice recemmendations in Guidance for Risk Management [nternal
Controt and Related Financial and Business Reporting have been
adopted and the Company s internal conlrol framewcrk has been
assessed agamst the internationally recogrused COS0 Internal Control
Integrated Framework The latter assessment showed that all key
conlrol elements are in place Appropriate iternal control and risk
management processes apply Lo all entties which British Land
adrmimisters inctuding all material joint ventures and funds [C 2 3] &

British Land s approach o risk including the roles of the Board the
Audit Committee and the Risk Committee in setting risk appetite and
rmonitoring risk exposure 1s described in the Managing risk in deltivering
our strategy section of the report on pages 57 1o 631C 2119

Formal and transparent arrangements exist for considering how
corporate reporung nsk management and internal control principles
are applied and for mantaining an appropriale retaticnship with the
Company s auditor




I estment stchimg to our strategy

Executive Directors are involved throughout the investment process
and alignment with the Board s strategy 1s considered from the
initral discussion of a transaction, right through to final approval

All new Investment opportunities are discussed at weekly

1 deal sourcing meetings atlended by investment executives
Potentially attractive deats that are in kine with stralegy
are selected 1o be investigated and analysed in detail by
project teams

2 Project teams assess whether investment cpportunities
should be pursued conducting detadled property and
corporate due diligence ongoing dialogue with 1he relevant
Executive Cormmmitiee members takes place throughout
the process

3 Investment opportunities with potential are presented for
Investment Commitiee approval Depending on the size
and nature of a transaction the Investment Commitiee
can apprave the progosed transaction outright or
recommend it {or approval by the full Board

4 Investment opportunities are presented to the full Board
for approval when required

The Group s internal control system 1s built on the following fundamental

principles and s subject te review by Internal Audit

- A defined schedule of matlers reserved for approval by the full Board

- A detailed authonsatton process no matenal comrutments are entered
into without therough review and approval by rmare than one
authorised person

- Fermal decumentation of alt sigificant transactions

- A robust system of business and financial planning incledes cash flow
and profitabslity forecasting and sceénane anslysis perfermed on major
corporate property and financing proposals

— A robust process for property investment appraisals

- Momtoring of key cutcomes particularly expenditure and performance
of sigmilicant investments against budget and forecast

- Clearly defined policies and review of actual performance against policies

- Benchmarking of property performance against external sources such
as Invasiment Property Databank

- Key controls testing

- A comprehensive property and corporate insurance programme and

- A format whistle-blowing poticy

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group s system

of internal control over financiat reporung annually including the
systems of control for material joint ventures and funds During the
course of its review of the risk management and internal control systems
over financial reperting the Audit Committee has not identified nor
been advised of a failing or weakness which it has determined to be
significant [C 2 3] ~

A number of polictes are in place to ensure that the Company not anly
meets its legal obligations but also behaves ethically acts with integrity
and protects its assets from the untawful activities of others These
include an Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy a Competition Policy

and 2 Fraud Awareness Policy All employees are made aware of the
policies and procedures in ptace with understanding enhanced by staft
communicatigns and training

Viability and going concern

—~

{Z) To read our viability stalement see page 53{C 2 2] #

The Group has considerable undrawn dent lacilities and cash deposits
in excess af current drawn banking facilies There s substantal
neadroom against the covenants for is unsecured banking facibitizs

It also benefits from a diverse and secure Income stream from leases
with leng average lease terms

Having assessed the principal nisks and other matters discussed in

| connection with the viability statement the Direclors believe that the

1 Group s well placed to manage its financing and other business risks

' satistactorily and have a reasonable expectation that the Company and

. the Group have adequate resources to conlinue In operation for al least
12 months from the date of the Annual Report They therefors consider it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the inancial slatements (C 13} <

|

i

! Taxation

¢ Our principles of good governance extend to our responsible approach

| to tax ltremains important to cur stakeholders thatthe Company s

‘ approach lo tax s aligned to the long term values and strategy of the
Group The Group s tax strategy s the responsibility of the Chief Financial

| Officer with close invotvement of Execuuive Direclers and sensor

1 managemant inall activity The Audil Commitlee 1s presented with

an annual lax updale

Employees

Having expert people at British Land is one af the four core elements
of our business model This applies both to the individuals on the Board
who have responsibibty for leading the Company and (o the employees
who waork throughout British Land

We encourage a high degree of employee invalvement i the Company
and provide regular infformation on business activities and explanaiions
of strategy through Company reetings traiming sessions internal
communications and an annuak Company conference Employee
feedback 15 also strongly encouraged

The Operations Commuttee [OpCol which1s compnised of semior
indnaduals across British Land s business functions assisls the
Exacubive Commitiee with operaticnal matters ansing in the day-to-day
rnanagement of the business The OpCo forms a link between the
Exzcutive Committee and wider teams of employees enhancing the flow
of information around the Company both upwards and downwards Lo
improve the strategic and tactical decisions that are made The aim of
the OpCoisto sirengthen collaboration across the Company indriving
initiatives that help us achieve our objectives The OpCo also ptays an
increasingly important role in the development of the aperational
leadership areas of our business such as lechnology

Briush Land continues to implement a number of imiiatives to help
develop our employees and grow internal talent reinforcing the
Company culture of excellence and embedding values and behaviours
As arelatively small company in terms of number of employees we are
proud to be able to invest 10 our people on an individual basis taking
time to undersiand speaific requirements to progress carears

We have well-established all-employee share schemes o incentivise
employees at all levels in the Company and align their interests with
these of shareholders by building a holding of Bretish Land shares
Separatie pension fund reports are made available to members

=1
=~
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Governanee and remuneration

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Stalf turnover

2016 2015 2014
Head office 44 119%] 31412%]} 3705%)
Broadgaie Estales 53 [15%] 281119} 42 [20%)
Total [averagel 98 [17%) 59 (12%) 74 (17%)

The benefit of diversity both on the Board and throughout the Company
continues 1o be a key consideration when searching for candidates for
Board and other appointmenls In addition the Company continues to
support the Pathways to Properly pregramme which aims ie increase
diversity within the property industry as a whotle by attracting students
from a variety of backgrounds into the property sector

Funding to charity and good causes

Our Lecal Charter sets out how we build trust by supporting successful
tocal communities and develop skills and opportunities to help local
people and businesses grow Qur Charitable and Commurnity Funding
Guidelines set out how we allocate funding with a parucular focus on
initiatives close to our assets that have a positive iImpact on young people
educaticn employment and traiming Both documents can te found on
our website al www britishtand com/policies

The Charity and Community Committee which approves all spend under
the Charity and Community Budget 1s chairea by a Senior Retail Asset
Manager and reports to the Executive Commuttee on an annual basis

Donations during the year totalled £1 371 044 compared with £1 287 500
in the previous year British Land does not make any donations to
politscal organisations

Health and Safety

We have relaned lormal recognition of our focus on health and safety
through a successiul audit of our QHSAS 18001 accreditation We
continue to iImpreve our approach to health and safety management Lo
ensure that we consistanily achieve best practice across all actvities in
the business [consiruction managed portlolio and head officel Lo deliver
Places People Prefer lo our employees and our customers

RIDDOR* Year ended 31 March

Totat RIDCDOR
Accdents Accident Frequency Rate
016 2015 04 2615

Construclion 3 8 014 019  per 100000
hours worked
Retal 23 19 om 001  periDOCOC
inotiall
Dffices ] 2 18 85 750 per109000
workers
Head Office a 0 G 0 per10000C
full time
equivalanls

Reporting of Ijuries Dhseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulalions 2013
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Remuneraaon

The Remuneration Commttee has recommended that we seek approvat
this year of a new Remuneration Policy as cur Matching Share Plan
axpires Lthis year We are not intending to renew the Matching Share Flan
Amendments toour Long-Term Incentive Plan are proposed to deliver

a simplified remuneration structure with one long term incentive
arrangement The new Remuneration Policy (s set out on pages 9210 78

Relanons wath sharcholder

The Board remains committed to mamtamning open channels

of communication with sharehalders It1simportant to us that
shareholders understand the Company s st ategy and objectives
these must be exptained clearly and shareholders feedback must
be heard and theissues and questions raised property considered

British Land has a dedicated Investor Retations team which reports to
the Chief Financial Officer Cammunication with investors and analysts
15 8n ongoing process throughout the year This includes regular
scheduled Investor Relalions events summarisad in the box on Lhe page
oppostte one-to-one and group meetings with Executive Directors and
tours cf our properties as well as regular contact with the Investor
Relations team During the year the Chief Executive Chief Financial
Cificer and our Investor Relations team met with representatives from
over 180 inshitutions We periedically commission anindependent
investor perception study which is presented to the Board

The fult Board plans to atlerd the AGM which provides an opporiumty
for all shareholders to question the Directorsin persan

Significant emphasis is placed on the importance aof feeding shareholder
views both positive and negative back to the Board Awritten investor
relatians repert which includes direct market feedback on actvity during
the period is presented to the Execubive and Non-Executive Directers

at each scheduled Board meeting for discussion Shareholder opinions
are also given due consideration Lhroughout the annual Strategy Days
E1NQIEI 2




Kev unestar relations activines doring the sear includedd

May 2015 - Full-year resulls presentation
- Full-year roadshow London

June 2015 - Investor property conferences London
ant Netherlands
- Investor roadshow Edinburgh

July 2015 ~ Q1 interim management statement and call
- AGM
- Retait capital markelts day London

September 2015 - Investor roadshow US
- Prwvate Client roadshow London
- Investor property conference London
- investor properiy tour The Leadenhall Buillding

November 2015 - Half-year resufls presentation
- Half-year results roadshow London
- Investor property conference London

December 2015 - Investor properly cenference Londen

- Analystand investor taur Broadgate
January 2016 - investor property conference bondon

- Trading statement investor vicdeo and cail
February 2016 - Investor readshow Netherlands
March 2014 - investor conference US

- Private Client readshow Londan

Briish Land aims 10 be infermative and accessinle to all sharehotders
Fer rasults and other key announcements we provide information on
a timely basis to both retail and institutional shareholdars A number
of case studies covering lopics that range from profiles of our key
assels to sustawmability actvues are also available o view online
Shareholders can ask gquestions al any ime via our contacls page on
the corporate website

(ﬁ\ Contact Britssh Land
= www britishland com/contacts

We are pleased with the level of engagement with shareholders achueved
during the year and the Board alsa recogrises the )mportant contribution

of providers of capital other than shareholders namely our lenders and
bond holders Wa maintain a regular and open dialogue with our lenders
1o help us undersland their investment appeute and criteria

Lord Turnbulk Senior Independent Director 15 avaitable to address
any concerns shareholders may wish o raise other than via the usual
channels of the Chairman Chief Executive or other Executive Cirectors

A411@
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Governance and remuncration

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

We are committed to monitoring
the Group’s control environment
and financial reporting processes

e

.4

Tim Score
Chairman of the Audit Commitiee

Audit Commuctee members” attendancee durng
the vear ended 31 Mmceh 2016!

Tim Score 5/5
Aubrey Adams 5/5
Simon Borrows 5/5

During 2014 senior executives were invited to attend and/or present at
meetings of the Commitiee inctuding the Ch el Financeal Officer the Head of
Strategy and Investor Relations the Finanaiat Controller the Head of Tax the
Head of Financial Reporuing and the Head of Financial Planrung and Analysis
and Risk Committee Secretary

n12@

Terms of Reference

The Commutige s Terms of Reference can be found on the Company s
website at www brivshland com/committees
IC321°IC33¥
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' Welcome to the repart of the Audil Committes

The key areas of focus for the Commuttea this year have been reviewing
and advising the Board on the viability staternent included in the Apnual
Report and Accounts scrutinising the process for valuatien of
invesiment and development properties by the Group s external valuers
and overseeing the Internal Audil tender

Composttion
The Commiitee comprises Aubrey Adams Simon Borrows and myself

, as Commtiee Charman (C 311 »

Each of the Committee members 1s cons:dered to be appropriately
gquabfied and experienced (o felfil their role For the purpeses of the
Code | am the member of the Commiltee nominated as having
significant recentand relevant financial axperience

Activibies

Ouring the year the Committee has undertaken each of its principat
responsibiities receiving relevant reports fram the external valuers
the internal and externat auditers the Risk Committee and management
and chaltenging the validity of accounting assumptions and jJudgements
The table on page 81 details the princinal responsibilities of the
Comnmitiee and key areas of focus thraughout the year

The Commiltee performs a detailed review of the content and tone of

the annual and hall-yearly press releases and the Annual Report and
Accounts as well as trading updates The Committee has saushied nself
that controls over the accuracy and consistency of information presented
in the Annual Report and Accounts are robust and has confirmed te the
Beard that it believes this Annual Report and Accounts is fair balanced
and understandable [C 3 4] v An assurance opirion 1s obtained for

the Company from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP [PwC] over selecied
sustainability data and a verificalion exercise 15 performed by managemaent
to ensure consistency and accuracy of infermation presented

inadditign te regular commitiee meelings additional hme 1s spent by
members of the Audit Committee meeting with executive management
1o undersiand keyissues The Committee regutarly meets with PwC
and Internal Auditwithout management present and the Cammitiee
Chairman meets prvately with the external valuers




Prnapal respormsibnhues Kev arcas diseussed and reviewed by the

of the Commuittee Committee durnng 2016
Reporting - Menitoring the integrity of the Company s financial statements - Rasulis commentaryand announcements
and External and all lormal announcements retating to the Company s - Key accounting judgements including valuations
Audit finanoial performance reviewing significant iinancial ceporiing th B nu 0
155ues Judgernents and estimates including the consistency - ~hanges to accounling palicies
quality and appropriateness of accounting policies and the quality - Going concern and the viability statement
and completeness of disclosures - Farr balanced and understandable assessmant in relation
- Making recornmendations to the Beard regarding the to the annualrepert{C 3 4] ~
reappointment of the external auditor and approving the exiernal - Externat audior eifecliveness
audrior s remuneralion and terms of engagement [C 37) ~ - Externat auddor reports en ptanneng the hall-yearly review
- Monitoring and reviewing the external audiier s independence and the full-year audit including the linal opinion

objectivily and effeciveness

- Reviewing the content of the Annual Report and Accounts
to ensure st 1s faw balanced and understandable

- Developing and iImplementing policy en the engagement

of the external auditor to supply non-audit services laking
into account relevant guidance

- The axternal auditor s remuneration

Valuations - Monitoring and raviewing the valuation process - Effeciiveness of the exlernal vatuers
- Reviewrng assumptions and methodology - The quality of the valuauen process and judgamants at half year
- Monitoring the externalvaluers competence and year end
and effectiveness - Vatuer presenlations to the Commitlee
Risk and - Overseeing the internal control envirohment and nsk - Risk regrster including identification ol the Group s principal
internal rmanagement systems on behalf of the Board risks and movemeant In exposures
control - Monilering the Company s risk exposure and recommending - Status of key nisk indicators including any breaches of
the Company s risk appetite to the Board for approval thresholds
- Overseeing the assessment of the principal risks and - Activities of 1he Risk Commuitee including review of its minules
mitigating actions - Effectivenass of inlernal control syslems

- Reviewing the risk management disclesures on the Group $

- Responses to aud:t findings and recornmendations for controt
approach to riskn the half-yearly and annual reporis

imprevements ncluding reviewing the External Audit

- Reviewing the whistie-blewing policy and its imptementation management letter
[cssl - - Anannual fraud nisk assessment
- Cyber securiy

- The insurance programme {or properiy development and
corporate risks

Internal Audit - Approval of arrangements fer the provisien of internal audit - Annual internal audit plan including consideration of its

services and any termination of such arrangements algnment to Lhe principal risks consideralion of emerging

- Monitaring and review.ng the eflectiveness of the Company s areas of risk coverage across the Group and its joint ventures
internal Audht function sncluding 5 plans level of resources and review of the Group s processes and controls
and budget - KPMG s execution of the internal audit plan and reviewing

- Reviewing internat audit reparts recommendatiens and progress the resuliant audst reports and lindings
inimplementaiton of those recommendations - internal Audit elfectiveness

~ Coordination between Internal Audit and External Audit - Internal Audit reports payroll taxcompliance T

The Leadenhall Building and Broadgate joint ventures
procurement [phase 2] Broadgate Estates leasing process
anti-bribery and corruption key financial controls treasury

- Annua!internal contrels overviaw
- Internal Audit charter defining its role and responsibilities
- Internal Audit lender process

Other - Reviewing the Audit Committee s effectivenass and us Terms - The Commutiee s Terms of Reference
of Reference - Effectiveness of the Commuttze
- Considering compliance with legal requirernents accounting - Maintenance of the Graup s REIT 5tatus

standards and the Listing Rules - Annual tax update

- Revtew of PwC s Susta nabilty Assurance Report
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Sigmficant 1ssues m relation to finaneal statements
The Commiitee pays particutar attention to maiterst considers to

be impartani by virtue of their size complexity level of judgement
required and potential impact on the financial statements and wider
business model Identificalion of the tssues deemed Lo be significant
takes place following open, frank and challenging discussion between
the Commuitize members with input from the Chief Financial Officer
PwC and Internal Audit and other relevani Bnitish Land employees

A particutar area of focus for the Cammutiee has been the viability
statement which 1s included within the strategic report {or the {wst

time this year on page 58 The Commiltee has discussed the form

and content of the statement and the analysis carried out to support it
with management and PwC throughout the year The Commitiee has
confirmed to the Board that 1 bebeves the viabilily statement adequately
considers the Group s principat risks covers an appropriate period Is
supported by the assessment prepared by management and includes
disclasure of all relevant matenal assumpuians made

The significant 1ssues considered by the Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2016 are detailed below atongside the actions taken
by the Commuttes to address these 1ssues [C 3 8] ~

Signtheant issucs i relation to Anancial statemonts
consmidered by the Comnuttee dunng the vem

[ntemal Audnt

The Company s Inlernzl Audi function during the year was outsourced
to KPMG who reported regulartly to the Committee The Commuttee
monilored the performance of [nternat Audit throughout the year as
well as performing an annual review of its effecliveness The Committee
believes KPMG discharged its dulies effeclively [C 3 6] <

, KPMG has performed the Internal Audit function since it was outsourced

in 2012 Itwas decided that the Internal Audit function should be put out
to tender in March 2016 to facililate evaluation of different internal audit
approaches Following a compeulive process Ernst & Young LLP [EY]
was appowied EYwill report regularly to the Commutlee and it1s
envisaged that its performance will be monitgred in a similar way

Polies on Pw( providing non-audit servaces (C3 H) €
Wilh respect to non-audit services prowided by PwC the following
framework was in place during the year

- Audit related services audit related services include formal reporting
relating to borrowings shareholder and other circulars and vanous work
in respect of acquisiions and disposals Where the external audior must
carry out the work because of their office the external auditor 15 selected
In other circumstances the seleclion depends on which firmis tilest suited

How these issues were addressed sy the Comnuttee

The valuation of Investment and development
properties whichis conducled by external
valuers isnherently subjeclive as itis made
on the basis of assumpuens made by the
valuers which may not prove lo be accurate
The outcomne of tha valuation 15 significant

to the Group in terms of iInvestmenl decisions
results and remuneration

Valuation of
investment and
development
properties

The external valuers presented their reports to the Committee and were
asked to highlight any significant judgements or disagreements with
management Valuation certificates and oulcomes were reviewed and
assumptions challenged with particularly ngorous scrutiny this year
gwen the lower velumes of evidence selting transactions compared

lo recent pertods

Risk 1s encountered through property and
financing transactions as large and non-standard
accounting enlries can be required

Accounting for
transactions

The Committee rev ewed managemaent papers on key judgements
including those for significant ransactions as well as the externat
audtor s report presented follewing the conclusion of the audit

The appropriateness of preparing the Group
financial statements on a going cancern basis

Going concern
statement

The Commitiee reviewed management s analysis supporting the going
concern basis of preparation This inctuded considerauon of forecast

cash flows avallability of committed debt faciilies and expected covenant
headroom PwC reporled Lo the Committea the resulls ol testing partormed
an management $ analysis

Whether the staternent appropriately reflects lhe
prospects of the Group and covers an appropriale
period of ume

Viability statement

The Committee considered whether the assessment performed by
management adequately rellects the Group s principal nisks as disclosed on
pages 57 o 63 whether the period covered by Lhe stalement |5 reasonable n
light of the industry the Group operates in and 15 a fair reflection of the
forecast pernod typically considered by management and whether the
assumptions made and sensitivities identihed represent severe but plausible
seenarnios in the conlexd of solvency or liguidity

Maintenance of the Group s REIT status Lhrough
complbance with certain condiions has a
significant impact on the Group s resulls

REIT status

The Commiltee reviews compliznce with the REIT tests annually
Management presented the methodology and results of the REIT tests
mightighting any thange In long term trends and the current lavel of
headroam

Judgements affecting Forcertain transactions judgement s appbed

revenue recogmtion by management as to whether and 1o what
extent they should be treaied as revenue for
the financial year

The Commiltee and PwC conswlered Lhe approprialeness of the accounting
treatment applied by managemert in relation te revenue recognition The
Committe2 and PwC also considered the scope of the accounting standard
and the reasonableness of the jJudgement made
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- Sustainability assurance the seleclion depends onwhich lirm 15 best
suited and Is reviewed on a five yeariy basis Currently the axternat
auditor provides an assurance opinion over selected sustainabitity data

- Tax adwvisory the selection depends on which firm is bast suited in the
crcumstances

- General consulting the external auditor 1s nol selected to provide general
consultancy services except in certain bmnted arcumstances and then
only after consideration that they are best placed to provide the service
and that therr independence and objectivity will not be compromised

The following commitment protocol operated throughout the year and
applied to any engagement for conducting other work [excluding audit
and half-yearly repcerting) performad by PwC
- The total non-audit fees are Umited to 70% of the audit fees in any
one year The audit and non-audit fees for the three-year average
are calculated in line with the methodology set cut in the 2014
EU Regulations and include {fees for joint ventures and funds
- Audit Committee approval 1s required where there were any doubts
as lo whether the external auditor had a conflicl of interest and
- Approval by the Audil Committes Chairman 1s required for each
additional project over L0 Im 10 value where the cumulative fees tor
non-audit work are projected to exceed 50% of the auai fee In any
hnancial year During the year no project approvals by the Audit
Comrmittee Chairman were required

Ettectiveness ot the kxteenal \adit process

The Cormmittee places great importance on ensuring a high quality
effective External Audit process Following best practice andin
accordance with its Terms of Reference the Committee annually reviews
the audit requirements of the Group for the business and in the context of
the external environment The Commuttee also conducis an annual review
of the performance of the external auditor and considers ils Independence
campliance with relevant statutory regulatory and ethical standards and
objectivity {C 381 ¥

Following its appemtment in 2014 PwC successlully completed its first
audit lastyear The Commitiee reviewed PwC s parformance this year and
was content with the quality of the audit it had delivered The Committes
reviewed PwC s proposals for the audit and 1s confident that approphiate
plans were put in place to carry out an effective and high quality audit
Ne significant issues were raised during the course of the audit PwC
confirmed to the Commutiee that it maintained appropriate internal
safeguards to ensure Its Independence and objectivity The Cormnmuttee
considered and approved PwC s assessment of its independence and
has recommended its reappamtment Lo the Board approval of which
witl be sought from shareholders at the 2016 AGM

The Committee has agreed to consider the need for a competitive tender
for the role of external auditor every five years with a competitive tender
taking place at least every tenyears Tothe extent that the auditor did
not rotate eartier through this process the Company will rotate audnt
pariner asrequired by legislaion There are no contractual obligations
which would restrict the selection of a different auditor

The Company has comptied with the retevant parts of the Competition
and Markets Authority Final Order on the statutary audit market for the
year ended 31 March 2015

.
Valuations

The external valuation of British Land s portfolio is a key daterminant

of the Group s balance sheet perfarmance and semior management s
remuneration In accordance with its Terms of Reference the Committae
adopts arigorous approach to monitoring and reviewing the valuation
process and the effectiveness of the Group s valuers Kright Frank and
CBRE The Commiltee reviews the effectiveness of the external valuers
bignnually focustng on a qualitative analysis of capilal values yield
benchmarking avadabiliy of comparable market evidence and majer
outliers to subsector movemenis

The valuers present directly to the Committee at the half-yearly

and annual reviews of results including prowiding confirmation of Lhe
valuation process market condiions and significant jJudgements made
PwC reviews the valuations and valuation process having full access
to the vatuers lo determine that due process has been followed and
appropriate nformation used It reportsits findings to the Commitlee
The valuation process is alse subject to regular review by Internal Audit
the most recent being undertakenin 2013 with another one planned for
later this calendar year tn addition | as the Committee Chair man meet
privately with the valuers

For the valuation of the Group swholly-owned assets the Company

has fixed fee arrangements with Knight Frank and CBRE 10 Line with
the recommendations of the Carsherg Commitiee Report Copies of

the valuation certificates of Knight Frank and CBRE can be found on

the corporate websile at www britishland com/reports

ldentfication and evaluation ot commeraal rishe and
rclated control objectis es

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the effectiveness

of sound risk management and internal control systems fLfulfils this
role by overseeing the activilies of and receiving reperts from the Risk
Commiitee and monitoring the risk managerment processes in place and
the activities of the Internal Audit function including its reporting on the
effectiveness of controls The Risk Comrmuttee minutes are circulated to
the Commitlee for review with any significant matters highlighted for
discussion Twice yearly the principal nisks which are derived from an
assessment of the risk register are presenied to the Committee along
with commentary on changes in the exposure to these risks in the period
Annually a report on the eflectiveness of inlernal contrels and the risk
management system 15 prepared by Internal Audit for presentation to the
Comrittee Internal Audit and the Risk Committee work closely togather
to ensure that identfied risk areas are incorporatedin the Internal Audit
programme and similarly hindings of Intarnat Audit reviews are taken
into account in identifying and evaluating risks within the businass
Briush Land mamtains a framework of conirols related to key financial
processes and management of the associated risks The effectiveness
af such controls 1s reviewed annually either by Internal Audit or as part
of the year-end external audit

-~ d"""

Tim Score
Chairman cf the Audit Cormmitiee
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Governanee and remuneration

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Committee
leads the process for
Board appointments

John Gildersleeve
Chair man of the Namination Commitiee

Nomnation Committee ntembers’ attendance during
the vear ended 31 March 2016

John Gildersleeve 2/2
Willlam Jackson 2/2
i.ord Turnbult 2/2

a1

Caomposition of the Board

W Mon-Executive Chairman
B Independent Non-Executive Directors
fExecutive Direclors

Drreetors’ core areas of expertise!

Property
Finance

Retall and consumer

Academic
Public sector

! Some Directors are reprasented in more than one category
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The Board and ts Comnuttees

Throughout the year the membership of each Committee has comprised
independent Non-Executive Director s to the extant required by the Code
[8 7119 We value continuity and axperience of British Land s busingss
and were delighted to recemmend that Lord Turnbull be re-appointed
as Senior Independent Director Lord Turnbull will however step down
as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee following this year s AGM
although hewll remain a member of that Committee Willam Jackson
has agreed to take on the posiien of Chairman of the Remuneration
Commiliee [B 24]&@

As reported last year following a nigerous selection process Laura
Wade-Gery was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of Briush Land
on 13 May 2015 Lauras biography demonstrates her huge retail and
consumer experience Mo further changes to the Board occurred duning
the year

lomposition of the Board
The Committee considers that the Beard consists of individuals with
the right balance of skills experience and knowledge to provide slrong
and effective leadership of the Company The majority of the Board
are independent Non-Executive Directors and the Board s colleclive
experience covers a range of relevant sectors as llustrated in the Lleft
hand column Aswell as a breadth of property and financial experrence
many Board members have personal expenence of working in the retail
and corporate enviranments that are typical of many of our occuprers

Alt of British Land s Directors wilt retire and submit themselves for
re-election by shareholders st the 20146 Annuat General Meeling

The Committee believes that all the Directors continue to demonstrate
commitment to their roles as Board and Committee members continue
lo discharge their duties effectively and that each makes avaluable
contribution to the leadership of the Company

Diversity

British Land pays full regard to the benefits of diversity including gender
diversity bothwhen the Nomination Committee 1s searching for
candidates for Board appoiniments and when the Company 1s searching
for candidates for other appointments

The Board agrees with the conclusians of the Women on Beards report
by Lord Davies ol Abersoch that greater efforts should be made in
improving the gender balance of corporate boards and thal quotas

for female board representation are not the preferred appreach The
Campany currently has thres female Directors Lynn Gladden and Laura
Wade-Gery who were appointed as Non-Executive Directors in 2015
and Lucinda Bell whowas appointed Chief Financial Officer in May 2011
This currently represents 25% female Board membership




Principal responsibilities of the Committee

Kev areas discussed and reviewed
by the Comnuttee m 2016

Regular review of the structure size and composstion of the Board

Review of the struclure size compesition of the Board along with
the skiits knowledge and experience of its members to ensure that
Directors remain able {o cischarge their duties and responsibilites
gffectively and to the required high standard

Recommendatons to the Board with regard to Board changes
and Committee membership changes

Selection and appaintment of Lavra Wade-Gery as a Non-Executive
Director Appointment of William Jackson as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committea

Succession planning for Directers and other sesmor executives

Succession planning including entilication of potential internal
candidates for senmor vacancies which may anse on a crisis short
medium or tang term basis

Reviewing ime commitments required from Naon-Executive Directors

Time cormnrnitments required from Non-Executive Direclors were
reviewed as part of Lhe year end process

Recommendations for re-election of Non-Executive Director s

Recommendations to the Board regarding Directors standing
for re-election by shareholaers at the AGM

Terms of Reference

The Commultee s Terms of Reference can bz found on the Company s webstie at www britishland com/commitiees [B 2 1)@

The promotion of women to the Board and other senier positions
within the Company 1s dependent on the recruitment development
and retention of wormnen in the workforce bath withen the Company
and more widely throughout the business and professional commuriiy

As of 31 March 2016 British Land s employees lincluding Broadgate
Estates) comprised 283 females and 306 males [2015 218 and 247
respectively] of the employees considerad to be executives 141 were
fenale and 257 were male (2015 115 and 205 respectively] Senior
executives comprising the Executive Committee and Operations
Commuttee consisled of 11 females and 24 males 2015 8and 7
respecuively] To encourage and help mothers return o work we offer
enhanced maternity leave payments and support flexible working
patterns curreatly 27 of our female employees take advantage of this
facility (2015 31) We also offer enhanced paternty leave payments and
supporl flexible working patterns for all parents and ather employees
whose personal circumstances may make this benelicial Currently 13
men work flexibly ané 5 men 1ook advantage of enhanced patermity leave
[2075 9 and 14 respeclively] Traming and mentonng programmes are
provided to ensure Lhat all our employees achieve thair potential taking
account of their diverse development needs lt1s pleasing that our Chief
Financial Officer Lucinda Bell was aninternal appointment reflecting
the devetopment of our own people

The Nomination Commiliee seeks 1o increase the perceniage of fernale
Board members as quickly as we are able The speed al which we can
achiave this wilt be subject to the avaitability of suitable candidates

and compliance with the requiremants of the Equalily A¢t the Board
has a {undamental obligauion to ensure that appointments are of the
candidates best able lo promote the success of the Company and we

do not consider that it would be to ihe long term benefit of the Company
tf appointments were made on any other basis Subjectio these

requirements we have an engoing commitment to further strengthening

temale representation at Board and top managemeni level

Qur people sirategy focuses on creating a leam wha can deliver

Places Pecple Preler Getting closer to our customers is one of our key
strategic prioriies and having a workforce which reflecis the diversity

of our customers helps us achieve this The policy throughout British Land
is to employ the best candidates available 1n every position regardiess of
sex race ethmeorigin nationalily calour age rebigion or phitosophical
helief sexualonentation marrage or civil partnership pregnancy
maternity gender reassignment ar disability Applications for employment
oy disabled persons are always fully considered beartng in mind the
aptitudes of the applicants concerned In the event of members of staff
becoming disabled every effort s made te ensure that their employmeant
cantinues and that appropriate traiming 1s arranged The policy provides
that the training career development and promotion of disabled people
should as far as possible bedanuical to that of cther employees

We achieved a key milestone on our journey towards creating a truly
inclusve environment with our formation of BL Pride our lesbian gay
hisexual transgender [LGBT] and allies network and our Women s
network this year Both networks have been active In the year and we are
oleased that our Chief Execuuve Chris Grigg was ranked 11thin the 2015
Leading 30 LGBT Ally Executives by OUTstanding and the Financial Times

" We are also piloling a mentoring scheme far women offering help

guidance advice and support where it 1s needed
REdAeiv-

John Gilderslecse
Chairman of the Nomination Commuttee
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Governanee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Remuneration Policy is
designed to align management |
incentives with our strategy

1 During the year we as the Commutlee have continued ta focus
' on ensuring lhat our Remuneraltion Policy apprapriately reflacts
. our remuneration philosophy whichis based on three

fundamental principles
I - remuneration should align management incentives with strategy

| and s0 encourage activiies that support our sirategy of creating
" | Places People Prefer
| ~ remuneration packages should be designed Lo atlract and retain

expert people throughout British Land s business and

1 —the tevel of remuneration should be directly inked to corporate
' and indwduat performance
We were delighted to receive over 7% of shareholder votes in favour of
our existing Remuneration Pelwcy at our 2014 AGM As our Matching
Share Plan [MSP]will expire in July 2016 we have Laken the opportunity
lo review the current Remuneration Policy this year rather than atits
expiry in 2017 with a parucular focus on simplifying cur tong term
incentive arrangements Taking into account investor sentiment around
matching share plans we have deaided not to renew the MSP
As a result we will have one single long term incentive arrangement
under the propased new Remuneraucn Pelicy

I otd Turnbull

Chairman of the Remuneration Commuittee

Remumeration Committee members’ attendancee

durnng the vear ended 31 March 2016! To achieve this we are proposing the following key changes to our

Remuneration Policy remaval of the MSP and amendments to the

Lord Turnbult 3/3 Long-Term incentive Plan [LTIP} which address the removal of the MSP

Lynn Gladden 3/3 and respond ta investor preferences for the Introduction of pest-vasting

William Jackson 3/3 holding periods and Lhe extension of time periods over which awards

Laura Wade-Gery’ 242 should be subject to clawback Proposed amendments are summanisedin '

the box on the facing page Given the level of shareholder suppori recewed
for the existing Remuneration Policy in 2014 we are not propesing (o make
any other matenal changes to our Remuneration Policy

' Otherindividuals attend Remuneration Commitiee meelings by invitation
Alan Judes of Strategic Reruneration attended Commitlee meetings during
2015 Alan Judes has been appointed by the Comrnitlee as1ts Independent
Adwisor further detail s provided on page 110 Curing the year bythe
Commutlee s invitation tha following saror executives atlended and/or were
presenl at Committee meelings [other than when their own remuneration was
being discussed| the Company Chairman the Chiel Exacutive the Cormnpany
Secretary and General Counset and the Head of Operations
Laura Wade-Gery was appointed as a Director and rnember of the
Remuneration Committee an 13 May 2015

Consultation on propesed changes to Remuneration Policy

We were pleased to be able to engage in meaningful discussionwith

key shareholders during consultation on the propased amendments
to our Remuneratton Policy A number of opinions expressed during

cansultation have directly influenced the design of the Remuneration

1A12/@ Policy that will be presented for approval at our AGM in July 2016
Our proposals to move 10 a single long term ingentive arrangement !
Ternms of Reforoncee introduce 2 two year holding period following LTIP vesting and maintain '
the compulsary deferral of a propartion of an Annual Incentive award
The Commutiee s Terms of Reference can be found on the Company s into shares were particularly well received by investars and have baen
websiie at www britishland com/committees{D 211@(D 22)@ incorporated Into the new Remunerzalion Policy

In response to feedback receved during consultation we are alsa this
year proviaing more wformalion about performance against Annual
Incentive measures over the linancial year includad on pages 102 to 103
of this Report] and we are reducing the percentage of LTIP that vests for
achieving median performance under the new Policy
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Design of new Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Commutlee 15 salisfiad that the design of sur new
Remuneration Policy remains atigned with our remuneration philesophy
The elemenls of our remuneration structure have been chosen so that
they support our business madel and our four areas of strategic focus
Customer Orientation Right Places Capital Efficiency and Expert
People Performance measures atlached to variable elements of
ramuneration are siretching with Annual Incentive starting lo be
awarded and LTIP awards starting to vest only ence median performance
has bzen reached maumum tevels of remuneration are only paid out
when upper quartite performance s achieved Both short term [Annual
Incentive] and long term [LTIP] performance measures have been
carefully selected to incenlivise activities that support our strategy of
creating Places People Prefer The measures that will be attached to
awards granted under the amended LTIP and thewr respective inks to
our slrategy are summarised in the box an the next page Page 21 of our
Strategic Report highlights the relationship belween our strategy ang
our iIncentive measures

Cur new Remuneration Policy will be presented to sharzhelders for

approval at the AGM in July 2016 Shareholders will also be asked to

vole on separate resolutions to approve the amendments to the LTIP

ID 2 )@ and 10 approve the Directors Remuneration Report for the year

ended 31 March 2014 1 approved our new Remuneration Pelicy will

apply from the date of the AGM and will consist of Ihe following key

elements for Executve Directors

- Basic salaries and benefits will be sel by reference to comparator
companies of a similar position in the FTSE 100 index

- Annual Incentive awards will be inked to performance against
quantitative quaiitalive and personai measures and one third of
each Annual tncentive award granied will be deferred to purchase
British Land shares and

- LTIP awards will be linked to bath specific properly related performance
measures [TPR and TAR assessing performance al the gross and net
levels respectively] and TSR performance maasuras and will be subject
to a lwa year holding peniod following the three year vesting period

The Executive Directors are responsible for setling the levels of fees paid
to the Non-Executive Directors Inline wath other FTSE 100 companies
iLts proposed that under the new Remuneration Policy fees payable

to Non-Executive Directors will be structured as an annual fee plus
addivonal fees for membership of cemmittees and/or holding certain
positions as outlined in the box to the righi This represents a change
frem the structura under the current Policy whereby Non-Execubive
Directars receive fees based in part an their atiendance at Board and
Commuttee meebings throughout the year Levels of fees under the new
Policy [outlined en page 100} have been setected so that (otal fees for the
year commencing 1 Aprit 2015 will not change materially compared to
the fees that would have beenreceved had the current Policy remained
inplace based on the anticipated number of meetings that will take
place during the year D 2 3] @

Element of remuneration Change in Remuneration Policy

Matching Share Plan  No MSPwill be included in the Policy presented

[MSP} for shareholderapproval at the AGM in July 2016
Under the current Policy ane third of an Executive
Direcior s post-lax Annual incentive award is
deferred anc used o purchase shares [MSP
Bonus Shares) that must be held for three years
and a conditional award of addibonal matching
sharess granted

AnnualIncentive
Deferral

The deferral of one third of the posi-tax Annual
Incentive into shares wilt be retained but no
award of additional matching shares will be
granted This wilt resuilin continued alignment
between Executive Dirgctors and shareholders
inlaresis and will provide a lenger term aspect
to the Annual Incentive award One third of an
Executive Director s post-tax Annual Incentive
award will be deferred and used to purchase
Annual Incentive Shares that must be held

for three years regardless of whether or

not theindividual remains an emplayee of
British Land thraughout Lhis period Annual
Incentive Shares will be subject o clawback
during the helding period

Lang-Term Incentive
Plan [LTIP}

For Executive Directors a two year holding period
will be introduced following vesting of an LTIP
award during which awards will be subject

to clawback The holding periad will apply
regardless of whether or not the indwidual
remains an employee of Briish Land throughout
this period The maximum award potential will be
Increased from 200% to 300% af basic salary as
Exacutive Directors wall no longer be eligible to
recetve addiional matching share awards under
the MSP The propertion of award vesting on
achievemeni of the median levet of gerformance
will be reduced from 25% to 20% of the award
The performance conditions atiached o LTIP
awards will be amended as detaled in the box
onthe next page

Non-Executive Directors will receive an annual
fee wilh additional fees if they are members of
Board Committees or hold the pasian of Senior
Independent Director or Chariman of the Audit
or Remuneration Committee This replaces the
currept fee structure which 1s based in part

on meeting attendance

Non-Executive
Directars Fees
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Governanee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Remuneration in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016

British Land has had another active and successful year demonstrated
1n our strong full year results Relative to the priar year underlying profit
nasncreased by 16% our NAV s 11% ahead and the dividend has

Key activities of the Comnuttee durig the yvear

ended 31 Mareh 2016

- Approvat of the Remunaration Report presented for shareholder
approval at the AGM on 21 July 2015

increased by 2 5% The results were driven by good performances
across the business with good leasing activity and rental growth key
{eatures The executive management team was strengthenead through
a number of key appointments including Roger Madelin whe has been
hired to lead our important Canada Water project The receipt of the

- Development of Remuneratien Policy Lo be presented for sharehclder
approval at the AGM on 19 July 2016 and preparation for consultations
with kay shareholders

- Review ol corporate and individual perfermances over the year ended
31 March 2015

prestigious 2016 Queen s Award for Enterprise 1s 2 great endorsement
of our econemic social and environmental achrevements

- Approval of performance measures for the year ended 31 March 2014
- Review of

- Chairman s annual fee

- Chief Executive s remuneration

- Executive Directors remuneration and

Performance during the year was in line with or exceeded expeclations
on all but one of the Annual Incentive measures However overall
performance was less strong than perfarmancen the previous financtal - Employees salares and Annual Incentives

year Consequentty Annual Incentives awarded to Executive Directors in - Approval of discretionary share scherne grants and vestings
respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 are lower than those awarded in - Approval of all-employee share scheme grants

respect of performance over the prior financial year The Remuneration
Commitlee s assessment of Annual Incentive performance over the year
1s sel oul on pages 102 1o 103 of this Report

LTIP performance measures
The fottowing performance measures will appty to LTIP awards granied under the new Remuneration Poticy

Measure Link to strategy Measured relative to

Total Property Return [TPR]

The change it capital value less any capitat
expenditure incurred plus netincome TPRIs
expressed as a percentage of capital employed
over the LTIP perfermance period and 1s ¢alculated
by tnvestment Property Databank [IPD)

The TPR measure is designed to link rewardto  TPR performance will be assessed aganst
strang performance at the gross property level  the performance of an IPD benchmark

Total Accounting Return [TAR]

The grawth in British Land s EPRA NAV per
share ptus dwvidends per share paid aver the
LTIP periormance period

The TAR measure 15 designed to ink reward TAR will be measured retalive lo a comparator
to performance at the nel property level that group consisting of the 17 largest FTSE property
takes account of gearing and our distributions companies that use EPRA accounting [inctuding
to sharehatders Briush Land}

Total Shareholder Return [TSR)

The growih in value of a British Land
shareholding over the LTIP performance
period assuming dividends are reinvested
{o purchase additional shares

50" af the TSR measure witl be measured
retative to the performance of the FTSE 100

and 3% of the TSR measure will be measured
relalive to the perforiance ol a comparalor
group consisting of the 17 largest FTSE property
companies that use EPRA accounting [including
Briush Land)

The TSR measure s designed to directly
correlale reward with the return delivered
te shareholders

Performance aganst the LTIP measures will be assessed avera pericd of three years For each measure 100% of the part of the award attached

10 that measure will vestif British Land s performance 15 at the upper quarbile level If performance against a measure1s equal to the median 20% of the
part of the award attached to that measure will vest and if performance is below median the part of the award attached to that rneasure will tapse There
will be straight-line vesting between median and upper quartile performance for each measure
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Vesting of the MSP and LTIP awards granted to Executive Directors in
201315 dependent on Briush Land s performance over the three year
perod ended 31 March 2014 Vesung of these awards 1s scheduled to
take place In August 2016 and estimated vesting values are included in
the Executive Directors singte total figures of remunerahion an page 101
Performance measures attached to the MSP award measure growthn
gross incorne and total shareholder return [TSR| Half of the MSP award
1s expected to vest as the gross incame growth target has been futly
achieved however the remaining half of the MSP award will lapse as
British Land s TSR aver the period was below the median TSR ol the
comparator group of companies

The two performance measures attached to the vesting LTIP award
measure total praperty return {TPR) and total accounting return [TAR]
The TPR part of the award 1s expecled to vest at 59% reflecting partal
achievernent of this conditicn and the TAR partis eslimated to vest at
4&% again showing that the performance condilion has been metin part
but upper quartle performance [required for the full award to vest| has
not been achieved

Executive Directors single total figures of remuneration for the year
to 31 March 2016 have decreased retative to the figures far the previous
financial year reflecling the parual vesting of long term incentive awards
and reduced Annual Incentive awards compared to the prior year The
Commiilee believes this demonstrates that our Remuneration Poticy
1s designed sc that the third strand of our remuneration philesophy

the level of remuneration recaived should be directly linked to corporale
and individual periormance 15 properly reflected in the Policy

Remuneration in respect of the year commencing 1 April 2016

The Commitlee 1s satisfied that the Execulive Directors salarias and
the Chairman s annual fee remain correctly positioned i relation to
our comparator group [being FTSE 100 companies of a similar market
capitalisation to Briush Land) and these will not be increased for the
year commencing 1 April 2014

As explained earlier in this letter a new Remuneration Policy and
amended LTIP rules will be presented for shareholder approval ai the
AGM in July 2016 The Committee intends to grant the finat ETIP award
under the current Remuneration Policy and rules before the AGM
therefore the first LTIP award under the new Policy and amended
rules witl nol be granted unul the year commencing 1 April 2017

This s my last report as Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee as
lintend to stand down following British Land s Annual General Meeting

i July 2018 will remain a member of the Commuttee and look forward

to continuing to work with Wiliam Jackson who witl Lake over the

Comimittee Charmanship as well as Lynn Gladden and Laura Wade Gery

who were both appointed Commitlee members in 2015

' The Commutiee very much valued your suppert of our Remuneration

Policy when itwas introduced in 2014 We hope thal you will be
supportive of the proposed changas Lo our long term inceniive

arrangemenis set out in our new Remuneration Policy and supportve
of our Annual Report an Remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2016

at the AGM in July 2016

/\,\4_,‘4 SNV’
Lord Turnbuall
Chairman of the Remuneration Cormnmittee
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Governance and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT OVERVIEW OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Overview of Remuneration Policy

Having expert people 1s one of the four core focus areas of cur business
modet Qur Remuneration Policy 1s intended Lo help retain the expert
people we have recruited and developed and mitigate the risk of losing
them Qur Remuneration Palicy s alse designed o foster employee share
ownership and align Executive Directors interests with these of investors
The Remuneration Policy outlined on pages 92 to 98 will take eflect from
19 July 2016 subject to shareholder approval at Briish Land s Annual
General Meeling on that day The bar charts below ilustrate the levels of
remuneration recewable by the Executive Directors vnder this proposed
Remuneration Policy for varying levels of performance

Within the remuneration package variable elements [the Annual
Incentive and Long-Term Incentive Plan ILTIP]] are designed o reward
performance that supports our stralegy and creates sustainable long
term vatue for shareholders If only the minimum level of performance 1s
achieved only fixed remuneration elements witl be paid to the Directors
'n tha lustrative bar charts, this minimum remuneration consists of
basic salary benefits pension or pension allowance and shares awarded
by British Land under the all-employee Share Incentive Plan’

For performance that 1sin Line with expectations up to haif of the
maximum Annual Incentive award possible will be granted lequivalent
to 75% of basic salary} and the proportion of the LTIP award expected
to vest is equivalent to 140% of basic salary One third of the Annual
Incentive award granted will be deferred into shares which must be
hetd by the Executive Director for three years [Annuat Incentive Shares)

Hlustration of appheation ot Remuneraton Polie

Chns Gngsg,

Chief Executive S
Minienum £1187
A 40% 21% 3% £2.993
Maximum 2t%  25% 51% £4,967
Lucimnda Bell

Chief Financial Officer N £000
Minimum £609
e sans 37% 2% 4i% £1.669
Maximum 22% 26% 52% £2 828

BFixed remuneration B Annuat Incentive W Long Term Incentive
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For the maximum level of performance, the Annual Incentive award

will be granted at a level equivalent to 150% of basic salary and the LTIP
award 1s expected to vestin full [equivalent 1o 300% of basic salary} One
thurd of the Annual Incenlive award granted will be deferred into Annual
Incentive Shares Rermuneration payable in respect of this maximum level
of performance has not changed matenally comparead to that payable
under the current Remuneration Policy approved by shareholders in 2014

The dlustrative bar charts below do not take into account any share
price appreciation between grant and vesting of LTIP awards or belween
deferral and release of Annual Incentive Shares Share price grewth will
resultin the values of LTIP awards and Annual Incentive Shares increasing
 the period batween grant and vesting/release to the Director

As explained on page 89 the first LTIP award grant under the new Policy
bwith maximum levet equivalent to 300% basic salary) will not take place
until the year ending 31 March 2018 as 1t 15 intended that an LTIP award
will be granted under the existing Policy (with maximum Llevel equivalent
1o 200% basic salary] in advance of the 2016 AGM

' Calculated using salaries for the year ending 31 March 2017 assurming that
penetit vatues for the year ending 31 March 2017 will remain the same as the
valuas for the year ended 31 March 2015 and thal the maximum value of shares
that can be a varded by the Company under the Share Incenlive Plan1s granted
Pension values are hased on the Remuneration Pelicy and estimates supplied
by the scheme acluary for delined banefif scheme members

Chartes Maudsles

Head of Retall and Leisure _ o ~ Eooo
Minimum 100% £553
e paeitans 7% 22% 4% £1512
Maximum 2%  26% 52% £2.561
Tim Roherts

Head of Offices and Residential o B . __ €o00
Minimum 100% £572
In ling with

expectalions 37% 22% 41% £1,531
Maximum 22% 26% 52% £2,580




saceutnve Dircetors

g@l Fixed Remuneration

@ Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)

The components of fixed rermuneration are intended to provide a base
package al a level that will attract high-calibre indmwduals with the
appropriale degree of expertise and experience te carry oul their roles

Lo the tugh standards we reguire Exacutive Directors salanes are
positiened around the median ol our camparator group [FTSE100
companies with broacly similar markel capitalisations to Briish Land]
and in addibonto salary the fixed remuneration package includes the
prevision of benefits a pension or pension allewance and the epportuntty
lo take parl in all-employee share schemes

[acens]
l&l Annual Incarlio

The Annual Incentive forms part of the variable proportion of an
Executive Director s remuneration package The level of Annual Incentive
award receved is directly linked to corporate and individual performance
agansl annually tallored measures

Aproporhion of each Executive Director s Annual Incentive award 15 used
lo purchase shares that must be held for three years adding a longer
term aspect to the Annual Incentive award

Magritude of Annual Incentive award i1s dependent en performance
against Annual Incentive measures over one year

One third [net of tax} 15 used
Twothirdsispadas to purchase shares which mast
cash on award be held for three years
{Anrual incenti e Shares)

The LTIP 15 the second etement of vaniable remuneration The proporuon
of an LTIP awarc thatis actually released 1o an Executive Directoris
dependent on British Land s performance againsi specified performance
maasuras over a three year period

LTIP award consisis of performance shares
or marhet value oplions or a cembinatien ol the two
wilh performance measures attached

I

Performance 1s measured |
over three vears
&

&
The number of perforrmance shares vesling and the number of optrons

becorming exercisable are both dependent on the degree
towh.ch the performance measures have bean met

A two year holding period applies to LTIP awards following vesting

Charrnan and Son-Executive Directors

Fees patd to the Company Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are
positioned around the medsan of our comparator graup of companias
[FTSE100 companieswith broadly similar market capitalisations to
8ritish tand)wath the aim of attracting indmiduals with the appropriate
degree of expertise and experience to wark with and challenge the
Execulive Direciors
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Governanee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT REMUNERATION POLICY

Eaceutne Dircctors” Remunu ation Polies

Component and Purpase

Operation

% Fixed Remuneration

Basic salary

To attract and retain expert people
with the appropriate degree of
experlise and experience

The level of basic salary is positiened around the median of our comparater group of F15& 100
companies with proadly similar market capitalisabons Executive Directors responsibilities
are laken into account when basic sslares are set

Basic salaries are reviewed annuzlly by the Remuneration Commiliee withincreases usually
taking effect on 1 Aprit for the subsequent year Employment conditions and salary increases
throughout the Group are taken into account when basic salaries are set

In addion to basic salary Executive Directors may be etigible to receive fees fer siting an the
boards of certain subsidiary companies

Benefits and all-employee
share schemes

To attract and retain
exper! people and to
foster share cwnarship

A car allowance 1s paid to0 Executive Directors in ligu of the provision of 2 company car

Executive Directors are ebigible to receive other laxable and non-taxable benefits, which
may include
- privale medical insurance [covering the Director spouse and any children under the age of 25]
- life assurance cover under whuch a lump sum of four tirnes basic salary will be paid outin
the event of death in service
- parmanent health insurance, under which 756% of basic salary will be paid in the event
of fong term absence due to cerlain medical reasons
- access Lo independent actuanal financial and legal advice when necessary,
- gyrn membership subsidised by the Company
- annual medical checks,
- relavant professional subscnpton fees,
- other benefits on substanually the same basis as other employees

Executive Directors are eligible to participate in British Land s Shat e Incentive Plan [SiP)]
and Sharesave Schemne on the sarme basis as other eligible employees

The Company provides Directors and Officers Liability Insurance and may provide an
indemnarty to the fullest extent permstted by the Companies Act

Pension or pension allowance

To attract and retain expert people
and lo provide an appropriate level
of pension on retrement

Execulive Directors may receive pension benefits through a defined contribution
arrangement may receve a cash allowance in Lieu of pension contributions or [provided Lhe
Oirector joined British Land before its dehned benefit scheme closed to new membersin
2006} may recewe benefits through a defined benefit arrangement as deemed appropriale
by the Commuittes

Accrual rates for Directors recening benefits through the defined benefit scheme are
determined by the rules of the scheme and are dependent on the age at which the Cirector
joined the Company Benelits up to the Umit permutted by the tax legislation are provided
inaregistered plan Benefits over that Lirmit are currently provided in an employer financed
relirement beneftt scheme [EFRBS] EFRBS participants are currently offered a choice
annually as to whether they wish to accrue benefitsin the EFRBS or to receive a cash
paymenl in lieu

Directors participating in a defined contribution arrangament may choose whether
contribulions are made nto Briush Land s defined contribution scheme orinto their
own personal pensien plan Cash allowances in liew of pension contributions would
typrcally be paid at the same level of satary as Cempany contributions under the defined
contribution arrangement

Y2
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Maximum Opportunity

Performance Canditians

The maximum level of basic salary will nct be greater than the upper
quarile of the comparator group

Increases will typically be w Une with inflation and general salary
increases throughoul the Group I anindividual 1s appointed st a
saiary posiionaed below the level aligned with our comparater group
alarger increase may be awarded in order to position the salary
around the medsan of cur comparator group

Executive Directors fees for sitting on substdiary company boards
are capped at a maximum of £1 500 per annum 1in aggregate for all
qualifying appeintments

Mot applicable

The maximum car allowance 1s £20 000 per annum

The maximum cost of other taxable and non-taxable benefits
perrmutted under the Policy 1s the amount required to continue
providing benefits at a similar leve! year-cn-year

The maximurn opporturities under the SIP and Sharesave Scheme
are set by the rules of the schemes and deterrmined by statutery imits

Mot applicable

Under the defined benelit scheme the target benefitis the pension
thal can be provided by the 3t March 2012 liietime allowance [£18
miltton] uplified by RPI from thal date The maximum accrual rate

for a defined benelit scheme member 1s that which will give the iarget

benefit ai age 60 subject to the accrual rate beng no greater than
one thirtieth and no less than one sixtieth of salary

Emplayer pension contributions 1o Executive [hireclors under

the defined contribution arrangement and cash allowances in lieu
of pension are made al a fixed percentage of salary between

15% and 35%

Not applicable
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Governanee and Remuneration

Component and Purpose

REMUNERATION REPORT REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Operation

—r-

EN
e Annual lncentve

To reward Company and individual
performance that supports the
strategic priorities of the business
and to pramote actvities that help
the business successfully
implement its strategy

To foster share ownership and align

participants interests with those of
shareholders

@ Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP]

Annual Incentive awards may be granted to Executive Directors each year with the level of
award reflecting Company and individual parformance agamnst measures set by the
Remunerauon Committee Awards are granted following the financial year end when actuat
perfermance gver that year has been measured

Tweo thirds of an Executive Director s Annual incentive award 1s aid in cash when the award
1s granted The remaining third of the Annual Incentive award inet of taxh s used to purchase
British Land shares on behalf of the Execetive Directer lAnnual Incentive Sharesl Annual
Incentive Shares must be held for three years {rom the date of grant of the Annual Incentive
award before they may be transferred or seld regardless of whether or not the mdmdual
remains an employee of Briish Land threughout this period Executive Cirectors are ent:tled
to the dividends paid in respect of the Annual Incentive Shares during the holding period

The Annual Incentive Shares may be clawed back during the three year period fellowing 1ssue
if 1t 1s discovered that the relevant Annual fncentive award was granted on the basis of
materially misstated accounts or other data

To Link the level of reward to
Company performance agamst
specified long term measures,
promoting and rewarding actvities
that support our strategy and create
sustainable long term value for
shareholders

To foster share ownership and align
participants interests with those of
sharehelders

LTIP awards may be granted annually by the Remuneration Cormnmitlee to Execulive Directors
Awards may consist of performance shares [conditonal rights to receive shares] or market
value options or a combination of the two Executive Directors may indrcate a preference as to
the propartions of thair award receved as performancs shares and/or market value options

|.TIP awards vest after three years The number of performance shares and/or oplions vesting
1s dependent on the degree to which performance conditions attached te the LTIP award have
been met over this three year performance periad A payment equivatent 1o the dividends
acerued onvesting performance shares and the inlerest thereon 1s paid at the point of vesting

On vesting sufficient performance sharas may be sold to cover any hiability to income tax and
National fnsurance Contributions The remaining performance shares must be hald for twe
years following vesung before they are permitted to be transferred or sold regardiess of
whather or net the individual remains anemgloyee of British Land threughout this period

LTIP options may be exercised at any point during the seven years fallowing vesting If LTIP
oplions are exarcised within two years of the vesting date sufficient of the shares acquwred
may be sold to cover the cost of exercise and any lability to Income tax and National Insurance
Contributions but the remaining shares must be held unul the point two years from the
vesling dale before they are permitied to be transferred or seld regardless of whether or nol
the individual remains an employee of British Land thr oughout this period

If it1s discovered that an LTIP award was granted or vested on the basis of materially

russtated accounts or other data

- the Committee may require some or all of the performance shares Lo be ferfeited or clawed
back during the five year period following the grant date

- the Cormnmitiee may require some or all unexercised options to be forleited at any pont and

- where an option 1s exercised within five years of its grant date, the Commitlee may require
some or all of the shares acquired te be clawed back during the five year period following the
aplion grant date
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Maximum Opportunity

Performance Conditions

Tne maximum tevel of Annual Incentive which may be granted
is equivalent to 150% of basic salary

The Annual Incentive performance measuresrelate to 8riish Land s
strategic focus areas and the Executive Director s individual areas of
responsibility The measures are set by the Remunaration Commuttee
at the beginrung of the financial year over which performance will be
assessed angd zre not strictly waighted When determining the level of
an Executive Directer s Annual Incentive award the Commuttee takes
into accounl performance against all measures and makes an
assessment In the round

If actual performance averaged over all measures is equalto the
median level of perfermance the Annualincentive award granted
will be one quarter of the maximum potential award [equivalent to !
37 5% of basic selaryl Up to half of the maximum potential award

lequivalent to 75% of basic salaryl s payable for performance thal

15 In line wilh expectations if average performance is below the

median level of performance no Annual incentive award will

be granted

No further performance condiions are attached Lo the Annual
Incentive Shares during the holding period

The maximum value of an LTIP award which may be granted s
squivalent to 300% of basic satary The value for this purpose
is lhe aggregate fair value of the shares and/or options granted
at the date of award

The far value of a share s the average market value of British Land
shares over the three dealing days preceding grant The fair value of
a market value option 1s such fraction of the fair value of a share as s
set by the Commuttee This fraction s currently one guarler but may
be varied by the Commitiee to reflect the @conomic models used by
the Company for the valuation of aplions

The LTIP performance conditions have been chosen 1o reward |
performance that1s aligned wiih British Land s strategy
- total property return [TPR] performance 1s assessed relative |
to an investmenl Property Databank [I1PD] benchmark rewarding !
strong returns at the property level
- totat accounting return [TAR) perfermance is assessed relative
to a comparator group consisting of the 17 largest property
companies within the FTSE that use EPRA acceunting lincluding
Briush Land) and
- tolal shareholder return [TSR] performance 15 assessed aganst both
the FTSE100 and a comparator group consisting of the 17 largest
properly companies within the FTSE that use EPRA accounting
lingluding British Land]

The retalive werghting of the performance conditions may be varied
by the Commitiee to ensure the LTIR best supports British Land s
strategy and lo meet investor preferences The Commitlee currently
intands tc apply the performance conditions with the fellowing
weightings 40% of the award will be linked to the TPR condilion
40% will be linked to the TAR condition and 20% will be linked lo

the TSR condiion

TPR performance Is currenily assessed against the IPD UK Annuat
Property index The Commitiee may amend the comparatar groups
of companies during Lthe performance period if there 1s a corporate
event sffecting any member of the group and may amend the IPD
benchmark if a different benchmark is deemed mare appropriate

Performance condittons are challenging requiring significant
cutperformance for 100% of the LTIP award to vest 20% of the
award will vest if the mirimum performance thresheld 1s achieved
performance betow the minimumn threshald for a performance
condition will resutt in tha LTIP award in respect of that conditien
lapsing Upper quartile performance must be achieved agamnst
each perfarmance measure for the entire award to vest
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Non-Eaceutise Directors Remnneration Polin

Component and Purpose

Operation

Maximum Opportunity

Performance Conditions

Chairmans fee

To attract and retair: an individual

with the appropriate degree
of expertise and experience

The Chairman s annual fee

1s set by the Remuneration Commitiee
and reviewed annuaily The level of the
Chairman s annual fee1s positioned
around Lhe meadian of our chosen
comparator group which consists

of FTSE 100 compames with broadly
similar market capitalisations

The maximum annual fee
will not be greater than the
upper quarule of the chosen
comparator group Typically
increases If required

will be In line with inflation

Not applicable

Chairrmans benefits

To facilitate the Chairman s
travel in the fulfilment of his
or her duties

The Chairman is provided with a car
and chauffeur together with any taxes
thereen

The maximum opporiumty
15 the costio the Company
of providing this gressed-up
taxable henetii at a similar
level eachyear

Nat applicabte

Non-Executive Directors fees
To attracl and retain expert
peopie with the appropriale
degree of expertise and
experience

Remuneration of the Non-Executive
Directors s a matter for the Executive
Directors and fees are reviewed
annually

Non-Executive Diractors recaive an
annugzl fee plus additional fees if they
are members of a Committee orf
they hold the position of Senior
Independent Directer or Chairman

of the Remuneration or Audit
Caommitiee

The Company s Policy s to deliver a
total fee at a level in Line with similar
positions at our chasen comparatar
group which consists of FTSE 100
companies with broadly simnilar
markel capitalisations

The maximum aggregate
amounl of basic leas payable
lo all Nen-Executive Directors
shall not exceed the £400 000
limit set inthe Company s
Articles of Association

Nol applicable

Other arrangements for
the Chairman and the
Non-Executive Directors
To support the Directorsin
the fulfilment of their duties

The Company may reimburse
expenses reasonably incurred by
the Chairman and the Non-Execulive
Oirectors in fulfilmant of the
Company s business together

with any 1axes thereon

The Company provides the Chairman
and the Non-Executive Directars with
Directors and Officers Liabiity
Insurance and may provide an
indernnity to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Act

The maximum reimbursement
1S expenses reascnably
incyurred together wath any
taxes thereon

The maximum value of the
Directors and Officers Liabiliy
Insurance and the Company s
indemnity 1s the cost at Lhe
relevant time

Not applicabls
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Notes to the Remuneration Poliey table

Remuneration Policy for other employees

Salary reviews across the Group are carried out on the same basis

as salary reviews for the Execubive Directers consideration is given

to theindividual s role duues expenence and parformance along

wilh consideration of typical salary levels of employees in similar

roles in comparable companies where the datas availsble Employees
are entitted to taxable and non-taxable benefits with executives being
entitled to substantially the same benefits as the Executive Direclors

All emoployees are eligible to recaive an Apnual Incentive the level of
which will be dependent on individual departmental and Company
performance A proportion of a senior executive s Annual Incentive
award may be deferred to purchase Annuat Incentive Shares Execulives
may be granted Lang-Term Incentive Plan awards Some executives

[not including Executive Directors] are eligible to receive shares under
the Fund Managers Perfermance Plan [FMPP] The final FMPP award
was granted in 2013 and the final FMPP vesting will take place in 2014
Employees joiming the company after 2004 are eligible to take partina
defined contribution pension arrangement The Company s all-employee
share schemes (the Share Incentive Plan and the Sharesave Scheme)
are also apen to eligible employees

Pre-existing obligations and commitments

Itis a proviston of this Palicy that the Cormpany can honour all
pre-existing obligations and commitments that were enleied inlo prior Lo
this Remuneration Policy taking effect The terms of those pre-existing
obligatiens and commitments may differ from the terms of the Remuneration
Policy and ray Include Iwithout Lmitation] shligations and commitments
under service contracts {ong term incentive schames [including previous
Long-Term Incentive Plans and the Matching Share Plan] pensien and
beneflit ptans

Considerations when setting Remuneration Policy

In drawing up the Remuneration Policy the Committee took into
acrount views expressed by shareholders during meetings and
communicated to the Company The Company engaged with its
shareholders via consultation mestings with investor bodies

and by writing to iis largest sharehotders oftering each a meeting
to discuss remuneration propesals

Each year the Remuneration Committee takes into account the pay and
employment conditions ot employees in the Group noting the general
increase tn satary proposed for all employees and levels of incentive
payments and perfermance before setting the remuneration of the
Directors The Commuiitee did not consult with the Company s employees
or use remuneration comparison measurements when drawing up the
Oiractors Rernuneration Policy

Approach te recruitment remuneration

Executive Directors

Basic satary s set at a level appropriate to recruil @ suitable candidate
taking into accounl external market compettiveness and internat equity
The {evel of basic salary may inibially be positioned below the median

of the chosen comparator group with the intention of increasing it to
around the medsan of the comparater group after an witial period of
satisfactory service

Where a recrutis forfaiting Incentive awards grantaa by his or her existing
employer compensation i the form of 2 Restricted Share Plan {RSP)
award may be made [in accordance with Listing Rule 9 4 2} the maximum
value of which will be thal which the Commitlee 1nils reasonable opinion
considers to be equal to the value of the awards which have lapsed

The value of dividends paid on the RSP shares during the vesting period
1s paid directly to the ODrector Vesuing of the shares granted under the
RSP award willbe subject to the Directar completing & rminimum period
of qualifying service se the award will not be reteased until this conditian
has been satisfied Thevesting of the RSP award may be subject to
addiional performance measures being met aver the same penod

the Committee will determine the most relevant measures to use al

the time of award bearing in mind the responsibilities of the individual
being appointed and the Company s strategic priorities at the time

The Committee may choose to offer a Co-Investment Share Plan [CIP)
award lo a new Executive Director on recruntment [in accordance with
Listing Rule 94 2} to assist the Director in bwilding a bolding of Briush
Land shares with the aim of further aligning the Director s personal
interests with those of British Land s sharsholders

Underthe CIP a director may invest a maximurn of 150% salary

|225% salary for a Chief Executive] to purchase British Land shares
these limits being determined by the Director s mmimum shareholding
guideline The Company will match the purchased CiP shares on a

11 basis [befare allowing for tax liabilities that will anise envesting of
the matching shares) All the CIP shares are Lhen deferred for th: ea
years subject to the Director remaining employed by the Group ana
holding the shares for this ime Should the Direclor leave the Group
before the qualifying period s completed all of the matching shares
will lapse and the purchased shares will be released to the Director
Owidends paid on the purchased CIP shares during the vesting peniod
are paid direcily to the Director a dividend equivatent payment 1s made
on vesting to compensate for dividends accrued on matching CIP shares
The Committee will impose performance measures on CIP awards
which must be achieved over the three-year holding period for the
matching shares to vest The Committee will determine the most
relevant measures to use at the time of award bearingin mindthe
responsibilities of the individual being appointed and the Company s
strategic prioniuies at lhe ime

The Company s Policy I1s to give nolice periods of no lenger than

12 months However when recruiing an external candidate it may
be necessary to give aninitial notice pered of up to 24 months this
reduces at the end of 12 months work to 12 months The remainder
of the package offered to a new Executive Director would be in line
with the Company s ongoing Remuneration Policy

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

On recruiiment the Chairman will be offered an annual fee and benefits
in accordance with the Policy The level of the annual fee may initially

be positioned below the median of the chesen comparator group with
the intention of increasing 1t to around the median of the comparater
group after an initral period of satisfactory service Non-Executive
Direclors will be oifered Non-Executive Directors fees in accordance
with the Policy

Appointment of internal candidates

If an existing empioyee of the Group 1s appeinted as an Executive Director
Chairman or Nen-Executive Director any obligation or commitment
entered Intowith that indiidual prior to his or her appointment can

be honourad in accordance with the terms of those cbligations or
commitments even where they differ from the terms of the Policy
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Policy on toss of office

Executive Directors

The Executive Direciors service contracis can be lawfully termunatad by
either pariy giving 12 months notice or by the Company making a lump
sum payment in lieu of nouice [PILON] equat io the Executive Dhrector s
nase salary for the notce period Additionally when the Company makes
a PILON it may esthar pay a lump sum equal to the valua of any benefits

for the natice pertod or conbinue to provide benefits untl the notice peniod

expires of the Executive Director starts new employment lwhichever
15 the earlier] These lawful termination mechanisms de not prevant
the Company in appropriate aircumstances from terminating an
Executive Director s employment in breach of his or her service
contract and seeking to apply mitigauon in determining the damages
payabte Where thisis achuevable in negotiation with the outgoing
Director setttement arrangemerts are structured so that the
termination payment 1s paid in instalments and the instalments
arereduced by an amount equal to any earnings recewed irom the
outgoing Drector s new employment consultancy or other paid work

Fordepariing Executive Directors and Executive Direciors that have teft
Briush Land the Commuliee may agree lo cash commutation of pension
benefits under the defined benefit scheme lincluding EFRBS benefits]
and other pension arrangermenis entered into prior to the adoption of the
2014 Remuneration Policy Any commutation would take into account
valuations provided by :ndependent actuarial advisors so as to be
undertaken on a basis considered by the Committee to be cost neutral
to the Company

TFhe circumstances of the loss of office dictate whether the individual s
lrealed as a good leaver or otherwise n accordance with the Company s
Policy The Remuneration Commitiee uses its discretion to form a view
taking into account the arcumslances Good leavers typically receve
pro-rata Annual Incentive and long term incentive awards subjectto
performance measurement and other leavers forfeit their entitlements
In the event of a change of controt the rules of the share ptans generally
provide for accelerated vesting of awards subject [where applicable]

Lo ime apportionment and achievernent of perfermance targets All of
the Company s Execirive Directors have contracts that pre-date 27 June
2012 but these do not contain contractual provisions that could impact
an the amount of any payment for loss of office and which fall outside
the Policy Details of the Executive Directors service coniracts and
notice periods are given in the tabte below (D 1 5] @

Normat Normal

nolice netice

tength Dale of period to period o

of service service  begivenby  be given by

Director contract contract Company D rector
Chris Grigg 12 mihs 191208 12 mths 12 mths
Lucinda Bell 12 mths 19031 12 mths 12 mths
Charles Maudsley 12mths 031109 12 mths 12 mths
Twn Roberts 12 mths 1411056 12 mths 12 mths

The Company may terminate a Director s appointment with immediaie
effect without nolice or payment in beu of notrce under certain
carcumstances prescribed withinthe Director s service contract
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Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

, The letiers of appointment of Nen-Executive Directors are subject

to renewal on a tnennial basis In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code all Directars stand for election or re-election by

the Company s shareholders on an annuat basis The Directors service
contracts and letters of appointment are available for inspection during
normal business hours at the Company s registered office and at the
Annual General Meeting The uneapired terms of the Chatrrman s and
Non-Executive Directors letiers of appointment are shown below

Unexpired term of

Dale of current  appointment at
Director appe ntment 31 March 2014
John Gidersleeve (Charrman) 01/01/2016 23 months
Aubrey Adams 01/09/2014 17 months
Simon Borrows 17/03/2014 11 months
Lynn Gladden 20/03/2015 23 months
Wiliam Jackson 11/04/2014 12 months
Tim Score 20/03/2014 1} months
Lord Jurnbull 01/04/2015 24 months
Laura Wade-Gery 13/05/2015 25 months

Although the Chairman s and Non-Executive Directors appointments
are for fixed terms their appointments may be lerminated immedistely
without notice If they are not reappo nted by shareholders orif theyare
removed from the Board under the Company s Articles of Association
arif they resign and do nat offer themselves for re-election In addilion
thewr appeintments may be terminated by erther the individual or the
Company giving three months written notice of termiwnation [or for

the Charrman sixmonths written notice of terminationl Despite these
terms of appointment netther the Chairman nor the Non-Executive
Directors are enbitled to any compensation [other than accrued and
unpaid fees and expenses for the period up to the termination] for loss
of cffice fer any reasen




REMUNERATION REPORT ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

How we intend to apply our
Remuneration Policy during the
year commencing 1 April 2016

Pages 99 ta 100 detail how the Remuneratson Commutieea intends to apply
the Remuneration Policy during the coming year

Exceutne Dircetors Remuneration

gI‘il Basic salaries

Basic salaries have been set at the following levels for the year
commencing 1 April 2016 Salartes have not been changed relative
tothe prior year

Director Basic salary €
Chris Grigg 840 D0C
Lucinda Bell 493000
Charles Maudsley 446 250
Tim Roberis L&o 2350

EEE Annual incentive a vards

During the year Annual incentive performance will be assessed against
a range of guantitative and qualitative measures

Quanbitative measures

- Property returns Unlevered property capital returns relative to IPD
and total property return relatwe tc IPD

- Accounting returns Total accounting return relative Lo property majors

- Rental growth ERV growth relatve te IPD and

- Ungerlying prohit perforrmance Profit performance relative to budget

Qualitative measures supporting the four areas of cur business model
- Right Places progress on key projects including developments and
execution of targeted acquisitions and disposals
- Customer Orientation company reputatron wath all stakeholders
and supporting the delivery of sustainability objectives
- Capital Efficiency execulion af debt inancings and progress
on strengthening the dividend and
- Expert People quality of people and management renewal

The Executive Dhreciors indmwidual performance will also be assessed
agamnst measures relating te their specific areas of responsitnbity that
support the corperate measures above Furtherinformation regarding
the measures and the assessmeant of performance used to determing
Executive Directors Annual Incentive awards for the year ending

31 March 2017 will be disclosed in the 2017 Remuneration Report

@ Long term mncentive awards

Matching Share Plan {(MSP]

Under the Remuneration Policy approved by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting in 2014 [avallable on pages 84 to 91 of Briish Land s
2014 Annual Report] one third of each Executive Directors Annual
Inceniive award must be deferred and used to purchase MSP Bonus
Shares Therzfore the Annual Incentive awards that are due to be pawd 1o
Executive Directors in June 2016 inrespect of performance during ithe
year ended 31 March 2015 will be subject to such a deferral and an
assoclated award of MSP Matching Shares will be granted Thiswill be
the final MSP award granted to Executive Direclors as the Remuneration
Policy that will be presented to shareholders for approval at the AGM in
July 2014 [detailed on pages 90 io 98 of this Repart) does nol Include a
matching share plan

Two equally weighted performance measures will be applied to MSP
Matching Share awards each measure relates to half of the lotal MSP
award meaning na more than half of the total award can vest if one of the
performance measures does not maet its mmimum vesting threshold

The total shareholder return (TSR} part

The comparator group aganst which TSR performance will be
assessed over the three-year performance period constsis of

Great Portland Estates ple Hammerson ple Intu Properties ple
Land Securities Group PLC SEGRO plc Big Yellow Group PLC
Caprtal & Counues PLC Derweni London ple Grainger plc
Hanstesn Holdings ple Helical Bar ptc LondonMetric Property plc
St Mogwen Properties PLC Shaftesbury PLC The UNITE Group plc
UK Commercial Properly Trust Lid and British Land The percentage
of the part of the MSP Matching Award linked to TSR performance
will be determined as iollows

British Land s TSR relative to the comparator group
at the end of the performance period

Percentaga of TSR part
of award vasting %

Below median 0
Median 25

Furthervesting per each 1% TSR exceeds median

[to @ maximum cf 100% of TSR part of award) 1875
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The gross income growth [GIG] part

Briuish Land s gross income growth will be assessed relalve to the
investment Praperty Databank (IPD) Quarterly Universe [the IPD
Universe] Inorder for the part of the MSP Matching Award linked o GIG
performance to vest Brilish Land s GIG over the threa-year performance
period must be equal to that of the IPO Universe [the Growth
Requirement ) The percentage of the GIG part of the MSP Matching
Award vesting will be determined as follows

British Land s GIG relative ta the IPD Universe
at the end of the performance period

Percentage of GIG part
of award vesting %

Below Growth Requirement 0

Equat to Growth Requirement 25

Further vesting per each 0 5% per anpum GIG
exceeds the Growth Requirement [to a maximum

of 100% of GIG part of award) 25

Long-Term Incentive Plan ILTIP)

IU1s intended that the final LTIP grant under the Remuneration Policy
approved by shareholders al the AGM in 2014 [available on pages 84 10 91
of Briish Land s 2014 Annual Report] will take place in June 2016 As the
intention I1s to grant an LTIP award in advance of the new Remuneration
Policy and amended LTIP rutes being presentea for shareholder approval
at the AGM 1in July 2016 ne further LTIP award will be granted to
Executive Cirectors during the year to 31 March 2017 Theretore the first
LTIP award to Executive Directors under the new Policy if approved 15
not intended to be granted until the financial year ending 31 March 2018
Two equally weighted performance measures will be applied to LTIP
awards granled in the year ending 31 March 2017 each measure relates
to half of ihe total LTIP award meaning no more than half of the lotal
award can vest if onz of ihe performance measures does not meel is
minimum vesting threshold

The total property return [TPRI part

British l.and s TPR over the three-year performance period will be
assessed relative to the IPD UK Annual Praperty Index [the IPD
Benchmark ] The percentage of the TPR part of the LTIP award vestng

Total Accounting Return [TAR)

British Land s TAR over the three-yaar performance peried will be
assessed relative to the same comparalor graup of companies that
performance will be assessed agamst under the MSP TSR measure
The percentage of the TAR part of the LTIP award vesting will be
determined as follows

Brittsh Land s TAR relative to the comparater group
at the end of the performance period

Percentage of TAR part
of award vesting %

Below median 0

Median 25

Upper quartile 160

There wiil be straight-line vesting belween median and upper quartle
performance

The performance measures that will apply to LTIP awards granted under
the new Remuneration Policy that will be presented for shareholder
approval at the AGM in July 2014 (the fir st grant of which 1s net intended
10 take place untl the financial year ending 31 March 2018] are descnbed
on nage 88

Non-Exvceutne Directors’ remuneration

The following fee structure will apply for the Chairman s and Non-
Executive Directors fees subject 1o shareholder approvat of our new
Remuneration Policy at the AGM in July 2016 This represents a change
[rom the current strecture under which Non-Executive Direclors recewe
fees based in gart on ther attendance at Beard and Committes meetings

The Chairman s annual fee has not been changed relative lo the prior
year 115 Intended that fees paid to the other Non-Executive Directors
in respect of service between 1 April 2016 and the 2015 AGM Ipaid in
accardance with the current Remuneration Policy appraoved hy
shareholders in 20141 will be deducted from the annual fees set aut
below so that fees received in respect of the full year to 31 March 2017
arein ing with the structure set out below

will be determined as follows Chairmans annual fee £34% 340
British Land s TPR relatrve to the |PD Benchmark Percentage of TPR part Nan-Executive Director s annual fze £é1000
at the end of the performance period of award vesung '3 Semior Independent Director s annual fee £10 600
Below median g Audit Commuttee or Remuneration Commmuittee Chawrmans
Median 25 ! annual fee E£20 000
Upper quartile 100 ; Remuneration Committee or Audit Commitiee member s
‘ annual lee £8 000
i Nomination Commitiee member s annual fee £4 000
|
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How we applied our Remuneration
Policy during the year ended
31 March 2016

Sgle total figure of remuneration Gudited intormation)
The following tables detail all elements of remuneralion receivable by British Land s Directors in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 and show
comparative hgures for the year ended 31 March 2015

Other iterns in Penston or

Taxable Annual Long term the nature of pension
Salaryffees benefits’ Incentrve incentives  remuneration? atlowance Totat
204 2016 2014 2016 20156 Hé s
Executive Directors €000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Chris Grigg 840 21 840 1681 33 294 3709
Lucinda Bell 493 21 410 81¢ 28 82 1853
Charles Maudsley 444 22 410 g41 17 &7 1823
Tim Roberts 448 21 400 84l 19 106 1855
2m5 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
Executive Directors €009 [an:1] L000 £000 EQOQ £000 £000
Chris Grigg 80C 21 1152 4259 39 280 6,581
Lucinda Beit 465 21 500 1863 17 48 2934
Charles Maudsley 425 22 540 1670 16 b4 2737
Tim Roberts 427 22 570 1,696 21 74 2812

Taxable benelits include car allewance private medical insurance and subsidised gy membership The Cempany provides the tax gross up on subsidised gym
membership and the figures included above are the grossed up velues An adjustment has been made to the prioryear s correspending amount Lo reflect tha fact

that gym membership benefits were not disclosed on a grossed up basis in thal year

Olher items in the nature of remuneratien include life assurance permanent health insurance anaual medical check ups professional subscription fees the value
of shares awarded under Lhe atl-employee Share Incentive Plan and the netional gain on exercise for any Sharesave Scheme aptions that mature during the year

Fees Taxable benefits’ Total

2014 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Chairman and Nen-Executive Directors €000 £000 £000 €000 £000 £000
John Gildersleeve [Chairman} 349 352 40 60 429 412
Aubrey Adams 48 &9 - - 48 &%
Simon Borrows &8 &7 - - 68 &7
Lynn Gladden 67 1 1 - 68 1
Dido Harding* nfa 34 n/fa - nfa 34
William Jacksen 70 L1 - - 70 &6
Tim Score 88 73 ! - 8¢ 73
Lord Turnbull 97 79 - - q7 7
Laura Wade-Gery® 44 nfa - nfa L4 n/a

Tarable benefiis include the Chairman s chaufieur cost and expenses incurred by oiner Non-Executize Directors The Company provides the tax gross up on these
benefits and the figures shown above are tha grossed up values An adjustment has been made to the prior year s corsesponding amount te reflect the fact that chaulfeur
costs were not disclosed on 3 grossed up basis in that year

ido Harding resigned as a Director on 10 December 2014

Laura Wade Gerywas apponted as a Director on 13 May 2015
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Notes to the single total figure ot remuncration table

S
=3 Anryal lncentea

The level of Annual Incentive award 1s determined by the Remuneraton Committee based on British Land s performance and each indiwidual
Exacutive Directer s contribution during the year Annual Incentive measures are not strictly weighted and the Commitiee assesses performance
intheround The Commitiee s assessment for the year ended 31 March 2015 15 sel out below underiakenwith reference to performance against

the following quantitative and qualitative measures using date available at the year end

Range of Range of
performance performance
betwean betweeen
median and i Line wath
mniing with expeciabons

expeclations  and maximurn pay out
100 » pay out
30 pay out [nownereased
25/ pay-out Iperformance pay out abave
[no pay out below in hine wilh this maximurm
this median paint]  expertations) pay cut paint)

Quantitative Measures

Narratwe description of performance against measures

Unlevered property *
capital raturnvs IPD
Property
returns Total propertv returns ®
vs IPD
Accounting Totsl accounting return .
returns VS property majors
Leasing activity vs ERV ®
Rental
growth ERV growth vs IPD ]
g:;ﬁrlymg Profil growlh vs budget Y
performance and property majors

- Capital growlh of 6 8% outperforming IPD by 30 bps bolh
Retail and Offices outperformed their sector indices

- Total property returnof 11 3¢ perforring m ine wilh IPD
althgugh both Retait and dffices outperformed their seclor
indices

- Total accounting return above the estimated median of the
preperty majorsat 15 8+ when adjusted to reflect changes
to UK Commercial Stamp Duly |as descnbed oppesite)

- Lettings and renewals 6 8% ahead of ERV
- ERV growth of 8 3% cutperformung IPD by 120 bps
poth Retail and Cfhices outperformed ther sectar indices

- Prohit growth of 16 0% ahead of budget and above Lhe
eslimated median of (he property majors

Qualitative Measures

Progress on key
projects incleding

Right developments and ®
Places Execution of targeted

acquisiiens and

dispasals

Compans reputation
with all stakeholders
Customer and o
Qrientahon  Supporting delivery
of sustanality

- In Offices completed 5 Broadgate planning achiesed at
100 |iverpoot Street § Finsbury Avenue and Blossom Street
slanming application submitted fer 2 and 3 Finsbury Avenue

- In Retail completed Whiteley Phase 2 planning consent
received al Speke planning application subrmitied lor
Eden Walk

- Public consultauen for development of 44-acre site at
Canada Water

- Conlinued reposilicring of the portfolio with £1 3 biltion of
gross aclivity acguisiions and investments balanced with
fisposals in inewith ptan

- Awarded the Queen s Avsard for Enterpnse the UK s heghest
accolade for business success for our continued economic
se¢ial and environmental achier ements over five years

- Strong progress cn deseloping Placas Paople Prefer
- Customer satisfaction scare maintained al 7%/10
~ Mainlamed inclusion in the four target ESG Indices Dow Jones

objectives Sustainability Indices World and Eurape FTSE4LGOOD and
GRESE {Eurgpe Sector Leader]
- Full year dividend mncreased by 2 5™ 10 28 36 pence per share
Prograss on I B
Capital sirengthening - £915 mullion refinancings executed including €350 million zero
Efl‘?m:ncy the dnidend and ® coupan convertible bond
Execution of - Finance cosis reduced further weighled average interest rate
debt financings reduced 30 bps 03 35
- Retained Cne Star rating for employee satisfaction
E:[;e[; ﬁiﬂ:yeig;?g:een:r\fat - Further strengthaming of senior team with two extarnal
P 9 Executive Committee appointments

' 25% of tha maximum Level = 37 5% of basic salary 50, of the mawmum level = 75 0% of basic salary
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Thancrease in UK Commerciat Slamp Duty which teok effect on 17 March 2016 impacted the totat accounting return {TAR) and iIFRS profits of
compantes with a financial year end of 31 March 2014 but did not impact those with a financiat year end of 31 December 2015 Theunderlying profit
figure used to assess Annual Incentive performance was nol aifected by the change to UK Commercial Stamp Duty Seo that the TAR performance
of Brinsh Land for 2015/16 can be compared con a like-for-like basis with the other properly majors an adjusted and aud:ted figure for Briush Land s
TAR which excludes the impact of the UK Commercial Stamp Duty change has been used o assess performance In assessing lhe performance
of the comparator group for TAR and profit perfermance relative to preperty majors analysts consensus [before the impaci ot the UK Commercral
Stamp Duty changel has been used for one company with a March year end and reportad data has been usad for the December year end companies

Over the year each Execulive Director s ndividual performance was measured against objecuves supporting the key areas of our business model
Right Places, Customer Orientation Capital Efficiency and Expert People The Group does not disclose prospective and retrospective performance
measures for individual performance beyend that disclosed above as the Direciors consider lhis to be commercially sensitive this informalion wiil
nol be disclosed at fulure dates for the same reasen

Taking into accounl corporate performance against the quantitative and qualitative measures over the year to 31 March 2014 as well s each
Executive Director s individual performance the Remuneration Comnutiee set the Annual Incentive awards received by Lhe Executive Direclors
at the following levels

Proporuon of mawsmum
potental award granted

Executive Director Sa
ChrisGrigg &7
Lucinda Bett 55
Charles Maudstey &1
Tim Roberts &0

The maximum Annual Incentive award achievable 1s equivalent to 150% base salary The Remuneration Cammittee set the aggregale Annual
Incentive recelved by the Executive Directors far ibe year ended 31 March 2016 at 62% of the maximum [93% of base salary) as compared with
87% of the maximum {130% of base salaryl for the year ended 31 March 2015

One third of each Executive Director s Apnual Incentive award will be deferred and used jo purchase MSP Bonus Shares subject 1o a three-year

helding requirement under British Land s Matching Share Plan [MSP] in accordance with the current Remuneration Policy Mo further performance
measures apply to these deferred shares the MSP 15 described on pages 99 to 100

@ Long term incentives faudited information}

Figuresinthe Longtermncenuves column are cemprised of awards vesting under the Long-Term Incentive Plan [LTIP! and Matching Share Plan
[MSP] including where applicable dvidend equivalent paymenls on those vesting awards and Interest accrued on those dividend equivalents The
LTIP awards and MSP Matchung awards granied to Executive Directors in 2013 arewncluded in the 2016 Long term Incentives column Vesting of these
awards s subject to periormance over the three y2ar peniod Lo 31 March 2016 against the relevant performance condittons which are detailed on
pages 910 100 The esumated vesting values of these awards have been calculated using the average market value for a Brinsh Land share for the
peried from 1 January 2015 10 31 March 2014 (702 6 pence) as the vesting share price

LTIP

Two equally waightad perfermance condittons are attachad to the LTIP awards granted in 2013 measuring Briish Land s total property return [TPR]
relative 1o the funds in the December IPD UK Annual Property index [the Index] and total accounting return [TAR] relauve to a comparator group of
Briush Land and 16 other praperly companies These awards are due tovest on b August 2016 Theincrease in UK Commeraial Stamp Duty which
ook effect en 17 March 2014 impacted British Land s TPR at 31 March 2016 but did not impact the index So that the performance of the Company
and the Index can be compared on the same basis an adjusted and audiied figure for British Land s TPR excluding the impact of the UK Cemmeraal
Stamp Duty change has been used to assess LTIP TPR performance Thrs adjusiment will not be required in future years because when determining
LTIP vesung levels the impact of this UK Commerciat Stamp Duty change will {al atready have been refiected in the TPR of the Company and

the comparator group for awards granted tn 2014 and 2015 and (bl be reflected in the start point for awards granted i 2016 and future years

The TPR pari)s expected to vest at 49% based on Briush Land s adjusted TPR of 14 9% comparad to the Index median of 13 9% It1s esiumated that
the TAR partwill vest at 44% the actual vasting rate of the TAR part will be calculated once results have been published by all of the companies
within the comparater group This produces the estimated values on vesung set oul 1n the table on the following page The actual vesuing will be
confirmed by the Committee and prowvided i the 2017 Remuneration Report
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Estimated Estirnated diwdend

Award price Number of percentage of  Estimated value of equnalent and

lexercrse price} performance Number of anvarg vesting av.ard on vestinrg inlerest

Executive Director LTIP award date p shares awarded options awarded ! £8C0 £000
Chris Grigg 05/08/2013 601 266 222 - 57 i 057 125
Lucinda Bell 05/08/2013 401 114 056 i94 742 57 549 55
Charies Maudsley 05/08/2013 601 141 430 - 57 561 67
Tim Roberts 05/08/2013 &M 141 430 - 57 So1 &7

The LTIP awards granied to Executive Directars in 2012 [which vested on 14 September 2015 and are shown in the 2015 Lang term incantives column)
were subject to a performance condilion assessing the growth in Briish Land s nelt asset value relatrve to the increase in the capitat growth
component of the IPD UK Annual Property Index This condition 15 detailed on page 102 of the 2015 Annual Report The vesting values of these awards
have now been calculated using the acluat market vatue on the day vesung replacing the estimated vesling valves included in the prior year s single
total figure of remuneration table

MSP

Two equally weighted performance cond:tions are attached to the MSP Matching awards granied in 2013 measuning Briish Land s total shareholder
return [TSR relative to a comparator group of 17 properly companies including Brtish Land] and British Land s gross income growih [GIG] relative
to the IPD Quarterly Universe [the Universel These awards are due Lo vest on 2 August 2016 Aon Hewill has confirmed Lhat the TSR part of the award
will lapse as Briush Land s TSR performance over the period was 38 0% compared to a median of 33 7% for the comparator group The GIG partis
expecied to vest at 1080% as British Land s annualised GIG over the period 1s expected to exceed the growth of the Universe by more than the upper
hurdiz of 1 5% This produces the estimated values onvesting sel out below The actual vesting rate will e conflirmed by the Commuttee and provideo
in the 2017 Remuneration Report

Estimatad Estimated Estimateg

Numbar of perceniage of value of award dradend

Matching Shares award vesting on vesling equivalent

Executive Director MSP award date awarded % £000 £000
Chris Grigg 02/08/2013 127 094 50 446 53
Lucinda Bell 02/08/2013 54 721 50 192 2
Charles Maudslay 02/08/2013 59428 50 209 P
Tim Roberts 02/08/2013 5% 428 50 209 25

The MSP awards granted to Executive Directors in 2012 [which vestad an 7 September 2015 and are shown n Lhe 2015 Long term mcentives columnl
were subject lo the same performance condibions as the MSP awards granted in 2013 The vesting values of these awards have now been calculated
using the actual market value on the day vesting replacing the estimated vesting values included in the prior year s single total figure of
remuneration table

% Penston ar pension allowance (audited information)

The figures shown in the Pensicn column represent the differing pension arrangements of the Executive Directors During the year ended 3 March
2016 Chris Grigg received 35% basic salary as cash in lieu of pension and Charles Maudsley received 157 basic satary as cash in liev of pension
Lucinda Bell and Tim Roberts earned pension benefits in defined benefit schemes sponsered by the Company during the year The increase in value
over the year of their respective pensions is shown in the single lotal figure of remuneration iable and further detail1s provided on page 105

There are no addiional benefits that will become recevable by a Director in the event that a Direclor retires early
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Share ~scheme mterests anarded during the vean Guudieed imformation)

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The total fair value of each Executive Birector s LTIP award for the year ended 31 March 2016 was equivalent 1o 200% of basic salary at grant At grant
gach Director canindicate a preference as to the proportion of the award that they wish to receive as performance shares and the proportion that
they wish to receive as market value options The share price used to determuine the face value of performance shares and the {arr value of oplions

- and therefore the number of performance shares and market value options awarded — 15 the average markel value of the Company s shares over
the three dealing days immedsatety prior to the day of award The performance condiions atiached to these awards are detaited on page 100

Performance shares Mumber of Percentage vesting on
perfarmance End of achievement of ripinum

shares Facevalue  performance performance threshold

Executive Director Grant date granted £000 penod  Vesung date .
Chris Grigg 22/06/2015 154 949 1240 31/03/2018  22/04/2018 25
Lucinda Bell 22/04/2015 121 254 986  31/03/2018  22/04/2018 25
Charles Maudslay 22/06/2015 109755 892 31/03/2018 22/00/2018 25
Tim Roberts 22/06/2015 109756 892 31/03/2018 22/05/2018 25
Options Pa/cantage vesting on
Number End ol achievernent of rimmum

of options Face value Fairvalue Exercisepnce  performance performance threshotd

Executive Director Grant date granied £500 €000 p period  Vesung date 9
Chris Grigg 22/06/2015 206 599 1480 420 824 5 31/03/2018  22/06/2018 25

' Oplions are currently valued at one quarter ol the value of a perfarmance share therefore the far vatue of each option awarded 15 one quarter of the face alue
of the option

Matcheing Share Plan

The total face value of each Execulive Director s MSP Matching Share award for the year endad 31 March 2016 was equal to two thirds of therr
Annual Incentive award in respecl of the year ended 31 March 2015 equivalent to 91% basic salary at grant for Chris Grigg 68% lor Lucinda Bell
81% tor Charles Maudsley and 85% for Tim Roberts The share price used to determine the number of Malching Shares awarded 1s the market
value of the Company s shares on the day the proportion of the Annual Incentive s deferred

Matching Shares Number of Percentage vasing on
Matching End of ach esemnent of minimum

Shares Facevalue  performance performance thresheld

Executive Directar Grant date granted £000 perod  Vesting date o
Chris Grigg 25/04/201% 94 348 768 317032008 29/06/2018 25
Lucinda Bell 29/06/2015 40950 333 31/03/2018 29/04/2018 25
Charles Maudsley 29/06/2075 44 226 360 31/03/2018  29/06/2018 25
Tim Reberls 29/06/2015 46 682 3806 31/03/2018  29/06/2018 25

Sharesave Scheme

The fotlowing options were granted to the Executive Directors during the year under the all-employee Sharesave Scheme The exercise price is set
at a 20% discount to the average markel price of the Company s shares aver Lhe thrae dealing days immediately preceding invilation o the Scheme
The cost of exercise 1s met entirely by the Director and s accumulated by deductions from salary over the period belween grant and vesting

Options Total to be
deducted from
salary i cover Number of
exercise cost optipns Facevalue Eseraseprice Earbest
Executrve Director Grant date £000 granted £000 p exercisedate Expiry date
Lucinda Belt 22/06/2015 g 1291 g 497 M/09/2018  28/02/2019

Dhrectors penstion antitlements under the dehned benetit pension scheme (@udited imformation)

The betow table detants the defined benelit pensian accrued by participating Directors at 31 March 2014

Defined benefit pension Normal

accrued ai 31 March 2014 relirement

Executive Director £CC age
Lucenda Bell 101 60
Timn Roberts 81 40

' The accrued pension s based on service to the year and and final pensionable salary at that date
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Dircetors’ sharcholdings and share mtoereses (audited intormation)

Directors shareholdings at 31 March 2016
The fotlowing table shows the Directors interesis in fully paid erdinary British £and shares including shares held by connected persens and
for Executive Directors including Matching Share Plan Bonus Shares and shares held in the Share Incentive Plan Allinterests are beneiicial

Holding at Ho'ding at
Director 31 March 201a 31 March 2073
Chris Grigg 1118650 755 204
Lucinda Bell 162 894 164 201
Charies Maudsley 158 887 159 801
Tim Roberts 173042 2746189
John Gildersleeve 5220 5220
Aubrey Adams 20000 20 000
Simon Berrows 300 000 300000
Lynn Gladden 165 0
William Jacksan 120 304 42983
Tim Score 12 693 6946
Lord Furnbull 20 471 18 790
Laura Wade-Gery’ 1670 n/a

' LauraWade-Gerywas appointed as a Cirector on 13 Ma, 2013

Purchases after the year end up to one month before publication of the Notice of Annual General Maeting

0On & April 2016 Lynn Gladden was allotted 1063 shares Willam Jacksonwas altotled 48B4 shares Tim Scorewas allotted 1 416 shares Lord Turnbull
was allotied 359 shares and Laura Wade-Gery was allolted 718 shares all at a price of 696 3945 pence per share as part ol their standing
instructions to recewve shares in full or part satisfaction of their Non-Executive Directors lees

On 14 Aprit 20154 Chnis Grigg purchased 20 shares Lucinda Bell purchased 20 shares Charles Maudsley purchased 17 shares and Tim Reberts
purchased 21 shares all at a price of 730 5208 pence per share under the partnership element of the Share Incentive Plan [SIP] Accordingly

Chris Grigg was awarded 40 shares, Lucinda Bell was awarded 40 shares Charles Maudsley was awarded 34 shares and Tim Roberts was
awarded 42 shares under the matching element of the SIP On 6 May 2016 Chris Grigg acquired 68 shares Lucinda Bell acquired 153 shares Charles
Maudsley acquired 50 shares and Tim Roberts acquired 144 shares all at a price of 722 pence per share under the dwidend element of the SIP

Executive Directors minimum shareholding guideline
The mimimum sharehalding guideline reguires the Executive Directors to hold fully vested shares of a certain percentage of salary The number
and value of shares required as a targets fived once a year

There 15 no set tmescale required {o reach the target but it should be acnieved through the regular additions anticipaled by vestings of long term
Incenbive awards No purchases are required eitherto reach the level or to respend to share price falls but Executive Directors are expected toincrease
thair holding of shares each year until the target 1s attained Shares ncluded are those unfeliered and beneficially owned by the Director and by his or
her connected persons [not Including deferred Annuat Incentive Shares Matching Share Plan Bonus Shares or lecked-in Share Incentive Plan shares|

The guideline shareholdings for the year ic 31 March 2017 are shown below

Parcentage of

Pearcentage Unfetleted  basic salary

ol basic salary hold ng at hetd ai

to be held Guidalne 31 March 31 March

Executive Director Inshares helding 2016 2016
Chris Grigg 225% 269307 1031183 840%
Lucinda Bell 130% 105 557 122 478 174%
Charles Maudsley 150% 95557 116 707 183%
Tim Roberis 150% 95557 12903 203%

Although there is ng guideling holding for Non-Executive Direciors they are encouraged to held shares in BritishLand The Company facilitates this
by offering Nan-Executive Directors the abiity 1o purchase shares using their post-tax fees Lynn Gladden Witliam Jackson Tim Seore Lord
Turnbull and Laura Wade-Gery received shares in full or part satislaction of their Non-Execulive Directors fees during the year
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Unvested share awards

Number Subjecl to End of
outstanding at  performance  periormance
Executive Director Type Date of grant 3t March 2016 measures peried Vesung date
Chris Grigg LTIP performance shares 05/0813 264222 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/16
LTIP performance shares 23/00/14 233 804 Yes 340317 23/06N17
LTIP performance shares 22/04/15 154 549 Yes 31/03/18 22/05/18
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 127096 Yes 31346 02/08/14
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 01766 Yes 3178317 30/06/17
MSP Malching Shares 29/06/15 9 348 Yes 31/0318 29/06/18
tucinda Balt LTIP performance shares 05/08/13 116 056 Yes 31/03/i6 05/08/16
LTIP perfarmance shares 23/04/14 135898 Yes 31/0317 23/05117
LTIP performance shares 22/06/15 121 254 Yes 3t/03/18 22/05/18
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 54 720 Yes 31/03/16 02/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 43816 Yes 31/03/37 30/G6/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 40950 Yes 340318 29/06/18
Charles Maudsley LTIP performance shares 05/08/13 147 430 Yes 31/0316 05/08/16
LTiP performance shares 23/06/14 124 208 Yes 31/0317 23/06/17
LTIP performance shares 22/06/15 109 750 Yes 31/83/18 2210618
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 59428 Yes 3/6346 02/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/06M14 47584 Yes 31/0317 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29706115 LE 226 Yes 31/03/18 29/04/18
Tim Roberts LTIP pe[formance shares 05/08/13 141 430 Yas 31/03/14 05/08/16
LTIP performance shares 23/66/14 124,208 Yes 31/03/17 23106117
LTIP performance shares 22/06/15 106 754 Yas 31/03/18 22/06/18
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 59 428 Yes 31/03/16 02/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 47584 Yes 31/a3n? 30/06/17
MSPF Matching Shares 29/04/15 46682 Yes 31/0318 29/06/18

Anardewith a performance period ended 31/03/201s are included with n the 2016 Long term incentines column of the single total figure of remuneration table on
page 101 The notes to ihe single total igure table en pages 103 1o 104 outline the degree to which performance measures bave been or are expected lobe achieved
and the resultant proportions of the awards Lhal are expected tovest

Unvested option awards Inot available to be exercised|

Number Subject 1o End of

autstanding at Option price  periormance  performance  Dale becomes Exercisable

Executive Director Type Dalg of grant 31 March 2014 p measures perod exercisable unul
Chris Grigg LTIP options 22/06/15 206 599 8245 Yes 31/03/18 22/04/18 22/04/25
Lucinda Bell LTIP optichs 05/08/13 154742 601 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/16 05/08/23
Sharesave options 23/06/14 15467 574 No nfa 01/09417 28/02/18

Sharesave opliens 22406115 1291 597 No nfa (1/09/18 28/02/1%

Tim Reberis Sharesave options 19/06/13 2348 511 No nfa 61/0%/18 28/02/15
Sharesave options 23/06/14 3135 574 No nfa 01/0%/19 29/02/20

' Awards with g performance penod ended 31/03/2016 are includad wilhin the 2016 Long term incentives colurmn of the singte totat figure of remunerahen table on
pege 01 The notes to the single total igure Lable an pages 103 to 104 outtine the degree te which perlormance measures hove baen or are expecied o be achie ed
and the resultant propor tiens of the awards that are expected o vest
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Vested option awards lavailable to be exercised)

Nurnber

oulslanding al Oplion price Exercisabla

Executive Director Type Date of grant 33 March 2014 p until
Chris Grigg LTIP optiens 25/06/0% 7751 387 25/66/19
LTIP options 11/06/10 1073825 447 11/06/20

LTIP oplions 28/05/11 495 652 575 28/06/21

LTIP oplicns 14/09012 T43 494 538 14£/09/22

Lucinda Bell LTIP options 11/06/10 §7952 447 11/06/20
LTIP options 1£/1210 13 784 510 14112420

LTIP oplions 1410912 138 289 538 14/09/22

Options exercised during the year ended 31 March 20156

Nurmber  Oplion price

Date became

Market price on
date of exercise

Executive Director Type Date of grant exercsed p exercisable Date exercsed p
Lucinda Bell Sharesave oplions 26106112 2295 392 OH09/15 01/09/15 8035
Tim Roberls LTIP options 05/12/05 17483 923 4 (5/12/08 MA2.15 B4b
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Funther diselosures

Relative importance of spend on pay

The graph petow shaws the amount spent on remuneration of all
empleoyees including Executive Directors] relative to the amount spent
on distributiens to shargholders for the years to 31 March 2014 and

31 March 2015 Remuneration of employees increased by 7% retative 10
the prior year and distributions to shareholders increased by 3%
Distributions to shareholders include ordinary and scrip dividends and
the split between property inceme distributions [PID] and non-property
income distnbutions [nan-PI0] 15 shown

Relas e unportance of spant on pas

2015/1 HNIE M cs1m
A U : 257

201415 R D €76m

£277m

Seven-year total shareholder return and Chief Executive s remuneration
The graph to the right shaws British Land s tolal sharehelder return for
the seven years from 1 Aprit 2007 to 31 March 2016 egarnst that of the
FTSE Real Eslate Investment Trusts [REIT) Total Return Index for the
same periog The graph shows how the total return ona £100 invesimenl
in the Company made on 1 Apnl 2009 would have changed over the
seven-year period measured compared with the total returnona £100
investment in the FTSE REIT Total Return Index The FTSE REIT Total

Remuneration of employess inciuding Directors

B Wages & saianes '
Annual incenlives

U Social security cosls

W Pension costs

M Cquity-seltled share-based payments

Dislribulions to shareholders

M PID cash dividends paid to shareholders

B PD tax withholding

M Nat cash equivalent of new shares issued under
Nen-PID Scrip dividends

M Net cash equivalent of new shares 1ssued under
PID Serip dividends

, Total Sharcholder Retun
Rebased to 100, April 2009
| ! |

‘ R S

300[,,.,

f

—

Return Index has been selecied as a suitzble comparator because itis 20 —— T : o i
the index i which British Land s shares are classified '
: ) |
00 p— — -4 — - = - —— o 1
The 2009 base point reguired by the regulations governing this
remuneration report disclosure was close to the bottom of the property ' ' ‘
cycle Briish Land s share price had not fallen as much at thal ime as CT 1 t— - A
the average share price of the FTSE REITs Sector thereby setting a ! :
higher base point for subsequent growth The table below details the total g S S L= i_ — - _a
remuneration of the persan undertaking the role of Chief Executive over Apnl Aprit Aprit Apnl Apnl Apnl April March
the same period calculated on the same basis as tha single total figure 2007 o 01 w2 2013 2014 215 a5
of remuneration table and the Annual Incentive payouts and long term M The British Land Campany PLC
incentive vesting rates as a percentage of the maximum opportunity B FTSE REITs Sector
Source Aon Hewntt
2010 2013 2012 013 2014 ms 2014
Chief Executive Chris Gngg Chris Grigg Chns Grigg Chns Gngg Chris Grigg Chrrs Grigg Chnis Gnigg
Chief Execulive 5 single total figure
of remuneration (£000] 2082 2329 5353 4810 5398 4351 3709
Annual tncentive payout against maximum
opportumly (%) &7 83 75 75 S0 94 &7
Long term incentives vesting rate against
maximum opportunity [%) nfa nfa 9% X 58 93 54
|
' |
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Chief Executive s remuneration compared to remuneration of British Land employees

The below table shows the percentage changes in different elements of the Chiel Executive s remunsration relative to the previous financial year
and the average percentage changes In those elemenis of remunerauon for employees based at Briush Land s head office over the same period
Head office employees have been chosen as an appropriate comparator group for this purpose as employees based at British Land s head office
carry out work of the most simitar nature to the Chuef Executive

Average change

Value of €h ef Value of Chief Changen In remuneration

Evecutive Executive Chief Executive element of

remuneratien remuneralion remunaration British Land

elament 2015 slement 2015 element employ=es

Remuneration element £000 £000 ks s
Salary 840 800 50 54
Taxable benefits 21 21 00 27
Annual Incentive B40 1152 =271 -68

Executive Directors external appointments

Executive Directors may take up one non-exacutive directorship at another FTSE company subject to British Land Board approval Chris Grigg was
appointed a non-execubive direcior of BAE Systems plc on 1 July 2013 During the year to 31 March 2016 Chris Grigg receved a fee of £86 495
lincluding £2 495 of expenses daemed to be taxable] from BAE Systems ple which he retamned in full Lucinda Bell was zppointed 2 non-executive
director of Ratork plc on 10 July 2014 Durng the year to 31 March 2016 Lucinda Bell recewved a fee of £43 625 from Rolork ptc 'vhich she retained
nfull[D12}@

Statement of voting at the Annual Generat Meeting
The lable below details the resutts of the shareholder vole to approve the Directors Remuneration Reporl at the 2015 AGM and the sharebolder vote
to approve the current Remuneration Policy at the 2014 AGM The Committee was pleased 1o note the high levels of sharehalder support

Votes Voles - Tolatvotes Votes
Resalution AGM for for agamnst against casl withhetd
Approval of Directors Remuneration Report 2015 480 540 844 9753 17257841 247 497798705 54059347
Approval of Directors Remuneration Policy 2014 484 058 054 9730 18953426 270 70301480 1198 374

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors remuneration

Throughout the year the Remuneration Commitiee was chaired by Lord Turnbull Lynn Gladden and William Jackson were members of the
Committee throughout the year Laura Wade-Gery was appomnted as a Director of the Company and member of the Committea on 13 May 2015
The follow:ng persons assisted the Commitiee during the year Chris Grigg [Chief Executive] Joff Sharpe [Head of Operations| Elaine Willams
Char les Midd!eton and Victoria Penrice leach of whom acled as secretary to the Remuneraticn Commitiee during the year] and Alan Judes

of Strategic Remunerauion

The Commutlee appointed Atan Judes of Strategic Remuneration as its indepandent adviser for the year He also gave advice lo the Company on
human resources and share plan matters The Commutiee 1s satisfied there 1s na conflict in tum providing such services to the Company Strategic
Remuneration 1s a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and adheres to the Remuneration Consultanis Group s Code of Conduci
Strateqic Remuneration was selected by the Chairman of lhe Reruneration Commuittee following a tompetitive tender process

The Commuliee assesses the advice given by Alan Judes of Straiegic Remuneration Lo satisfy dsell that the advice received 15 objective and
independent Alan Judas has a private meeting with the Chairman of the Remuneration Cemmiitee once a year in accardance with the Code
of Conducl of the Remuneration Censullants Group Fees charged by Stralegic Rernuneration for the year amounied to £48 400 excluding VAT
[£73 400 excluding VAT for the year ended 31 March 2015] and are charged on a ime basis

This Report was approved by the Board on 16 May 2016

Avde T

Lord Turniaill
Chairman of the Remuneration Commitles
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DIRECTORS REPORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Directors’ report and additonal diselosures
The Directars present therr report on the affairs of the Group together
with the auditad hinancial statements and the report of the audnor for
the year ended 31 March 2016 Information required te be disclosed

in the Direclors Report may be found below and in the following
sections of the Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Sectionin

Information Annual Report Page
Dividend recommended during
theyear Strategic Report 52
Sustainzbibty governance Stralegic Reporl 15t0 i7

Governance and
Poliucal donations and expenditure remuneration 78
Greenhouse gas emissions Stratenic Report 48
Financial Instruments - risk management
objectives and policies Strategic Report 54
Future developments of the business of
the Company Strategic Reporl 1019
Employment policies and employae Governance and
invelvement remunaration 77 and 85
Risk factors and principal risks Strategic Report 57to 63

Articles ot Association

The Company s Articles of Assocation may enly be amended by special
resolution at a general meeting of sharehalders

Subject to applicable law and the Company s Articles of Associaugn

the Directers may exercise all powers of the Company

(3/: Matters reserved for Board approval see page 73

Board of Dhrcectors

The Directors Listed on the Board of Directors pages consttuled the
Board during the year In accordance with best practice the Direclors
will retire at the AGM and will offer Lnemsetves for election and annual

re-elecilon, as required

(@ Beard of Directors see pages 66 to 69

Lircctors’ habli msuranee and indemnigs

The Company has indemnified its current Directors The indemnity
arrangements are qualifying indemmity provisions under the Companies
Act 2006 and are currently in force al the date of this Report (A 1 3]@

Purchase of onwn shares

The Company was granted authority at the AGM in 2015 to purchase s
own shares up to a total aggregate value of 10% of theissued nominal
capial subject to markel-standard maximum and minimam price
constraints Thataulhority expires at this year s AGM and a resolution
will be proposed for its renewal During the year the Company made no

purchases of its own shares

Share captal

The Company has one class of ordinary share and atl shares are fully
paid [25 pence each] On a poll &t a general meating avery holder or oroxy !
has one vote for every share that they held Onashowolhandsala

general meeting each holder and proxy has one vole

1
Each ordinary share caries the night to participate equally in distribuiens
and dwidends There are neither resiriclions on the transfer of shares nor

on lhe size of a holding

Atthe AGM 1n 2015 the Directors were given the power {o atlot shares
up to a nominal amount of £85 054 843 as well as additional authonty
to atlot a further £85 (156 B43 on a rights tssue This authority expires
al this year s AGM, at which a sirilar resolution will be proposed

Theissued share capital has bheen increasad duning the year by fully paid

1ssues as follows

Number of ordinary
shares of 23p

15 Aprit 2015 to Shares in lieu of
14 January 2016 Directors fees 12 504
1 April 2015 to On exercise of options
30 March 2018 under the Long-Term
Incentive Plan ILTiP) 603 817
15 May 201516 On vesting of shares
21 December 2015 under the LTIP 894 761
7 Aprt 2015 to On vesting of shares
4 Seplember 2015 under tha Fund Managers
Performance Plan 340 984
15 ApriL 2015 10 On exercise of options under
4 March 2015 the Sharesave Scheme 134107
5 August 2005 te
12 February 2016 Scrip alletment 4 407965
21 August 2015 Share Incentive Plan Free
Share Award allotment 177 066
Qnvesting of Maiching
07 Seplember 2015 Shares under the Maltching
Share Plan [M5P) 182 8

Substantial imterosts

As at 31 March 2016 the Company had been notfied of the following

major interesls In Its ordinary shares

Interasts i ihe

Percentage of
ordinary shares

Companys n 1550

ordinary shares )

Biackrock Inc’ 86222 399 829
Narges Bank 61739045 593
APG Algemene Pensioen Groep NV 51212198 492
GIC Private Limited 41042 589 394

Of the 84 222 399 share interesis notified to the Company by Blackrock 327 645
share interests are held pursuant to qualifying financial nstrurmants lor iinanciat
instruments with s milar economic eflect]! The remainde- of Blackrock s
holding and all other subsianiial interesis listed in the above table anse from

direct or indirect nferests i ordmary shares

So far as the Company s aware no cther person holds 2 nouifiable

interest in the Company s ardinary shares

i
Since the year end but prior to the date of this Report the Company has

been notified by GIC Private Limited that 1ls interests in the Company s

i ordinary shares hasincreased 1o 41 226 746
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Governanee and remuneration

DIRECTORS REPORT AND ADDITIONAL BISCLOSURES CONTINUED

Waner of dividends

Under the trust deed establishing the British Land Emptoyee Share
Trust 1he trustee has warved any dividends payable in respect of any
shares held by them unless otherwise directed by tha Company lother
than in respect of shares held as a nominee]

Sigmifreant agrecments
There are no significant agreements to which the Company 1s party that
take effect alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company

Pay ments policy

We recognise the imporiance of good supplier relabenships to the
overall success of our business We manage dealings with suppliers
in a fair consistent and transparent manner and have signed up ta the
UK Government s Prompt Payment Code Atthe year end there were
3412015 34) suppliers days outstanding

fuvents atter the balance ~heet date
There were no reportable events after the balance sheel date

\uditor
The Audit Committee has recommended resolutions at the 2015 AGM Lo
reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company s audrtor and
lo autherise the Audit Commaitlesa to agree the audiior s remuneraton

Diselosure of intormation to auditor

Each of the persons who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this

Repaort confirms that

- sofar as the Director s aware there s no relevant audit information
of which the Company 5 audilor 1s unaware and

- he Director has taken all the steps thal he/she ought Lo have taken
as & Director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
aud# infermalion and 1o establish that the Company s audier 15 aware
of that informatien

Ttus confirmation s given and should be interpreted in accordance wilh
the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Ihsclosures under Listing Rule 9 6 4R
Infermauion required to be disclosed in compliance with LR 9 8 4R may
be found in the following sections

Section in
Information Annual Report Page
Amount of Interest Fmancial statements 132

capitatised by the Group

Otherinformation 184 {0 204
unaudited

Addibional unaudited
financial information

Waiver of dividends Additional disclosures 112

Governance arrangewments

Informauon regarding the Company s governance arrangements s set
oul on pages 66 to 85 These pages are incorporated by reference into
the Directors Report
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Directors mtercsts i contt acts and conthets

of imterest

No centract exsted duning the year in relatien Lo the Company s business
snwhich any Director was materially interested

The Company s policy 15 that Directors notify the Chairman and the
Company Secretary of all new oulsude interests and conflicis of interest
as and when they arise The notification is then annually referred to the
Board for approval Furthermore the Board reviews the policy on an
annual basis and following the most recent review in November 201511
concluded that the policy operated effectively

Annual General Meeting (AGY)

The AGM of The British Land Company PLC will be held at The Montcalm
Londaon Marble Arch 34-40 Greal Cumberiand Place London WiH 7TW
on Tuesday 19 July 2014 at 11 00 am Further infermation will be
available on the Notice of AGM [E 2 4] & The AGM 1s the principal
occasion when shareholders are able to ask questions of their Board

and the chairmen of the mam commillees We look forward to seaing
you lhere [E 23]©@

Management Report
The Strategic Reporl and the Direclors Report logether are Lhe
management report tor the purposes of the FCAs (sclosure &

| Transparency Rules [DTR 4 1 5R}

The D.rectors Reporlwas approved on behalf of the Board on 15 May 2016

& 2

ELune Willuams
Company Secretary and General Counsel
16 May 2014




DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsibte for preparing the Annual Report . The Directors consider that the Apnual Report and Accounls taken
the Direciors Remuneratron Report and the linancial statements I as awhole 1sfair balanced and undarstandable and provides the
in accordance with applicable law and regulations I infarmation necessary for shareholders to assess the Company s

| position and performance business model and strategy
Cornpany law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each hinanciat year Under that taw the Dwreciors have prepared the Each of the Directors whose names and funcuiions are listed in the
Group financial statementsin accordance with tnternational Financial : governance and remuneration section confirm that to Lhe best of
Reporting Standards [IFRSs] as adoptad by the Europzan Unien, and , their knowledge
the parent Company linancial statements in accordance with United . = the Group financial statements which have been prepared in accordance
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice [United Kingdom | withIFRSs as adopted by the EU give a true and fair view of the assets
Accounting Standards and applicable law] Liabilities, financial posiion and prefit of the Group and

' - the Strategic Report and the Directars Repart inciude & fair review
of the develepment and performance of the business and the position
of the Group togetherwith a description of the principal nsks and
uncerlainties ihat it faces

Under Company law the Directors must nol approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied thai they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Greup and the Cornpany and of the profit or toss
of the Group for that penied In preparing these financral statements the
Direclors are required to
- seleci suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
- make Judgemnents and accounting estimates thai are reasonable
and prudent
- stale whelher IFRSs as adopied by the European Union and applicable
UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explaned in the Group and parent Company
financial statements respectrely and
- prepare lhe financiat stalements on the going concern basis
unless it 18 inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue In business

8y order of the Board

UMM

Lucimda Bell
Chief Financial Olficer
16 May 2014

The Directors are respansible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sulficient to show and explain the Company s transacticns and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ime the financial position of

the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements and the Directors Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and as regards the Group financial statements
Article 4 of {he |AS Regulation They are alsa responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and the Group and hence fer taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and otherirregulanties

The Birectors are responsible for the marntenance and integrity of the
Company swebsite Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing Lhe
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legisialion in other jurisdictions
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Financial stntements

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE

BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLC

Report on the finanenl statemonts

Our opinion

in our opinion

- the Brninsh Land Company PLC s Group financial statements and
Company financial statements [the iinancial statements | give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group s and of the Company s affairs as
at 31 March 2016 and of the Group s prafit and cash flaws for the year
then ended

- the Group tinancial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with Inlernaucnal Finzncial Reporting Standards | IFRSs |
as adepted by the European Umion

- lhe Company financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance vath Unned Kingdorn Generally Acceptad Accounung
Practice and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards ihe Group
financial statements Arucle 4 of the I1AS Regulalion

What we have audited

The finangial statements included wathin the Annual Report comprise

- the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016

- the Company Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014

- the Conselidated income Statement and the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Incorne for the year then ended

- the Consolidaled Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended

- the Consolidated Statemant of Charges in Equity for the year ihen ended
and

- the notes to the financial statements which include & summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Certain required disciosures have been presented elsewhere in the
Annuat Report rather thanin the notes to the financial statements
These are cross-referenced from the linancial statements and are
identified as audited

The financial reporting framework that has been applied inthe
preparation of the Group financiat statements s applicable law and
IFRSs as adopted by the European Unien The financial reporting
framewark that has been applied in the preparation of lhe Company
financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice]
inciuding FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

110
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Our audit approach

Overview

Our 2016 audit was planned and executed having regard te the fact
that the Group s aprrations were largely unchanged (n nature fram

the previous year additionatly thera have been no signrhicant changes
to the valuation methedatogy and accounting standards relevant to the
Group In light of this our approach to the audit it terms of scoping and
areas of focus was largely unchanged

A full scope audit was perfermed by the Group team for all subsidiaries
of the Group and the follewing jaint ventures Eroadgate Meadowhall
and Leadenhail

Matenality

- Overall Group materiabity £138 mitlion {2014/15 £130 milbon] which
represents 1% of Tolal assels

- Speulic Group matenality appliad to pre-tax profig £18 million {20145
£15 milbion] which represents 5% of underlying pre-tax profit

Areas of focus

- Valuabion of investment and development properties

- Revenue recognition specifically focusing on non-standard revenue
transactions

- Accounting for transactions including acquisitons ana disposals of
investment progerties review of the accounting treatmenl ol the deferred
consideration received {rom one of {the Group s joint venture partners, the
£110 million debenture bonds tender offer and purchase and the tssuance
of £350 milion converuble bonds in the year

- Taxation - REIT status and tax prowsions

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conductad our audil in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing [UX and Ireland] [ 1SAs [UK & Ireland! |

We designed our audit by deterrmining materiality and assessing the
risks of material missiatement in the financial statements In particular
we looked at where the Directors made subjective jJudgements for
example in signtficant accounting estimates that involved making
assurnptions and considering future evenis that are inherently uncertain
Asin all of our audits we also addressed the nisk of management
ovarnde of internal controls including evaluating whether Lhere was
evidence of bias by the Direclors that represented a nsk of material
misstaternent due to fraud

The nisks of materiat missiatement thal had the greatest efiect on our
audit including the allocation of cur resources and effort aredentified
as areas of focus in the 1able below We have also set out how we
taitored our audit to address these specific arzas in order to provide an
opimion on the financial statemenls as a whole and any comments we
make on the resulls of sur procedures should be read (i this context
Ttus ts not a complete st ef all risks identsfied by our audit




Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Valuation of investment and development properties
Refer to pages 80 to 83 [Report of the Audit Committee] pages 127
to 129 [Aceounting policres] and pages 134 to 139 iNotel

The Group s investment properly portfelio 1s split beiween ofiice
and residential properties in London retatl and leisure properties
across the UK and the assets al the Canada Water sile with a
valuaton in the Consolidated Balance Sheet of £9 643 million

The valuation of the Group s investment property portfalic s inherently
subjective due to among othar factors the indwidual nature of each
property (s locatien and the expected future rentals for that particutar
property For developments factors include projected costs to complete
and urming of practical complztion

The valuations were carried out by third party valuers CB Richard Elis
and Kntght Frank [the Vatuersi Tha Valuers were engaged by the
Directors and performed thesr work in accerdance with the Royal
institute of Char tered Surveyors (RICS | Valuation - Professional
Standards The Valuers used by the Group have considerabta
experience of the markets in which the Group operates

tn delermining a properiy s valuation the Valuers take into

account property-specific informalion such as the current tenancy
agreements and rental income They apply assumptions for yields and
eshimated market rent which are inéluenced by prevaibing market yields
and comparable market transactions to arrive at the linal valuation

For developments the residual appraisat method s used by estimating
the fair value of the compielad project using a capitalisalien method less
estimated costs to completion and a risk gremium

The significance of the estimates and judgements iwolved coupled with
the facl that only 3 small percentage difference i indiidual property
valuations when aggregaled could result in a material misstatement
warrants specihic audit focus in this area

There were alse a number of speaific factors affecting the vatuations

in the year

- a number of developments that were compteled in the year are now
valued as standing investment properties so we have paid particular
focus to the valuation methadalegy appliad to these assets

-~ the nature of the Canada Water site which comprises three contiguous
sites that Briush Land are currently master-planning as a combrmed
large scale mixed use development site resulted in our audit paying
particular focus 1o the relevant valuations and

- the UK supermarket sector continues o be an area of focus given
performance in the seclor

We read the valuation reporis for all the properties and confirmed
that the valuation approach for each was in accordance with RICS
standards and suitable for use in determining the carrying value
for the purpose of the ftnancal statemaents

We assessed the Valuers quabfications and experuse and read thair
terms of engagement with the Graup to determine whether there
were any malters that might have aifected therr abjectivity or may
nave imposed scope limiations upon their work We atsa considerad
fee arrangements between the Valuers and the Group and other
engagements which might exist between the Group and the Valuers
We found no evidence Lo suggest that the objectivity of the Valuers

in their performance of the valuations was compromised

We performed testing on the standing data i the Group s information
systems concerning lhe valuatign process We carried out procedures
on a sample basis to sauisfy curselves of the accuracy of the property
information supplied to the Valuers by management For developments
we confirmed that the supporting information for construction centracts
and budgets which was supplied te the Valuers was also consistent
with the Group s records

The auditieam cluding our valuation specialisis aitended

mesetings with each of the Vatuers at which the valuations and the key
assumptions therein were discussed Ourwaork focused on the largest
properties In the portfolic and those where the assumplions used and/for
year-on-year capital value movement suggested a possible outlier
versus market dala for the relevant sector We also locused on
superslores Canada Water and completed developments far the
reasons referred to opposite We compared the investmant yields used
by the Valuers with an estimated range of expected yields determined
via reference to publisheo benchmarks We also considered the
reasonableness of other assumptions that are not so readily comparable
with published benchmarks suchas Estimated Rental Value [ ERV ] void
rates and renl-fres periecds Finally we evaluated year-on year
movements in capital value with reference to published benchmarks
Where assumptions were outside the expected renge or olherwise
unusual and/for valuations showed unexpected movemenis we
discussed these wilh the Valuers in cur meetings held with them and
obtained additronal audnt evidence to support the explanations received

e g coples ol {ease agreements to suppart naw letiings that have
increased valualion during the pened In this way professional
scepticism was exeraised in our evaluation of whether assumptions were
appropriate in bight of the evigence provided by significant transactions
which had taken place in the markst during the year

it was evident from our interaction with manzagement and the Valuers
and from aur review of the valuation reports that close attention had
been paid to each property s indvidual characteristics at a granular
tenant by tenant level as well as considering the overall quality
geographic location and desirability of the asset as a whote The
avaluation of what were the appropriate assumptions to apply to any
given property included determinng the level of impact that recent
and sigrificant market lransactions should have on each individual
property s valuation given its umque characteristics did not reveal

any 1ssues We saw evidence that alternative assumptions had been
considered and evaluaied by management and the Valuers before
datermining the final valuation We concluded that the assumptions used
in the valuations were supportable in light of available and comparable
markel evidence
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Financial statements

REPORT OF THE AUDITCR CONTINUED

Area of focus

How our audi! addressed the area of focus.

Revenue recognition
Refer 1o pages 80 to B3 {Report of the Audit Committee] pages 127
to 129 [Accounting policies] and page 131 [Note)

Revenue for the Group consists primarily of rental ncome Rental
income ts based on tenancy agreements where there 1s a standard
process in place for recording revenue which s system generated
There are however certain transachions wilhin revenue that warrant
additional audit focus because of an increased inheren: risk of error
due to thair nen-standard nature

These include spraading of cccupier incentives and guaranteed rent
increases - these balances require adjustments made (o rental Income
to ensure revenue 1s recorded on a strarght-Line basis over the course
of alease

We carried out lests of conirols over the cash and accounts recewvable
pracesses and the retated [T systems to oblain evidence thai peshings to
these accounts were reliable For rentalincome balances wa then used
data-enabled audit techrigues to identfy all standard revenue journals
posled using these systems and processes

The remaiming journals related to non-standard iransactrons These
included reclassifications within revenue accrued income and bad debt
provisions For each category of non-standard revenue summarised
above we have undersicod the nature and assessed the reasonableneass
of journals being yeneraled and performed substantive testing over

a sample of these items There have been no exceptions arising from
our lesting over non-standard revenue transactions

For balances not included within rental income such as service charge
income we performed substantive testing on a sample basis Noissues
were noted

Accounting for transactions
Refer to pages 80 to 33 {Repart of the Audit Commuttee] pages 127
o 129 [Accounting policies} and pages 130 to 164 [Notes to Accounts)

There have been a number of transactions during the year
These warranied additional audtt focus due to the megnitude
of lransactiens and the potential for complex contractual terms
that introduce judgement into how they were accounted for
Key transactions subjact to additional audit focus were
- purchase of additional urits i HUT for £57 mullien
- acquisiion of One Sheldon Square for £210 mithan
—issuance of £350 midlion convertible bonds
- recognition of deferred consideration receved from
one cf the Group s joint venture partners
- profit on disposal of investment properties and trading
properties of £45 milion and
~ £110 mullien debenlure bonds tender offer and purchase

For each transaction we understood the nature of the lransaction and
assessed the propesed accounting treatment in relation to the Group s
accounting policies and relevant IFRSs

For the purchase of addiional units n HUT we agreed the net asset
value used m the share price calculation te supporung information
including exter nal Net Asset Value certificates

For all acquistbons and disposals we obtainea and raviewed the key
supporting documantation such as Sales and Purchase Agreements
and completion stalements Consideration received or paid was agreed
to bank statements and deferred consideration postings No material
1ssues were found as a reselt of these procedures

For the convertible bond we have inspected the bona agreement
and obtainad evidence of all the key inputs into the bond issue price
We have alsa considered the accounting treatment and concurrad
with management s {reatment

For the deferred consideration receved from one of the Group s jaint
venture partners we have inspected the shareholder agreement that
governs the fee payment obtained endence that the milestanes that
trigger the payment have been met and have inspected the calculation
of the paymenl amount and agreed the cash receipt We have assessed
the aceounting treatment and cancur with the treatment

For the debeniure bends tender offer and purchase we have agreed
the repaymenl of the debentures and recalculaled the finance charge
incurred through agreeing the varicus lendar documents resclutions
contained in the Commuitee ¢of the Board and cash payments The
finance charges have been expensad through the Income Statement
We have reviewed 1his lrealment and concur with this
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Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Taxation
Refer to pages 80 to 83 [Report of the Audit Commuttee]
pages 127 1o 129 [Accounting pahicies) and pages 133 and 144 [Notes]

The Group s status s a REIT underpins its business model and
shareholder returns For this reason 1t warrants special audn focus
The obligations of the REIT regime include requirements to comply with
balance of business dividend and income cover tests The Broadgate
Jomnt veniure 1s also struclured as a REIT and a5 such REIT compliance
15 also of relevance far this joint venture in addition to the overall Group

Tax provisions are In place to account far the risk of challenge
of certain of the Group s tax provistons Given the subjactive
nature of these provisiens additional audit fecus was placed
on tax provisions

e re-performed the Group s annual REIT comphiance tesis aswell as
those tests for the Broadgate REIT Based onour work performed we
agreed with management s assessment that all REIT compliance lasts
had been met te ensure that the Group and Broadgata maintains tis
REIT status

We used our lax expertise to evaluate iax provisions and potential
axposures as al 31 March 2014 challenging the Group s assumplions and
wdgements through our knowledga ot tax crcumstances and by readmng
relevant correspondence between the Group and Her Majesty s Revenue
& Customs and the Greup s exfernat iax advisors We coencludad that the
tax provisions were within an appropriate range basad on the supperling
infermalion provided by the Group s tax department

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of cur audit to ensure that we performed enocugh
work to be able to give an openion on the linancial statements as a whole
taking into account the structure of the Group the accounting processes
and controls and the industry inwhich the Group operates

The Group and Company financial statements are produced using a
single consclidation system that has a directinterface with the general
ledger We performed our audit procedures over the general iedger
system and tested Lhe interface with the consolidation system

Afull scape audit was performed by the Group audit team for all
subsidiaries of the Group and the fotlowing joint ventures Broadgate
Meadewhall and Leadenhall This gives coverage over substanualty
all of the Group

In establishing the overall approach to our audit we assessed therisk
of malenal misslatement taking imio account the naiure ukelhood and
potential magmitude of any misslatement Following this assessment
we applied professional judgement te determine the extent of tesung
required gver each balance in the financral statements

Matenality

Tha scope of our audit was influenced by our application of matenality
We sel certain quantitative thresholds for mateniality These together
with qualitative considerations helped us to determine the scope of our
audit and the nature, tming and extent of our audit procedures on the
indeviduat financial statement line iterns and disclosures and in evatluating
the effect of musstaternents bothindwidually and on the financial
staternents as a whole

Based on our professional jJudgement wa determined mateniality
for the hinancial statements gs a whole as follows

Overall Group mateniality {138 mullion

How we determined it 1% of tolal assets

Rationale for benchmark applied A key determmant of the
Group s value s direct property
nvestments Due to this the key
area of focus in the audit 1s the
valuation of investment properties
On this basis we sel an overall
Group materiality level based
on total asseis

In admibion we set a specific materiality level of £18 mitlion [2014/15

£15 milhionl for stems within underlying pre-iax profit This equates to 5%
1 of profit before lax adjusted for capiial and otheritems |n arriving at thus

judgement we had regard ta the fact that the underlying pre-tax profit
1s a secondary financial indicalor of the Greup [refer 10 note 2 of the
financial statements page 130 where Lhe term s defined in full]

We agreed with the Audit Camnutlee thal we would report to them
misstatements identified during eur audii of undertying pre-tax tems
above C1 million [2014/15 €1 million] as well as misstatements below

This year we agreed with the Audit Commuttee that we would report to
them any rmsstatements identified during our audit of capitat and other
items above £6 9 milion [2014/15 n/al as well as misstatements below

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required Lo review the Directers
statermeni set oul on page 77 inretation to going concern

We have nothing to report having perfarmed our review

Under ISAs [UK & treland) we are required to report to you 1f we have
anything materiat to add or to draw attention lo in relation to the
Directors stalement about whether they considered it appropnate Lo

have nothing material to add or to draw attention to

statements The gaing concern basts presumes that the Group and
Company have adequate resources (o remain in operation and that the
Directors intend them todo so for at least one year from the date the

that the Directors use of the going concern basis s appropriate

However bacause not all future evenis or condibions can be predicted

these statements are not a guarantee as to the Group s and Company s
" ability Lo continue as a going concern
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that amount that 1 our view warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

that amouni that in our view warranied reporung for gualiiative reasons

adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements We

As notad in the Directors statemant the Directors have cencluded that it
Is appropriate to adopt the going cancern basis in preparing the hinancial

financial statements were signed As part of our audit we have cencluded




Financial stutemcnts

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR CONTINUED

Other required reporung
Consistency of other information

Compames Act 2006 optmion

1n our opmion the nformation given in the Strategic Repori and

the Directors Report for the iinancial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements

ISAs [UK & Ireland) reporting
Under ISAs [UK & tretand) we are required to reporl to yau if
IN BUr 0PIION

~ Information sn the Annuat Report s We have no excepiions
- matentally snconsistent with the information  to report
In the audited financial statements or
- apparently matenally wncorrect based on or
maierally nconsistent with our knowledge
af the Group and Company acquired in the
course of performing our audit or
- otherwise misleading

The statement given by the Directors on We have no exceptions
page 75 n accordance with provision C 11 to report
of the UK Corporate Governance Code fthe

Code | that they cons'der the Annual Repert

taken as a whole to be far balanced and

understandable and provides the inlormaticn

necessary fer members (o 3ssess the Group s

and Company s performance business model

and strategy 1s matenally Inconsislent with

our knowledge of the Group and Company

acquired in the course of performing cur audit

- The section of the Annual Reaorton page 82 We have no exceptions
as required by provision € 3 8 of the Code toreport
describing the work af the Audit Commuttee
does nol appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Commiltee
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The Directors assessment of the prospects of the Group and of
the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or Uiquidity
of the Group

Under (SAs [UK & Ireland] we are required 1o report io you f we have
anything material to add or to draw attention lo inrelabion io

~the Directors confirmation on page 76 We have nothing materiat
of the Annual Report 1n accordance with toadd or to draw
provision © 2 1 of the Code that they have attentign to
carried out a robust assessment of the
principal nsks facing the Group including
those that would threaten its business model
future performance salvency or igudity

- the disclosures in the Annual Reporl
that describe ihose rnisks and explam how
they are being managed or mitigated

We have nathing material
ic add or lo draw
attenbion 1o

- the Directors explanation on page 58
of the Annual Report 1n accordance wath
provisson C 2 2 of the Code as to how
they have assessed the prospects of the
Group over whal period they have dene
so and why they canstaer that period to
be appropriate and their statement as
Lo whether they have a reasonable
expeciailon that the Group will be able
to continue n operation and meet s
liabilities as they fall due over the period
of their assessment including any related
disclosures drawirg attention {o any
necessary quavfications or assumplions

We have nothing material
o add orto draw
attenbon to

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors
statement that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group and the Directors statement in relation
to the longer term viability of the Group Qur review was substanually
less in scope Lhan an audit and only consisted of making inguiries and
considering the Oirectors process supporting their statements

chacking that Lhe staterments are in alignmenl with the relevant
provisions of the Code and considaring whether the statements are
consistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing
our audit We have nothing to report having performed our review

Adequacy of accounting records and information

and explanations recesved

Under the Compares Act 2006 we are required to reporl to you il

1N OUr OPINKOA

- we have rot receved alt the informauen and explanations we require for
our audit or

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company
or reiurns adequale ior our audit have not been recewved from branches
not visited by us cr

- the Company financial staterents and the part of the Directors
Remuneration Report to be audited are natin agreement with the
accounting records and returns

We have no exceplions to report ansing from this responsibility




Directors remuneration

Directors remuneration report - Compantes Act 2006 epinion
I our cpinion the part of the Directors Remunerauen Report

to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with

the Companes Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if

in our apinien certain disclosures of Direciors remuneration specified
by law are not made We have no exceptions to repor t arising from

thrs responsibility

Corporate governance statement

Undar the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Statement relating o ten further provisions
of the Code We have nothing to repori having performed our review

Responsibihitics tor the tingneial statements
and the audint

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement
set out on page 113 the Directors are respansible for the preparaton
¢f the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view

Our responsibilily 1s 1o audit and express an apmion on the finangial
statemenis 1n accordance with applicable law and 1SAs [UK & Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report including the cpinions has been prepared for and only for
the Company s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpese We do nol m
giving these ppmions accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or Lo any cther person ta whom this reperl s shown or into
whose hands It may come save where expressly agreed by cur prior
consentin wriiing

What an audit of financial statements involves

An auditinvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that

the financiai statements are free frem material misstatement whether

caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

l ~whether the accounting policies are appropriate io the Group s and the

Company s circumstances and have been consisiently applied and
adequately disclosed

- the reasonableness of sigrificant accounting esimates made by
the Directors and

- the overali presentation of the hinancial statements

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Direciors
Judgemants aganst avalable evidence forming our own judgements
and evatuating the disclosures in the financial staterents

We lest and examine infermation using sampling and other audiung
technigues to the extenl we consider necessary to provide a reasonable
basis for us lo draw conclusions We obtain audit evidence through
lesting the effectiveness of controls substantive proceduresor a
combination of both

In addition we read all the financial and nen-financial infermation in
the Annual Report Lo idenlify malenal inconsislencies with the audited
financial statements and toidentfy any information that1s apparently
materally incorrect based on or mater:ally inconsislent with the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit

If we bacame aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsislencies we ronsider the implications for our report

Ju

lohn Warers (Semor Statutorn Auditor)
forand on behali of PricewalerhouseCoopars LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutery Audilors
London

16 May 2014

'The maintenance and integrity of the The British Land Company PLC website
15 the rasponsbility of the D rectors the wark carried out by the auditors does
notinvolve consideration of these matters and accerdingly the auditors accept
ne responsibilit, for any changes that may have occurred to the finanoial
slaternents since they were initially presented on the website
Legislation in the Urited Kingdom govarming the preparation and disseminatian
of financial statements may differ from {egislation (n other jurisdicuons
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Financial statemcents

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
Capital Capial
Underlying'  and other Total Underhing and other Total
Mote £m £m £m £m tm £m
Revenue K] 569 2 590 505 51 556
Costs 3 {128 (1 {139} [115) 145) [140]
3 441 10 451 390 6 396
Jowni ventures and funds [see alse betow) 1 135 262 397 129 597 726
Administrative expenses {93 - {23) (85} - (85]
Valuation mavermant 4 - 516 614 - 884 884
Profit on disposal of iInvestment properties and investments - 35 35 - 20 20
Net financing cosis
- financing income 1 &5 70 7 - 7
- hnancing charges (1) (34) (145) [112] [£7] [i5¢]
(104) 31 (75) [105] (47) (1521
Profiton ordinary activities before taxation 377 954 1,331 329 1460 1789
Taxation 7 33 33 {24] (24]
Prohit for the year after taxation 1,364 1765
Attributable to non controlling interests 14 5 19 14 39 55
Attributabie to sharehalders of the Cempany 363 982 1,345 33 1397 1710
Earnings per share
- basic 2 131 2p 168 3p
- diluted 2 124 1p 167 3p
All resutts derive {from continuing operations
2016 2015
Capital Caputal
Underlying'  and ather Total Underlying and other Total
Note £m Em €m Em Em tm
Results of joint ventures and funds accounted for using the
equity method
Underlying Profit 135 - 135 129 - 129
Valuation mavement 4 - 245 245 - 589 589
Profit on disposal of investrment properties trading properties
and investments - 18 18 - 6 6
Taxation - i 1) - 2 2
11 135 262 397 129 597 726

' See defintion tn glassary

The prier year comparatives have been restated Seanote
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

2016 20135
£m £m
Profit for the year after laxation 1,364 1765
Other comprehensive income
[tems that will not be reclasssfied subsequently to profitor loss
Net actuarial loss an pension scheme ) 151
Valuation movements on owner-accupled property 19 10
18 5
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profitor loss
{Losses| gains on cash llow hedges
~ Group 124) i71}
- Jointventures and funds 13| 3
- Reclassification of tems from the statement of comprehensive income - 30
127} (381
Transferred to the incomne statement [cash flow hedges|
- Foreign currency derivatives Fd i
- Interest rate derivatives 10 8
12 13]
Exchange differences an translation of feraign operations
- Hedging and translation (31 )
- Other 3 (6]
Deferred tax onitems of other comprehensive income {15) 10
Other comprehensive loss for the year 112) (26)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,352 1739
Attributable to non-controlling interests 19 53
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 1,333 1686
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

206 2015
Mata £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment and development propertigs 10 9,643 9120
Owner-occupted property 10 95 40
9,738 2180
Other non-current assets
Investments injainl ventures and funds n 3,353 290t
Other investments 12 142 379
Deferred tax assets 16 3 -
Interest rate and currency derivative assets 17 167 139
13,403 12 599
Currentassets
Trading properties 10 325 274
Debtors 13 33 20
Cash and short term depostis 17 114 108
472 402
Total assets 13,875 13 001
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Shoert term borrowings and overdraits 17 [74) (102)
Creditors 4 (218) [261]
Carporation tax {18} 15}
{310} (372
Non-current Liabibties
Debentures and loans 17 13,687] (3 847)
Other non-current iabibities 15 1122) (78]
Deferrad tax iabilities 16 - [12)
interest rate and currency derivative liabilities 17 137] 1124)
13,948 15 084)
Totai babilities t4,256) {4 436)
Net assets 7,619 8 565
EQUITY
Share capttal 260 258
Share premium 1,295 1280
Merger reserve 213 213
Other reserves 193] (82
Retained earnings 7.667 4 563
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company 9,342 8 232
Mon-conlrolling interests 277 333
Totat equnty 9,619 8 565
EPRA NAV per share” 2 219 829

As defined in glossary !

Tohn Grldersleeve Lucinda Bell
Chairman Chief Financial Officer

The financial statements on pages 122 lo 164 were approved by the Board of Directars and signed onits behalf on 16 May 2016
Company number 621920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

2016 2015
Note £m tm

Rental income recewed from tenanls 435 397
Fees and other Income receved 58 49
Operating expenses paid to suppliars and emplayees [152) (128)
Cash generated from operations 341 318
Interesl pad 1124) (124
Interest received 1" 18
Corporation taxation repayments receved 8 -
Distributions and other recevables from joint ventures and funds 1 58 73
Net cash inflow from operating activities 294 285
Cash flows from investing activities
Development and other capital expenditure 1256] (157)
Purchase of investment properlies (243} (1721
Sale of investment and trading proparties 564 415
Payments racaived in respect of future trading property sales 40 32
Purchase of investments - (7]
Acquisiiion of Speke Unit Trust - (e0l
Tesco property swap - [23]
Investment in and loans Lo joint venturas and funds (241) 173l
Capital distnibutions and lean repayments from joint venlures and funds 366 134
Net cash inflow [outflow) from investing activities 230 (1]
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ardinary shares 5 12
Dwidends paid 19 {235) (228l
Dividends paid to non-cantrolling interests (18] (19
Acquisition of unils in Hercules Unit Trust l&1) (93]
Cleseout of interest rale dervatives 15 Nzl
Cash collateral iransactons 124 10
Decrease in bank and ather barrowings 1919 (581)
Drawdowns on bank and other barrowings 373 703
Issue of zero coupon 2015 converible bond 344 -
Net cash outflow from financing activities 1518} (208l
Net increase [decrease] in cash and cash equivalents ] (34
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 108 147
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 114 108
Cash and cash equivalents consists of
Cash and short term deposits 17 14 108
' The prior year comparalives hase beenresiated See note 1
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Financial statcments

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Hedg ng
and Re- Nen
Share Share translaticn  valuation Merger  Retained conirolling Total
capital  premim reserve reserve reserve  farnings Total inierests equity
Em Em Em fm tm £m em Em Em
Balance at 1 Aprit 2015 258 1,280 [76) ] 213 6,563 8,232 333 8,545
Profit for the year alter taxation - - - - - 1,345 1,345 19 1,264
Losses on cash flow hedges - - 124) - - - (24) - (24
Revalualion of owner-occupied property - - - 19 - - 19 - 19
Exchange and hedging movements in joint ventures and
funds - - - [31 - - (3) - (31
Reclassification of gains on cash flow hedges
- Foreign currency derivatives - - 2 - - - 2 - 2
- Interest rate derivatives - - 10 - - - 10 - 10
Exchange differences an translation of foreign operations - - 131 3 - - - - -
Net acuranal loss on pension schemes - - - - - ] [t - m
Deierrad tax on items of
other comprehenswve income - - (18] 1 - - (151 - (15)
Other comprehensive [loss) income - - (31 20 - (1 121 - 12)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (31 20 - 1,344 1,333 19 1,352
Share 1ssues 2 15 - - - (12] 5 - 5
Farvalue of share and share option awards - - - - - 8 8 - 8
Purchase of units from non-controlling interesis - - - - - - - (591 [59)
Loss on purchase of units fram non-controlling ialerests - - - - - Nl )] - ()
Dwidends payable inyear (28 0p per sharel - - - - - (287] 1281 - (287
Diwdends payable by subsidiaries - - - - - - - (18] (18}
Adjustment for scrip dividend element - - - - - 52 52 - 52
Balance at 31 March 2014 260 1,295 (107) 14 213 7.667 9,342 277 9,619
Balance at 1 April 2014 255 1257 [32) (381 213 5091 4 746 a7i 7117
Profit for the year after taxation - - - - - 1718 1710 54 1705
Losses on cash flow hedges - - 159] - - - {69 2] (71
Revaluation of owner-occupied proparty - - - 10 - - 10 - 0
Exchange and hedging movements in joinl ventures and
funds - - - 3 - - 3 - 3
Reclassification of items from the statement
of comprehensive income - - - 30 - - 30 - 30
Reclassification of (losses] gains on cash flow hedges
~ Foreign currency dervalives - - (i - - - (il - [}
- Interest rate derivatives - - 8 - - - 8 - 8
Exchange differences on
translation of foraign operatiens - - 6 (&) - - - - -
Net actuarial loss on pension schemes - - - - - 5] )] - 5]
Deferred tax on items of other comprehensive Income - - 22 [5) - |7] 10 - 10
Oiher comprehensive (loss) income - - 144] 32 - 12 (2} 121 (28]
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (4] 32 - 1698 1686 53 1739
Share 1ssues 3 2 - - - 1] 16 - 6
Man-controlling interest an acquisiiion of subsidiary - - - - - - - 31 31
Fairvalue of share and share aption awards - - - - - 10 10 - 10
Purchase of units from non-controlling interests - - - - - 2 2 (03] (301)
Dwidends payable in year [27 3p per sharel - - - - - (2770 (277 - (277)
Dwidends payable by subsidiaries - - - - - - - 1151 119)
Adjustment for scrip dividend etement - - - - - 49 49 - 49
Balance at 31 March 2015 258 1280 {76} 4l 213 6563 8232 333 8545

' The balance at the beginning of the year includes £10m in relation to transtation and [L8&m) in relation ta hedging
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NOTES TO THE ACCCUNTS

1 Basis of preparation, sigmiticant accounting !
policies and accountmg judgements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been
prepared on the historical cosl basis excepl for the revaluation of
properues investments held for trading and derivalives The financial
stalements have also been prepared in accordance with Inlernational
Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by Lhe Europsan
Union and therefore comply with article 4 ot the EU tAS regulation
and in accordance with the Companies Act 2004

In the current financial year the Group has adepted Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle and 2011-2013 cycle and Defined Benefit Plans
Employee Contributions - Amendments to IAS 19

The adoptian of these standards has not had a material impact on the
Group and otherwise lhe accountuing policies used are consistent with
those contaned in the Group s previous Annual Repert and Accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2615

A number of new standards and amendmenls 1 standards and
Inter pretatians have been 1ssued but are not yet effective for Lhe current
accounting period None of these are expected le have amaterial impact
on the consclidated inancial statements of the Group except the
fotlowing set out below
- 1FRS 9 - Finanoial Instruments will impacl bath the measurement and
disclosures of financial instruments and is effective for the Group s year
ending 31 March 2019 The Group has nof yat comptleted its evaluation
of the effect of the adoption
- IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracls with customers does not apply
to gross rental income bul does apply te service charge iIncome
management and perfermance fees and trading property disposals
and 1s effective for the Group s year ending 31 March 2019 The Group
does not expect adopticn of tFRS 15 to have a matenal impact on the
measurement of revenue recognition but additionat disclosures will
be required with regards to the above sources of income
- IFRS 16 - Leases will impact both the measurement and disclosures
of the Group s head leases and i1s effective lor the Group s year ending
31 March 2020 The Gioup has not yet completed its evaluation of the
effect of the adoptian

Restatement

During the year the accounting for Broadgate Estates awholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group which acts as a property manager has been
reviewed resulling 1n a reclassification of sterns presenled in the
Consclidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Statement

of Cash Flows

This reclassification had noimpact on either IFRS profit before tax

or Underlying Profit it resulted ina £29m increase in other fees and
comrmissions recewed offset by a £246rm increase in ather fees and
commissions expenses and a £3m increase in administrative expenses

This reclassification had no impact on the nat cash inftow from operating
activilies presenied in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

It resulted in £35m increase in fees and other income received and a
£35m increase in operating expenses paid Lo suppliers and employees

Inaddiion the format of the Consolidated Income Statement has been
changed to aid the clarity and usability of the financial stalements and the |
prior-year comparatives have been re-presented to reflect this change

Going concern
The financial statements are prepared on a gong concern basis as
explaned the corparate governance sechion on page 77

Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates hincluding funds)

The consclidated acceunts include the accounts of the British Land
Company PLC and all subsidiaries [entities controlled by British Land}
Controtis assumed where Briish Land has the power and the ability
to affect the financial and operating policies of an nvestee entity so as
lo gain benefits [rom its acuvilies

The results of subsidiaries jontventures or associales acquirad or
disposed of during the year are included fram the effective date of
acqguisition or up to the effeclive date of disposal Accounting policies
of subsidraries |joint ventures or associates which differ from Group
accounting policies are adjusted on consclidation

Business combinations are accounted for under the acguisition method
Any excess of the purchase price of business cambinations over the fair
value of the assets liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired and
resulting deferred tax thereon 1s recognised as goedwill Any discounl
recelved s credited to the income slatementin the period of acquisition

Allintra-Group transactions balances 1ncome and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation Jointventures and associates including
funds are accounted for under the equity methed whereby the
consoltdaled batance sheet incorporales the Group s share linvestor s
share] of the net assels of Its Joint ventures and associates The
consolidated inceme statementincorporates the Group s share

of joinl venture and associate profits after lax

Therr profits include revaluation movements on investment properiies

Distributions and olher receivables from joints venlures and associates
(including funds| are classed as cash flows fram operating activities
except where they relate (o a cash flow arising from a capital transaction
such as a property or investment disposal (nthis case they are classed
as cash flows from mvesting activities

Properties

Properties are externally valued on the basis of far value at the balance
sheet date Investment and owner-occupied properties are recorded at
valuation whereas irading properties are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value

Any surplus or deficit anising on revaluing investment properues s
recogrised in the capital and other column of the Income statement

Any surplus arising on revaluing owner-occupled properties above
costIs recognised in other comprehensive incorme and any deficit arising
in revaluztion below cost for owner-sccupied and trading properuies s
recegrised in the capital and other column of the Incorme statement

The cost of propertiesin the course of devetopment includes attributable
interest and other assaciated outgoings including attributable
development personnel costs Interestis calculated on the development
expenditure by reference to speoiic borrowings where relevant and
otherwise on the weighled average rate inlerest rate of British Land PLC
borrowtngs Inierestis net capialised where no development activity ts
taking place Apropertyceases lo be treated as a development property
on practical completion

Investment property disposals are recognised on completion Prolits

and losses arising are recognised through the capital and other column
of the income statement The profit on disposal 1s determined as the
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Financial statements

NOTES 70 THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset at the commencement of the accounting period plus capital
expendiiure in the periad

Trading property disposals are recognised in line with the revenue
policies outlined below

Where investment properties are appropriated to trading stock
they are transferred at market value If properties held for trading
are appropriated Lo investrent they are transferred at book value
In determiming whether leases and related properties represent
operating or finance leases conswderation s given to whether the
tenant or landlord hears Lhe risks and rewards of ownership

Financial assets and labilities
Trade debtors and creditors are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost and discounted as appropriate

Other investments inzlude loans and receivables held at amortised

cosl and investments held for trading classified as fair value through
profit arloss Amortised cost of loans and recetvables i1s measured using
Lhe effeclive interest melhod less any impairment Interest s recognised
by applying the effective interest rate Investments held fer trading are
mibally recorded at far value and are subsequently externally valued on
the same basis at the balance sheet date Any surplus or deficit anising
on revaluing investments held for trading s recognised in the capital

and other column of the income statement

Where an investment property is held under a head lease Lhe head
lease 1s initially recognised as an asset being the sum of the premium
paid on acquisiton plus the present value of mimimum ground rent
paymenls The corresponding rent Lizbility to the head leaseholder
1sincluded In the batance shaet as a finance lease obligation

Debtinstruments are stated at their net proceeds on1ssue Finance
charges including premia payable on settlement or redemption

and direct 1ssue costs are spread over the period to redemption using
the effecuve interest method Exceptional finance charges incurred due
to early redemplion [Including premwmsl| are t ecogrised in the Income
staterment when they occur

Convertible bonds are designated as far value through profit or loss
and so are presented on the balance sheet at fair value with all gains
and losses including the write-off of Issue cosls recogmsad inthe
capital and cther column of the incorme statement as a component of
net financing costs Theinterest charge in respect of Lhe couponrale on
the bonds has been recagmised within the underlying comgonent of net
financing costs on an accruals basis

As defined by IAS 39 cash flow and fair value hedges are carmied ai fawr
value on the balance sheel Changes in the lair value of derivalives that
are designated and qualify as effective cash flow hedges are recegrised
direcily through ather comprehensive iIncome as a movement in the
hedging and transiation reserve Changes in the fair valug of derivatives
that are designated and qualfy as effective fair value hedges are
recorded In the capital and othar cclumn of the income statement along
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that s attributable
to the hegged risk Any inaffective portion of ali derivatives s recogmised
in the capital and other column of the Inceme statement Changesin the
fair value of derivatives that are nolin a designated hedging relationship
under 1AS 39 are recorded directly in the capital and other column of the
income statement These derivatives are carried at fair value on the
balance sheet
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Cash equivalents are rmited to instruments with a matunity of less than
three months

Revenue

Revenue comprises rental income and surrender premua service charge
income management and performance fees and proceeds from the sale
of trading properties

Rentalincome including fixed reatal uptifts from investment property
{zased cut under an operating lease is recognised as revenue ona
straight-lne basis over the lease term Lease incentives such as rent-free
perieds and cash contributions to tenant fit-out are recogmised on the
same straight-bne basis being an integral part of the net consideration for
the use of the invesiment property Any rent adjustments based on open
market esumated rentel values are recognised based on management
estimates frem the rent review date in relation e unsestiled rent reviews
Contingent rents being those lease payments thal are not fixed at the
inception of the lease including lor example turnover rents ara
recognised In the period inwhich they are earned

Surrender premua for the early determination of a lease are recognised
as revenus immediately upon receipt net of dilapidations and non-
recoverable outgoings relating to the lease concerned

Service charge income 15 recognisea as revenue 1n the period to which
it relates

Management and parformance fees recervable are recognised as revenue
in the penod lo which they relate Performance fees are recognised at the
end of the performance period when the fee amount can be estimated
reliably and it 1s wirtually certain that the fee will be recerved

Proceeds irom Lhe sale of trading properties are recognised when the
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the purchaser
This generally cceurs on comptelion Proceeds from the sale of trading
properties are recogrised as revenue In the capital and other colurnn of
the income statement All other revenue descnbed above 1s recognised
in the underlying column of the income statement

Taxation

Current tax s based on taxable profit for the year and 1s calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet dale Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that
are not taxable for tax deductible}

Deferred tax s provided onitems that may become taxable in the future
or which may be used to effset against tazable profits in the future onthe
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabtities far inancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes on an undiscounted basis On business combinations
the deferred tax effeci of far value adjustments s incorpar ated inthe
consolidated balance sheet

Employee costs

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments to employeesis
delermined at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period based on the Group s estimate of shares or
options that will eventually vest (nthe case of options granted fair value
15 measured by a Black-Scholes pricing medel

Definad benefit pension scheme assets are measured using fair values
Pension scheme liabilities are measured using the projected unit credit
method and discounted at the rate of return of a high quality corporate
bend of equivalentterm to the scheme Liabilities The net surplus




{where recoverable by the Groupl or deftcit 1s recogmised i full in the
consolidated balance sheei Any asset resulting from the calculation s
Limited to the present value of availatite refunds and reductions in future
contributions {o the plan

The current service cost and gains and losses on settlement and
curtailments are charged to operating profit Actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in fullin the peniod in which they occur and are presentad
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive ncome

Contributions Lo the Greup s defined contribution schemes are expensed
on the basis of the contracted annual contribution

Accounting judgements and estimates
in applying the Group s accounting policies the Directors are required
1o make judgements and estimates that affect the financial statements

Sigaificant areas of estimaticn are

Valuation of properues and investrments held for trading The Group
uses external professional valuers to determine the relevant amounts
The primary source of evidence for property valuations should be recent
comparable market lransactions on an arms-length basts However
the vatuation of the Group ¢ property poritolio and investments held for
trading are inherently subjective, as they are made on the basis of
assumplions made by the valuers which may not prove to be accurzle

Other less sigmificant arsas of estimation include the valuation of fived
rale debt and nteresl rate derivatives the determination of share-based
payment expense and the actuanal assumptions used in calculaling Lhe
Group s retirement benefit obligations

The key areas of accounting judgement are

REIT status Briish Land is a Real Eslate Investment Trust [REITI

and does not pay tax on Its property Income or gans on property sales
provided that at leasi 90% of the Group s properly income 1s distribuled
as a dividend to shareholders which becomes taxable in thew handg

In addhtion the Group has te meet certain conditions such as ensuring
the property rental business represents more than 75% ol total profits
and assets Anypotential or proposed changes to the REIT legislation are
moniored and discussed with HMRC (115 Managemenl s intention that
the Group will continue as a REIT tor the foreseeable future

Accounting for joint venlures and funds in accordance with IFRS 10
Consolidated financial stalements [FRS 11 Jont arrangements and
IFRS 12 Disclosures of interestsin other entities an assessment (s
required Lo determing the degree of control or influence the Group
exercises and the form of any control to ensure that the financial
statement treatment 15 appropriate

Intereslin the Group s ioint ventures s commonly driven by the ferms
aof the parthership agreements which ensure that control 1s shared
between the partnars These are accounted for under the eguity method
whereby the consolidated balance sheet incorporates the Group s share
of the net assets of 1ts joIint ventures and associates The consolidated
income slatement Incorporates the Group s share of joint venture and
associate profits after tax

Accounting for transactions Property transactions are complex in
nature and can be material to the financial statements Assessmentis
required to determine the most appropriate accounting treatment of
assets acquired and of potential contractual arrangements in the legal
documents for both acquisitions and disposals Management censider
gach transaclion separately and when considered appropriate seek
independent accounting advice
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2 Performance micasures

Earnmings per share

The Group measures finarcial performance with reference to underlying earn ngs per share the European Pubtic Real Estate Association [EPRA]
earmings per share and |[FRS earnings per share The relevant earnings and weighted average number of shares including dilution adustments)

for each performance measure are shown below, and a reconciliation between these 1s shown within ihe supptementary disclosures [Table B on page 1791

EPRA earnings per share s calculated using EPRA earnings whichis the IFRS prefit after taxation attributable te shareholders of the Company
excluding investmen! and development property revaluations gatns/lssses oninvesting and trading property disposals changes in the fair value
of financial Instruments and assoctated close-cut costs and ther related taxauon EPRA earnings [diluted] also takes inte arcount ditution due

te the 2012 canvertble bond

Underlying earnings per shara 15 calculated using Underlying Profit adjusted ior undertying taxation see note 7t Underlying Profitis the pre-tax
EPRA earnings measure with additional Company adjustments No Company adjustments were made in either the current or prior year For the year
ended 31 March 2015 the 2012 convertible bond was not dilutive far underlying earnings as the cantingent condiiions associated to the bond had nol
been met The convertible condiions period ended on 25 Septemnber 2015 and therefore the bond was treated as ditutive In the current year

2014 2015
Ralevant Relevant

Relevant number Earnings Relevant number Earnings

earnings of shares per share earnings of shares per share
Earnings per share £m mallion pence £m millicn pence
Underlying
Underiying basic - 365 1,025 354 313 1016 e
Underlying dituted N 1,089 341 313 1022 306
EPRA
EPRA basic 365 1,025 58 313 1016 308
EPRA diluted an 1,089 341 319 1080 295
IFRS
Basic 1,345 1.025 1312 1710 1016 1683
Diluted 1,351 1,089 1241 1710 1022 1673
Net assetl value

The Group measures financial position with reference 1o EPRA net asset value [NAV) per share and EPRA triple net assat value INNNAV] per share
The nat asset value and number of shares for each performance measure 1s shown below A reconciliation between IFRS net assets and EPRA net
asse!ls and the relevant number of shares lor each performance measure 1s shown within the supplementary disclosures [Table B on page 1801
EPRA net assets is a proportienzlly consolidated measure that is based on IFRS net assets excluding the mark-to-market on effective cash flow
hedges and relaled debt adjusiments the mark-to-market on the convertible bonds as well as deferred taxation on property and derivative
valuations Theyinclude the valualion surplus on trading properties and are adjusted for the dilutive 1mpact of share options and Lhe £400 msdhion
convertible bond maturing mn 2017

2Mé 2015

Relevant Net agset Relevant Net assel

Relevant number value per Relevant number value per

net assets of shares share net assels of shares share

Net assel value per share £m million pence £m million pence
EPRA

EPRA NAY 10,074 1,098 Ny 9035 1090 829

EPRA NNNAV 9,640 1,096 880 8 359 1 090 767

IFRS
Basic 9.419 1,029 935 8 545 1020 840
Diluted 10,019 1,096 914 8565 1032 830

Total accounting return
The Group also measures financial performance with refer ence to total accounting return Thisis calculaled as the increase in EPRA nel asset value
per share and dividend paid i the year s a percentage of the EPRA net asset value par share at the stari of the year

2016 2015
Increasein  Diwidend per Total Increase in NAY  Dwdend per Total
NAY per share share paid accounting per share share paid accounting
pence pence return pence pence return
Total accounting return 90 28 02 14 2% 141 2730 24 5%
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3 Revenue and costs

2096 2015
N Capital Capital
Underlytng and other Underlying and other
£m £m £m £m
Rent receivable 437 - 369 -
Spreading of tenant incentives and guaranteed rent increases 12 - 26 -
Surrender premia 2 - 4 -
Gross rental income 451 - 399 -
Trading property sales proceeds - 21 - 51
Service charge income 72 - 45 -
Managemenl and pertormance fees [from jeint ventures and fundsl B - 7 -
Other lees and commissions 38 - 34 -
Revenue 2569 21 505 51
Trading properly cost of sales - (1) - (45]
Service charge expenses {72 - (65) -
Property operating expenses (26) - [24] -
Other fees and commissions expenses (30) - (28] -
Costs {128) (1 1115) {45]
441 10 390 b

The cash elernent of nel rental income recognised during the year ended 31 March 2014 from propertes which were not subject to a security
interest was £22%m [2014/15 £182m] Properly operating expenses relating o investment praperties that aid not generate any renial income were
£1m {2014/15 £2m]} Contingent rents of £3m {2014/15 E£3m) were recognised in the year

4 Valuation movemonts on proporiy

2018 2015
Em fm
Consolidated income statement
Revaluation of properties 616 884
Revaluation of preperties held by joint ventures and funds accounted for using the equity method 245 589
8461 1 473
Consolidated statement of comprehensve income
Revalualion of owner-occupied properties 19 10
880 1483
5 \pditors” remuncration — PricewaterhouseCoopers 1 LP
016 2015
Em £m
Fees payable to the Company s auditors for the audit of the Company s annual accounts 0z 02
Fees paysble to the Company s auditors for the audit of the Company s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 04 04
Total audit fees 0é 06
Audil-related assurance services 01 01
Totat audit and audit-related assurance services 07 07
Other fees
Tax adwisory services - -
Other services 01 01
Total 08 038

In addition to the above PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were remunerated for non-audii fees in PREF an equity accounted property fund lses note 11)
The Group s share of fees tetalled €0 2m [2044/15 £0 2m) PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are not the external auditers to PREF
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O N\t Hnancing costs

2016 2013
£m m
Underlying
Financing charges
Bank loans overarafts and derivatives {300 13¢]
Qther loans (88) (88]
Obligations under head leases (21 12)
{1201 [124)
Development interest capitalised 9 14
{111 m2)
Financing income
Deposits securtties and hiquid investments 3 2
Loans to joint veniuras . 2 5
5 7
Net financing charges - underlying [104) (105)
Capial and other
Financing charges
Valuation movernents on translation of foreign currency debt 2 (1
Hedging reserve recycling (2 1
Valuation movernents on fair value derivatives 54 108
Valuation movements an fair value debt {53) 1104}
Recycling of far value movement on close-out of derivatives (8) (12
Capital inancing costs' (29) (2)
Fair value movemnent on converiible bonds - (351
Valuation movemnent on transtation of foreign currency net assets - M
Fatr value movement on non-hedge accounted derivatives - i1
[34) (47)
Financing income
Fair value movement an convertible bonds b4 -
Fair value movement on non-hedge accounted derivatives 1 -
465 -
Net financing income Icharges} - capital 31 (47)
Net financing costs
Tatal financing iIncome 70 7
Total inancing charges [145) [15%)
Net financing costs (7si 11521

' Primarily ¢ebenture bonds tender olfer and purchasa

Interest payable on unsecured bank loans and 1 elated interest rate derivatives was £19m [20146/15 £24m] Interest on development expenditure
15 capitalised at the Group s waighted average inlerest rate of 2 6% (2014/15 3 3%] The weighted average interest rate on a properuonately
consolidated basis at 31 March 2016 was 3 3% (201415 3 8%)
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7 Taxation

. 2014 2013
£€m £m

Taxation income [expense)
Current taxation

UK corporation taxation 20% [2014/15 21%l (15] (1
Adjustments in respect of prior yaars 17 -
Total current taxation income [expensel 2 (m
Deferred taxation on revaluations and dervatives 3 (23}
Group total taxation 33 [24]
Altributable to joint venlures and funds 1 2
Total taxation income lexpense) 32 [22]

Taxation reconciliation

Profit on ordinary achivities before taxation 1,331 1789
Less profit attributable to joint ventures and funds' 1397] [724)
Group profit on ordinary activities before taxation 934 1043
Taxatton on profil on ordinary activities at UK corporation Laxation (ate of 20% [2014/15 21%il {187) [223]
Effects of
REIT exempt income and gains 161 232
Taxation losses 11 {10l
Deferred taxation on revaluations and derivatives K} {231
Adjustments in respect of prior years 17 -
Group tolat taxatien income |expense) 13 (24

' Acurrentia<ation expense of E1m [2014/15 £2m expensel and a deferred taxation expense of Cril[2014/15 €4m credit) arose on profits attributable ta joint ventures
and funds

Taxation attributable to Underlying Profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 was a credit of £2m [2014/15 £nil} Corporation taxation payable al 31
March 2016 was £18m [2014/15 £9m] as shown on the balance sheat

8 Statt costs

2016 2015

Staff costs ineluding Directors) Em £m
Wages and salaries 57 50
Social security costs 7 b
Pension costs 7 )
Equity-settled share-based payments 10 14
81 76

The avarage monthly number of employees of the Company during the year was 260 (2014/15 249) The average monthly nurnber of Group
employees including those employed directly at the Group s properhies and thair costs recharged to lenanis was 692 [2014/15 598

The Execulive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are the kay management personnel Ther emoluments are summansed below and further
detail1s disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages 8610 110

2016 2015
Directors emoluments £m £m
Short term employee benefits 54 58
Service costin relation to defined benelt pension schemes 0z 02
Equity-seitled share-based paymenls 59 &4
135 124
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& Statt costs contnuved

Staff costs
The Group s equily-settled share-based payments comprise the Lang-Term Incentive Plan [LTIP] the Matching Share Plan {MSP] the Fund
Managers Performance Plan [FMPP) and various savings related share option schemes

The Company expenses an estimale of how many shares are likely to vesl based on the market price al the date of grant, taking account of expected
performance against the relevant performance largels and service pericds which are discussed in further detail 0 the Remuneration Report

For all schemes except the Company s Long-Term lncentive Plan share options the fair value of awards are equal to the market vatue al grant date
The key inputs used to value share oplions using a Black Scholes medel granted under the Company s Long-Term Incentive Plan are shown below

Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards in the year ended 31 March 2016 ” J?Erllg
Share price and exercise price at grant date 825p
Expected option life 1n years 7
Risk free rate 19%
Expected volatility 34%
Expected dividend yield 3%
Value per option 201p

Movements in shares and oplions are given in note 20

9 Pensions

The Briish Land Group of Campanies Pension Schemne [ Lhe scheme s the prinaipal defined benelit pension scheme 1n the Group The assels of the
scheme are held in a trustee-adrmimistered fund and kept separate from those of the Company It 1s not contracted out of SERPS [Stale Earnings-
Related Pension Schemel and it 1s not planned to admil new employees Lo the scheme The Group has three other small defined benefit pension
schemes Thereisalso a Defined Contribution Pension Scheme Contribufions to this scheme are at a flat rate of 15% of salary for non-Directors
and paid by the Company

Tne total net pension cosl charged for the year was £7m (2014/15 £&m) of which £4m [2014/15 £3mlrelates to defined contribution plans and £3m
[2014/15 £3m] relates to the current service cost of the defined benelit schemes

Afull actuanal valuation of the scheme was carried out at 31 March 2012 by consulting actuanies AON Hewitt Associates Ltd The employer s
contributions witl be paid in the future at the rate recommended by the actuary of 54 4% per annurn of basic salaries The best estimate of employer
canlributions expected to be paid during the year lo 31 March 201715 [3m The majer assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
% pa % pa % pa % pa % pa
Discount rate 32 31 Lk 41 [
Salary inflation 48 L8 52 47 57
Pensigns increase 32 32 35 3 3
Price mflation 33 33 37 32 32

The morlality assumnptions are based on standard mortality tables which allow for future mortality improvements The assumptions are that a
member currently aged 60 will Live on average for a further 2% 7 years il they are male and for a further 31 S years if they are lemale For a member
who retires in 2036 at age 60 the assumptions are that they witl live on average for a further 31 é years after reti gmentif they are male and for a
further 33 1 years after retirement if they are female

Composition of scheme assets

2015 2013

£m £m

Equities 52 55
Dwer sified growth funds 77 81
Cther assels 8 3
Total scheme assels 137 139

The vast majority of the scheme assets are quoted in an active market
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9 Penstons continued

The amount included 1n the balance sheet anising from the Group s obligatiens in respect of its defined benefit scherne 1s as follows

2014 2015 2014 2013 2012
£m £ Em £m £m
Present value of defined scheme obligations 43) [1£5] [125) (9] {107
Fair value of scheme assets 137 139 131 120 109
Irrecoverable surplus - - (6] (Y (2]
Liability recogmised ih the balance sheet (8] 18] - - -
History of experience gains and losses
2014 2005 2014 2013 2002
£m tm £m Crn £m
Tetal actuarial loss recogrised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive incorme’
Amount? (1]} 5] (2 14) (3}
Percentage of present value on scheme Liabilities 0 7% 3 6% 1 6% 31% 2 7%
' Movemenls stated after adjusting for irrecoverability of any surplus
Cumulative loss recogmised in the stalement of comprehensive income s £37m (2014/15 £36m])
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows
2014 2015
£tm Em
At 1 April (145} [125]
Current service cost (3) (3]
Interest cost (5) 5]
Actuarial gain [loss)
Gain from change in demegraphic assumptions - 14
Gain {loss| from change in financial assumptions 4 (321
Gainon scheme babilities arising from experience 3 4
Benefits paid 3 2
At 31 March 1143) (145)
Movements in the fair value of lhe scheme assets were as fotlows
2016 2015
£m £m
At 1 April 139 131
Interest income on scheme assets 4 ]
Contributions by employer 4 2
Acluanal lloss gain (7 2
Benelits paid 13} [2)
At 31 March 137 139

Through its definad benefit plans the Group is exposed to a number of risks the most significant of which are detailed below

Assetvolatility

The liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with a reference to cerporate bond yields f assets underperform this yield thiswill create
adehcit The scheme holds a sigmificant portion of growth assets lequities and diversified growth funds] which although expecied to outperform
corporate bonds in the leng term create volatility and risk in the short term The allecation lo growih assets 1s monstored to ensure it remamns

appropriate given the scheme s long term objectives

Changes n bond yields

A decrease in corporate bond vrelds will increase the value placed on the scheme s Labilities for accounung purposes although this will be partally

offset by an increase in the value of the scheme s bond holdings
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9 Pen~ions contimued

Inflation risk

The majority of the scheme s benafit obligations are linked 1o inflauon and higher inflation will lead to higher Liabilities [although  most cases caps
an the level gf inflationary increases are in place to protect against axtreme inflauen) The majonty of the assets are either unaffecied by or only
leosely correlated with inflation meaning that an increase minftation will also increase the deficit

Life expectancy

The majority of the scheme s obligations are to provide benefits for the Ufe of the member soincreases in lfe expectancy will resull in an increase

m the labilities

10 Property

Property reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2014

Canada Water was added as a properly sector in Lhe year reflacting the key role the campus has in the strategy ol the Group Consequently the prior

year comparatives in this nole have been restated lo reflect this addiional property sector

Investment
Investment
and
Retaill & Olhces & Canada development Owner-
leisure  residential Water Developmenls  properties Trading occupled
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Level3  properties Level 3 Total
£m £m Em £m £m fm Em Em
Carrying vatue at 1 April 2015 5,584 2,902 249 385 2120 274 60 9,454
Additrons
- properly purchases 4 234 - - 238 - - 238
- development expenditure [A & 1 43 54 59 - 13
- capitalised interest and stall cesls - - 1 3 [ 5 - 9
- capital expendiure on asset managament
inihiatives 91 24 1 - 16 - - 116
99 264 3 Lé 412 &4 - 474
Depreciation - - - - - - f (1
Disposals (372} (3o} - 7] (509] m - 15200
Reclassifications 135 22 - (172) (15) 2] 17 -
Revaluations mcluded in income stalement 181 359 4 a2 516 - - 616
Revaluation included in OCI - - - - - - 19 19
Movementin tenant incentives and contracied
rent upliit balances 10 9 - - 19 - - 19
Carrying value at 31 March 20146 5,817 3,436 256 334 9,643 325 95 10,063
Head lease Liabiliies [note 15] (a7l
Valuation surplus on trading properties 85
Group preperty pertfolio valuatiop at 31 March 2014 10,111
Non-controlling inlerests (324)
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2014 attributable to shareholders 9,787
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10 Properes conunued

Property reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2015

Investrment
Investment
and
Retall & Offices & Canada development
leisure  residenual Waier Developments  properties Trading Owner
Level 3 Laval 3 Level 3 Lavel 3 Level3  properties occupiad Total
£m fm Em £m Em £m tm Em
Carryingvalue at 1 Aprid 2014 4 356 2550 105 261 7,272 71 47 7,590
Additions
- property purchases & ~ 141 - 147 - - 147
- acquisition of subsidraries 1000 - - - 1,000 - - 1,000
- development expenditure 1 1 4 52 L] 46 - M4
- capiialised interest - - - - - 8 - 8
- capilal expenditure on asset management
initiatives 35 1 6 - 42 - - 42
1042 12 151 52 1,257 54 - 1,311
Depreciation - - - - - - 111 (1
Disposals [(219] 102 - (12l (333) {45 - (378
Rectassifications - [4) - 4 2 (&l 4 -
Revaluabons included in income statement 397 423 {7] 71 884 - - 884
Revaluation included in OCH - - - - - - 10 10
Movement in tenant mcenuves and conlractad
rent uplift balances 8 23 - 7 38 - - 38
Carrying value at 31 March 2015 5584 2902 249 385 9,120 274 50 9,454
Head lease Liabilities [note 15] (41}
Valualion surplus on trading propertias 6
Group preperty portfolio valuation at 31 March 2015 9,509
Non-controlbing interests [441]
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2015 attributable to shareholders 7,068

Property valuation
The difterent valuation method levels are defined below

Level 1 Quoted prices [unadjusted] in aclive markels foridentical assets or babilites

Level 2 inpuls cther Lthan quotad prices included within Level 1 thal are cbservabla for he asset or lability either direcily | e as prices) ar indirectly
{1 e derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs lor the asset or liability that ar e nol based on observable market data lunabservable inputs)

These levels are specified in accordance with IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement Property valuations are inherently subjective as they are made on
the basis of essumplions made by the valuer which may nol prove to be accurate For these reasons, and consistent with EPRA's guidance we have
classified the valuations of our property portfolio as Level 3 as defined by IFRS 13 The unobservable inputs to the valuations are analysed in the lable
an the following page

The Group s total property portfolio was valued by independent external valuers on the basis of fair value i accordance with the RICS Valuation
- Professional Standards 2014, ainth edition publbshed by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

The information provided to the valuers and the assumptions and valuations models used by the valuers are reviewed by the properly porifclio {eam
the Head of Offices the Head of Retail and the Chief Financial Officer The valuers meet with the external auditars and also present directly to the
Audit Committee at the iaterim and year end review of results Further details of the Audit Committee s responsibilities in relation to valuations can
be found in the Reporl of the Audit Committee [on pages 80 1o 33]
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10 Properts continued

Investment properties excluding properties held for development are valued by adopting the investment method of valuation This approach
involves applying capitalisation yields 1o currant and futura rental streams net of income voids anising from vacancies or rent-free periods and
associated running costs These capitalisation yields and iuture rentzl values are based on comparable property and leasing transactions in the
market using the valuers professional judgement and market observation Other factors taken into accountin the valuations include the tenure
of the property tenancy details and ground and structural conditions

Inthe case of ongoing developments the approach apptied is the residual method of valuation whichis the investment method of valuation as
descriped above with a deduction for all costs necessary to complele the development including a notional finance cost tagether with a further
allowance for remaining nisk Properties held for development are generally valued by adogting the higher of the residual method of valuation
allowing for all associated risks or the investment method of valuation for the existing asset

Copies of the valuation certificates of Knight Frank LLP and CBRE can be found at www britishland com/reports
Within their valuation report CBRE have highlighted that they expect considerable uncertainty to arise if there 1s a decision for the UK to exit the
€l following the referendum on 23 June 2016 and that this has the potental to reduce investment volumes and quidity This 1s a forward-looking

statement which has noimpact on the valuations as at 31 March 2015

A breakdown of valuations split between the Group and its share of joint ventures and funds 15 shown below

2016 2015

. Jomt Joint

ventures and ventures and
Group funds Total Group funds Total
£m £m £m £ tm €m
Knight Frank ILLP 7,929 3,576 11,108 6795 3313 10108
CBRE 2,582 1,361 3,943 2714 1401 4115
Total property portfolic valuation 10,11 4,937 15,048 9509 4714 14223
Nan-conlrolling interests (324) 176) 1400} [441] [105} (546}

Total property portfolio vatuation

attributable to shareholders 9.787 4,851 14,648 90468 4 609 13 477

Information about fair value measurements using unobservable inputs [Level 3)

ERY per sq ft Equivalent Yield Costs to complete persqg it
Fair value at
31 March 20146 Yaluation Min Max  Average Min Max  Average Men Max  Average
Investment £m technique [ € £ % % % £ E £
Investment
Retail & leisure 5,608 methedology 2 75 22 3 " 5 - 45 8
Invesiment
Qffices & residenual’ 3,492 methodology 4 136 53 1 8 4 - 150 15
Invesiment ,
Canada Water 250 methodology 15 25 22 1 5 3 - 5 4
Residual
Developments? 343 methodology 65 107 73 4 5 4 - bb4 447
Total 9,693
Trading properlies
at fair value 418

Group property
portfolio valuaticn 1011

'Includes owner-occupled
Includes Residential with an average capitai value per sq ft of £1028 including developments at end value and mixed use
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10 Property conunued

All other factors being equal

- a higher equivalent yield or discount rate would lead to a decrease in the valuation of an asset
- anincrease in the current or estimated future rental stream would have the effect of iIncreasing the capital value and
- anincrease in the costs to complete would tead to a decrease in the valuation of an asset

However there arz interrelabionships between the unobservable inpuls which are partially determined by market cenditions which would 1mpact

on these changes There were no transfers between valuation levels in the period

Additional property disclosures - including covenant information

Al 31 March 2016 the Group property porlislio valuatien of £10 111m [2016/15 £9509mi comprises [reeholds of £6 184m [201£/15 £6 098m] wirtual
fresholds of £906m [2014/15 £811m] and long leaseholds of £3 021m (2014715 €2 600m] The hustorical cost of properties was £6 544m [2014/15 Lo 582m]

The property vatuation does not include any invesiment properties held under operating leases [2814/15 £l

Cumulative interest caprialised against nvestment develepment and trading properttes amounts to £88m [2014/15 £81m)

Praperties valued at £2 559m {2014/15 £2 479m) were subject to a secunty interest and other proper lies of non-recourse companies ameunted

to £1244m [2014/15 £1365m) totalling £3 803m [2(14/15 €3 844m)

Includad within the property valuationss £110m [2014/15 £102m)in respect of accrued contractled rantat uplift ncome

11 ot ventures and founds

Summary movement {or the year of the investments in joint ventures and funds

venl{:t:l:s: Funds Total Equity Loans Total

tm £m £m £m Em £m

At 1 April 2015 2584 315 2,501 2598 303 2,901
Additions 26 - 246 14 232 246
Disposals (2] 1134 115) - (15 (15)
Share of profit on ordinary activiies afler taxation 365 32 397 397 - 397

Distriputions and dividends

-Capital - (74} (74) (74] - (78)
- Revenue (<0l [13) (103) {103 - (103)
Hedging and exchange movemenls 4 " 3 3 - 3
At 31 March 2016 3109 2644 3,353 2833 520 3,353

Additional investments in joint ventures and funds covenant information

AL 31 March 2016 the investments in joint ventures mcluded within the total investrments in joint ventures and funds was £3 348m [2014/15 £2 869ml
being the £3 353m tolal investment shown above less Lhe net investment of £5m [2014/15 £32m] in PREF aproperty fundin Continental Europe
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11 Jomt sentutres and funds continued

The summanisad income statements and balance sheets below and on the following page show 100 of the resutts assets and tabilities of joint
veniures and funds Where necessary these have been reslated to the Group s accounting policies

Joint ventures and funds summary financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Broadgale MSC Properly BL Sainsbury

REIT Intermediale Superstores Tesco Jont
Lid Holdings Ltd Ltd Ventures

Norges Bank

Eurc Bluebell LLP Invastment
Pariners 1GIC] Management J Sainsbury plec Tesco PLC

City Offices  Shopping Centres
Proper ty sector Broadgale Meadowhall Superslares Superstores
Group share 50% 50% 50% 50%
Summarised income statements Em Lm fm Em
Revenue® 244 102 56 19
Cosls 48] (23 ] -
196 79 55 19
Adrmimstrative expenses - - - -
Net inleres| payable (86 [38) 124 1)
Underly:ing Profit 110 43 k1 10
Netvalyation movement 334 50 {38l (9)
Profit on disposal of investmenl properties and investments - - 2 -
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 444 93 13 1
Taxatian - - - 1
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation Li4 93 (3] 2
Othar compreheansive income [expendiurel 5 - - 3
Total comprehensive income 449 93 [3) 5
British Land share of total comprehensive income 225 46 (2] 3
British Land share of distributions payable 1 17 11 4
Summarised balance sheets £m Em Em Em
{investment and trading preperties 4622 1786 946 354
Current assels 4 5 2 -
Cash and deposils 293 32 80 b
Gross assets 4,919 1,823 1,028 380
Current biabilities 77 [31] {30} {3l
Bank and securitised debt [t 842] 1694] 1662 {184)
Other non-current babilities |65] [24) - (151
Gross lizbilities (1,984) (7491 (49214 (202}
Net external assets 2,935 1,074 534 158
British Land share of net assets 1,467 537 269 79

Tesco joml ventures include BLT Hotdings §2018) Limited as at 31 March 2016

USS joint veniures include the Eden Walk Shopp ng Centre Unit Trust and the Fareham Properly Partnership
Hercules Unit Trust joint ventures and sub-funds includes 50 .4 of the results of Deapdale Co-Ownership Trust Gibraliar Limited Partnership and Valenbine Co Ownership
Trust and 41 25+, of Birsiall Co-Qwnership Trusl The balance sheet shows 50 % of the assets of these jaint ventures and sub funds

Included in the column headed Other joint ventures and funds are centributions from the foltowing BL Goodman Limited Partnership The Aldgale Place Limited

Partnership Bluebulien Property Management UK Limited City of London Qffice Unit Trust and Pillar Retail Europark Fund [PREF) The Group s ownership share
of PREF 15 657 however as the Group s not able to exercise control over sigmihicant decisions of the fund the Group equily accounts for its interest in PREF
Revenue includes gross rental income at 100° share of £451m [2014/15 £499m|
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uss Leadenhall Hereules Unit Trust Other ToTAL
The SouthGate Limited Jaint Holding Co fomt ‘entures Jawnt ventures TOTAL Group share
Partnership Ventures [Jersey) Lid and sub-funds and funds 2016 2015
Universtlies
Superannuation
Aviva Scheme Group Oxlord
Inveslors PLC Properlies
Shopping Shopping City Offices Retar
Centres Centres Leadenhall Parks
50% 50% 50% Various
m fm Em £m £m £m £m
19 12 35 38 ) 531 266
(8] 13} {10} 7] I 199) (44)
13 9 25 i 5 432 222
il - m (6} (2} (10 (5
1l - - 18} - 1164) (82)
il 9 24 17 258 135
A 12 124 4 490 245
- - - - 30 32 18
15 21 148 21 40 780 398
- - - - [3} 121 1))
15 21 48 21 37 778 397
- - - 12 - ] 3
i 15 21 148 19 37 784 400
8 11 74 10 25 400
b 3 59 31 179
£Em £m £m £m £m €m £m
267 252 942 612 108 9.889 4,944
2 1 - 4 14 32 18
5 7 5 g 33 470 239
274 250 947 425 155 10,391 5,201
14 5] 8l 7 (51) (215) (111
- - - (13% - (3,321) (1,660]
28} - - (4] 118) [154) (771
132) (&) (&) {150) (49) (3,690) 1,848]
242 254 41 475 8é 4,701 3,353
121 128 471 237 L4 3,353

The borrow ngs of joint ventures and funds and their subsid aries are non-recourse to the Group Al joint /entures are incarporated in the United Kingdom with
the excephon of Broadgate REIT Limited the Eden Walk Shopping Centre Uit Trust and Leadenhall Holding Co[Jersey] Limited which are incarperated in Jerses
Gf Lhe funds the Hercules Uit Trust [HUT} joint ventures and sub-funds are incarpor ated in Jersey and PREF in Luxembourg

These financial statements include the results and hinancial posibion of the Group s interest in the Fareham Property Partnership the Aldgate Place Limited Partnership
the BL Goodman Limited Partnership the Auchinlea Partnership and the Gibraltar Lirited Partnership Accordingly advantage has been taken of the exemptions
prowded by Regulation 7 of the Partnership |Accounts] Regulations 2008 not to attach the partnership accounts to these inancial stalements
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Jomnt scutures and tunds continued

The summansed income statements and balance sheets below and on the foilowing page show 100% af the resulls assets and babibiies of joint
ventures and funds Where necessary these have been restated to Lthe Group s accountng policies

The prior year comparatives below have been repressnted to reflect the presentatron adopted in the current period

Joint ventures and funds summary financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Broadgale MSC Property BL Sainsbury

REIT inlermediate Superstores Tesco Joint
Lid Holdings Ltd Lid Ventures

Morges Bank

Euro Bluebell LLP Investment
Partners IGIC Management J Sainsbury ple Tesco PLC

City Offices  Shopping Centres
Properiy seclor Broadgale Meadowhatl Superstores Superstores
Group share 50% 50% 50% 50%
Summarised income statements Em Em £m Em
Revenue 214 24 40 97
Cosls 150k [19) - 5]
164 75 50 92
Adrmunistralive expenses i1 - - ]
Nelinlerest payable (88} (38 [28] (50)
Underlying Profit 75 37 32 41
Net valualion movernent 664 141 14 ¥
Profit on dispasal of invesiment properhes and investments - - £3) {4)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 739 198 43 54
Taxation - - - 9
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 739 198 43 63
Other comprehensive [expanditure) ncome {21) 17] 4 b
Total comprehensive income 718 171 47 49
British Land share of total comprehensive income 359 %6 24 35
British Land share of distributions payable 15 2 42 37
Summanised balance sheets £m Em £m £m
Investment and trading properties 4209 1719 1039 363
Current assets 5 5 3 -
Cash and deposits 272 32 25 b
Gross assets 4,486 1,756 1,067 369
Current Uabilines (82| 3y (26 15]
Bank and securitised debt (2142] 1721) 1478] [184]
Other non-current habilities [64]) {24 - (201
Gross liabiities |2,288) (776) (504) (209)
Net external assets 2,198 980 563 160
Briish Land share of net assets 1,099 490 282 80
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Uss Leadanball Hercules Unit Truss Other TOTAL TOTAL
The SouthGate Lirmiled Joint Hold ng Co Joint vantures (ot ventures Group share
Partriershqp Ventures [erseyl Ltd and sub-tunds and funds 015 2015
Universitres
Superannuation
Aviva Scheme Group Oxford
Investers PLC Propartigs
Shopping Shopping City Offices Ratail
Cenlres Centres L_eadenhall Parks
50% 50% 50% Various
£m £m Em £ £m £m £m
14 1 15 53 15 573 289
1] {3 (%) ] (3 (96) [49]
3 8 b 47 12 4717 240
n - - - i3i ] (4
M - -~ {5l 2) 1212) (107
" 8 6 42 7 259 129
24 25 201 63 - 117 589
- - - 1] 16 8 6
37 33 207 104 23 1,438 724
- - - - (2! 7 2
37 33 207 104 21 1,445 726
- - - [l 10 (29} {13)
37 33 207 103 1 1,416 713
19 17 104 b2 7 713
4 & - 37 - 141
Em Em Em £m £m £Em £m
262 235 770 706 140 9.443 4,719
2 - 2 2 23 42 25
2 9 4 1 21 382 192
266 244 776 719 184 9,867 4,936
(4] 14} 14} 17} (651 1228) (1191
- - - [127) - [3,652] [1,827]
|28) - - {1) {44) {181] (89]
132] 14) 14} (1351 [109) 14,0411 2,035}
234 240 772 584 75 5,806 2,901
17 120 ki1 283 [1) 2,901
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NOTES 7O THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

L1 Tomnt ventures and funds continued

Operating cash flows of joint ventures and funds [Group share)

2014 2045
£m Em
Rental income receved from tenants 208 234
Fees and olhar ingome received ] 1
Gperating expenses paid Lo suppliers ang emgloyees (18] 126
Cash generated from operations 191 209
Interest paid 1] [114]
Interest receved 1 2
UK corporation tax pawd x]] 171
Foreign tax paid il 12)
Cash inflow from operating activities - 102 88
Cash inflow from operating activities deployed as
Surplus cash retained within joint veniures and funds 174 15
Revenue distributions per consobdated statement of cash flows 58 73
Revenue distributions split between controlling and non-controlling interests
Altributable to non-conlrothing interests 4 7
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 54 0é
12 Other imestments
2016 2015
Investment Leans, investment Loans
held for  receivables heldfor  recewables
trading and other Total trading and other Total
Em £m £m Em Em Em
At 1 April 99 280 379 92 170 262
Additions - 15 35 - 113 13
Disposals - 272 (272} - {2} 12)
Revaluation 2 - 2 7 - 7
Cepreciation - 12) 12) - il )]
Ai 3+ March 101 41 142 99 280 379

The investment held 10r trading comprises interasis as a trust beneficiary The trust s assets comprise {reshold reversions in a pool of commercial
properties comprising Sainsbury s superslores The interesl was calegorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy 1s subject to the same inputs as

those disclosad in note 10 and its fair value was determined by independent external valuers

Included within the loans recevables and other balance 1s £nil [2014/2015 £243m] in relation to a loan Lo the Broadgate joint venture whichis

carrad &t amoruised cost and was fully repaid in the year
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LY Dibtors

2016 2015

Em £m

Trade and other debtors 24 16
Prepavmenls and accrued income 9 [
33 20

Trade and ather debtors are shown after deducting a provision for bad and doubtiut debts of £16m [2014/15 £16m) The charge te the income

statement in relabien to bad and doubtful debts was £1m [2014/15 {1Im]

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other debtors 1s approximate to their farr value There 1s no cancentration of cradit risk

wilh respect to lrade debtors as the Group has a large number of customers who are paying their rent in advance

As at 31 March trade and other debters ouiside their payment terms yat not provided for are as follows

Qutside credit terms but not impa red

Within credit More than

Total terms  0-1month 1-2 maonths 2 months

£Em £m Em Em £m

2014 24 12 1 1 -

2015 16 kd 7 - -
14 Creditors

2016 2015

€m tm

Trade crediiors 39 61

Other taxation and social security 34 3

Accruals 72 98

Deferred incomne 73 71

218 261

Trade creditors are interest-free and have selilement dates within one year The Or ectors cansider that the carrying amount of trade and other

craditars 1s approximate ta their fair value

15 Other non-cunrent labelities

2016 2015
£m tm
Other ¢reditars 70 32
Head leases’ 4b 41
Net pensign liabilities 6 4
122 79

' Includes £9m n relation to head lease abibties on trading properties held at cost
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

16 Deferred tan
The movement on deferred tax s as shown below

Deferred tax assels year ended 31 March 2016

1 April Credited to Credited ldebited) Transferred to 31 March
2015 income to equity icint ventures 2016
£m Em £Em Em £m
Interesi rate and currency gerivauve revaluations - - 5 - 5
QOther siming ditferences - [ - - ]
- 3 5 - 13
Deferred tax liabiities year ended 31 March 2014
Em £m £m £m £m
Property and invesiment revaluations (51 - (2) - 17)
Interest rate and currency derivative revaluations ’ (&) 25 121 - -
Other uming differences {3) - - 2 1]
(121 25 {23) 2 i8)
Net deferred tax [bability) asset (121 31 118) 2 3
Deferred tax assets year ended 31 March 2015
1 April Expensed Credited to Transferred to 31 March
2014 o income equ ly ot ventures 2015
Em tm £m ftm Em
Deferred tax Liabilities year ended 31 March 2015
£m tm £m £m Em
Property and investment revaluatiens - (s} - - {s!
Interest rate and currency derivalive revaiuations - (19] 15 - [4}
Other iming differences i4) i - - (3)
(4] 123} 15 - (12)
Net deferred tax [Labtlity) asset f4) [23) 15 - {12]

The following corparation tax rates have been substantively enacted 20% effective from 1 Aprit 2015 reducing io 19% elfective from 1 April 2017
and 18% effecuve from 1 April 2020 The deferred tax assets and liabilittes have been calculated al the lax rate effective in the penod that the tax 1s
axpected to crystallise

The Group has recognised & deferred tax asset calculated at 18% [2014/2015 20%) of £6m [2014/2015 End] in respect of capilal losses from previous
years avarlable for offset agamsi future capstal prohit Further unrecognised delerred tax assels in respect of capitat losses of £60m [2014/2015
£87mj exist at 31 March 2014

The Group has recogrised deferred tax assels on dervailve revaluations te the extent that future matching taxable pralits are expecled to arise

At 31 March 2014 the Group had an unrecognised deflerred lax asset calculated at 18% [2014/2015 20%] of £51m [2014/2015 £38mlinrespect of UK
revenue 1ax losses from previous years

Under the REIT regime development properlies which are sold within three years of camplelien do not benefit from tax exempuion AL 31 March 2015

the value of such properties 1s £967m §2014/2015 £1008m) and if these properties were Lo be sold and no lax exemption was available the tax arising
would be £56m [2014/15 £66m)
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17 Net debt

2014 2015
Footno'e £m £m

Secured on the assets of the Group
9125% First Mortgage Debenture Stock 2020 1 34 35
5 264% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2035 an 355
5 0055% First Marigage Amortrsing Debentures 2035 100 99
5 357% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2028 349 34k
& 75% First Mortgage Oebenture Stock 2020 42 176
Bank loans 1213 733 G463
Loan notes 2 2
1,651 1974

Unsecured
5 50% Semior Notes 2027 0 98
6 30% Senior US Dollar Notes 2015 - 104
3 895% Senior US Dollar Notes 2018 2 28 28
4 635% Senior US Dottar Notes 2021 2 165 158
4 T656% Senior US Collar Notes 2023 2 105 59
5 003% Serior US Dellar Notes 2026 2 49 &4
3 81% Senior Motes 2026 n3 i
3 97% Senior Noles 2026 1146 14
1 5% Convertible Bond 2017 445 493
0% Convertible Bend 2020 334 -
Bank loans and overdrafts 634 706
2,110 1975
Gross debt 3 3,761 3549
Interest rate and currency derivative liab lities 137 124
Interest rate and currency gerivaiive assets {167} {1391
Cash and short term deposits 45 1114) {108!
Total net debt 3,617 3828
Net debt attributable to non-controlling .nterests (104) (190}
Netdebt attributable to sharehotders of the Company 3,513 3438
These are non recourse borrowings with no recourse for repayment to other companies or assets in the Group

2046 2015
Em £m
11 BLD Property Holdings Ltd 34 35
1 2Hercules Uit Trust 443 645
1 3TBL Properlies Limited and subsidiaries 230 318
767 998

Prnncipal and interest on this barrowing was fully hedqed into Sterling at a fleating rate at the me of issue

The principal amount of gross debt at 31 March 2016 was £3 552m {2014/15 £3 717m Inctuded in this is the principal amount of secured borrowings and other

borrowings of non-recourse companies of £1 563m of which the borrowings cf the partly owned subsidiary Hercules Unit Trust not beneficially owned by the Group

is £10%m

Included wiift v cash and short term depasils s the cash and short 1erm depostls of Herculas Unit Trust of which £8m s the propor tion not benaficially ewned

by the Group

Cash and deposits not subject 1¢ a secursly nterest amount to £93m [2034/15 £84mt
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17 Net debt conunued

Maturity analysis of net debt

2015 2015

€m Em

Repayable within one year and on demand 74 102
Between one and two years 504 7
two and five years 1,471 1707

five and ten years 807 943

ten and filteen years 500 747

fifteen and twentyyears 385 )

twenty and twenty five years - 373

3,687 3 847

Gross debt 3,781 J 949
Interest rate and currency dervalives [30) (13)
Cash and short term deposits 114) {108)
Net debt 3.617 3828

1 5% Convertible bond 2012 [maturity 2017)
On 10 September 2012 Britsh Land [Jersey] Limited (the 2012 Issuer) awholly-owned subsidiary of the Group issued £400 million | 5% guaranteed
convertible bonds due 2017 [the 2012 bonds] at par The 2012 Issuer 1s fully guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2012 bonds

Subject to their terms the 2012 bonds are convertible inio preference shares of the 2012 Jssuer which are automaticatly transferred ta the Company in
exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or at the Company s election any combinatian of ardinary shares and cash Bondholders may exercise
their conver sien right ¢t any ime up to [but excluding] the 2(ih dealing day before 10 September 2017 |the maturity date]

The smitial exchange price was 693 07 pence per ordinary share The exchange price 1s adjusted based on certain evenls

From 25 September 2015 the Company has the aption to redeem the 2012 bonds at parif the Company s share price has traded above 130% of

the exchange price {or a spectfied period or at any ume once §5% by nominal valuz of the 2012 bonds have been converied redeemed or purchasad
and cancelled The 2012 bonds will be redeemed 3t par on 10 September 2017 [the maturity date] if they have not already been converted redeemed
or purchased and cancelled Noredemption of the bonds occurred in the year

0% Convertible bond 2015 [maturity 2020)
0On % June 2015 British Land (White] 2015 Limited [the 2015 lssuer] a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group :ssued £350 million zera coupon
guaranteed convertible bonds due 2020 (the 2015 bonds) at par The 2015 Issuer 1 {ully guaranieed by the Company in respect of the 2015 bonds

Subject lo their tarms the 2015 bonds are cenverlible into preference shares of the issuer which are automalically transferred to the Company In
exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or, at the Company s election any combination of ardinary shares and cash From 20 Juiy 2015 up to
and mcluding 29 June 2018 a bondholder may exercise its conversion right if ihe share price has traded at a level exceeding 130% of the exchange
price for a specilied period Thereafter and up to but excluding the 7th dealing day before 9 June 2020 [the maturity datel a bondhalder may convert
atany tme

The imitial exchange price was 1103 32 pence per ordinary share The exchange price 1s adjusted based on certam events (such as the Company
paying dividends in any year above 14 18 pence per ordinar y sharel

From 30 June 2018 the Company has lhe option to redeem the 2015 bonds at par if the Company s share price has traded above 120% of the
exchange price for a specified period or at any ume once 85% by nominal value of the 2015 bonds have been converted redeemed or purchased
and cancelled The 2015 bonds will be redeemed at par on 9 June 2020 [the maturity datelii they have not already been converted redeemed or
purchased and cancelled
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17 Net debt conunued

Fair value and book value of net debt

2018 2015

Fair value Beokvalue  Difference Farvalue Bookvalue  Difference

£m £m tm fm Em Em

Debentures and unsecured bonds 1,437 1,613 24 1925 1785 W
Convertible bends 779 779 - 493 493 -
Bank debt and other floaling rate debt 1,384 1,369 15 1651 167 20
Gross debt 3,800 3,7561 39 4109 3949 180
Interest rate and currency derivative liabililies 137 137 - 126 126 -
Interest rate and currency derwative assets 11871 (167) - [139) {139] -
Cash and short term deposis 1114) {114) - [108]) [108) -
Netdebt 3,456 3.617 39 3998 3828 1460
Nel debt aitribulable ta non-contralling interests (106) {104) (2) [#92] [170) (2}
Net debt attributable to shareholders of the Company 3,550 3,512 37 3796 3638 153

Thefair values of debt debentures and the convertble bonds have been established by oblaining guoted market prices from brokers The bank debt
and loan noles have been valued assuming they could be renegotiated at contractea margins The denvatives have been valued by caleulating the
present value of expected future cash flows using appropriate market disceunt rates by an ndependent treasury adviser

Short term debtors and creditors and other invesiments have been excluded from the disclosures on the basis thal the fair value I1s equivalent

10 the hook value

Group loan to value LTV}

2016 2015

£m Em

Group loan to value [LTV) 25% 28%
Principal amount of gross debt 3,552 3717
Less debi attributable to non controtling interests (1091 (2001
Less cash and shorl term deposits [balance sheet] 1114) [t08)
Plus cash attributable to nen-controlling interests 8 10
Total net debt for LTV calculation 3,337 3419
Group properiy portfolio valuation inate 10) 10,1 9509

Investmenls in jornt venturas and funds [note 11 3,353 2901
Other mvestments [note 12] 142 379
Less properly and investments atiriutable to non-conirolling interests [384) (528)

Total assets for LTV calculation 13,222 12 251

Proportronally consolidated loan to value (LTV]

2014 2015

£m Em

Proportionatly consolidated loan te value (LTV) 32% 35%
Principal amount of gross debt 5,217 5404
Less debi attributable to non-controlling interests (128) {2006t
Less cash and short term deposis (3531 [300]
Plus cash atiributable to non-controlling interests ? 10
Total net debt for proportional LTV calcutation 4,745 4914
Group property partiolso valuation [nate 10} 10,111 9509
Share of preperty of joint ventures and funds [note 10} 4,937 4714
Olheravestments Inote 12) 162 37¢
Less other investments attributable io joint ventures and funds (4) 123}
Less property alinibutable to non-cantrolling inigrests [400) (546}
Total assets for proportional LTV calculation 14,786 13933
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17 Net debt conunued

British Land Unsecured Financial Covenants
The two financial covenants applicable to the Group unsecured debt including convertible bonds are shown below

2016 2015

Em £m

Net Borrowings not to exceed 175% of Adjusted Capital and Reserves 34% 8%
Principal amount of gress debt 3,552 377
Less the relevant proporuion of berrowings of the partly-owned seosidiary/nen-contrelling interests 1109] [2001
Less cash and deposits [balance sheet) 14 1108l
Plus the relevant proportion of cash and deposits of the partly-owned subsidiary/non-conirotling interests 8 10
Net Borrowings 3,337 3419
Share capital and reserves [balance sheet] 9,61% 8545
EPRA deferred tax adjustment (EPRA Table Al 5 13
Trading property surptuses {EPRA Table Al 93 96
Exceplianal refinancing charges [see below| 287 300
Fair value adjustments of financial Instruments [EPRA Table Al 198 257
Less reserves attributabla 1o nen controlling intarests |balance sheel] {277) (333
Adjusted Capital and Reserves 9,925 8898

In calculaung Adjusled Capital and Reserves far the purpose of the unsecured debt financial covenants there s an adjustment of £287m 12014/15
£300mi to reflect the cumulative net amortised exceptional ilems relating to the refinancings in the years ended 31 March 2005 2006 and 2007

208 2015
£m m
Net Unsecured Borrowings not to exceed 70% of Unencumbered Assets 29% 28%
Principal amount of gross debt 3,552 27
Less cash and deposiis nol subjact 1o a security interest [being £93m less the relevant proportion of cash and deposils of the
partly owned subsidiary/non-controlling interests of £5m]| (88] {771
Less principal amount of secured and non-recourse borrowings 11,543) [1904]
Net Unsecured Borrowings 1,901 1734
Group property portfolio valuation [note 10] 10,111 9509
Investments in joint venlures and funds [note 11) 3,353 2901
Cther investments Inote 12] 142 379
Less mvesiments In joint ventures [note 1) (3,348) 12869]
Less encumbared assets [note 10 [3,803) 13 844)
Unencumbered Assets 6,455 60756

150 British Land  Annual Reportand Accounts 2016




17 Net debt continued

Reconciliation of movement in Group net debt for the year ended 31 March 20146

Arrangement
Business Foreign costs
2015 Cashflows combinations Transfers® exchange Far vatue amortisation 2016
Shart term borrowings 102 (104) - 74 2 - - 74
Long term berrowings 3,847 {98] - 174) 14 (5 7 3.687
Derivatives’ [13) 22 - - (13) {25} - (30)
Total Liabilities from financing activities 3936 (180) - - 3 (35) 7 3,731
Cash and cash equivalents 1os} (6) - - - - - 1114)
Netdebt 3,828 1184) - - 3 (35} i 3.617
Reconcibation of movement in Group net debt for the year ended 31 March 2015
Arrangerment
Business Foreign costs
014 Cashflows combinations Transiers exchange Farvalue  amortisation 2015
Short term borrowings 495 §495] - 102 - - - 102
Long term borrowings 2803 614 379 1102} 40 104 7 3847
Derivatives? 25 [4] - ~ [47] 13 - 113]
Total lighititres from hnancing activities 3323 17 379 - 17 117 7 393
Cash and cash equivalents [142] 34 - - - - - [108)
Netdebt 1181 151 379 - {7l 117 7 3828
' Cash flows on derivatives incluge C7m of net receipts on dervative interest
Cash flows on derivatives incluge EBm of net receipts on dervative interest
Transiers carnprises debt maturing irom long term ta short larm barrowings
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17 Net debt contunued

Farr value hierarchy

The table betaw provides an analysis of financial instruments carried at fa 7 value by the valyalion method The fair vatue hierarchy levels are deined

innote 10
2015 2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tolal
Em tm £m Em £m Em L £
Inlerest raie and currency derivative assats - (1671 - 187) - (139] - [139]
Other investments - held for trading - - o1l 1101} - - 1991 (99)
Assets - 167] 1101) 12568) - (139 199 (238]
Interesi rate and currency derivative Liab:lities - 137 - 137 - 126 - 126
Convertible bonds 779 - - 779 493 - - 493
Liabilities 779 137 - 916 493 124 - 519
Total 779 (30] {101 648 493 N3l (99l 381
Categories of financial mstruments
2016 2013
£m Em
Financial assets
Fair value through income statement
Otner investments - held for trading 101 g9
Dertvatives in designated hedge accounting relatienships 164 139
Dervatives not 1n designated hedge accounting relationships 3 -
Amortised cost
Trade and other debiors 24 16
Cash and short term deposits 14 108
Other investments - loans and recevables Al 280
LA7 642
Financial abilities
Fair value through income statement
Convertible bonds (7791 (£93)
Derivativesn designated hedge accounting relationships (1371 {124
Amortised cost
Gross debt (2,982] 13 £56)
Head leases payable A ta1l
Creditors 133) 1178]
(4,077) 14 294)
Total 13,6301 13 6532

Gains and losses on financial instruments as ctassed above are disclosed in note é |nat financing costs} note 13 [debtors) note 4 |valuation

movements on propertyl the cansclidaled income statement and the consolidated stalement ol comprehensive income The Direciors consider that
the carrying amounts of other investments and head leases payable are approximate to Lhair fair value and that Lhe carrying amounts are recoverable
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17 Net debt conunued

Capital risk management

The capual struciure of the Group censists of net deot and equity attrioutable 1o the equity holders of The Briish Land Company PLC comprising
1ssued capital reserves and retained earmings Risks relating to capitat siructure are addressed within managing risk i delivering our siralegy on
pages 5710 63 The Group s objectives policies and processes for managing debt are set out in the financial policies and principtes on pages 54 (o 56

interest rate nsk management
The Group usas Interest rate swaps to hedge exposure 1o the variability in cash flows on floating rale debt such as revelving bank facilities and

floating rate bonds caused by movernenis in market rates of interest

At 31 March 2014 the fair value of these gerivatives 1s a net liability of £136m  Interest rate swaps with a fair value of £137m have been designated
as cash flow hedgas under {AS 3%

The ineffectiveness recagnised in the income stalemant on cash flow hedges in the year ended 31 March 2016 was £t [2014/15 Enil]

The cash flows occur and are charged to profit and loss until the maturily of the hedgea debt The table below summarises variable rale debt and
foreign currency denominated debt hedgad at 31 March 2014

Cash flow hedged debt |
2016 2015 |
Etm £m |
Quistanding  al one year 413 1138
al two years 663 538
al five years 250 450
al [en years 250 250

Fair value hedged debt
The Group uses inlarest rate swaps lo hedge exposure on fixed rate financral labihibies caused by movements in market raies of interest

At 31 March 2014 the fair valuz of these darivalivas 15 a net assel of £166m Interestrale swaps with a fair vatue of £164m have been designated as
fairvalue hedges under 1AS 39 [2014/15 asset of £133m)

The cross currency swaps of the 2018/2021/2023/2026 US Private Placements fully hedge the foreign exchange exposure a{ an average iloating rate
of 146 basis points above LIBOR These have been designaled as fair value hedges of the US Privale Placements

Interest rate profile - including effect of derivatives

2014 2015

Em €

Fixed or capped rate 2,372 72589
Variable rate [net of cash] 1,245 1239
3,617 3828

All the debt 15 effectively Sierting denominated except for £10m (204415 £39m] of Euro debl of which Erulis al a fixed rate {2014/15 £36ml .

At 31 March 2016 the weighted average interest raie of ihe Sterling fixed rate debt 15 3 5% [2014/15 4 8% The weighted average period for which the
rate1s fixed 15 9 1 years [2014/15 71 years| The floating rate deblis set for periods of the Company s choosing at the relevant LIBOR [or stmilar] rate

The proportion of net debi al fixed or capped rates of interesl was 66% at 31 March 2016 on a spot basis The proporuon of nat debt al fixed or capped
rates af nterest as an average over the naxt five-year forecast period on a proportionally consolidated basis was 0% at 31 March 20146 Based on
the Group s interest rate profile at the balance sheet date, a 576 bps increase in interest rates would decrease annual profits by £72m [2014115
£53m decrease] Similarly a 59 bps reducuon would increase profits by E7m {204/15 £5m increase] The change ininterest rates used for this
sensiivity analysis 1s based on the largest annual change in three month Sterling LIBOR over tha last tenyears Theimpact assumes LIBOR

does not tall below 0%
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17 Net debt continued

Interest rate profile - including effect of dervatives conunued

Upward movemeants in medum and tong term inierest rates associated wilh higher interest rate expectations ncrease the value of the Group s
nterest rate swaps thal provide pratection against suchmoves The carverse s true for downward movernents in the yield curve The majority of the
Group s nteresl raie swaps which provide such protection qualify as effective cash flow hadges under 1AS 39 Lherefare movements in the {arr value
are recognised directly in equity rather than the income statement A 204 bps shifi represents the largest annual change 1n the seven-year Sterling
swap rate over the last lenyears Ar31 March 2016 a 204 bps parallel upward shilt in swap rates would increase the value of these mterest rate
swaps by [151m [2014/5 £151ml A 204 bps downward shit in swap rates would reduce the value of these interest rale swaps by £197m [2014/15
£155m} Because lhe interest rate swaps are maiched by floating rale debt the averal effect on Group cash flows of such movements s mimmal

The 1 5% 2012 Converi:ble Bond and 0% 2015 Converubtle Bond are both designated as fair valua through prolit or loss Principal components of the
market value of both bonds include British Land s share price and its votatlity and market interest rates

The fair value of the 1 5% 2012 Convertible Bond ai 31 March 2014 was 3 €445m bability At 31 March 2016 a 204 bps parallel upward shift in interest
rates would reduce the fair value hability by E13m and a 204 bps downward shilt ininterest rates would increase the fair vatue lability by £14m

The fair vatue of the 0% 2015 Convertible Bond at 31 March 2016 was a £334m Liability At 31 March 2016 a 204 bps parallel upward shift ininterest
rates would reduce the fair value biability by £27m and a 204 bps downward shiftin interast rates would increase the fair vatue Liability by £30m

Foreign currency nsk management

The Group s policy 1s o have no materal unhedged net asseis or labiities denomrmated in foreign currencies The currency risk on gverseas
investrments s hedged via foreign currency denominated borrewings anc derivatives The Group has adopted net investment hedging in accordance
with I1AS 39 and therefore the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that s determined to be an elfective hedge 1s recogrused direcily
in equity The ineffective portion of the gain or {oss an the hedging snstrument 1s recognised immedialely in the income staiement

The table below shaws the carrying amounls of the Group s foreign currency denominated assets and latlihes Contingent 1ax on overseas
investrnents not expecied o occur 1s ignered for hedging purposes as 1s the requiremant to fair value interest rate swaps Based on the 31 March
2016 posiion a 33% appreciation [largest annual change over the last ten years) in the Euro relative te Sterling weutd result in a £nit change [2014/15
£nil) in reported profits

Asgets Liabilities
2014 2013 2018 2015
Em Lin Em m
Euro denom:nated 10 39 10 39

Credit nsk management

The Group s appreach lo credit risk management of counterparties is referred to in the financial policies and principles an pages 54 lo 56 and the
risks addressed within managing risk in delivering our strategy on pages 57 to 63 The carrying amount of financial assels recorded w the financial
statements represants the Group s maximum exposure to credit 11sk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtainad

Cash and short term deposits at 31 March 20146 amounted to £314m [2014/15 £108m) Deposits anu interest rate deposits were placed with financial
institutions with BBB+ or better credit ratings

At 31 March 2016 the fair value of all interest rate derivative assets was £167m 12014/15 £139m)

At 31 March 2014 priorta tlaking into accaunt any offset arrengements the largest combined credit exposure Lo a single counterparty arising from
money market deposits Liquid investments and derivatives was £85m (2014/15 £59m) This represents 0 6% [2014/15 0 5%} of gross assets

The deposit exposuras are with UK banks and UK branches of international banks

The Group s exposure Lo credit risk in respect of 1Ls trade recevables is analysed in nole 13 Prowvisions are made taking account mstoric credit losses
and the creditwerthiness of deblors

Liquidity nsk management
The Group s approach 1o hiquidity risk management 1s discussed in the financial policies and principies on pages 54 to 56 and the risks addressad

within managing nsk in delivering our strategy on pages 57 to 63

The foliowing Lable presents a maturity profile of the contracted undiscounted cash flows of financiat liabiliies based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay The table includes both interest and principal flows Where the inlerest payable 1s not flixed the amount disclosed
has been determined by reference to the projacied interest ratesmplied by yield curves at the reporting date For dervative financial instruments
that settie on a net basis {e g Interest rate swaps) the undiscounted net cash flows are shown and for derivatives thal reguire gross settlement

fe g cross currency swaps) the undiscounted gross cash flows are presented Where payment obligations are in foreign currencies the spot
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheei daleisused Trade crediiors and amounts owed o jont ventures which are repayable within one year
have been excluded from the analysis
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17 Net debt continued

Liquidity risk management continued
The Group expects to meel its financial lighilities through the vanous avatlable lquidity sources including a secure rentat income profile asset sales
undrawn committed borrowing facilites and 1n the longer ierm deot refinancings

The Group leases out all s investment properties under operating leases with a wesghied average lease length of nine years This secure income
profile 1s generated from upward only rent reviews, long leases and hugh accupancy rates The futur @ aggregale mimimum rentals receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases Is also shown in the table below Income from joint ventures and funds 1s notincluded below Addiuional ligurdsty
will arise from letling space (n properties under construction as well as from distributions received from joint ventures ana funds

2014
. Three
Within Follawing to fivis Over five
one year year years years Total
£m Em £m £m £m
Debt’ 76 48 1,47 1,577 3,585
Interest on debt 103 100 248 538 1,009
Derwative payments 13 14 77 98 499
Head laase payments 2 2 & 239 249
Total payments 194 577 1,822 2,749 5,342
Derivative receipis (23] [25] [104] (383) {535)
Net payment tkal 552 1,718 2,366 4,807
Operaling leases with tenants 437 419 1,133 2,389 4,378
Liguidily surplus {daficit] 264 1133) [585] 23 1429)
Cumulative Liguidity surplus [deficit] 266 133 [452] {429)
2015
Threa
within Foliowing 10 five Dver fize
one year year years years Total
£m £m Em tm £m
Debt’ 105 Ta 1615 1950 3746
Interest on debt 126 125 328 419 1198
Derwvative payments 121 16 74 407 418
Head lease payments 2 ? 6 223 233
Totat paymenis 354 219 2023 3199 5795
Derwative receipls 1132} [24) {901 (385 [631]
Net payment 222 195 1933 2814 5144
Operating leases with tenants 443 431 1180 2782 4 836
Liguidity surplus (deficit] 221 236 17531 132} t328}
Cumulative Liquidity surplus tdehcit) 221 L57 [296] (328

Gross debt of £3 741m {2014/15 £3 949m] represents the totat shown bess unamorused 1ssue costs of £19m 12014715 £23m) plus fair value adjustments to debt
ol £195m 12014/15 £224m|

Any short term liquidity gap between the net payments required and the rentals recervabie can be met through other liquidity sources available to the
Group The Group currently holds cash and short term deposus of £114m of which £93m s not subject to a security interest [see footnote 5 to nel debt
table on page 147} Further Liguidity can be achieved through sales of property assels or investments and debt refinancings

The Group s property pertfolio s vatued externally at £10 111m and the share of jomt ventures and lunds property is valued at €4 937m The undrawn

cammitted borrowing faciliies available to the Group are a further source of bquidity The maturity profile of committed undrawn borrowing facilines
1s shown overteal
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17 Net debt conunued

Maturity of committed undrawn borrowing facitihes

20146 7015

£m £m

Maturity date ocver five years - -
between four and five years 1,13 930

between three and four years 95 -

Total facilities availlable for more than three vears 1,208 530
Between two and Ihree years 85 &1
Between one and two years - 215
Within one year 50 10
Total 1,353 1235

The above facilities are compnsed of British Land undrawn facilities of £1 150m plus undrawn facilties of Hercules Umit Trust totalling £203m

15 Leasmg

Operating leases with tenants
The Group leases oul all of is Investment properties under operating leases with a weighled average lease tength of nine years [2014/15 tenyears]

The future aggregate minimum rentals recevable under non cancellable cperating leases are as lollows

206 2005

tm Em

Less than oneyear 437 L47
Between one and two years 419 431
Between three and five years 1,133 1180
Between six and ten years 1,241 1353
Between eleven and fifteen years 626 783
Between sixleen and twenly years 357 443
After twenly years 165 203
Total 4,378 4836

The Group s leasehold investmant properiies are typically under non-renewable leases without significant restrictions Finance lease liabilities are
nayable as follows no contingent rents were payable in either period

2016 015
Minimum M nimum
lease lease
payments Interest Principal paymenis Interest Pnncipal
Em m £m £m Em £m
British Land Group
Less than ona year 2 2 - z 2z -
Between cne and two years 2 2 - 2 2 -
Between two and five years [ 3 - & ] -
Mare than five years 239 193 46 223 182 41
Total 249 203 46 233 192 41
Less fulure finance charges (203 1192]
Present value of lease obligations Lb 41
More than live years 45 41
Present value of lease obligations 46 4)
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1V Dnvadend

The fourth guarter intertm dwvidend of 7 09 pence per share totalling £73m {2014/15 692 pence per share totall ng £71m] was approved by the Board
an 146 May 2016 and 1s payable an 5 August 2014 to sharshalders on the register at the close of business on 1 July 2015

The Board will announice the availabibity of the Scrip Dividend Alternative «f available wia the Regulalary Naws Service and on its website (www
britishland com/dividends] no later than four bustness days belore the ex-dividend date of 30 June 20146 The Board expects (o announce the split
between Proparty incore Distribubens [PID] and non-PID income at that e Any Scrip Dividend Alternative will not be enhanced P10 dividends
are pald as required by REIT legislation after deduction of withhaiding lax 2l the basic rate {currently 20%] where appropriate Cerlain ¢lasses of
sharehclders may be able to elecl to recewve dividends gross Please refer to our website www britishland com/dwvidends for details

Pange per 2016 2015
Payment date Dmwidend share Em £m
Currentyear dividends
0508 2016 2016 &thintenim 709
0605 2016 2016 3rd intermm 709
12 02 2016 2016 2nd intenim 709 73
0a 112015 2016 Istinterim 709 72
2836
Prior year dividends .
0708 2015 2015 4thintenim 492" 7
0605 2015 2015 3rd interim 492 7
13 02 2615 2015 2nd interim 657 il
0714 2014 2015 1stinternim 692 70
2768
08 08 2014 2014 dthimtenim &75° 68
02 05 2014 2014 3rd intenim 679 48
Dividends in consolidated statement
of changes i equity 287 277
Dividends seltied in shares [52) [49]
Dividends seltied in cash 235 228
Timing difference relating to payment
of withholding tax - -
Dividends in cash {low statement 235 228
' Scrip alternalive treated as non-PID for this d vdend
20 Share camtal and reseryes
2016 2015
Mumber of ordinary shares inissue at 1 April 1,031,788,286 1019766 483
Share 1ssues 8,774,037 12 021 805
At 31 March 1,040,562,323 1031788 2856

Of the issued 25p ordinary shares 627 shares were feld i the ESOP trust [20§4/15 98 453} §1 244 245 shares were held as treasury shares
12014/15 11 206 245l and 1 029 295 451 shares were 1n free issue [2014/15 1020 423,588! No treasury shares were acquired by the ESOP trust
during the year Allissued shares are fully paid

Hedging and translation reserve

The hedging and transtation reserve comprises the efieciive portion of the cumulatve nei change in the farr value of cash ilow and foreign currency
hedqing instruments as well as all ioreign exchange differences arrsing from the iranslation of the financial statements of foraign operations
The foreign excthange differences zlso include the translation of the Liabilities that hedge the Company s netinvestment in a foreign subsidiary

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve relates Lo owner-occupied properties and invesiments in joint ventures and funds

Merger reserve
This comprises the premium on the share placing «n March 2013 No share premium is recerded in the Company s financial statements thraugh
the aperation of the merger relief provisions of the Companies Act 20056

~1
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20 Shatre capatal and resernves conunued

At31 March 2016 options over 7 341 620 ordinary shares were outstanding under employee share opltion plans The options had a waighted average
life of 6 & years Details of outstanding share options and shares awarded to employees including Executive Directors are set out below and en the

following pages

Exercise dates

ALl Apnl Vested but Exeraised/ At 31 Marc¢h Exercise
Date of grant 2015 Grarted  not exerrised Vested Lapsed 2016  price pence From To
Share options Sharesave Scheme
280610 38159 - - t37700) [457] - 37000 010915 290216
01071 8475 - - (21l {3931 7172 47300 010836 2802147
260612 92390 - - (67 800) [4 3901 - 39200 010915 290216
260612 52 262 - - {2 320 [7244) 42,698 39200 010917 280218
190613 41201 - - [2 005] (4 404) 34,792 51100 010916 280247
190513 16 376 - - (489] 685} 15,202 51100 01o918 280219
230614 159 415 - - (1061 (21100} 137,254 57400 010917 280218
230614 13§ 633 - - (656] (3745] 127,192 57400 010919 280220
220615 - 84 687 - - {8 520} 76,167 69700 010918 280219
2204615 - 63 599 - - [5 249} 58,350 49700 010920 280221
539912 148 284 - 132982) [56389] 498,827
Leng-Term Incentive Plan - Options Vested, Not Exercised
310505 164 8B40 - - (73 551 (91 235} - 726 46 310568 300513
051205 141254 - - (105 483] [35771) - 823 40 051208 041215
290609 219113 - - 17 441) - 14,472 38700 290612 290619
251109 6063 - - [6 063] - - 47500 a2 119
211209 77443 - - [4989] - 72,454 445900 211212 211219
110410 1420932 - - {208 549] [4 D26] 1,208,357 L4700 110613 110620
141210 90 568 - - 19112) [178%] 69,667 51000 141213 141220
28061 1108 890 - - 19 412 15 245] 1,084,233 57500 280614 280621
1512 1 174 824 - - 75 £45) [3 5001 96,575 45100 191214 1913221
140912 - 1178819 - 158 a301 40791 1,116,710 53800 140915 140922
201212 - 151 058 - |28 853) (24881 120,217 56300 201215 2012 22
050813 - 18172 - - [11 456 6,716 40100 050816 050823
051213 - 22530 - - (16 764] 5,766 600 00 051215 051223
230614 - 87845 - - {79555 7,850 684 00 230617 230624
3206727 1459024 - 1607132] 1255 462] 3,802,157
Long-Term Incentive Plan - Unvested Options
14 6912 1292739 - 11178819 - Inzg20] - 538 00 14 0915 16 0922
2013212 198 21 - 1151 558| - 146 553 - 563 00 209215 201222
050813 799292 - {18 172 - M7442t 663,678 40100 050815 050823
051213 508 874 - 22 530 - 83 744) 402,400 000 00 051216 051223
230614 1131228 - 187 845) - [213675) 829,708 084 09 230617 230424
121214 26127 - - - - 26,127 75783 121217 1212 24
220615 - 1199784 - - (81281] 1,118,523 824 50 220018 2206 25
3956477 1199784 [1459024) - [656595] 3,040,638
Total 7703110 2807094  [1459024)  (740114]  [969448) 7,341,620
Weighted average exercise price
of options [pence) 543 &7 551 535 651 580
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20 Share camtal and resersves connnuied

Share pnice
At 1 Aprit Exervised/ At M March &l grant date
Date of grant 15 Granted Vasted Lapsed w018 pence Vestng date
Performance Shares Long-Term Incentive Plan
140912 860 412 - 18159501 (44 462) - 53800 1£ 0915
201212 103130 - (86 845} {16,2851 - 563 00 201215
50813 1124 512 - - {88 159] 1,036,453 40100 050816
051213 270 334 - - {40108) 230,224 40000 051215
230614 1539334 - - [180 113 1,359,223 684 00 230617
121214 4 354 - - - 4,354 75783 121217
220615 - 1289928 - 183 057) 1,201,849 824 50 220618
3902178 1289926  [902795] [457184] 3,832,125
Fund Managers’ Performance Plan
12 0912 170 466 - 166934l [35301 - 53700 120915
020813 199 543 - {190 251 9292] - 59900 020815
020813 199476 - |5 380) 14 432) 179,664 59700 020816
569 485 - 1362 567) [27 2541 179,664
Matching Share Plan
050912 384 994 - 82831} (204,143 - 56000 050915
020813 375338 - ~ (26 £48] 348,890 609 46 020814
300614 37166 - - [27 608] 289,560 702 40 300517
290615 - 296 638 - 14 468) 282,170 806 00 290618
1079498 296638 [182B31) (272 685 920,620
Total 5551161 §586564 (14481931 |757123] 4,932,409
Weighted average price of shares [pence) 611 821 540 595 597
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

2§ Scegment information

The Group allocates resources o investment and asset managemenl according 1o the sectors it expects io perform over the medwm term Iis three
principat sectors are Offices Retaill and Canada Water The Dffice sector includes residential as this s often incorpeorated inte Qifice schemes and
Retail includes leisure for a ssmilar rationale Canada Water was added as a principal sector in the year reflecting the key role the campus has in the

strategy of the Group Consequently the prior year comparativesin this nole have been restaled to reflact this addibonat principal seclor

The relevant gross rental income nel rental income operating result and properly assets being the measures ol segment revenue segment result and

segment assets used by the management of the business are set out below Management reviews the performance of the business principally on 8
proporuanally consolidated basis which includes the Group s share of joint ventures and funds on a line-by-line basis and excludes non-contralling
interests in the Group s subsidianies The chief operaling decision maker for the purpose of segment infermation s the Executive Comrites

Gross rentalincomens derved from the rental of buldings Operating resullis the net of net rental ncome fee income and admunistrative expenses

No custemer exceeded 10% of the Group s revenues i esther year

Segment result

Offices and residential Retall and leisure Canada Water Other/unallocated Total
2016 2005 2014 2015 2016 2015 2015 2015 2018 2015
£Em fm Em £m £m £m £m Em £m Em
Gross rental income
British L.and Group 133 121 291 248 B b - - 432 375
Share of joint ventures and funds 114 89 104 146 - - 4 8 222 2L3
Total 247 210 395 394 8 b 4 3 854 418
Net rental income
British Land Group 124 12 277 233 7 & - - 408 351
Share of joint ventures and funds 110 25 99 141 - - 3 8 212 234
Total 234 197 376 374 7 & 3 8 620 585
Operating result
Briush Land Group 112 101 260 218 7 & 148) |41) 333 284
Share of joint ventures and funds 109 82 102 138 - - 1)} i0 210 230
Total 221 183 362 356 7 & (47) 131] 543 514
2016 2013
Reconcihiation to Underlying Profit £m tm
Operating result 543 514
Net financing costs (180) [201)
Underlying Profit 363 N3
Reconciliation to profit on ordinary acuvities before taxation
Underlying Profit 343 313
Capital and other 954 1460
Underlying Profit atiributable
o non-cantrolling interests 14 i
Total profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,33 i 789

Of the total revenues above £4m (2014/15 £8m) was derived from outside the UK
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21 Scemont intformation contnued

Segment assets

Offices and residential Retail and leisure Canada Water Other/unallocatad Total
2014 2015 2016 2013 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
€m £m £m m £m m £m £m £m fm
Property assets

Briuish Land Group 4,181 3520 5,323 5275 283 2713 - - 9,787 90468
Share of joint venlures and funds 2,843 2530 2,018 2039 - - ~ 40 4,861 4 609
Total 7,024 4050 7,341 7314 283 273 - 4 14,648 13 477

Reconciliation te net assets
2016 2015
British Land Group £m £m
Properly assels 14,648 13677
Olher non-current assets 138 254
Non-current assets 14,786 13933
Other net current liabilities 1257] [307]
Adjusted net debt 14,7651 (4918
Other non-current Labilities 190) {73l
EPRA net assets {undiluted) 9,674 8635
Convertible dilution 400 400
EPRA net assets |diluted} 10,074 9035
Non-controlling interests 277 333
EPRA adjustments 1732) (803
Netassets 9,619 85465

22 Caputal conmmutments

The aggragate capital commilmenls to purchase construct ar develop investment property for repairs maintenance or enhancements or for the

purchase of investments which are contracted for but not provided are set out below

2016 2015

Em £m

British Land and subsidiaries bncludes share of development Loan facility] 174 198
Share of joint ventures 40 42
Share of funds 2 2
216 2472

23 Related parts transactions

The Group had provided a development loan of up te £320m Lo the Broadgate joinl venture secured against the 5 Broadgate development The loan
was fully repaid during the year Interest and commitment fees earned on the loan during the year were E4m (2014/15 £8m]

Details of transactions with joint ventures and funds are given innotes 3, s and 11 During the year the Group recognised jount venture management

fees of £8m (2014/15 E7m])

Details of Directors remuneration are given 1n the Remuneraticn Report on pages 84 to 110 Delails of transactions with key management personnel

are provided in note 8

Detais of transactions with The Briush Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme and other smailer pension schemes are given in note 9

The purchases by related parues of Simon Borrows of two flats in Londen for a total of £4m from a British Land Group company as approved at last

year s Annual General Meeting completed during the year
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24 Contingent habilities

Group joint ventures and funds

The Group joint ventures and funds have contingent Liabilities in respect of legal claims guarantees and warranties anising n the ordinary course

of business Itis not anticipa.ed that any material labihilies witl arise from coniingent Liatilities

25 Subsidiaries with material non-controllimg mterests

Set oul below 1s summarised financial infarmation for each subsidiary thal has non-controlling interests that are material lo the Group
The informalion below 1s the amount befare intercompany elmmations and represents the consolidated results of the Hercules Umit Trust group

Summarised income statemnent for the year ended 31 March

Hercules tUnt Trust
2015 2015
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 59 142
Attribulable to non-controlling interests 19 55
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company 40 87

Summarised balance sheet for the year ended 31 March

Hercules Unit Trust

2016 2015

Em Em

Total assets 1,450 1487
Total lizbilities {469) [674)
Net assets 1,021 1013
Non-controlling interests 277 333
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company Thh 4680

Summansed cash flows

Hercules Unit Trust

2016 2015

£m Em

Net ([decreasel increase in cash and cash equivalents (5) 2
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 35 33
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 30 35

The Hercules Unit Trust 1s a publicly listed Unit Trust The Unit price at 31 March 201618 CT1912014/15 £711)
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206 \udit exemptions taken for subsubarmes

The following subsidraries are exempt from the requirements of the Compamies Act 2004 relaung to the audit of Indnsdual accounts by wirtue of

Companies House

Secution 479A of that Act

Companies House
MName req number
Bnuish Land Aqua Partnership Limited 5024919
Bribish Land Aqua Partnersh p [2] Limited 8024921
Apartpower Lirnitad 2832059
Pillarcarsse Managemenl Limited 2941307
EL Guaranteeco Limited 5483335
WK Holdings Limited 2487571
Wates City Point Limited 297314
BL HC Property Holdings Limited 06894044
Bt Health Clubs Ph No 1 Limited 05643248
BL Health Clubs PhNo 2 Limited 05643261
St James Relad Park Morthampton Limited 53963%4
Pillar Nugent Limited 256700
Pillar Cevelopments Limited 2850421
United Kingdom Property Company Limited 266486
British Land Hercules Na 1 Limited 3527580
Piltar Estates Limited 3044028
Piltar |Dartford] Limited 2783384
BL Goodman [LP] Limited 5054902
Piliar Broadway Limited 3587116
Parwack Investments Limited 00454239
Hitden Properties Limited NI062887
BL [Maidenhead) Company Limited 7667834
Wardrobe Holdings Limited 06045158
BL Cwmbran Lirnited 7730251
BLGP Chess No 1 Limiled 8572585
Ludgate West Limited 4882129
Bayeasl Property Cempany Limited 635800
Boldswatch Limited 23070%
Exchange Heuse Holdings Linmited 2037407
Paddington Central { [GP| Lirited 389137
Regis Property Holdings Limited 891470
Oinwell Lirited 5035303
TPP Investments Limited 4843814
BL Osnaburgh St Residential Lid 04874523
Moarage [Property Developments] Limited 1185513
39 Victoria Street Limited 7037133
Teesside Leisure Park Limited 2072136
Cavendish Geared Limited 2779045
Pillar Auctunlea Limited 2061047
Pillar Europe Management Limiled 2891824
Pillar Retail Parks Limited 2725163
Wates City Of London Propert es Limiled 1788526
BLDIS) investments Limited LABLTS0
Adamant Investment Corparation Limitea 225i49

Name reg number
The Liverpoel Exchange Company Lirited £93255
Osnaburgh Street Limited 58846735
Adshilia Limited 10524683
Rohawk Properties Limited 789485
B.axmill [Fwenty-Nine| Limited 5279010
Pillar (Beckian] Limited 2783376
Brivsh Land Property Advisers Limited 2793828
British Land Hercules Limited 2783381
Briush Land Hercules No 4 Limited 3108851
Sprint 1118 Lirnuted 5860847
Longford Street Residential Limited 8700158
Meadowbank Retatl Park Edinburgh Limied 5489809
BF Propeo [No 19) Limited 5270113
Ivorydell Limited 3264791
Broadgate (PHT 8l Limited 3707220
BYP Developments Limited 35345846
FRP Group Lid 2844485
BLU Property Management Limited 1020347
Pillar Hercules No 2 Limited 2839049
Drake Circus Leisure Limited 7150208
Blu Estates Limited 3325057
D omedes Property No 1 Limited 5278996
Chrisitu Nominees Lirmiled 732510
Ivaryhill Limited 2307407
Pardev (Broadway) Limited 2891851
Billar (Kirkcaldy! Limited 3074412
Pitlar Fort Limited 2806956
Pillar Fulham No 2 Limited 266246
Pillar Glasgow 3 Limited 5070568
Bexle Limited 5738899
T(Partnership! Limited 03434754
TBL IFerndown] Limuted 3854372
TBL |Brent Park] Limiled 3852947
Paddington Block A (GP] Ltd 9320570
Paddington Block B [GP} Ltd 9320577
Paddington Kiosk |GPILtd 9320542
PC Lease Nominee Ltd 9320541
PC Partnership Nominee Ltd 9320533
Bl. Broadgate Fragment 1 Limited 2400407
BL Broadgate Fragment 2 Limited §400541
BL Broadgate Fragment 3 Limited G400411
BL Broadgate Fragment 4 Limited PLLOAGY
BL Broadgate Fragment 5 Limited $400413
BL Broadgate Fragment 5 Limited 9400414
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

The following partnerships are exemnpt from the requirements Lo prepare publish and have audited ndridual accounts by viriue of regulation 7
of The Partnerships [Accounis| Reguiations 2008 The resulls of these partnerships are consolidated within these Group accounts

Name Narne

Bl Shoreditch Limited Partnership Hereford Shopping Centre Limited Partnership
Bl Chess Ng t Limited Partnership Bl Lancaster Limited Parinership

Paddington Central ILP Paddington Block ALP

Paddington Central Il LP Paddington Block B LP

Meadowhall Opportunities Lirmited Partnership Paddington Kiosk LP
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FRS 101 AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Invesiments and loans 1o subsidianies D 27518 27370
Invesiments Insoint ventures 0] 395 392
Other investments D 17 264
Inerest rate dervalive assels E 147 139
Deferred tax assets 1 -
28,098 28 165
Currentassets
Debtors G 14 4
Cash and short term depaosils E 34 18
50 22
Current liabilities
Short term berrowings and overdralts E (74) (102l
Creditors H (771 {1031
Amounts due to subsidianes (19,225) {18 881
19,3741 119 08é)
Netcurrent babilities 19,324) (19 Go4l
Total assets less current Liabilities 8,772 2101
Non-current labilities
Debentures and loans E 12,214} 12 462
Interest rate dervative liabibities E [119) HARH
Deferred tax and other non-current Liabilities - (13)
[2,335) [2 588
Netassets 4,437 6515
Equity
Called up share capital 1 260 258
Share premium 1,295 1280
Otherreserves 1120) {94]
Merger reserve 213 213
Retatned earnings 4,789 4858
Equity sharehotders’ funds 6,437 5515
lohn Gildersleese Lucinda Bell
Chairman Chief Financiat Qfficer
Approved by the Board on 1o May 2014
Company number 621920
* The prior year comparalives have been restaled on trapsition to FRS 101 See note Aon page 167
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Financial statements

COMPANY STATEMENT GF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Profit and
Share Other Merger loss

Share capital premium reserves reserve account Total

£m Em £ trn Em £m

Balance at 1 April 2015 {restated] 258 1280 {94] 213 4 858 6,515
Share I1ssues 2 15 - - {121 5
Adjustment for serip dvidend element - - - - 52 52
Dividend patd - - - - (2871 1287)
Fairvalue of share and share optien awards - - - - 8 8
Netactuarial loss an pension schemes - - - - 1) 1)
Profit for the year after taxation - - - - 171 1m
Dervalive valuation movement - - 126} - - (26}
Batance at 31 March 2015 260 1295 (120} 213 4 789 6,437
Balance at 1 April 2014 [restated) 255 1257 [24] 213 3632 5333
Adjustlmenl for change in capitalised interest accounting policy - - - - 37 37
Share 1ssues 3 23 - - - 26
Adjustment for scrip dividend etement - - - - 49 49
Dwadend paid - - - - {277} {277
Net actuarial loss on pension schemes - - - - 151 (5}
Profit for the year after tazalion - - - - 1422 1422
Dervative valuation movement - - (70) - - [70})
Balance at 31 March 2015 [restated) 258 1280 [94) 213 4 858 6515

The value of distributable reserves willin the profit and loss accountis £3 33ém [2014/15 £3 514m)
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(V) Accounting pohews

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 have been
prepared on the hustorical cosl basis except for the revaluation of
derivatives These hinancial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with Financial Reperling Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framewark [ FRS 101 ] The amendments to FRS 101 (2013/14 Cyclel
issued 1n July 2014 and effective immediately have been applied

In preparing these financial statements the Company applies the
recogniticn measurement and disclosure requirements of Internauonal
Financial Reporling Standards s adopted by the EU { Adepred IFRSs |
bul makes amendments where necessary in order to comply with the
Cornpanies Act 2006 and has set aul below where advantage of the FRS
{01 disclosure exernpuiens has been taken Inthese financial staiements
the Company has adopted FRS 101 for the first ume

The Company meels the definiuion of a qualifying entity under FRS 100
(Financial Reporting Standard 100] 1ssued by the Financral Reporung
Counail Accordingly in the year ended 31 March 2016 the Company

has changed its accounting framewark from UK GAAP Lo FRS 101 as
1ssued by the Financial Reporting Cauncit and nas in doing so applied
the requirements of IFRS 1 4 33 and related appendices The prioryear
financial statements were restated for malerial agjustments on adoption
of FRS 101 in the currentyear as set out below

The Company has taken advaniage of the following disclosure
exemptions under FRS 101

[al the requirernents of IAS 1 to prowde & Balance Sheel at the beginrung
of the period in the eveni of a prior penad adjustment

(bl the requirements of tAS 1to provide a Statement of cash flows tor
the period

Reconaliation of Profit and Loss

le} the requirements of IAS | ta provide a sizlement of compliance
with IFRS

[d)the requirements of 1AS 1 to disclese iniormation on the

,  managzment of capital

[e] the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting

| Policies Changes inAccounling Estimates and Errors te disclose

| new IFRSs that have been 1ssued bui are not yet effective

y ] the reguirements in IAS 24 Related Parly Disclosures to

| disclose related party transactions entered into between twd

i or more members of a2 group provided that any subsidary which

{

I

15 & party to the transaction 1s wholly owned by such a member

[g} the requirements of paragraph 17 of {AS 24 Related Party Disclosures
to disclose key management personnel compensation

[hlthe reguirements of IFRS 7 to disclose financial instruments and

(Il the reguirements of paragraphs #1-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement to disclose information of fair value valuztion
techmiques and inpuls

This s the first year that the Company has presented vs inancral
statements under FRS 101 [Financial Reporting Standard 101] 1ssued

by the Financial Reporting Counall The following disclosures are
reslaternents of batances disclosed under previous UK GAAP i the prior
year The last financial statemnents under previcus UK GAAP were for the
year endad 31 March 2015 and the date of transition Lo FRS 101 was
therefore 1 April 2014

|
‘ Explanation of transition to FRS 101
%

The following 1s a reconciliation liusirating the adjustmenls posted to
the Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet Lo restate the prior year
comparatives as a result of the transition to FRS 101 from UK GAAP

2015 UK Transition 2015

GAAP  adjustmants FRS 101

Em £m Em

Administrative expenses {77 - [77)
Finance costs 185) - (85
Other Profit and Loss 1584 - 1584
Totalimpact to Prokit and Loss 1,422 - 1,422

Reconcibation of Balance Sheet

Transilion 2014 UK Transttion 2014 FRS

Transition 2015 UK adjustments 2015 FRS GAAP  adustments 101

reference Em £m Em fm £m £m
Creditors 0] {101) (2] 93l (851 {21 (311
Share premium [n} 1283 (3l 1280 1240 131 1257
Retained earnings il 4857 [ 4 858 3631 1 3432
Other Balance Sheet 478 2 480 533 2 535
Total impact to Balance Sheet 6,517 12) 6,515 5,335 121 5,333
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Financial statements

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED

Explanation of transition to FRS 101 continued Sigmficant jJudgements and sources of estmation uncertainty

The key source ol estimation uncertainty relates to the Company s
investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures In estmating the
requirement for impairment of these Investments management make
assumptions and judgements on Lhe value of these investments using
inherenlly subjective underlying asset valuations supported by
independent valuers

Transition adjustment i)

Share schemes are subject to National Insurance on the gain employaes
make Under UK GAAP the exercise price was estimated to be the share
price prevailing at the balance sheet date whereas under FRS 101 this
was measured as the estimated share price at the exercise date Upon
converston this resulted in an additional £2m creditor and a £2m debit

to retained earnings

(13 Dinvdends

Delails of dvidends paid and proposed are included in note 19 of
the consotidated financial statements

Transition adjustment (1)

Under UK GAAP upon redemption of a convertible hand in 2004
unamortised capitalised toan 1ssue cosls were debited to the profit
and loss Under FRS101 these 1ssue costs of £3m are debited to share () Compamny profit tor the Anancial vear atter tax
prermium and credited to retained earnings

The Company has not presented its own profii and loss account as

Notice of continued adoption of financial reporting standard {FRS} 101 - parmilted by Secuon 408 of the Companies Act 2006 The profit after
reduced disclosure framework tax for the year was C171m (2014/15 profit £1422m])

The Board continues to consider that it 1sin the bestinterests of the

Group for The Briush Land Company PLC to continue to apply FRS 101 The average monthly numper of employees of the Coempany during

Reduced Disclosure Framework for its next inancialyear commencing | the year was 260 (201415 249)
1 April 2014 Ashareholder or shareholders holding in aggregate 5% or
more of the total allolted shares in The British Land Company PLC may Employee costs include wages and salaries of £35m (2014715 £33m)
serve objections le the continued use of the disclosure exempliens on soonal secunity costs of £5m [2014/15 £5m] and pension costs of E6m
The Briush Land Company PLC inwriting to its registered office [York [2014/15 (5m) Detarls of the Execulive Directors remuneration are

House 45 Seymour Street London WIH 7LX] not later than 31 July 2016 | disclosed in the Remuneration Report

Going concern Audit fees in relation ta Lha parent Company only were £0 2m
The financial statements are prepared on Lhe going concern basis as {2014/15 €0 2m)
e«plained in the corporate governance section on page 77

Investments and loans in subsidiaires and joinl venlures are stated

\
\
Investments and leans !
at cosl iess provision for impalrment I

(D) Imvestments and loans o subswdiaries

lnvestments
Shares in Loansto n joint Other

subsidiaries  subsidiaries venlures  investments Total

£m Erm £m £m £€m

On t April 2015 [restated] 20197 7173 392 264 28,024
Additions - 509 18 4 531
Disposals - [432) 14l (251 697
Write back of lprovision for) 71 - {1} - 70
As at 31 March 2016 20 268 7250 395 17 27,930

The historical cost of shares in subsidiaries 1s £20 529m (201415 £20 558m] Invesiments in joint ventures of £395m [2014/15 £392m] includes
£216m (2014/15 £205m) of loans to jomt ventures by the Company Results of the joint ventures are sel out in nate 11 of the consolidated financial
statements The historical cost of other investments s £87m [2014/15 £252m)
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{(F) Nct deht

2014 2015
£€m £m
Secured on the assets of the Company
5 264% Firsi Mortgage Oebenture Bonds 2035 3 355
S 0055% First Mortgagz Amorusing Debentures 2035 100 98
5 357% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2028 349 34d
& 75% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2020 62 182
Loan notes 2 2
884 981
Unsecured
5 50 Semior Mates 2027 1M 98
% 30% Semor US Boltar Notes 2015 - 104
3 895% Senor US Oollar Notes 2018 28 28
4 635% Semaor US Dollar Notes 2021 165 158
4 766% Senior US Dollar Notes 2023 105 g9
5 003% Semor US Dollar Notes 2024 69 &6
3 B1% Senior Notes 2026 13 m
3 97% Senor Notes 2026 16 114
Fair value of options o 1ssue under 1 5% convertible bond 2017 48 100
Fair vatue of optiens to 1ssue under 0% convertible bond 2020 27 -
Bank loans & overdrafts 634 707
1,406 1583
2,290 2 564
Gross debt
tnterest rate and currency derivalive liabiliies 19 1
Interest rate and currency derivative assets (1671 [1391
Cash and short term deposiis (36) (8}
Net debt 2,206 2518

' Principal and interest on these borrowings were lully hedged inlo Sterling at a floating rate at the time ol 1ssue

1 5% Convertible bond 2012 (maturity 2017)
On 10 September 2012 British tand [Jersey] Limited lthe 2012 issuer] a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company rssued E400 million 1 5%
guaranteed convertible bonds due 2017 lthe 2012 bands] at par The 2012 Issuer 1s fullv guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2012 bonds

Subject to lheir lerms the 2012 bonds are converhble into preference shares of the 2012 Issuer which are autematically transferred to the Company
In exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or at the Company s €lection any combinauon of erdinary shares and cash Bondholders may
exercise their conversion right al any time up te {bus excluding] the 20th dealing day before 10 September 2017 lthe maturity date)

The imtial exchange price was 693 07 pence per ordinary share The exchange price s adjusied based on cerlain events

From 25 September 2015 the Company has the cptien Lo redeem tha 2012 bonds at par «f the Company s share price has traded above 13(% of

the exchange price ior a specified penod or at any ime once B5% by nomenal vatue of the 2012 bonds have been converted, redeamed or purchased
and cancelled The 2012 bonds will be redeemed at par on 10 Seplember 2017 (the maturity datel if they have not atready been converted redeemed
or purchased and cancelled Ne redemptton of the bonds cccurred in the year

The intercompany loan betwaen the Issuer and the Company ansing from the transies of the lean proceeds was inrtially recogrised at fair value

net of capitalised 1ssue cosis and 15 accounted for using the amortised cost methed In agdition to the intercompany loan the Company has enlered
into a derivative contract relating 10 1ts quarantee of the obligauons of the Issuer in respect of the Bonds and the commitment o pravide shares or
a combination of shares and cash on conversion of the Bonds This dervative conlract s included within the balance sheet as a Liab:ity carned at
fair value through prefit and loss
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED

(E) Net debt conunued

0% Convertible bond 2015 (maturity 2020}
On 9 June 2015 British Land [While] 2015 Limited [the 2015 issuer] a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company 1ssued £350 million zero coupon
guarantead convertibie bonds due 2020 {the 2015 bonds) at par The 2015 Issuer 1s ully guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2015 bonds

Subjacl to their terms the 2015 honds are convertible into preference shares of the Issuer which are aulomaticatly Iransferred to the Company n
exchange tor crdinary shares in the Company or at the Company s eteclion any cominnation of ordinary shares and cash From 20 July 2015up to
and including 29 June 2018 a bondholder may exercise its conversion nght if the share price has traded at a level exceading 130% of the exchange
price for a speeified period Thereafler and up to but excluding the 7th dealing day before § June 2020 (the matunity datel a bondholder may convert
atanytime .

The iniial exchange price was 1103 32 pence per ordinary share The exchange price 1s adjusted based on certain events [suuch as the Company
paying dividends 1n any year atiove 14 18 pence per ordinary sharel

From 30 June 2018 the Company has the eption to redeem the 2015 bonds at par if Lhe Company s share price has traded above 130% of Lhe exchange
price for a specifizd period or at any e ance 85% by norminal value of Lhe 2015 bonds have been converted redeemed er purchased and cancelled
The 2015 bonds will be redesmed at par on 9 June 2020 [the maturity date] i they have not already been converted redeemad or purchased and
cancelled

In addition Lo the Intercompany loan the Company has entered into a darivative contract relaling to 11s guarantee of the obligations of the Issuerin

respect of the bonds and the commitment to provide shares or a combination of shares and cash on conversion of the bonds This dervalive contract
is included within the balance sheet as a Uability carried at fair value through profitand loss

Maturnity analysts of net debt

2016 2015

£m Em

Repayable within one year and on demand 74 102
hetween one and twoyears 109 75
two and five years [ATA 497

five and tenyears 807 551

ten and fifleen years 500 757

fileen and twenly years 386 &

twenty and twenty live years - 376

2,216 2462

Gross debl 2,290 Z 564
Interest rate derivatives [48) 128}
Cash and shert term deposils (36] 18]
2,206 2518

(}) Pension

The British Land Group of Compames Pension Scheme and the Defined Contribution Pension Scheme are the principal pension schemes of the
Company and detalls are set out In note 9 of the cansalidated financial statements
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((3) Debtors

2016 2015
£m fm
Trade and other debtors 9 2
Prepayments and accrued income 5 2
14 4

(L) Creditors
Restated
2016 2015
£m £m
Trade crediters 3 23
Corporation tax 18 1
Other taxation and secial security 29 24
Accruals and geferred income 27 37
77 103

(I) Sharv capital

Ordinary shares

Em of 25p each

Issued, called and fully paid
At April 2015 258 1031783 286
Issued 2 8 774 037
At 31 March 2014 260 1,040,562,323
Qrdinary shares
£m of 25p each

Issued, called and fully paid
At 1 Aprit 2014 255 1019 765 481
lssued 3 12021805
At 31 March 2015 258 1 031 788 286

1) Conungent labihties, capital commtments and related party transacnons

The Company has conungent liabslities in respeci of legal claims guaranizes and warranties arising n the ordinary course of business

1115 not anticipated that any matenial babilities will anise from the conungent habilines

At 31 March 2016 the Company has £13m of capital commiiments (2014715 £27m]

Relaled party transactions are the same for the Company as for the Group For details refer to note 23 of the consobidated financial slatements
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED

(k) Related undertalangs

Disclosures relating to subsidiary undertakings

The Company s subsidiaries and other relaied undertakings at 31 March
2016 are bstad below Al Group entities are included in the consolidated
financial results

Unless otherwise stated the Company holds 160% of the veting rights

Indirect holdings

Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status
1& 4 & 7 Triion Limited UK Tax Resident
10 Brock Street Limited UK Tax Resident

i0 Portman Square Unit Trust [Jerseyl
[Unets)

Overseas Tax Resident

10 Triton Sireet Limited

UK Tax Resident

and beneficial interests in the shares of the following subsidanes 17-19 Bediord Street Limited UK Tax Resident
parinerships associaled joint ventures and joint arrangements 18-20 Craven Hill Gardens Limited UK Tax Rasident
The subsidianies and related undertakings are registered in the United 30 Brock Street Limited UK Tax Resident
émgdom un:f;:rnotedl?ct:;lrwrssr:nrd t:e sfhar:jz capnail']of each Ff the 20 Triton Sireet Limited UK Tax Rasident
I
Ompanies eapp & COMPNSEs of ordinary shares untess 338 Euston Road Limited UK Tax Resident

otherwise staled

35 Basinghail Street First Limited UK Tax Resident
The Company holds the majority of its assels in UK companies although 33 Basinghalt Street Second Limited UK Tax Resident
same are held in overseas companies In recent years we have reduced 350 Eusten Road Limiied UK Tax Resident
the number of averseas companies in the Group 39 Victoria Street Limited UK Tax Resident

8-10 Throgmortan Avenue Limited UK Tax Resident
Direct holdings Adamant Invesiment Corporation Limited UK Tax Resident
Cormpany Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status  Adshylta Limited UK Tax Resident
B L CT Holdings Limiled [Jerseyl UK Tax Resident  Aldgate Place [GP) Limited [50% interest] UK Tax Resident
BL Bluebuiton 2014 Lirmiled UK Tax Resident  Aparipower Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Gewvidson Limited UK Tax Resident  Ashband Limited UK Tax Resident
B Exempt Insurance Services Limiled UK Tax Resident  Austrat House Unil Trust [Jerseyl [Uniis) Overseas Tax Resident
BL Intermediate Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident 135 94% interest}
BLSSP [Funding) Limited UK Tax Resident Basgnghall Street Unit Trust {Jerseyl [Units] Overseas Tax Resident
Bluebutton Property Management UK UK Tax Resident |50 4% Interest}
Limited [50% interest] BLCT {12697 Limited [Jersey] UK Tax Resigent
Baldswitch [No 1] Limiled UK Tax Resident B L CT [21500) Limited [Jersey] UK Tax Resident
Boldswitch Limited UK TaxResident B LCT [29900] Limited [Jerseyl UK Tax Restdent
Briish Land [Jerseyl Limitad [Jarsay] UK Tax Resident  B.L U [11193] Limiled Mersey] UK Tax Resident
[Founder Shares| Balsenia Limited UK Tax Resident
Sritish Land City UK Tax Resident  Barnclass Lirmited UK Tax Resident
British Land City 2005 Limited UK Tax Resident  Barndrill Limited UK Tax Resident
8riish Land City Offices Limited UK Tax Resident  Bayeast Property Co Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Ftnancing Limited UK Tax Resident  Bexile Limuted UK Tax Resident
Briush Land Investments Netherlands Overseas TaxResidenl  BF Propeo{Na 1) Limited UK Tax Resrdent
Holding BV [Netherlands| BF Propeo {Ne 10] Limited UK Tax Resident
Briish Land Properties Limited UK Tax Resident  pr Prapco [Na 12} Limited UK Tax Resident
Briush Land Real Estale Limited UK Tax Resident  pgr Propco [N 131 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Securities Limited UK Tax Resident e Propco ING 19) Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Secuntisation 1999 UK Tax Resident  gr Propco INg 3 | Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate [Funding! PLC UKTax Resident B bropea iNo 4 ) Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates Insurance Mediation UK Tax Resident ¢ Propco INo 5] Limited UK Tax Rasident
Services Limited

BF Properties {No 4 | Limuted UK Tax Resident
Hyfleet Limited UK Tax Res'dent

BF Properties [No 5 | Limiied UK Tax Residen;
Kingsmere Productions Limited UK Tax Resident

Birstalt Co-Ownership Trust [Member UK Tax Resident
Linestair Limited UK Tax Resident | iarest] {41 25% interast)
London and Henley Holdings Limited UKTax Resident g gy Acquisiion Limied UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Pensions Scheme Trustee UKTaxResident g [madenhead| Company Limited UK Tax Resident
Limited

PIC Street Limited

MSC Property Intermediate Holdings UK Tax Resident BL (5P | annen T {rie UK Tax iesmem
Limited (50% interest] BL [SP] investment {1] Limited UK Tax Resident
Plantation House Lirmited UK Tax Resident  BL [SP] Investment (2] Limited UK Tax Resident
Priory Park Merton Limited UK Tax Resident  BL [SPlHnvestment {3} Limited UK Tax Resident
Regis Property Holdings Limiied UK Tax Resident  BL (SP}nvestment [4] Limited UK Tax Resident
The Briush Land Corporation Limiied UK Tax Residen;  BL Baker Co 2012 Lirmited [ Sersey) Overseas Tax Resident
Vitalcreate UK Tax Regident Bl Bradford Forsler Lirmiled UK Tax Resident

Real Asset Insurance Limitad [Guernseyl

Overseas Tax Resident
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UK Tax Resident

BL Breadgate Fragment 2 Limited

UK Tax Resident




Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status  Company Name ) UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status
BL Broadgate Fragmant 3 Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Meadowhali No £ Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragment 4 Limited UK Tax Resideni  BL Cfhice [Non-City) Holding Comgany UK Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragment 5 Limited UK Tax Residem  Limited

BL Broadgate Fragment é Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Office Holaing Company Lumited UK Tax Resident
BL Chess Limuted UK Tax Resident  BL 8snaburgh 51 Residenyial Lid UX Tax Resident
BLChess No 1 Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident B Piccadilly Residential Limited UK Tax Resident
[Partnership Interest] BL Piccaditly Residential Management Co UK Tax Resident
BL City Offices Holding Company Lirmited UK Tax Resident  Limited

BL Cllton Moor Lim ted UK Tax Resigart  Bi Piccaditly Residential Retail Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Cwmbran Limited UK Tax Resident IBL Resndemla]l General Partner Limned UK Tax Resident

50% interest

Ell;nlllizgéartment Stores Holding Company UK Tax Restdent OL ResdenualNo 1 Laied UK Tax Roordent
BL Doncasier Wheatley Limited UK Tax Resident Bt Resdential No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident

BL EdenWalk J2012 Limited {Jersey}

QOverseas Tax Resident

BL Restdual Holding Company Limited

UK Tax Resident

BL ESOP Limited [Isle of Man)

Qverseas Tax Resident

BL Retall Holding Company Limited

UK Tax Resident

BL Retall Warehousing Holding Company
Limited

UK Tax Resident

Bl European Fund Management LLP UK Tax Resident
[Member Interestl
BL European Holdings Limined UK Tax Resident

BL Fixed Uptift Fund Limited Partnership
[Jerseyl

QOverseas Tax Resident

BL Fixed Uplift Fund Nominee No 1 Limited
{Jerseyl

Qverseas Tax Resident

BL Sainsbury Superstores birmited 150%
Interest)

UK Tax Resident

BL Shareditch Gener al Partner Limiled

UK Tax Resident

BL Shereditch Limited Partrership
[Partnership Interest}

UK Tax Resident

BL Fixed Uplift Fund Neminee Ne 2 Limited Overseas Tax Resident  BL Shoreditch No 1 Limsted UK Tax Resident
[Jerseyl BL Shoreditch No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Fund Limited [Jerseyi Overseas Tax Resident  BL Superstores Holding Company Limiled UK Tax Resident
BL Goodman [General Partnar| Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Triton Building Residential Limited UK Tax Resident

[50% interest)

BL Unit Trust [Jersey)

Overseas Tax Resident

BL Goodman ILP| Limited UK Tax Resident 5| Unithalder No 1 [J} Limited [Jersey) Overseas Tax Resident
BL GP Chess No | Limuted UK Tax Residenl I ynuhalder No 2 [J] Limited [lersey) Overseas Tax Resident
gbfrgi[::reeco Lirited |Lirmited by UK Tax Resident gy Unwersal Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Wardrobe Court Holdings Limited UK Tax Residdent
Stig {g:g:lllil::ii 3?:: Ezz:gz:i BL Wesl [Watling House] Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Doliview Limited UK Tax Resident S::ﬁ:f::ﬂ ;';"“Ed ﬂﬁ Ei 2::32::
8L HC Hampshire PH LLP [Member UK Tax Resident
interast] Blaxmiil {Thirty | Limited U¥ Tax Rasident
BL HC Health And Frtness Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident  Blaxmill [Twenty-ning] L imited UK Tax Resident
BLHC Inwic Leisure Lirnted UK Tax Resident BLOIAl Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH CRG LLP {Mernber Interest} UK Tax Resigent  BLD [Ebury Gatel Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH LLP {Member Interest] UK Tax Resident BLD [SJ) Investments Limitad UK Tax Resrdent
BLHC PH No 1 LLP iMember Interest] UK Tax Resident  BLDISH Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH No 2 LLP [Member Interesi] UK Tax Residen;  BLOLand Limited UK Tax Resident
BLHC PH No 3 LLP [Member Interest UK Tax Resident LD Properties Limied UK Tax Resident
BL HC Property Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident  ELD Property Holdings Limiled UK Tax Resident
BL Heallh Clubs PH No t Limited UK Tax Residen:  BLT Holdings 2010 Ltd [50% interesi] UK Tax Resident
BL Health Clubs PH No 2 Limited UK Tax Residert. DLY Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
BL H:gh Street and Shopping Centres UK Tax Residen  BLU Property Management Limited UK Tax Recident
Helding Company Limited BLU Securities Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Lancaster Limited Parinership UK Tax Resident  Britsh Land [Jaint Ventures) Limited UK Tax Resident
[Partnesship Interesi] Briish Land [White] 2015 Limited [Jersey] UK Tax Resident
BL Leadenhall [Jersey] Lid [Jerseyl Overseas Tax Resident  [Founder Shares]
BL Leadenhatl CL Co Limited {erseyl Overseas Tax Resident  Briush Land Acguisiuons Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Leadenhall Holding Co [Jersey] Lid Overseas Tax Resident  Brissh Land Agua Partnership 12 Liriied UK Tax Resident
[Jersey) British Land Aqua Partnership Lirited UK Tax Resident
BL Leisure and Industrial Holding Company UK TaxResident  British Land Company Secretanal Limited UK Tax Resident
Lumited Briissh Land Construction Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Mayfair Offices Limitad UK Tax Res cent Briush Land Department Stores Limited UK Tax Resident
gt :eazow:a:: Iljold:ngs Lemited 3:: :ax l:zeswzent Briush Land Develepments Limitad UK Tax Restdent
eadowhall Limite ax Residen

British Land Ealing 8V [Netherlandsl

Overseas Tax Resident
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Financial statements

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED

Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status

Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status

British Land Europaan Helding BV
{Netherlands)

QOverseac Tax Resident

City of London OFf ce Unit Trust {Jersey]
{Units) I35 94% interest)

QOverseas Tax Resident

Brush Land Fund Management Limited UK Tax Resident  Camgentc Limsted UK Tax Resident
British Land Hercules Limited UK Tax Resident  Cornish Residential Properties Trading UK Tax Resident
Brish Land Hercules No 1 Limuted UK Tax Resident  Limited
British Land Hercules No 3 Limited UK Tax Resident (L:nrmsé\ Residentat Property Investments UK Tax Resident
British Land Harcutes No 4 Limited UK Tax Res'dent imite
Crescent West Properties UK Tax Resident
Briish Land HIF Limited UK, Tax Resident
Deepdale Co-Ownership Trust (Member UK Tax Resident
British Land In Town Retail Lirnited UK Tax Resident Interest (37 66% nteresi)
British Land Industrial Limited UK Tax Resident Derby Investment Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Investment Management UK Tax Resident 1 well Limited UK Tax Resident
Limited
British Land Investments N V [Nethertands) UK Tax Resident Diomedes Properiy No 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Diomedes Property Ne 2 Limited UK Tax Residenl

British Land Investmenls Netherlands BV

{Netherlands)

Overseas Tax Resdent

Brish Land Leisure Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Ofiicas [Non-Cityl Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Offices [Non-Ciyl No 2 Limited UK Tex Resident
British Land Offices Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Oiflices No 1 Limited UK Tax Residenl
Briush Land Property Adwisers Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Property Management Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Regeneratign Limitad UK Tax Resident
British Land Retail Warehouses Limited UK Tax Rasident
Briush Land Superslores [Non Securtised] UK Tax Resident
Number 2 Limited

Broadgate [PHC 8] Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Adjoining Properties Limied UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Business Cenlre Limited UK Tax Residenl
Broadgate City Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Court Investments Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates Limiled UK, Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates People Management UK Tax Resident

Limited

Broadgate Estates Retail Management
Lirmited

UK Tax Residant

Broadgale Exchange Square

UK Tax Resident

Diomedes Property Ne 3 Limited

UK Tax Resident

Diomedes Property No 4 Limiled

UK Tax Resident

Diomedes Property Ng 5 Limiied

UK Tax Resident

Dwornedes Property No é Limited

UK Tax Resident

Diomedes Property Ne 7 Limited

UK Tax Resident

Diomedes Property No 8 Limitad

UK Tax Resident

Drake Circus GP L L C [United States)

Overseas Tax Resident

Drake Circus Leisure Limited

UK Tax Resident

Drake Circus Limited Parinership [United
States) [Partnership Interest|

Overseas Tax Residant

Drake Circus Unit Trust [Jerseyl [Unus!

Overseas Tax Resident

Drake Property Haldings Limited UK Tax Resident
Drake Property Nominee [No 1] Limited LUK Tax Resident
Crake Property Nominee [No 2] Limited UK Tax Resident

Eden Walk Shopping Centre General
Partner Limited [50% interest)

UK Tax Resident

Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust
lJerseyl (Unns] 150% interest)

Overseas Tax Resident

Edinburgh Fort Unit Trust |Jersey) (Units]
{75 31% mnterest)

Overseas Ta» Resident

Elementwvirtue Limited

UK Tax Resident

Broadgate Investment Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate REIT Limited [Jersey] (50% UK Tax Resident
inleresi|

Broadgate Square Limited UK Tax Restdent

Broughton Unit Trust [Jersey! [Units)
(758 31% interest)

Overseas Tax Residant

Euston Tower Limited UK Tax Resident
Exchange House Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Finsbury Avenue Estalas Lirmniled UK Tax Restdent
Four Broadgate Limited UK Tax Resident
FRP Group Limiled UK Tax Resident
Garamead Properties Limited UK Tax Resident
Gardenray Limiled UK Tax Residert
Gibraltar Generat Pariner Limited (37 6&% UK Tax Resident
interesil

Gibratiar Norminees Limited |37 66% UK Tax Resident
interest|

Giltbrook Retail Park Nettingham Limited UK Tax Resident
Glenway Limited UK Tax Resident
Hempet Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Hempel Hotels Limited UK Tax Resident
Hercules Property Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident
(Partnership Interest] {40 68% interest)

Hercules Property UK Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Hercules Property UK Limited UK Tax Residant

Broughton Retalt Park Limited [Jersey) UK Tax Resident
(75 31% interest]

Brunswick Park Limited UK Tax Resident
BVP Developments Limited UK Tax Resident
Casegood Enterprises UK Tax Resident
Caseplane Limited UK Tax Residenl
Cavendish Geared Il Limited UK Tax Resident
Cavendish Geared Limited UK Tax Resident
Caymall Limited UK Tax Resident
Chantway Limited UK Tax Resident
Cheshine Properties Limied UK Tax Resident
Chrisilu Nominees Limited UK Tax Resident
Clarges Estate Property Management Co UK Tax Resident
Lirmited

Clifton Moor Limitad UK Tax Resident
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Hercules Unrt Trust [Jersey] [Units] [75 31%%
interest)

Overseas Tax Resident

Hereford Shopping Centre GP Limited

UK Tax Residant

Hereford Shopping Centre Limited
Parinership {Partnership Interest]

UK Tax Resident




Company Name

UK/Qverseas Tax Resident Slatus

Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status

Hereford Shopping Cenice Unil Trust
[Jerseyl iUnits]

Overseas Tax Resident

One Sheloon Square Limited [Jersey]

Overseas Tax Resident

Orbital Shoepping Park Swindon Limited UK Tax Resident
Hilden Properties Limited UK Tax Resident Qsnaburgh Straei Limited UK Tax Resident
Harndrift Limited UK Tax Resident  pagdington Block A GP) Lid UK Tax Remident
HUF Investments 2 Limited | Jersey) Overseas Tax Resident  paggingian Black A LP [Partnershp Interesl] UK Tax Resident
HllJT In\;’]eslments Limited {Jersey] [75 31% Overseas Tax Resident Paddington Black B (GP] Lid UK Tax Resident
Interes
Industrral Real Eotate Limniad UK Tax Reordem FF;addmglon Block B LP [PartnershipInterest} UK Tax Resident
Insistmetal 2 Limited UK Tax Resident sddingion Ceniral | (GF Limuted UK Tax Resident
Paddingten Central | LP [Partnership UK Tax Resident
Ivorydell Limited UK Tax Resident  |qrarest]
Ivorydell Subsidiary Limiled UK Tax Resident  pagdington Central | Naminee Limited UK Tax Resident
Ivoryhill Limitad UK Tax Residenl  pagdingtan Central | Unit Trust [Jersey) Overseas Tax Resident
Jetbloom Limited UK Tax Resident  [Unus)
L & H Developments Limiled UK Tax Resident  Paddingion Central Hl [GP! Limited UK Tax Resident
Lancaster General Partner Limiled UK Tax Resident  Paddington Central ll LP UK Tax Resident

Lancaster Unit Trust {Jersey] [Units)

Overseas Tax Resident

Leadenhalt Holding Co{Jersey] Lid [Jerseyl
[50% interest)

UK Tax Resident

Paddingten Central Il Unit Trust [Jerseyl
[Units)

Overseas Tax Residenl

Liverpeal One Management Company

UK Tax Resident

Paddington Central IV Unit Trust erseyl
[Units)

Overseas Tax Residenl

Limited [50% interest) Paddington Kiosk [GP] Ltd UK Tax Resident
Liverpool One Management Serwicas Limiied UK Tax Resident  Paddinglon Kiosk LP UK Tax Resident
London and Henley [UK] Limited UK Tax Resident  Paddingien Central Management Company UK Fax Resident
Londan and Hentey Limited UK Tax Resident  Limited 87 50% interest]

Lonsbridge UK Limited UK Tax Resident Pardev[Broadwayl Limited UX Tax Resident
Langforg Street Residential Limited UK Tax Resident  2ardev [Luloni Limited UK Tax Resident
Ludgate lnvestment Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident  D2rtnv Northern Limited UK Tax Resident
Ludgate West Limited UK Tax Resident  Darwick Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Manbrig Properies UK Tax Resident  Darwick Investmenis Limited UK Tax Resident
Marble Arch Hause Unit Trust [Jerseyl Overseas Tax Resident  Parwick Properties Limited {Jersey UK Tax Resident
[Units) PC Baluc Wharf Limited UK Tax Resident
Mayfair Properties UK Tax Resident  PC Canat Limited UK Tax Resident
Mayflower Retail Park Basildon Limited UK Tax Resident  PC Lease Nominee Ltd UK Tax Resident
Meadowbank Relail Park Edinburgh Limited UK Tax Resident  PC Partnership Nominee Ltd UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centre [1999] Limited UK Tax Resident  PCourl Unit Trust [Jersey) [Units| Qwerseas Tax Resident

Meadowhall Centre Limited LK Tax Resident  Pillar [Beckton) Limited UK Jax Resident
Meadowhatl Cenlre Pension Scheme UK Tax Resident  Pillar [Birstall]l Limited UK Tax Resident
Trustees Limited Pillar [Cricktewood) Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Estates {UK] Limited UK Tax Resident  p,\1ar [Dartiord) Lymited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhali Group [MLP] Limited UK Tax Resident  py(ar [Fulham] Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhail Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident  py|lar Kirkealdyl Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Opportunities GP Limited UK Tax Residenl  pyj(ar Auchiniea Lirmited UK Tax Resident
ﬂi;ﬁiﬁha“ e y— TS AT Pillar Broadway Limried UK Tax Resident
Partnership [Jerseyl (Partnership Interest] Pillar Cheetham Hilt Limited UK iax Resident
Meadowhall Opportunities Nominee | UK Tax Resident Pillar Crty Ptc UK Tax Resrdent
Limited Pillar Dartford No 1 Limied UX Tax Resident
Meadowwhall Opportunities Nominee 2 UK Tax Resident  Pillar Denton Limited UK Tax Resdent
Limited Pillar Developments Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Training Limiied UK Tax Resident  pyllar Estates Limiiad UK Tax Residant
Mercar UK Tax Resident  Pyilar Estates No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercar Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident  pyllar Europe Management Limited UK Tax Resident
Minhill Investments Limited UK iax Resident  pyltar Farnborough Linuted U¥X Tax Resident
Mcorage {Property Developments) Limited UK Tax Resident  pyllar Fort Limited UK Tax Resident
Moorfields Nominee 1 Limited UK Tax Resident  Pyllar Fulham No 2 Limited UK Tax Resrdent
Moorfields Nominee 2 Limited UK Tax Resident  Pyllar Gallions Reach Limited UK Tax Restdent
Nugent Shopping Park Limited UK Tax Restdent  pillar Glasgow 1 Limited UK Tax Restdent
Number 80 Cheapside Limited UK Tax Resident  pyllar Glasgow 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
One Hundred Ludgate Hitl UK Tax Res dent
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Financial siatements

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED

Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Resident Stalus

Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Restdent Status

Pillar Glasgow 3 Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL [Lisnagelvin] Limied UK Tax Resident
Pillar Hercules Ng 2 Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL [Maidstone) Limited UK Tax Resident
Pillar Kipnaird Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL [Millon Keynes] Limited UK Tax Resident
Pillar Nugent Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL [Peterboroughl Limited UK Tax Restdent
Pillar Projects Limutad UK Tax Resident  TBL Holdings Limited UK Tax Restdent
Pillar Properiy Group Lirmited UK Tax Resident  TBL Properties Limitad UK Tax Resident

Pillar Retall Eurcpark Fund [Pref]

Overseas Tax Resident

Teesside Leisure Park Limited {51% interest]

UK Tax Resident

(Luxembourg] {Member Interest] (65 30% The Aldgate Place Limited Parinership UK Tax Restdent
inierest] [Partnershig Interest} 150% interast)
Pillar Retait Parks Limited UK Tax Resident  Tha Briush Lend Residential Limited UK Tax Resident
Pillar Speke Limited UK Tax Resident  Partnarship [Parinership Inlerest] (S0%
PillarCaisse Management Limited (50% UK Tax Resident  nterest)
interest) Tha Dartford Partnership IMember Interesi| UK Tax Resident
Pillarman Limited UK Tax Resigent  (20% interest)
PillarStore Limited UK TaxResident  1he Gibraltar Limuled Partnership [37 656% UK Tax Resident
Interest)
PillarStore No 3 Limuted UK Tax Resident
iarStore No 3 Limute > TESEEL Thg Liverpool Exchange Company Limited UK Tax Resident
Power Court GP Limded UK Tax Resident
The Mary Street Esiate Limited UK Tax Resident
Power Court Lutan Lirmited Partnership UK Tax Resident
(Parinership Interast) The Meadowhall Education Centre [Limiled UK Tax Resident
by Guarantee] [50% interest]
Power Courl Nominee Limited UK Tax Resident
The Retal and Warehouse Company Limited UK Tax Resident
Power Court Nominees Mo 2 Limiled UK Tax Resident Tha TBL Properly Parineramn (Partmareh UK Tax Resrdent
-
PREF Management Cempany SA [Spain} Overseas Tax Resident int:restl roperty grsmip Ership
Project Sunnise Investments Limited UK TaxResident 75 whtetey Co-Ownership Trust (Member UK Tax Resident
Project Sunnse Limited UK Tax Resident  Interast] [90% interest]
Project Sunrise Properties Limited UK Tax Resident  TPP Investments Limited UK Tax Resident
Reboline Limited UK Tax Resident  Tweed Premser 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Regent s Place Holding Company Limiled UK TaxResident  Tweed Premier 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Regents Place Management Company UK Tax Resident  Tweed Premrer 4 Limited UK Tax Resident
Limnited Union Proper ty Corperation Limited UK Tax Resident

Renash UK Tax Resident  {yon Properly Holdings [London) Limited UK Tax Resident
Rigphone Limited UK Tax Resident )09 Kingdom Praperty Company Limiled UK Tax Resident
Ritesol UK Tax Resident \;rpan Estates Management Limitad UK Tax Resident
Rohawk Properties Limited UK Tax Resident  yoianime Co-ownership Trusl [Member UK Tax Resident
Salmax Properties UK Tax Resident  nterest] |37 64% nterest]

Seymour Street Homes Limited UK Tax Resident  valentne Unit Trust [Jarsay} (Units] [75 31% Overseas Tax Resident
Shopping Centres Limiled UK Tax Resident  tnterest]

Six Broadgate Limitad

UK Tax Residen!

Vicinitee Limited

UK Tax Residenl

Southgate General Partner Limited [50% UK Tax Resicent  Vintners Place Limited UK Tax Residen:
nleresi Wardrobe Courl Limited UK Tax Resident
Southgale Property Unit Trust [Jersey] Overseas Tax Resident  Wardrobe Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
[Unizs] [50% interesil Wardrobe Place Linuted UK Tax Resident
ﬁﬁs:‘;ﬂ”“ Trust LJersey] [Uais] (65 9% Overseas Tax Resident w5 City of London Properlies Limited UK Tax Resident
Sprint 1118 Linated UK Tax Remdem: Wates City Point Limited UK Tax Resident
SUJames Parade (43] Limied UK Tax Residert Wates City Property Managemenl Limited UK Tax Resident

Westbourne Terrace Partnership UK Tax Resident

St James Retall Park Northampton Limited

UK Tax Resident

St Stephens Shopping Centre Limited

UK Tax Resident

[Parinershin interest]

Westgate Retail Park Wakefeld Limifed

UK Tax Resident

Stocklon Retail Park Limited UK Tax Resident  yiialey Shopping Centre Unit Trust Overseas Tax Resident
Surrey Quays Lirmiled UK Tax Resident  [Jerseyi (Units]

Sydale UK Tex Residenl WK [Austral House] First Limited UK Tax Restdent
T [Partnership} Limited UK Tax Resident WK [Ausiral House] Second Limited UK Tax Restdent
Tailress Limited UK Tax Resigeni WK Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL |Brent Park] Limited UK Tax Resident  York House W1 Limied UK Tax Resident
TBL [Bromleyl Limited UK Tax Resident

TBL {Bursledon] Limited UK Tax Resident

TBL {Bury] Lirmited UK Tax Resident

TBL [Ferndown) Limited UK Tax Resident
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES
UNAUDITED

Tabhle A Sumnumy meome statement and balance sheet

Summary income statement based on proportional censolidation for the year ended 31 March 2014
The following pro forma information 1s unaudited and does net form part ol the consehlidaled primary statements or the notes thereto It presents the
results of the Group withits share of the resulis of joinl ventures and funds included on a fine-by-line basis and excluding non-controlling interests

Year ended 31 March 20156 Year ended 31 March 2015

Less Less
Joint vertures non-controlling Proportionally Jontventures naon controlkng  Proporiienalty
Group and funds interests  consolidated Group and funds mteresls  consclidated
£im £m Em Em Erer Em Em £m
Gross rental income 451 231 [28) 654 399 250 (31 ol8
Property aperating expenses {28) k] 1 [34) [24] [10) 1 133
Netrental income 425 222 (27} 620 375 240 {301 585
Administrative expenses (93] (51 4 194) (85) [4) i (88
Net {ees and other income 16 - 1 17 15 - 2 17
Ungeared Income Return 48 17 122] 543 305 236 [27] 514
Net fmancing costs 1104) 821 8 180 {105] {i07] 11 [201)
Underlying Profit 242 135 {14) 343 200 129 {16] 313
Underlying taxation 2 - - 2 - - - -
Underlying Profit after taxation 244 135 114) 3465 200 129 116} 313
Valuation mevement 861 1473
QOther capital and taxation [net])! 48 50
Capital and other 09 1523
Totalreturn 1,274 1 834

' Includes other romprehensive incorne movement in dilution of share optiens and the movement in items excluded for EPRANAV
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Financial statements

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED
UNAUDITED

Table .\ (conunued)

Sumrmary balance sheet based on proportional consolidation as at 31 March 2016
The following pro forma information 1s unaudiled and does not form part of the consolidated pnimary statements or the notes thereto i presents
the composition of the EPRA net assels of the Group with its share of the net assels of the joint venture and fund assats and biabiliies included

on a line-by-line basis and excluding non-controlling interests and assuming full dilution

Mark-to-
market on
effective cash
Share of Less flow hedges Valuation ~ EPRANet EPRANet
jomnt non and related Convertible  surplus on assets assels
ventures  rontrolling Share  Deferred debt Head bond trading 31March 31 March
Group & funds Interests  oplions tax  adjustments leases adjuslment  properues 2016 2015
im £tm Cm £m £m £m £m fm tm £m £m
Retall properues 5662 2109 {400] - - - {30] - - 7,341 7314
Office properties 4118 2835 - - - - (18] - a7 7,024 6050
Canada Water
propertigs 283 - - - - - [ - b 283 273
Qther properties - - - - — - - - - - 40
Total properties 10063 4944 {400) - - - {52 - 23 14,648 13 677
Investments in jeint
ventures and funds 3353 (3 353) - - - - - - - - -
Other investments 142 |4] - - - - - - - 138 258
Other ret [uabdities)
assets [322) 121 3 34 5 - 52 - - 347) (380!
Net debt 3a17)  D4asel 120 - - 198 - - - (4,765)  14918)
Dilution due t¢
convertible bond - - - - - - - 400 - 400 400
Net assets 9619 - {277 36 5 198 - 400 33 10,074 9035
EPRA NAY per share
(note 2) 219p 829p
EPRA Net Assets Movemnent
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2815
Pence per Pence per
£Em share Em share
Opening EPRA NAY 9,035 829 7027 688
Income return 345 34 313 31
Caoitalreturn 209 7 1523 145
Didend paid (235) {21) [228] (27}
Dilulion due to 2012 convertible bond - - 400 18]
Closing EPRA NAV 10,074 19 g 035 829
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Table B EPRA Pertonm:aned meisures

EPRA Performance measures summary table

2016 2015
Pence per Perce per
£m share Em share
EPRA Earmings - basic 345 356 313 s
- diluted N 341 319 295
EPRA Net lninial Yield 41% 4 3%
EPRA topped-up Nzt inimial Yield 4 5% 4 89%
EPRA Vacancy Rate 2 0% 2 9%
2014 205
Net asset Net asset
value per value per
Netassets share pence Net assels  share pence
EPRA NAV 10,074 919 9035 829
EPRA NNNAY 9,840 880 8359 767
Calculation and reconciiation of EPRA/IFRS earnings and EPRA/IFRS earnings per share
2014 2015
€m Em
Profit altributable to the sharehclders of the Company 1,345 1710
Exclude
Group - current taxalion [2} 1
Group - deferrad taxation 131) 23
Joint ventures and funds - current laxatien 1 2z
Jointventures and funds - deferred taxation - 1£)
Groug - valuation moverment 1818) 1884]
Group - profit on drsposal of investment progerties and investmants (35) (201
Group - profit on dispesal of trading propertes (10l (8]
Jointventures and funds ~ net valuation movenent lincluding result on disposals] 263) {595}
Changes in fair value of linancial instruments and associated close -out casts [31) 47
Nen-centrolling interesis in respect of the above 5 39
Underlying Profit 343 313
Group - underlying current taxatisn 2 -
EPRA earnings - basic 345 313
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible bond . ) [
EPRA earnings - diluted 3N 319
Profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company 1,345 1710
Diluuve effect of 2012 convertible bond . ) -
IFRS earmings - diluted 1,351 1710
2014 2015
Number Nurmber
million mllien
Weighted average number of shares 1,036 1027
Adjusiment for Treasury shares {1 il
{FRS/EPRA Weighted average number of shares [basic) 1,025 1014
Olutive effect of share options 2 2
Ditutive effect of ESOP shares & 4
Diulive effect of 2012 convertible bond 58 -
IFRS Weighted average number of shares (diluted) 1,089 1022
Dilutve effect of 2012 convertible bond - 58
EPRA Weighted average number of shares (diluted) 1,089 1080
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Financial statements

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED
UNAUDITED

Table B contunued

Net assets per share

2016 2015
Pence Pence
£m pershare £m  pershare
Balance sheet net assets 9,619 8 545
Delerred tas arising on revaluation movements 5 13
Mark-lo-markel on effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjusiments 198 257
Dilution elfect of share aptions 36 37
Surplus on trading preperties 93 %4
Converuble bond adjustment 400 400
Less nen-controlling interests (277) 1333]
EPRA NAV 10,074 91% 7035 829
Deferred tax ansing on revaluation movements [24} (i3
Mark-tg-market on effectve cash flow hedges and related debt adjustments 153} [257)
Mark-to-market on debt (257] {408)
EPRA NNNAY 9,640 880 8 359 767
EPRA NNNAV s the EPRA NAV adjusted to reflect the fair value ot the debl and derwvalives and to include the deferred taxation on revalugtions
and derwalives
2016 2015
Number Number
mition million
MNumber of shares at year end 1,040 1031
Adjusiment for treasury shares (11} {3
IFRS/EFPRA number of shares [basic) 1,029 1020
Dilutive effect of share options 2 4
Dilutve effect of ESOP shares 7 8
Oilutive efiect of 2012 convertible bond 58 -
IFRS number of shares [diluted) 1,096 1032
Dilutive effect of 2012 converlible bond - 58
EPRA number of shares idiluted) 1,094 1690
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Table B continued

EPRA Net Imtial Yield and topped-up NetImtial Yield

2016 2015
Lm £m
investment property - wholly-owned 9,787 F058
Investment preperty - share of jJoint ventures and funds 4,861 4569
Less developments rasidential and land (894} (1148
Completed property portfolio 13,754 12 £89
Allowance for estimated purchasers costs 985 784
Gross up completed property portfolie valuation 14,739 13273
Annualised cash passing rental income 607 575
Proparty oulgoings 18) (8l
Annualised net rents 599 567
Rent expiration af rent-free perrods and fixed uplifts 63 b4
Topped-up netannualised rent 662 631
EPRA Netimtial Yield 4 1% 4 3%
EPRA topped-up Netlnitial Yield . 4 5% 4 8%
Including fixed/mintmum uplifts received in liev of rental growth 24 26
Total topped-up netrents 486 657
Dverall topped-up NetInitial Yield & 7% 4 9%
Topped-up net annualised rent 462 431
ERVvacant space 14 20
Revarsions 42 18
Total ERV 7i8 66%
Net Reversionary Yield 4 9% 50%

The weighted average period over which renl-free periods expire1s | year [2034/13 1year]
The above 1s staled for the UK pertfolio only

EPRA Net Imtial Yield [N1Y] basis of calculation

EPRANIY s caleulated as the annualised net rent [on a cash flow basis) dwided by the gross vatue of the completed property portiobie The valuation
of our comnpleted property portfolio s determined by our external valuers as at 31 March 2014 pius an allowance for estimated purchaser s casls
Estimated purchaser s costs are determined by the relevant stamp duty liabibily plus an estimate by our valuers of agent and legal {ees on notional
acquisition The netrent deduction atlowead for property outgoings 1s based on cur valuers assumptions on future recurring non-recoverable revenue
expenditure

In calculating the EPRA topped-up NIY the annualised net rent is increased by Lhe tolat contracted rent from expiry of rent-free periods and fulure
contracted rental uplifts where defined as not in Lieu of growth Overall topped-up NIY s calculated by adding any other contracled future uplifi ta
the topped-up netannualised rent

The net reversicnary yield 15 calcutated by dwiding the total estimated rental value [ERV] fer the completed property portfolio as determined by our
exlernal valuers by the gross completed property portfolio vatuation

The EPRA vacancy rate 1s calculated as the ERV of the unrented letiable space as a proportion of Lthe 1otal rental value of the compleied property
portfolia

EPRA Vacancy Rate
2015 2015
£m Em
Annualised potential rental value of vacant premises 14 20
Annualised poientiat rental value {or the completed property portiolio 728 692
EPRA Yacancy Rate 2 0% 29%

The above 1s stated for the UK porifolio only

BritishLand Annual Report and Accounts 2016 181




Financial statcments

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED
UNAUDITED

Table B contunued

EPRA Cost Ratios

2014 2015

€m tm

Property operating expenses 25 23
Administrative expenses 90 84
Share of joint ventures and funds expenses 13 14
Less Performance and management fees [from joint ventures and funds) V] 19t
Net other fees and commissions (8} {8t
Ground rent costs 13 (3]

EPRA Costs hincluding direct vacancy costs) [Al 108 01
Direct vacancy costs 1 i1
EPRA Costs lexcluding direct vacancy costs] (B) 97 90
Gross Rental Income less ground rent costs 429 374
Share of joint ventures and funds [GRI less grouad rent costst 222 241
Total Gross Rental Income less ground rent costs (C} 651 415
EPRA Cost Ratio [including direct vacancy costs] [A/C) 14 6% 16 4%
EPRA Cost Ratio (excluding direct vacancy costs] {B/C) 14 9% 14 6%
Overhead and operating expenses capitalised including share of joint ventures and fundsl 4 -

Inthe current year employee coslsin relalion Lo slaif time on development projects have been capitalised inie the base cost of relevant development
assels

Table . Gross rental mcome

2016 2015

Em tm

Rent recevable 415 581
Spreading of tenant incentives and guaranteed rant increases 3% 33
Surrender pramia 3 4
Gross rental income 654 518

The current and prior period infermation is presented on a proportionally consolidated basis excluding hon-controlbing interests
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Table 1D Properts related captal expenditure

2014 2015

Joint Jong

ventures veniures
Group and funds Total Grouwp and funds Total
Acguisdions 238 - 238 147 - 7
Development 104 58 162 54 83 %7
Like-for-like portfolio 99 [ 105 67 23 g0
Other 25 15 40 25 8 33
Total property related capex 466 79 545 303 114 417

The above 15 presented on a proportionally consolidated basis excluding non-controtbing interests and business corbinations The Other category
contains amounts owing 1o tenant incentives of £27m (201415 £18m) capitalised staff costs of £4m [2014/15 Crull and capiialised interest of £9m

(2014715 £15m]
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Other Information

Unaudited

Acquisihions and disposals

Gross rental ncome

Major holdings

Occupiers representing over 0 5% of total cantracted rent
Portfolic valuation

Retail portfobo valuation - previous classificaiion basis
Porifolic weighting

Portfolio yieid and ERY movements

Totat property return {as calculated by IPD)
Portlolio net yields

Portfolio net yields — previcus classification basis
Lease length and occupancy

Annualised rent and estimatad rental value [ERV]
Rent subject to open market rent review

Rent subject to lease break or expiry

Superstores

Recently completed and commutted developments
Near term pipeline

Medium term pipeline

Residential development prograrnme
Sustainatility performance measures

Ten year record

Shareholder information

Glossary
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Other Information

UNAUDITED

vequisitions atd dhisposals

Acquisttrons
Price Prce Arnual

IGross]  [BL Sharel Passing Rent
From 1 April 2015 Area Em fm £m
Completed
I Shaldon Square Offices London 210 210 10
Hercules Unit Trust unit purchase’ Retail Various 95 95 5
19-33 Liverpool Street Offices London 22 22 1
Broughton Chester development land Retail North West 5 3 -
Teasside Leisure Park Retail North Easi 2 2 -
Total 334 332 16
' Umils purchased aver the course of the period £95m represents purchased GAY

BL share of nel rent topped up for rent frees
Disposals
Price Price Annual

{Gross]  [BL Share] Passing Rent
From 1 April 2015 Area Em Em £m'
Completed
Parkgate Ratherham " Retall Yorkshire 170 120 b
39 Victeria Street Offices London 139 139 5
Birstall Leeds Retail Yorkshire 67 31 2
PREF - France and Portugal Retail Curope &7 43 4
Hatters Way Luten & Hytton Riverside Sunderland Retail Various 45 34 p4
560 London Road Camberley Retail Soulh 38 38 2
Debenhams Oxford Relail South 23 23 1
The Hempel Collection Residential London 20 20
Superstore disposals Retail Vartous 154 122 &
B&M Daventry Retal Midlands 9 g 1
Bedford Street Residential London 4 4 -
Aldgate Place Residential Lendon 1 1 -
Exchanged
Aldgate Place Residennial London 32 14 -
Tha Hempel Colleciion Rasidential London 18 13 -
Tatal 827 618 29

' BL share of annualised rent topped up for rent frees
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Gross rental meome!?

12 months 10 31 March 2014 Annuahised as at 31 March 201e

Ns & N5 &

Accounting basis £m Group Funds Tolal Group Funds Total
Regional 55 g tas 52 83 135
Local 100 26 124 97 26 123
Multi-lets 155 115 270 149 169 258
Department Stores & Lessure 57 - 57 5% - 56
Superstores 11 36 a7 9 35 Lt
Solus/Gther 21 - 21 18 - 18
Retail & Leisure 244 151 395 232 144 376
West End 125 - 123 125 - 125
City ] 114 19 5 118 124
Dffices 130 14 244 130 19 249
Residential 3 - 3 3 - 3
Dffices & Residential 133 114 247 133 19 252
Canada Water 8 - 8 8 - 8
Total 385 265 650 373 263 636
Tab‘e shows UK total with previous ciassificatien provndea on Company website www britishland com/results
' Excluding develepments under censtruciion and assets held for development

Gross rental income will differ from annualised rents due to accounting adjuslments for lixed and minmum contracted rental uplifts and lease incentives

Group s share of properties in joint ventures and funds including HUT at share

Stand alone residential
Major holdings
At 31 March 2014 BL Share 5qt Rent  Occupancy Lease
[excluding developments under construction] k] 00g £m pa' rale length yrs
Broadgale 50 4724 226 993 78
Regent s Place . 100 1 590 79 987 74
Paddingian Central 100 804 33 998 78
Meadowhall 50 1500 80 983 &9
Sainsbury s Supersteres 50 2526 96 1000 140
The Leadenhall Butding 50 603 37 978 114
Debenhams Oxford Street 100 363 1 10090 230
feeside 100 569 15 9% 1 57
Glasgow Fort 100 510 i4 94 2 65
Drake s Circus 100 570 i6 98 4 52
' Anpualised EPRA contracted rent including §60 » of joint sentures and funds

In¢ludes accommedation under offer or subject to asset management at 31 March 2014

We:ghted average o first break
- Comprises siand-alone assets/proparties
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Other Information

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Oceupiers representing over O 3% of total contracted rent

ot tatal + of total
At 31 March 2016 rant rent
UBS AG' 57 New Look 09
Tesco ple 564 Vodafone 99
Debenhams 53 SportsDirect 09
J Sainsbury Plc 44 Aon Plc iR:}
Kinghisher {B&Q) 26 Asda Group 08
HM Gavernment 22 Home Retail Group 08
Next plc 21 JPMargan 07
Virgin Active 18 Reed Smith 07
Facehook 17 Hennes a7
Sprnit Group 16 Deutsche Bank AG 67
Allance Boots 15 D Sports 07
Wesfarmers 14 Mayer Brown 07
Visa Inc 14 Mathercare 07
Dixans Carphone 14 ICAP Plc 0é
Marks & Spencer Ptc 14 Lend Lease 04
Arcadia Group 13 Carison (TGl Friday s} 04
Dentsu Aeg:s 13 Peis at Home 05
Herbert Smith 12 Credit Agricole 05
RBS 11 tewis Trust 05
TJX Cos Inc {TK Maxx} 10 Steinhoff 05
Gazprom 10

* Rent contracted on both 5 Broadgale and 1-3 Finsbury Avenue/ 108 Liverpool Street tease whitst UBS move 3 0w pro-forma for run off of UBS rent at 1-3 Finsbury

Avenue/100 Liverpool Sireet
’ Inciudes the impaci of rent fre= incentives
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Pardoho s aluaton

Change ™
M5 &
Group Funds Total
At 31 March 2016 £m tm £m H1 H2 FY
Regional 1052 1792 2 844 28 02 30
Local 1893 485 2378 15 il 206
Multi-lets 2,945 2,217 5,222 22 06 28
Department Stores & Leisure 1 004 1 1005 3é 25 60
Superstores 153 428 781 n7 10 5 124
Solus/Other 333 - 333 oy 04) (05l
Retail & Leisure? 4,435 2.906 7,341 18 07 24
West End 3904 - 3904 81 Lb 128
City 04 2782 288s 85 24 11
Dffices 4,008 2,782 6,790 83 a7 121
Residentiats 173 41 234 47 03] 57
Offices & Residentiat? 4,181 2,843 7.024 82 35 118
Canada Water 283 - 283 26 {0 9) 17
Total 8,899 5,749 14,648 47 20 67
Standing Investments 8,204 5,673 13,877 45 19 &4
Developments 695 756 771 69 31 94

Table with previous classification provided on Company websile al www britishiand com/fresulis
Group s share of praperties.n joint ventures and funds including HUT at ownership share
Valuation movement during the penod [after taking aceount of capial expenditure] of properties hetd at the balance sheet date including developments lclassilied by
end use] purchases and sales
Including committad devalopments
Stand alone residential

Retan] porttoho yaluation = presous dassitication basis

Valuauen Change % ERV Growlh © NEY Yield Cormrpression bps
At 31 March 2014 Em HI H2 FY H1 H2 FY K1 H2 FY
Shopping Parks 3 346 11 03 13 0?9 19 28 5 2 7
Shopoing Centres 2205 38 09 47 20 19 39 14 9 18
Superslores 781 (16} 03] {21 (09 03] 113l 15) 1 (8)
Department Stores 504 29 30 80 - 03 03 12 13 25
Leisure 403 472 i8 61 03 03 04 22 23 54
Retail & Leisure® 7,341 18 07 24 09 15 24 8 5 13

' Group s share of propertiesin joint ventures and funds inrluding HUT at share
Yaluauien mevement during the period fafter taking acrount of capial expenditure] of properuies held at the batance sheet date including developments [ciassilied by
end use] purchases and sales
As ¢alculated by IPD
Solus/Other assets under current Retad segmentaton prawously included in Shoppirg Parks
Inctuding commutied developments
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Other Information

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Porttolio weighting

2015 2016 2015

2015 leurrant lcurrent]  |pro forma |
At 31 March h fm 7u
Regional 202 194 2844 i90
Locat 168 e 3 2378 159
Multi-lets 370 357 5,222 349
Depariment Stores & Leisure 71 69 1005 67
Superstores 67 53 7€i 52
Solus/Other 28 23 333 22
Retail & Lessure 536 50 2 7,341 490
West End 239 264 3904 280
City 1838 197 2886 193
Offices 427 46 3 6,750 473
Residential’ 19 ib 234 18
Ofhces & Residential Lh & 479 7,024 491
Canada Water 18 19 283 19
Total . 1000 1000 14,648 1000
Landon Weighting 55% 58% B,4%0 59%
Table with previous classilicalion provided on Company website www britishland com/results
' Prolorma for developmenls under construchion at estimated end value jas determinad by the Group s exiernal valuars) and pest period end transactions

Stand-atene residental
Porttolio vield and ERV moycments!
NEY ERV Growth %% NEY Yield Cempression bps

At 31 March 2014 b H1 H2 FY H1 H2 FY
Regional 48 17 18 35 Il 4 15
Local 52 10 22 33 7 2 9
Multi-lets 50 14 20 34 9 3 12
Oepartment Slores & Leisure 51 G2 02 04 1% 17 a7
Superstores 52 o9 {0y (13 (5} 1 18]
Sotus/Qther 51 01 oo o 1 1 2
Retail & Leisure 50 09 18 24 8 S 13
West End 4 &1 56 99 24 28
City* 4t 48 43 73 14 (4] 12
Othices L4 Li 50 96 20 (0) 21
Canada Water 32 02 02 05 1 1 13
Total 47 23 20 53 13 3 17

Table with previous ciassification provided on Company website www britishland com/results
' Excluding developrments under construction assels held for development and restdential assels
* As calculated by IPD
! In¢luding notional purchaser s cosls
City ERY growth of 7 3% and West End ERV growth of § 1/ on a like-for-like bas s
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Tot] properns return (as caleulated by IPD)

FY to 31 March 2014 Retal Otiices Total
% Brniuish Land IPD  Eriush Land IPD British Lang IPD
Caputal Return 25 23 123 1t} 68 63
- ERV Growth 24 14 94 78 53 40
- Yreld Compression’ 13 bps 18 bps 21 bps 20 bps 17 bps 23bps
Income Return 52 51 32 39 42 47
Total Property Return 78 75 158 15 4 13 i13
! Net equivalenl yield mavement
Porttoho net vields! 2
EPRA topped Overall Mat Nel
EPRA net  up nelinmal topped up nat equivalant reversionary
initial yeld Aeld  intal yelo yeld yreld
At 31 March 20146 A Y & ™ S
Regional 43 At L5 48 48
Local 48 51 52 52 52
Multi-lets 45 47 4L 8 50 50
Department Stores & Laisure 47 48 64 51 49
Superslores 33 33 53 32 52
Salus/Cther 56 56 54 51 47
Retail & Leisure 47 48 51 50 49
West End 35 39 40 44 [
City 32 44 45 L4 53
Offices 34 42 42 LX) 49
Canada Water 28 28 28 32 34
Total 41 45 47 47 49
Including notional purchaser s costs
Excluding deselopments under construchion assets held for devetopment and residential assets
Incluging rent contracted from expiry of rent free penods and Nixed uplitts not in beu of rental growth
* Including fixed/rmimimum uplits lexcluded from EPRA defintion]
Porttolio net vieldst? = provious classbeation basis
EPRA topped Overall Net Net
EPRA et up nelinibal topped up net equivalenl reversionan
imbial yeld yetd inihal yietd yeld yield
At 31 March 2016 ' b Y ™ %
Shopgping Parks a7 49 49 91 50
Shopping Centres £5 L4 47 49 L9
Superstores 53 53 53 52 52
Department Stores 39 39 56 47 35
Lesure 61 61 Té b4 48
Retail & Leisure 47 48 51 50 49
In¢luding nolienal purchaser s casts
Exclud ng devetopments under construchion assets held for developmenl and residential assels
Including renl ¢contractad from e«<piry of rent-iree periods and fixad uplifis not in Ligu of rentat growth
Including fixed/minirnum uplifts [evcluded from EPRA definition)
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Other Information

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

I case length and occupanes!

Average lease length years Qccupancy rate ™

Oceupancy
At 31 March 2016 To expiry To break Occupancy  [underlying)
Regional 79 6% 958 973
Lacal 87 75 989 996
Mulbti-lets 83 72 973 9B &
Department Stores & Leisure 197 196 1000 60 0
Superstoras 4 2 138 10090 160 0
Solus/Other 105 105 1000 1000
Retail & Leisure 104 98 98 0 990
West End 95 75 978 981
City 02 83 98 4 991
Offices 98 79 981 98 &
Canada Water 75 74 28 4 991
Total 10 2 0 980 98 8
Table with previous or IPD classification provided on Company websile www britishtand com/results

Excluding developrments under construchon and assets hetd for development
In¢luding accommadation under offer or subject to asset management
Annuabisaed tent and estimated rental salue (ERV)
Annuabised rent
Ivaluation basis] Em ERVEm Average rent Epsf
Vs &

At 3t March 2018 Group Funds Tolal Total Contracted" ERV
Regional 54 84 38 195 328 359
Local 97 27 124 134 242 247
Multi-lets 151 m 262 289 280 297
Department Siores & Leisure 31 - 51 44 153 131
Superslores 9 35 44 43 214 208
Solus/Other 18 - 18 16 188 160
Retail & Leisure 229 146 375 392 240 243
West End 125 - 125 165 515 60 6
City 5 94 9% 162 500 503
Offices 130 94 224 327 510 60 4
Residential* 3 - 3 4
Offices & Residentiat 133 94 227 3N
Canada Water 8 - 8 ? 187 214
Total 370 240 610 732 301 328

Table with previous classification provided on Company website at www britishland com/results

' Excluding developmants under construction and assets held for development

' Gross rents plus where rent reviews are outstanding any increases to ERV [as determined by the Group s external valuersl less any ground rents payable under head
leases excludes contracted rent subject ta rent free and future uplift

* Annualised rent plus rent subjectiiorent iree
Stand-alone residentiat
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Rent subjedt o open market rene resview!

At 31 March 2014 2007 2018 2019 2020 2021 2017-19 20i7-21
For period to 31 March £m £m £m Em Em £m £rm
Regional 15 12 V7 10 8 L4 72
Leocal 1 24 2i 12 il 56 7%
Multi-lets 24 36 38 22 29 100 1514
Department Stores & Leisure - - - - - - -
Superstores 5 4 8 12 14 17 43
SolusfOther - 1 - - - 1 1
Retail & Leisure N 41 L6 34 43 118 195
West End 6 20 20 15 2 46 43
Ciy i 4 13 14 14 18 48
Offices 7 24 33 29 18 b4 m
Canada Water ~ - - - - - -
Total 38 65 79 63 51 182 306
Potential uplift at current ERV 1 2 4 2 1 7 10
Table with previous clasaificauon provided on Company website www brihishland com/results
Excluding developments under consiruction residennal assets and assets held for development
Rent subject to lease break or expiny!
At 31 March 2014 2017 2018 019 2020 2021 20t7-19 M7 21
For period to 31 March £m Em £m Em £m Em £m
Regienal 13 12 9 13 9 34 36
Local 9 4 ] i 9 23 43
Multi-lets 22 18 17 24 18 57 99
Department Slores & Leisure - 1 - - - 1 1
Superstores - - - - - - -
Solus/Qther 1 - - - b 1 7
Retail & Leisure 23 19 17 24 24 59 107
Wesl End 10 8 10 4 19 28 51
City 17 3 i7 14 B 37 3¢
Offices? 27 11 27 18 27 65 110
Canada Water 1 - 1 - 1 2 3
Totat 51 30 45 42 52 126 220
% of contracted rent 7 3% 4 &% 6 5% 6 1% 7.6% 18 2% N%
Patential uphift at current ERV? 4 3 1 4 1 18 23
Table with previous classification prowded on Company website www britishland cormfresults
' Ercluding developments under construction and assets hetd for development
Based on office space only

‘ As deterrmined by the Group s valuers esciuding near term developments
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Other Information

UNAUDITED CONTINUED
Supenstores

Stand-alone Superstores In Muib) tet assets Total Exposure’

Valuation Capital Valuation Capual Valuation Capttal

Store Size Noof {BL share] Vatue WALL Noaf [BL sharel Value WALL MNoat (8L share) Value WALL
000 sq ft Stores £m psi toFB Stores £m psf te FB Stores fm psf loFB
=100 8 V77 351 124 5 357 538 30 i3 534 457 i28
75-10C 13 270 447 179 2 85 415 i28 15 325 457 170
50-75 16 256 404 126 1 12 194 11 17 2563 385 123
25-50 8 52 226 83 3 32 457 146 N 84 281 104
0-25 2 a 177 91 17 80 436 111 17 a3 387 109
March 2016 47 763 383 139 28 534 4B2 127 75 1.299 419 135
March 2015 57 24 95 145 29 529 491 139 B& 1,453 426 14 4
Geographical Spread Gross Rent (BL Share) Lease Structure
London & South 57% Tesco £37m RPland Fixed 8%
Rest of UK 43% Sainshurys £30m OMRR 92%

Other £5m

! Excludes £8m non foodstore occupiers in superstore ted assets and E10m Sainsburys Newquay sold post-penod end
* Excludes nenioed-format stores e g Asda Lisng
Excludes £101m of investments held for trading comprising ireehold reversions in a pool of Sainsbury s Superstores

Recenthy completed and commutted developments

Let & Resi Sales
PC Current Cost to Under ResiEnd Exchanged &
BL Share Sqft Catendar Value complete ERV Offer Value  Completed
At 31 March 2016 Sector i GO0 Year £m £m {m Em Em £m
5 Broadgate Offices 50 710 Completed 446 8 192 192 -
Yalding House Qffices 100 29 Completed 37 1 19 - -
Whiteley Leisure Fareham Retait 30 57 Completed 12 1 0é 06 -
Glasgow Fort M&S & Retail Terrace Retall 75 112 Complated 35 3 20 17 -
Total Compieted in Period 908 553 13 237 215
4 Kingdom Street Offices 100 147 Q22017 81 b4 95 - -
Clarges Mayfamr Mixed Use 100 192 G4 2017 404 107 62 - 456 259
Glasgow Fort [MSCP and sdditional
retailfleisure units) Retait 75 12 Q3201 2 5 U4 02 -
The Hempel Phase 1 Residential 100 25 Q22015 26 2 - - 50 36
The Hempe! Phase 2 Residential 100 32 032046 48 12 - - 72 g
Aldgate Place Phase i Residantral 50 221 (22014 hé 14 - - 79 55
Total Under Construction 529 605 204 161 02 457 358
Relail Capital Expendiure® 137

Data includes Group s share of properties in joint ventures and funds fe«cepl area which 1s shown at 1007
' From 1 Aprit 2016
¢ Estirmated headline rental value n=l of rent payable under head leases |excluding tenantincentives)
Capex commitled and under way within our invesimenl portiolio relating ie leas ng and assel management
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Nedr terim pipehne

B Sqft Start On Tolal Cost
At31 March 2016 Sector Share 000 Sie £m Status
100 Lwerpoot Streat Offices 50 520 2047 27% Consented
P Triton Squaret Offices 100 217 2047 370 Pre-submission
t Finsbury Avenue Offices 50 303 20i7 150 Consented
5 Kingdorn Street’ Offices 100 240 2017 228 Consented
Blossom Streel Shoreditch Mixed Use 100 340 2017 254 Consented
Plymouth Leisure Retail 100 102 2016 41 Caonsented
New Mersey Speke - Laisure Retall &6 46 2016 20 Consented
Crawley Homewaras Park Retail 100 52 2016 2% Consented
Aldgate Place Phase 2 Residenuat 30 145 29016 59 Consented
54 The Broadway Ealing Residentia 100 34 2016 2 Censented
Total Near term 2,019 1,450
Retail Capital Expenditure® 20
Total costincluding site value Excludes notional interest as interest s capnalised indwidually on each development at our capitalisation rate
Existing net areas scheme n early design slages
+ 210090 5q fr of which 1s consented
Forecast capital commilments within our investment portfolio over the next twe years relating to leasing and assel enhancement
Meduwmm term prpeline
At 31 March 2016 Sector BL Share Slsq[.lfl]l Status
2-3Finsbury Avenue Gffices 50 550 Submitied
Eden Walk Kingsion Mixad Use 50 562 Submitiad
Canada Water Masterplan' Mixaed Use 100 5500 Pre-submissicn
Forster Square Bradford Phase 3 Retail 100 43 Censenied
Meadowhall Leisure Retait 50 330 Pre-submission
Glasgow Fort - Retall Extension Retail 75 40 Consented
Putney High Street Residenual 100 1H Consenied
Total Prospective 7175
' Assumed nel area based ongrossareaof upto Zm sg it
Residentat des dlopment programme
Sales
Current Costto Exchanged &
Sqft  No Market PC Datef BL Share Value' come End Value  Compisted
At 31 March 2016 000 Units Status £ Em £m £m Em
Clarges Mayfairt 103 34 042017 100 286 88 456 259
Mixed use 103 34 286 88 456 259
The Hempel Phase 1 25 15 Q2201 100 24 2 50 35
The Hempel Phase 2 32 18 Q32016 i00 48 12 72 8
Aldgate Place Phase 1 221 ibs Q22016 50 44 14 79 55
Resi-led 278 187 118 28 201 99
Aldgata Place Phase 2 145 Consented 30
54 The Broadway Ealing 34 Censented 100
Near Term prospective 179
Total Commiited Residential 381 221 404 116 657 358

Data includes Group s shara of propertiesin jonl ventures and fungs [except area which 1s shown at 100, 1

Eacluding completed sales

From 1 Aprit 2015 Cost o romplete excludes notional inlerest as Interest ts capitalised individually on each development at our capitabisation rate

Includes completed unds (£22 8m)
Inctudes ? 500 sg It of affordable housing (11 units)
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Other Information

UNAUDBITED CONTINUED

Sustamaluhn pertormance moasures

The data below cavers 98% of our mulii-lel managed portfolie by vatue [56% of assets under managementl and 100% of development projects

Scope

[assets or

2015/1% 2014715 014 uniis)

EPRA best practice recommendations on sustainability reperting’

Tota! electricity consumption [MWh] 172 238 171619 164,038 7105
Toial district heating and cooling consumptien [MWh) 0 0 289 0/0
Total fuel consumption IMWhi 38 234 36 399 39085 £5/46
Building energy intensity (kWh per m?| Offices 263 41 270%% 26076 3437
Shopping centres 5182 40 00 5071 13/13

Retail parks 1023 314 937 35/42

Building energy intensity [kWh per workstation or 10 000 wisitors) QFices 516% 3978 3659 31137
Shapping centres 1276 1488 1740 12113

Retail parks 238 224 297 33/42

Total direct [Scope 1] greenhouse gas emigsions [tonpes C0.¢] 7927 7519 7335 45/44
Tota! mdirect [Scope 2] greenhouse gas emissions [tannes CO e} 38710 42 503 38 619 97/10%
Greenhouse gas Intensity from building energy consumption Offices [gross internal areal D14 015 014 34/37
[tannes CO;e per m?] Shopping centres 003 003 003 13/13’
Retal parks 0906 0008 0005 35/42

Totak water consumption [m’) 653 450 557 041 654 591 68/81
Buillding water intensity [m3 per m?] Offices 074 {64 045 32437
Shopoing centres 038 036 034 1412

. Retall parks 004 go7 308 15/22

Buillding water intensily [m? per workstatien ar 10 000 wisitorsl Offices 1376 14 29 13 67 30/37
Shopping centres 389 878 37 11/12

Retail parks 132 194 227 15/22

Total wasta by drsposal route ltennes and %) Recycled 14 533 (68 6% 12541 |67 &%) 13 D59 [66%! 50/60
Incinerated 6522 [30 8%I 5 437 (29 2%) 5 3066 127%:} 60/60

Landfilled 134 [(06%) 61513 3%)  1465{7%)] 60/60

Sustainably certtfied assets - Energy Performance Ato B 30% 22'h - 27369/2 850
Certificates (% by value! CwoE £7%, 75% — 2 349/2 854
FiG 3% 3% - 2345/2 856

2015/16 Scope

Additional sustainabitity data in year one of our five-year strategy

Wellbeing Employee score for our offices supporting their wellbeing 87% -
Wellbeing Visitor score for the shopping experience 4 2/5 29/53
Communily British Land employee voiunteering 84% 71/107
Communiy Community programme as a percentage of pre-tax profiis 0 63% 91/107
Community Community pregramme beneficiaries 29482 21/107
Future proofing Developments cn track to achieve BREEAM Excellent for offices and Excetlent or Very Good rar retail 52% 17/17
Fuiure proofing Landlord energy reduclion ver sus 2009 [index score] 38% [62/100] 75/78
Future proofing Carban {scope 1 and 2] reduction versus 200% findex score) 40% [60/100] 75/78
Future prooting Porticlio at high risk of flood 5% 267273
Future proofing Energy generation {MWh] 1126 8/%
Skills and gpportunity Employees paid Living Wage Foundation wage 100% -
Skills and opportunty Supplier workforce paid Living Wage Foundation wage at our properties 72% 8%/101
Skills ang epporiumty Supply chain spend within 25 miles of our properties 49% 59/108
Skills and apportunity Supplier workforce living within 25 miles of our piaces 57% 108/120

' As per EPRA best practice recommendations total energy and water data coners energy and water procured by British Land Energy water and carbonintensity data

covers whole buillding usage for Qfiices and commen parts usage Jor shopping centres and retail parks

For mare detailed data en all these indicators and additional indicators please see our Sustainabilily Accounts 2016 www britishland cor/data
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TENYEAR RECORD

The table below summarises the last ten years resulis cash flows and balance sheets

2014 2015 2014 2013 2042 201 2010 2009 2C03 2007
£€m £m £m Cm em £m Em {m £m Em

Income*
Gross rental Income 654 &18 597 567 572 543 h41 650 709 706
MNet rental ncome 420 585 562 541 545 518 545 598 687 661
Nat fees and other income 17 V7 15 15 17 18 15 20 40 50
Interest expense [net) (180] (201l {202 [204) [218] 1212} 246 [292) [350] 13701
Administrative expense 194) (88} 178] [76] 174] [68) (651 158} 1731 184)
Underlying Profit 363 3i3 297 274 269 255 249 258 284 257
Exceptional costs
{not included in Underlying Profitj - - - - - - - 1191 - [305)
Drvidends declared 287 277 266 234 231 231 225 198 179 107
Summarised balance sheets
Tetal properties at valuation'? 14,648 13477 12040 10499 10337 9572 8539 84625 1347 16903
Net dent 14,765]  (4918)  [48%90] (4 264] l4e%0) 14173]  (£081) {4%8) 6413 [7741]
Other assets and Liabilities 191 275 (123] 1264) (264} {298) [51) {297 [122) 13001
EPRA NAV/Fully diluted adjusted net assets 10,074 §035 7027 5947 5381 5101 & 407 3387 55346 8862
Cash flow movement - Group only
Cash generatad from operations 341 313 243 197 21 182 248 406 477 494
Cash outllow from operalions (47} {33) f241 (7] sl 28 {1zl {201) {295 £275]
Net cash inflow from operating activities 294 285 219 1990 206 210 136 205 182 219
Cash nllow [outflow! trom capital exgendiure
vestments acquisitions and disposals 230 111 {650} [202] [547) 12401 139} £18 857 [54]
Equity dividends paid [235) [228] (159} (203} i212) (739 (154} t188] {161 @1
Cash loutflow] inftow from
management of liquid resources and financing. (283} 20 607 213 630 157 (485l 158 1830) i)
Increase [decreasel n cash (] £34) 7 [2) 77 112) 1542 377 48 63
Capital returas
Growth in net assets’ 115% 284&% 17 8% 109% 5 5% 157%  301% (511 [216%] 13é%
Totat return- 142% 245%  200% 4 5% % 5% 177%  335% [816%] (181%]  143%
Total return - pre-exceplional 142%  245%  200% 4 5% 9 5% 177%  335% [603%] [181%] 213%
Per share information’
EPRA nel asset value per share 1% 829p 588p 5%&p 595p 567p 504p 3%8p  1ildp 13%p
Memorandum
Dividends declared in the year 28 4p 217p 270p 26 4p 263p 26 0p 26 O0p 298p 290p 10 9p
Ovidends paid i the year 28 0p 273p 267p 26 3p 260p 26 Op 273p 300p 267p 14 4p
Diluted earnings
Underlying EPRA earnings per share 34 1p 30 60 294p 303p 297n 28 5p 2B4p 41 0p 44 3p 35%
IFRS earnings llass] per share- 1241p 1673p M0 2p 3t 5p 53 8p 952p  1326p 614 1pi [2610p) 389 4p
' Includ ng share of joint ventures and funds

Represents movement in dituted EPRA NAY

Including surplus over book value of trading and development properties

Including exceplionat inance costs in 2007 £305 mitlion and 2069 £119 mullian

2008 restatad for IFRS The UK GAAP accounts shows gross rental income of £020 millton and Underlying Prefit of £175 mithon

Represents movernent in cash and cash equivalents under IFRS and movemenisin cash under UK GAAP

Adjusted for the nighis issue of 341 million shares in March 2009
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T

(ther informuation

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Fuaneral ealendar

2015

Fourth quarter ex-dividend date

Fourth quarter dvidend payment date

30 June 2016
5 August 2015

2017

First quarter Trading Siatement

First quarier ex-dwidend dale

First quarter tivdand payment date

Halfyear resulls

18 July 2015

6 Octobar 2014

11 Navembar 20156
16 Novernber 2014

Second quarter ex-dividefo date January 2017
Second quarter dividend payment date February 2017
Third quarter Trading Statement January 2017
Third quarter ex-dividend date March/Apri 2017
Third quarler dividend payment date May 2017
Fullyear results May 2017
Fourth quarter ex-dividend date June/July 2017
Fourth quarter dividend payment date August 2017

The Board will announce the availlabilily of & Scrip Alternative tor each dividend if offered via the Regulatory News Service and on the Group s
website www britishland com no tater than four business days before each ex-dmidend date For the fourth quarter divigend of 2016 the Board
axpecls to announce the spbt between PID and non-PID income al the same time Any Scrip Alternative will not be enhanced

Analvars of sharcholders = 31 March 2016

Number Balance as
Range of holdings ty  at 31 March 201
1-1 0680 8 367 5418 4 )24 681 039
1001-5000 5,257 34 04 t1211850 109
5001-20 060 920 596 8 659526 084
20001-50 008 270 175 84654 309 84
50 001-Highest 628 467 9946 745 682 96 84
Tolal 15 442 10000 1029294078 100 Q0
Number Balance as
Huolder type of holders L at 31 March 2018 .
Individuals 6 693 4334 11642,035 114
Nominee and institutional snvestors 8 749 5666 1017354 043 98 84
Tolal 15 442 10000 1029 296 078 100 00

' Excluging 11 264 245 shares held in treasury
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Registrars

Briush Land s Share Registrar Equinti Limited
[Equiniti} can be contacted at Aspecl House
Spencer Road Lancing West Sussex

BN9¢ 6DA

ThaShareholder Helplme s 0371 384 2143
Lines ara open from 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday
10 Friday The general enquiries number for
overseas callers s +44 (01121 415 7047

Equiniti s website 15 www shareview co uk
Registering on this site will enable you to

-wview your British Land shareholding entine

- updale your details and

- opt to receve shareholder maitings
electromically

Equinitiis also the Registrar for the BLD
Preperty Holdings Limited Stock

Bank ol New York loperaung through Capital
British Land s Debentures Registrar can be
contacieo al The Registry 34 Beckenham
Road Beckenham Kent BR34TU

The Bondholder Enquiry Line1s 0871 464 0300
Calls cost 10 pence per minule plus network
extras Lines are open from 9 00am to 5 30pm
Monday to Friday

Share dealing service

Equimiti offers Shareview a service which
allows UK residents to buy or sell

Brrish Land shares

UK residents can dealn Bnush Land shares
on the snternet or by phone Logonle

www shareview co uk/dealing or call

0845 603 7037 between 8 30am and 4 30pm
Monday to Friday for more information about
Shareview and for details of the rates If you
are an existing shareholder you will need your
shareholder relerence numberwhich appears
on your share certificate

Dmdends

As a REJT Briush Land pays Property
Income Distribution [PID] and non-Property
Incomie Distribution Jnon-PID) dividends
More informalion on REITs and PIDs can

be found In the glossary on page 202 or

in the Invastors section of gur wabsite al
www briushland com/dividends

Briush Land dvidends can be paid directly
into your hank or bulding saciety account
instead of being despatched to you by chegue
Mare information about the benefits of having
dividends patd directly into your bank or
buiding sociely account and the mandate
farm to set this up can be found inthe
Inveslors section of our website al

www britishland com/dividends

Scrip Dividend Scheme

British Land offers the opportunity to
participate in the Scrip Dividend Scheme
irom ume ta Lime, which enables particigating
sharghotders ta recewve sharesinstead of
cashwhena Scrip Alternative 1s offered for
a particutar dvidend For more informalion
and for delaiis of how ta sign up to the Scrip
Dividend Scheme pleas&wisii the investars
seciion of gur website at

www britishland com/dvidends/
scrip-dividend-scheme

Honorary President

Sir John Ritblat became Managing Direcior of
British Land in 1970 and Chairman in 1971 He
retired from the Board in December 2004 and
was appointed Honorary President in
recognition of fus work building British Land
nlo the industry leading company 115 today

Website and shareholder communications

The British Land corporate website contains a
wealth of material for shareholders inctuding
the current share price press releases and
information on among other things REITs and
dividends The website can be accessed at
www britishland com

Ifyou currently recewe paper copies of
shareholder communications you may prefer
to recerve elecironic copies wia the British Land
website Instead When a document 1s produced
for shareholders you will receive an emall
containing a ink directly to the new document

If you would like further information or
would like to elect for website delivery of
shareholder communications please visit
www shareview co uk ar telephone the
Shareholder Helpline

British Land

Annual Genera! Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of The

British Land Company PLC will be

held at The Mentcalm London Marble Arch
34-40 Great Cumberland Place London
WiH 7TWon 19 2uly 2016 at 11 60am

ShareGift

Shareholderswith a small number of shares
the value of which makes 1 unecanomic o sell
tham may wish to consider donaung them te
the charity ShareGift [registered charry
1052586} which specialises inusing such
holdings for charitable benefit

A ShareGit transfer form ¢an be obtained
from Equinits

For further information contact

ShareGift

17 Carlion House Terrace
London SWIY SAH

Telephone +44 (0120 79303737
Webhsite www sharegift org

Unsolicited mail

On request British Land s tegally required to
make 1ts share register available to other
arganisalions The Mailling Preference Service
15 anindependent arganisation offering free
services to help reduce the amount of
unsolicited mail you receive

For more mnformahion or to register visit
www mpsonline org uk

Registered office
The British Land Company PLC s registerad
office is

York House

£5 Seymour Sireet

London W1H 7LX

Telephone +44 {0120 7486 4464
Fax +«44 10120 79355552
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Other information

GLOSSARY

Adjusted net debt 1s the Group net debt and

the Group s share of joint venture and funds net
debt exctuding the mark-lo-market on effective
cash flow hedges and related debl adjustments
and non-controtung interests Areconciliation
between Group net debt and adwsted net debt
s included in Table A within the supplementary
disclosures

Annualised rent 15 the gross property rant
raceivable on a cash basis as at the repariing
date Addihionally 1t includes the external
valuers estimate of additipnal rent in respect of
unsettled rent review turnaver rent and sundry
income such as Lhat from car parks and
cemmercialisatton less any ground rents
payable under head leases

Assets under management 1s the fult value

of all assets owned and managed by British
Land and includes 100% of the vaive of all joint
ventures and funds

BREEAM [Buitding Research Establishment
Eavironmental Assessment Method) assesses
the sustainability of buildings against a range
of social and environmental criteria

Capital return s calculaled as the change

in capital value oi Lthe UK portfolio less any
capital expenditure incurred expressed as
a percentage of capital employed [start value
plus capital expenditure] over the periad

as calculated by IPD Capital returns are
calculated monthly and indexed to provide

a return over the relevant period

Capped rents are rents subject to a maximum
level of uplift at the specified rent reviews as
agreed at the time of letiing

Collar rents are rents subject to a mmimum
level of uplift at the specified rent reviews as
agreed ai the tirme of letting

Contracted rent s the annualised rent
adjusting for the inclusion of rent subject
o rent-free periods

Customer salisfaction includes consumers
aswell as occupiers Thisincludes exit survey
data for consumer satisfaction in the relail
business as well as office and retait occupier
satisfaction scores and in future we aimto

be able to further expand to inctude consumer
satisfaction for athar seclors
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Developer s profit is the proht on cost
estimated oy the valuers that a developer
would expect The developer s profitis typically
celculated by the valuers o be a percentage

of the estimated {otal development cosls
including land and notienal finance costs

Development uplift is the total increase

in the vatue {after taking account of capital
expenditure and capitalised interest] of
properues held for development during the
period It alsaincludes any developer s profit
recogmised by valuersin the periad

Development cost 15 the total cost of
construction ef 2 project to comptetion
excluding site values and finance costs ltinance
costs are assumed by the valuers at a notionat
rate of 5% per annum]|

EPRA s the European Public Real Estate
Asscciation the mdustry bedy for
European RElTs

EPRA Cost Ratio [including direct vacancy
costs) 15 the ratio of net overheads and

oper ating expenses against gross renial
income [with beth amounts excluding ground
rents payable] Net overheads and operating
expenses relate 1o all admimistrative and
operating expenses inciuding the share of joinl
ventures overheads and operaling expenses
net ol any service fees recharges or other
income speciically intended Lo cover overhead
and property expenses

EPRA Cost Ratio [excluding direct vacancy
costs] s the ratio calculated above bulwith
direct vacancy costs removed from net

overheads and operating expenses batance

EPRA earmings 1s the [FRS profit after taxation
attnibutable to sharehelders of the Company
excluding investment and development
property revzluations gamns/losses on
investing and trading property disposals
changes in the farr value o! financial
instruments and associated close-out costs
and their related taxation These items are
presented In the capilal and other column of the
income statement Arecenciialion belween
profit atiributable to shareholders of the
Company and EPRA earnings 1s included in
Table B withun the Supplementary Disclosures

EPRA NAV per share 1s EPRA NAV divided by
the diluted number of shares at Lhe periot end
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EPRA net asset value [EPRANAV] s a
proportionatly consolidated measure
representing the IFRS net assets excluding the
mark-to-market on effeclive cash flow hedges
and related debt adjustments the mark-to-
market on the converubte bands as well as
deferred taxation on property and derivative
vatuations 1t ncludes the valuanon surplus

on tracing properties and s adjusted for the
dilutive impact of share options and the

£400 milbon convertible bond maturing in 2017
A reconciliation between (FRS net assets and
EPRA NAV s included in Table B within the
Supplementary Disclosures

EPRA netimitial yield (s the annualised

rents generated by the portfolio after the
deduclion of an estimate of annual recurring
irrecoverable property oulgoings expressed
as a percentage of the portioito valuation
{adding notional purchaser s costs! excluding
development and restdential properues

EPRA NNNAV is the EPRA NAV adjusted to
reflect the farr value of deht and derivalives and
Lo Include deterred {axabion on revaluations

EPRA Topped-Up Net imtial Yield 1s the current
annuatised rent net of costs topped-up for
contracted uplbits where lhese are not in beu
of rental growth expressed as a percentage of
capital value after adding netionat purchaser s
costs excluding development and residential
properties

EPRAvacancy rate s the estimated market
rental value [ERV] of vacani space divided by
ERV cf the whole portfolic excluding
developments and residential property

Estimated Rental Value [ERV} 15 the extarnal
valuers opinicn as to the open market rent
which on the date of valuation could reasonably
be expected to be obtained ona new letling or
rent review of a property

ERV growth s the change in ERV over a

period an the standing investment properuies
expressed as a percentage of the ERV at the
start of the period ERV growth s caicutated
monihly and compeounded for the period subject
to measuremenl as calculated by IPD

Fair value movement 1s an accounung

' adjustment to change the book value of

an assel or bability to iIts market value

Footfall 1s the annualised number of
visitors entering our assets

' Footfall grewth mavement in {ootfall against

the same persod in the prior year on properlies
owned throughout both comparable periods
aggregated at 100% share




Gross investment activity as measured by
cur share of acquisiions sales and investment
in cemmutled development

Gross rental income 1s Lthe gross accounting
rent receivabte [quoted either for the period or
on an annualised basisl prepared under IFRS
which requires that rental income from fixed/
minmum guaranteed rent reviews and tenant
incentives 1s spread on a sirasght-line basis
over the entire lease i first break This can
resuttinincome being recognised ahead of
cash flow

Groupis The Briush Land Company PLC and
11s subsidiaries and excludes its share of joint
ventures and funds (where not lreated as a
subsidiaryl an a lne-by-lina basis i e not
propertionally conselidated)

Headline rent s the centracted gross renl
recervable which becomes payable afler alt the
tenant incentives mn the ietting have expired

IFRS are the Intzrnatienal Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by Lhe European Union

Income return is calculated 25 net income
expressed as a percentage of capital employed
over the period as calculated by IPD Income
returns are calculated monihly and indexed

to provide a return over the relevant period

Interest caver is the number of times nel
Interest payable s covered by Underlying Profit
before netinterest payable and laxation

IPD is Investment Property Databank Lid
which produces independent benchmarks
of property returns and British Land UK
portfolio returns

Lettings and lease renewals are compared
both to the pravious passtng rent as at the start
of the financial year and the ERV immedately
prior to letting Both comparisons are made

on a net effective basis

Letting performance agatnst ERV comparison
of achieved letbing terms on long term lettings
and renewals agarnst valuaticn assumplions on
like-for-like space caleuiated on a net effective
basis aggregated at 100% share

Leverage see loan to vatue [LTV]

' Like-for-ltke rental income growth 1s the

growth m net rental Income on properties
ownad throughout the current and previous
periods under review This growth rate includes
revenue recognition and lease accounting
adjustrments but exciudes properties hetd for
development iy elther periog and praperties
with guaranteed rent reviews

Loan to value [LTV) 15 Lhe ratio of principal
value of gross debt less cash shortterm
deposits and liquid Investments to the
aggregate value of properues and investmenls

Managed partfolio consists of multi-{et
properties whare we have contrel of facilites
and utiliies management

Mark-to-market is the difference between
the book value of an asset or Liability and 1ts
market value

Multi-channel retailing I1s the use of &
variety af channels in a customer s shopping
experience Including research before a
purchase Such ¢hannels include retait

stares online stores mobile stores mobile app
storas telephone sales and any other method
of transacting with a customer Transacting
includes browsing buying returming as welt

as pre- and post-sale service

Net Development Value 15 the estimated end
value of a development project as determunad
by the external valuers for when the building
1s campieted and fully let [laking into account
tenant incentives and nolional purchaser s
costs] His hased on the valuers view on ERVs
yietds letting voids and tenant incentives

Net effective rent Is the coniracled gross rent
receivable taking into account any rent-free
period or other tenant incentives The
incenlives are tlreated as a cost-to-rent

and spread over the lease to the earliast
termination daie

Net equivatent yield 15 the weighted average
tncorng return after adding nouonal
purchaser s cosls) a property will produce
based upon the trming of the iIncome receved
In accordance with usual practice the
equivalent yields [as determined by the
external valuers| assume rent 1s recerved
annually in arrears

Net lmitral Yield 15 the current annualised
rent net of costs expressed as a percentage
of capital value after adding notional
purchaser s casts

British Land

Net rental income 15 the rental income
receivable in the period after payment of direct
oroperty outgoings which typically compnise
ground rents payable under head leases void
€0sls nel service charge expenses and othar
directirrecoverable propertly expenses Net
rental Income 15 quoted on an accounting basis
Net rental income will differ from annualised
nel cash rents and passtng rent due to the
elflects af income from rent reviews net
property cuigoings and accounting adjusiments
for fixed and minimum contracied rent reviews
and leasewicentives

Net reversionary yield 1s the anticipated yieid
to which the iniual yield wilt rise |or falli once
the rent reachas the estimaled rental value

Occupancy rate is the estimated renial

value of let units as a percentage of the total
estimated rental value of the portfolic excluding
development and residentiat properues It
mnctudes accommodation under offer subject to
asset management [where they have been taken
back for refurbishment and are not availabie to
let as at the balance sheet date) or occupied by
the Group

Omni-channel retailing 15 the evolution of
mutti-channel relailing butis concentrated
more on a seamless approach Lo the consumer
expenence through alt available shopping
channelsi e mobile internet devices
computers bricks and mortar television

radio direct mail catalogue elc

Over rented |5 the term used Lo describe when
the contracted rent 15 above the astimated
rental value [ERY]

Qverall topped-up netimtial yield 1s the
EPRA topped-up Net Iniial Yield adding ail
contracied uplifts to the annualised rents
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Other information

GLOSSARY CONTINUED

Passing rent 1s the gross rent less any ground
renl payable under head leases

Property lncome Dhistributions (PIDs) are
profits distributed to shareholders which are
subject to tax in the hands of the shareholders
as property income PIDs are normally paid
net of withholding tax currently at 2% which
the REIT pays 1o the tax autharities on behatf
ol the shareholder Certain types of shareholder
lie pension funds] are tax exempt and recelve
P1Ds without withholding tax REITs also pay
out normal dividends called non-PI0s

which are taxed in the same way as dividends
recewved from non-REIT companies these
are not subject to withhelding tax and tor UK
individuat shareholders qualify for the tax

free dividend allowance

Portfolio valuatien is reported by the
Group s exiermalvaluers In accordance
with usual practice they repertvaluations
net after the deduction of the notronal
purchaser s costs inctuding stamp duty
land tax, agent and legal fees

Proportionally consolidated measures include
the Group s share of joint ventures and funds
and exclude non-conltroliing interestsin the
Group s subsidiaries

Rack rented is the lerm used ta describe when
the contracted rent1s in Line with the estimated
rentat value [ERVI implying a nil reversion

Rent-free period see Tenant [or leasel
Incentives

REITs are property companies that altow
people and organisations to (wvest in
commercial property end recewe benelits

as if they directly ownad the properties
themselves Tha rentalincome alter costs

15 passed directly lo sharehalders in the form
of dividends Inthe UK REITs are required to
distribute at least 90% of their tax exempt
properiyincome to shareholders as dividends
As aresult overtime asignificant proportion
of the total return for shareholders is likely to
come from dividends The effect ts that Laxation
1s maved {rom the corporate level to the
invesior level as invastors are Liable for

tax as if they owned the property direcily
British Land became a REIT in January 2007

Rent reviews iake place at intervals agreedin
the lease {typically every five years] and their
purpese Is usually to adjust the rent to the
current markel level ai the review date For
upwards-only rent reviews the rent will either
remain at the same level orincrease [if market
rents have increased) al the review date
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Rents with fixed and mmimum uplifts are
either where rents are subject to coniracted
upliits al a level agreed at the ime of letiing
orwhereg the rentis subject ie an agreed
miimum level of uphft at the specriied

rent review

Retailer sales growth movement in retailer
sales against the same period in the prior
year on occupiers providing sales data
throughout both comparable periods
aggregated at 100% share

Retatl planning consents are separated
between Al A2 and A3 - as set oulin The Town
and Country Planming [Use Classes] Order
Within the Al category Open Al permission
allows for the majority of types of relail
including fashion to be accommodated while
Restricted At permission places limits on the
types of retait that can operate lfor example

a restriction that only bulky goods operators
are atlowed to trade at that site]

Use for all/any of the following
purpases

Class Description

Al Shops retaill warehouses
hairdressers undertakers
travel and tucket agencies,
postoffices pat shops,
sandwich bars showrooms
domestic fure shops dry
cleaners funeral diractors
and snternet cafas

Financial and Financial services such

professional as banks and bulding

SErvices socielies professional
services {other than health
and medical services)
including estate and
employment agencies
It does notinclude betling
offices or pay ¢ay loan shops
- these are now classed as
SUI QENENS USES

For the sale of lood and
drink for consumption on
Ihe premises - restaurants
snack bars and cafes

Cinemas music and concert
halls bingo and dance halls
{but not night clubs|
swimming baths skating
rinks gymnasiums or areas
forindoor or utdoor sports
and recreations

Shops

AZ

A3 Restauranis

and cales

D2  Assemily

and leisure

Reversion s the iIncrease in rent estimated by
the external valuers where the passing rentis
below the estimazled rental value The increases
i rent arise on rant reviews and letting of
vacant space or re-tetiing of expiries

British Land  Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Scnip dividend British Land may offer its

" sharehalders the opportunity 1o receive

divaends in the form of shares instead
af cash Thisis known as a Scrip dvidend

Standing investments ara assets which are
directly held and not in the course of or held
tor development

Tenant lor lease] incentives are Ingentives
oflfered to occupiers Lo enter intc a lease
Typically this will be an inttial rent-free period
or a cash contribution ta ht-out Under
accounting rules the value of lease incentives
15 amarlised through the income statement
on a straight-lne basis to the earliest lease
termmation date

TMT stands for technology media and
tetecommunicalions

The residual site value of a development 1s
calculated as the estimated [net] developmenit
value less development profit all development
construction costs finance costs lassumed at
a notional rate) of a project to completion and

" noticnal site acqusition costs The residual

1s determined to be the current site value

Topping out1s a tradiional consti uction
cerameny le mark the occasion when
the siruclure of the buillding reaches
lhe highest point

Total property return s calculated as the
change in capital value less any cepital
expenditure incurred plus netincome
axpressed as & percentage of capital employed
ovel the period as calculated by tPD Total
property returns are calculated monthly

and indexed to grovide a return over the
relevant period

Total return [total accounting returnt s the
growth in EFRA NAV per share plus dwvidends
paid and this can be expressed as a percentage
of EPRA NAV per share at the begrnning of

the period

Total shareholder return s Lthe growth in value
of a shareholding over a speciiied persod
assuming dividends are reinvesled to purchase
additienal units of steck

Totat Tax Contribution 1s a more
comprehensive view of tax contributions than
the accountancy-defined tax figure quoted in
mosl hinancial statements (L comprises taxes
and levies pard direcily as well as taxes
coilected from others which we adminustered

Turnover rents 1s where all or a portion
of the rents linked to the sales or turnover
of the occupier




Under rented 1s the tarm used to describe
when the contracied rent s below the
estimated rentat value {ERV] implying a
pasitive revarsien

Underlying earnings per share {EPS) consisis
of Undartying Profit after tax divided by the
diuted werghled average number of shares
missue duning the period

Underlying Profitis the pre-tax EPRA earnings
measure with additional Company adjestimenis
Mo Company adjustrents were made in either

the current or prioryear

Valuation uplift1s the ncrease in the portfolio
valuation and sales receipts of properties sold
during the pertod net of capilal expenditure
capitalised interest and development tearmn
costs and transaclion costs incurred
expressad as a percentage of the portfolio
valuation al the start of the period plus net
capital expenditure capitabised interest and
development leam costs and transaclion costs

Virtual freehold represents a long leasehold
ienure for a penod of up Lo 959 years A
peppercorn ornorninal rentis pard annually

Weighted average debt maturity - each
tranche of Group debt 1s multiplied by the
remaining periad to its maturiy and Lhe sum '
of the results 1s divided by 1otal Group debtin
1ssue at the penod end

Weighted average interest rate 1s the Group
ltaan interast and net dervalive costs per
annum at the period end diwvided by total
Group debtin issue at the period end

1

|

|

!

[

i

|
Weighted average unexpired lease term s X
the average lease term remaining to first break I
or expiry acrass the portfolio weighted by ‘
I

I

|

|

1

contracied rent excluding development and
residential properties

Yield compression occurs when the net
equivalent yietd of a property decreases
measured 1n basis points

Yield on costis the estimated annuat rent of .
the compleied devalopment divided by the total |
cost of development including site value and '
nottonal finance costs ta the point of 35sumed
rent commencement expressed asa
percentage return

Yield shift1s a movement [usually expressed
in bps| 1n the nel equvalent yreld of a propearty )
assel or like-for-Uke portfolio over a given :

period weighted by net capial vatue Yield f '
compression Is a commonly-used {erm for f

areduction inyields
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Forward-looking statements

This Press Release contains certain forward-locking staternents Such
stalements refteci current views on among ether things our markets
acliviies projections objectives and prospects Such forward looking
stalements can sometimes but not always be tdentified by their reference
to a date or pant in the future or the use of forward-looking lerminalogy
including lerms such as believes estimates anlicipates  expects
forecasts intends due plans prejects goal outlook scheduls
target aim may lkelyic will would could should or simidar
expressions or In each case their negative or clher vanations or comparable
terminology By their nature forward-looking statements involve inherent
nisks assumptions and uncertaintles because they relate o future events
and depend on circumstances which may or may not occur and may be
heyond aur abiity 1o centrol or predict Forward-looking statements should
be regarded with caution as actual results may differ materiatly from those
expressed n orimplied by such staterments

tmportant factors that could cause actual results periormance or
achievernents of Briush Land to differ matenatly from any outcomes or
results expressed ar implied by such forward-locking statemenis include
among other things [a} general business and political secialand econonmic
conditiens globalty bl the outcome and consequences of the relerencum on
Britain leaving the EU (<] industry and market trends (including demand in
the property invesirnent market and property price volatility] [d] campetiion
{el Ihe behaviour of other market participants (Il changes in government and
other regulation including :n relation to the envirgnmaent heatth and safety
and taxation [in parucular in respect of British Land s status as a Real Estate
Investment Trust) [g)inflation and consumer confidence [h) labour relalions
and work stoppages |1 natural disasters and adverse weather cenditions

{{) terrorism and acts of war [k] Briush Land s overall business siralegy

risk appebite and nvestrmen. cheuces nits portfclie management (U] legal

or other proczedings against or affecting British Land {m] reliatte and
secure [Tinfrastruciure [nl changes in occupier demand and tenani default
[o] changes in financial and equily markets including interest and exchange
rate fluctuations [p] changes in accounting practices and the interpretation
of accounting standards and [g) the availability and cost of finance The
Company s principal risks are describad i greater detai in the section

ol this Press Release headed Managing risk in delivering our sirategy
Forward-looking statements m thrs Press Release or the British Land
website or made subsequently which are attributable to British Land or
persons acting on its behalf should therefore be construed in light of

all such factors ,
Information contained in this Press Release relating tc British Land orits
share price or the yield on its shares are not guarantees of and shoutd not

be relied upon asan indicator of future performance and nathing ip thrs
Press Release should be construed as a proht forecast Any farward-looking
slatements made by or on behalf of Britsh Land speak only as of the date thay
are made Such forward-looking statements are expressly qualified in their
entirely by the facters relerred (o abave and no represenlation assurance
guarantee or warranly 15 given in retation te them fwhether by British Land

or any of s assaciates Directors officers employees or advisers} including
as to their completeness accuracy or the basis on which they were prepared

Other than 1n accordance with our legal and regulatory obligations fincluding
under the UK Financial Conduct Autherity s Listing Rules and Disclosure
Rules and Transparency Rules] British Land does net intend or undertaka to
update or revise forward-looking slatements to reflectany changes in Erttish
Land s expectations with regard thereto or any changes ininfermatien
events conditions or csrcumstances onwhich any such statement 15 based
This decument shall not under any circumstances create any implication
thal there has been no change In the business or affairs of Briish Land since
the date of this document or that the information contained hereinis correct
as at any ime subsequeni to this date
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